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NOTICE OF THE 15th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING  

 

Notice is hereby given that the 15th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the mem-

bers of DMI Finance Private Limited (“the Company”) will be held on Thursday, 

September 28, 2023 at Express Building, 3rd Floor, 9-10 Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg, 

New Delhi 110002 at 1700 hours onwards to transact the following business: 

 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Annual audited standalone and 

consolidated financial statements of the Company for the financial year 

ended March 31, 2023 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and the 

Auditors thereon; and  

 

2. To approve re-appointment of Statutory Auditors of the Company: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 141 and 142 and 

other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, read with rules made 

there under Guidelines for Appointment of Statutory Central Auditors 

(SCAs)/Statutory Auditors (“SAs”) of Commercial Banks (excluding RRBs), UCBs 

and NBFCs (including HFCs) (including any statutory modification or re-enactment 

thereof for time being in force) dated April 27, 2021 issued by the Reserve Bank of 

India (“RBI Guidelines”) and Articles of Association of the Company and all other 

rules, regulations, guidelines, notifications, clarifications and circulars, if any, issued 

by any Statutory/Regulatory Authorities, as may be applicable, and as per the recom-

mendation received from the Board of Directors of the Company, M/s. S.N. Dhawan 

& Co LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.: 000050N/N500045) who 

have offered themselves for re-appointment and have confirmed their eligibility to be 

appointed as Statutory Auditors, be and is hereby re-appointed as Statutory Auditors 

of the Company for the financial year 2023-24 (3rd  year out of the term of 3 years), 

subject to the fulfilment of the eligibility norms each year during its tenure at such 

remuneration plus taxes, etc., as may be mutually agreed between the Board of Direc-

tors of the Company and the Auditors. The auditors shall also provide the relevant 

certificates at a price agreed along with statutory audit fees as may be required under 

various statutory or regulatory requirements. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above, Mr. 

Shivashish Chatterjee, Mr. Yuvraja Chanakya Singh, Jt. Managing Directors and Mr. 

Annexure- VI
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Sahib Pahwa, Head-CS & Compliance of the Company are hereby severally author-

ized to take all actions and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as they may, 

in their absolute discretion, deem necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect in-

cluding but not limited to intimating the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) or any other 

regulatory authority as applicable for such appointment and to do all acts, deeds and 

things in connection therewith and incidental thereto as they in their absolute discre-

tion deem fit without being required to seek any further consent or approval of the 

members or otherwise to the end. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

 

3. To regularize the appointment of Mr. Masakazu Osawa as a Nominee 

Director of the Company: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the (a) Share Subscription Agreement dated March 

31, 2023 executed by and amongst the Company, DMI Limited, MUFG Bank, Lim-

ited, Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Limited, Shivashish Chatterjee and Yuvraja 

Chanakya Singh; (b) Shareholder Agreement dated March 31, 2023 executed by and 

amongst the Company, DMI Limited, DMI Income Fund Pte Limited, NIS Ganesha 

SA, Windy Investments Private Limited, MUFG Bank, Limited, Sumitomo Mitsui 

Trust Bank Limited, Shivashish Chatterjee and Yuvraja Chanakya Singh;  (c) provi-

sions of Section 161 (3) and Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, (as amended 

from time to time); (d) provisions of the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications 

of Directors) Rules, 2014 (as amended from time to time); and (e) any other provi-

sions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder (as amended from 

time to time) (f) applicable provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company, 

approval of the Members is hereby accorded for the appointment of Mr. Masakazu 

Osawa, (DIN: 10138005) as a Nominee Director on the Board of the Company with 

immediate effect. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Masakazu Osawa shall perform duties as pre-

scribed under Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder, and any additional 

duties as may be prescribed by the Board. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for giving effect to this resolution, the Members  

be and are hereby severally authorize Mr. Shivashish Chatterjee and Mr. Yuvraja 

Chanakya Singh Jt. Managing Directors and Mr. Sahib Pahwa, Head- CS & Compli-

ance of the Company to take all actions and do all such deeds, matters and things as it 

may, in its absolute discretion, deem necessary, desirable or expedient to effect to any 

as may be deemed appropriate, and to do all acts, deeds and things in connection 

therewith and incidental thereto as the Board in its absolute discretion deem fit with-

out being required to seek any further consent or approval of the Members or other-

wise to the end and intent that they shall be deemed to have given their approval 

thereto expressly by the authority of this resolution. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Shivashish Chatterjee, Mr. Yuvraja Chanakya 

Singh, Jt. Managing Director and Mr. Sahib Pahwa, Head CS & Compliance of the 

Company be and hereby severally authorized to file all necessary forms including in-
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timations/reporting to the Registrar of Companies, Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and 

other regulatory authorities and to do all acts, deeds and things as may be required for 

giving effect to the aforesaid resolution. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT a certified copy of this Resolution may be provid-

ed to all concerns as and when required under the hand of any Director and/or Com-

pany Secretary of the Company.” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Date: August 14, 2023 By the Order of the Board                                                                                                  

Place: New Delhi                                   For DMI Finance Private Limited 

                                                

 

Sd/- 

 

Sahib Pahwa 

Head- Compliance and Company Secretary 

A24789 

                                                                                        Express Building, 3rd Floor, 

9-10,  

Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg, New Delhi- 110002 
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT ANNEXED TO THE NOTICE OF THE 

EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING OF THE COMPANY PURSUANT 

TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

 

ITEM NO. 3: TO REGULARIZE THE APPOINTMENT OF MR. MASAKAZU 

OSAWA AS NOMINEE DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY 

 

The Members are apprised that pursuant to the (a) Share Subscription Agreement dat-

ed March 31, 2023 executed by and amongst the Company, DMI Limited, MUFG 

Bank, Limited, Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Limited, Shivashish Chatterjee and Yu-

vraja Chanakya Singh; and (b) Shareholder Agreement dated March 31, 2023 execut-

ed by and amongst the Company, DMI Limited, DMI Income Fund Pte Limited, NIS 

Ganesha SA, Windy Investments Private Limited, MUFG Bank, Limited, Sumitomo 

Mitsui Trust Bank Limited, Shivashish Chatterjee and Yuvraja Chanakya Singh, Mr. 

Masakazu Osawa, (DIN: 10138005) was appointed as an Additional Director in the 

category of Nominee Director in the Board Meeting held on May 22, 2023. 

 

In furtherance, now there is a requirement to regularize his appointment as a Nominee 

Director on the Board of the Company as per the provisions of Section 161 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder for which approval of the Mem-

bers is hereby requested. 

 

The Resolutions as set out in Item no. 03 of the Notice for obtaining approval of the 

shareholders to regularize the appointment of Mr. Masakazu Osawa as a Nominee 

Director will be placed before the meeting for approval of the members. 

 

Your Directors recommend the approval of the proposed resolution by the Members 

as Special Resolution to regularize the appointment of Mr. Masakazu Osawa as 

Nominee Director. 

 

None of the Directors of the Company are directly or indirectly concerned or interest-

ed, financially or otherwise in the aforestated resolution. 

 

Date: August 14, 2023 By the Order of the Board                                                                                                  

  Place: New Delhi                                   For DMI Finance Private Limited 

                                                 

 

Sd/- 

 

Sahib Pahwa 

Head- Compliance and Company Secretary 

A24789 

                                                                                        Express Building, 3rd Floor, 

9-10, Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg, New Delhi- 110002 
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Notes: 

 

1. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 

2013, which sets out details relating to Special Business at the AGM is an-

nexed hereto. 

 

2. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL 

GENERAL MEETING (THE “MEETING”) IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT 

A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON A POLL INSTEAD OF 

HIMSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE 

COMPANY. A person can act as proxy on behalf of member not exceeding fif-

ty (50) and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total 

share capital of the Company. 

 

3. The instrument appointing the proxy should, however, be deposited at the 

registered office of the Company any time before the commencement of the 

Meeting. A Proxy Form is annexed to this Report. 

 

4. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to at-

tend the Meeting are requested to send a duly certified true copy of the Board 

Resolution authorizing their representatives to attend and vote at the AGM.  

 

5. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their share-

holding-maintained u/s 184 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be available for 

inspection by the members electronically during the AGM. All documents re-

ferred to in the Notice will also be available for electronic inspection without 

any fee by the Members during the AGM. Members seeking to inspect such 

documents can send an e-mail to sahib.pahwa@dmifinance.in 

 

6. Members/ Proxies should fill in the attendance slip for attending the AGM. 

Attendance slip and the proxy form as prescribed under the Companies Act, 

2013 is enclosed with the Notice. 

 

7. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is 

higher in the order of names will be entitled to vote. 

 

8. The relevant documents referred to in the proposed resolutions are available 

for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during business hours 

on working days except on holidays, upto the date of the AGM. 

 

9. Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far, are request-

ed to register their e-mail address for receiving all communication from the 

Company electronically. 
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mailto:sahib.pahwa@dmifinance.in


                                           

 

Registered Office: 

Express Building, 3rd Floor, 

9-10, Bahadur Shah Zafar 

Marg, New Delhi-110002 

T: +91 11 41204444 

F: +91 11 41204000 

email: dmi@dmifinance.in 

U65929DL2008PTC182749 

 

 

 

DMI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED 

 

10. The Board of Directors of the Company (“the Board”) has appointed M/s. 

VLA & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries as the Scrutinizer 

(“Scrutinizer”), for conducting the voting process in a fair & transparent 

manner. The Members shall caste their vote on resolution as set out in notice 

only by sending an email to compliance@dmifinnace.in or vlocconsult-

ant@gmail.com through their email addresses registered with the Company 

in Form No. MGT-12. 

 

11. The Scrutinizer shall make a scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in fa-

vour or against, invalid votes, if any, and whether the resolution has been 

approved or not, and such Report shall then be sent to the Chairperson or a 

person authorized by him, during the meeting after voting of result by poll is 

carried out, the Chairman shall then countersign and declare the result of the 

voting forthwith. 

12. The members if need any assistance with using the technology before or dur-

ing the meeting shall contact at +919910992470. 

 

13. Landmark for location of meeting is ITO Office. Route map of the location is 

attached with the notice.  
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MGT-11 – Proxy form 

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Com-

panies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

 

Name of the member (s): 

Registered address: 

E-mail Id: 

Folio No/ Client Id: 

DP ID: 

 

I/We, being the member (s) of …………shares of the DMI Finance Private Limited, 

hereby appoint  

 

1.  Name: _______________________________  

    E-mail Id: ___________________________________________ 

    Address: 

_________________________________________________________________                                                                                                                         

    Signature: ____________________________________ 

 

 

Or failing him 

 

2. Name: _______________________________  

    E-mail Id: ___________________________________________ 

    Address: 

_________________________________________________________________                                                                                                                       

    Signature: ____________________________________ 

 

Or failing him 

 

3. Name: _______________________________  

    E-mail Id: ___________________________________________ 

    Address: 

_________________________________________________________________                                                                                                                          

    Signature: ____________________________________ 

 

PROXY FORM 
 

mailto:dmi@dmifinance.in
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as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at 15th 

Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, September 28, 

2023 at Express Building, 3rd Floor, 9-10 Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg, New Delhi 

110002 at 1700 hours and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as 

are indicated below: 

 

 

 

Resolution 

No. 

Resolutions Optional* 

For Against 

Ordinary Businesses: 

1.  
To receive, consider and adopt the annual audited 

standalone and consolidated financial statements of 

the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 

2023 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and 

the Auditors thereon. 

  

2.  
To approve re-appointment of Statutory Auditors of 

the Company 

  

Special Business: 

3.  To Regularize the appointment of Mr. Masakazu 

Osawa as a Nominee Director of the Company 

  

 

*Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form. 

 

Signed this…… day of……… 2023 

 

______________________________ 

Signature of shareholder 

 

______________________________ 

Signature of Proxy holder(s) 

 

Notes:  

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and de-

posited at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before 

the commencement of the meeting. 

 

2. A Proxy need not be a member of the Company. 

 

3. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and 

holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the 

Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than 10% of the to-

tal share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single 

 

Affix 

Revenue 

Stamp 
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person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person 

or shareholder. 

 

4. *This is only optional. Please put an ‘X’ in the appropriate column against the 

resolutions indicated in the Box. If you leave the ‘For’ or ‘Against’ column 

blank against any or all the resolutions, your Proxy will be entitled to vote in 

the manner as he/she thinks appropriate. 

 

5. Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in 

person if he so wishes. 

 

6. In the case of joint holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient, 

but names of all the joint holders should be stated. 
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Please fill attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the meeting hall 

Joint shareholders may obtain additional Slip at the venue of the meeting. 

 

Name and address of the shareholder/Proxy: 

_______________________________________________________ 

Folio No.: _________________________________ 

ID & Client ID*: ____________________________________ 

No. of Shares held: ______________________________ 

 

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the 15th Annual General Meeting of the Com-

pany to be held on Thursday, September 28, 2023 at Express Building, 3rd Floor, 9-10 

Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg, New Delhi 110002 at 1700 hours. 

 

Signature of the Shareholder or Proxy**:  

 

 

_____________________________________________________________ 

*Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form. 

**Strike out whichever is not applicable 

 

 

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

---------- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTENDANCE SLIP 
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Route Map of Venue of Meeting 
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FORM NO. MR-3 

 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31st MARCH, 2023 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 

Rules, 2014] 

 

To, 

The Members, 

DMI Finance Private Limited 

Express Building, 3rd Floor 9-10,   

Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg, 

New Delhi - 110002 

 

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory 

provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by DMI Finance Private 

Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a 

manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 

conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

 

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and 

returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information 

provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during 

the conduct of Secretarial Audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, 

during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2023 

complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has 

proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the 

manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 

records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2023 

according to the provisions of: 

 

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;  

 

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made 

thereunder- To the extent applicable to Debt Listed company; 

 

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed 

thereunder; 
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iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made 

thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment (FDI); 

 

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-  

 

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015- To the extent applicable to 

Debt Listed Company; 

 

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of 

Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011- Not applicable during the 

audit period under review; 

 

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider 

Trading) Regulations, 2015- Not applicable during the audit period 

under review; 

  

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, [erstwhile The SEBI (Issue 

of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009]- Not 

applicable during the audit period under review; 

 

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee 

Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021- Not applicable during the 

audit period under review; 

 

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-

Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021,;- To the extent applicable to 

Debt Listed Company; 

 

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and 

Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act 

and dealing with client;- To the extent applicable to Debt Listed 

Company; 

 

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 

Regulations, 2021- Not applicable during the audit period under 

review; and 

 

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) 

Regulations, 2018 - Not applicable during the audit period under 

review. 

 

vi. Other  laws as applicable specifically to the Company: 

 

a. Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and rules, regulations & directions 

issued from time to time. 
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I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:  

 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of 

India (ICSI) with respect to Board and General Meetings. 

 

(ii) SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015. 

 

During the year under review, the Company has complied with the 

provisions of the Act, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. 

mentioned above. 

 

 

I further report that: 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of 

Executive and Non-Executive Directors. There was change in the composition of the 

Board of Directors during the year under the review as follows: 

 

1. Mr. Tammir Amr resigned from the directorship of the Company w.e.f 14th 

November, 2022. 

2. Mr. Alfred Victor Mendoza was appointed as the nominee director of the Company 

w.e.f. 14th November, 2022. 

 

Adequate notices, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were given to all directors to 

schedule the Board Meetings in compliance with the provisions of the Act, and a 

system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the 

agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

 

The resolutions were passed at all the meetings by the requisite majority and there 

were no instances of the dissent which were required to be captured and recorded as 

part of the minutes. 

 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company 

commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure 

compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

 

Further I report that during the audit period, the Company has taken the following 

major decisions: 

 

 1. Memorandum of Association of the Company were amended / substituted / 

inserted at Extraordinary General Meeting held on 15th November, 2022 by passing 

Special Resolution for the same. 
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 2. During the financial year under review, the company made allotment of the 

following securities: 

 

S. 

No

. 

Date of 

allotment 

Type of 

issue 

Type of 

security 

No of 

security 

allotted 

Face 

value 

(In Rs.) 

Premiu

m 

(In Rs.) 

 

1. 21st 

October, 

2022 

Private 

placement 

Senior, Secured, 

Rated, Listed, 

transferable, 

taxable, 

redeemable, 

principal 

protected 

market linked 

non-convertible 

debentures 

1,500 10,00,000 - 

 

 

 

 

2. 03rd 

November, 

2022 

Preferential 

allotment 

Convertible 

Share warrants 

2,630 10 84.10 

 

 

3. 05th 

December, 

2022 

ESOP Equity Share 19,392 10 36.74 

5,808 10 85.49 

4,823 10 103.00 

7,528 10 106.36 

4. 

  

14th 

February, 

2023 

ESOP Equity Share 1,489 10 33.90 

1,218 10 36.74 

32,749 10 3.29 

1,689 10 85.49 

 

For VLA & Associates 

(Company Secretaries) 

 

 

 

Sd/- 

Vishal Lochan Aggarwal 

(Proprietor) 

FCS No.: 7241 

Place: New Delhi             C P No.: 7622 

Date: 22.07.2023           UDIN: F007241E000660520 

 

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “Annexure-

1” and forms an integral part of this report. 
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To,                      Annexure-1 

The Members, 

DMI Finance Private Limited 

Express Building, 3rd Floor, 9-10,  

Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg, 

New Delhi – 110002 

  

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

 

Management's Responsibility:- 

 

1. Maintenance of secretarial records and other records under the scope/ambit of 

Secretarial Audit (hereinafter called ‘Record’) is the responsibility of the 

management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on 

these records based on my audit. 

 

2. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 

regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was 

limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

 

Auditor's Responsibility:- 

 

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards 

and procedures followed by the Company with respect to secretarial 

compliances. 

 

4. We believe that audit evidence and information obtained from the Company's 

management is adequate and appropriate for us to provide a basis for our 

opinion. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial 

records and Books of Accounts of the Company.  

 

5. Wherever required, I have obtained the management representation about the 

compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.  

 

Disclaimer:-  

 

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the 

Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has 

conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

  

 Sd/- 

Vishal Lochan Aggarwal 

(Proprietor) 

FCS No.: 7241 

Place: New Delhi             C P No.: 7622 

Date: 22.07.2023             UDIN: F007241E000660520 



 
 

DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

Dear Members,   

DMI Finance Private Limited 

The Board of Directors (“Board”) of DMI Finance Private Limited (“DMI/Company”) are pleased to present 

their 15th Director’s Report along with the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 

2023. This Report read with the Management Discussion and Analysis included details of the macroeconomic 

scenario, Company’s performance and various initiatives taken by the Company. 

 

FINANCIAL RESULTS                             

The standalone and consolidated financial highlights of your Company are as follows:          

 

Consolidated Financials 

(₹ in Million) 

Particulars Consolidated 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Revenue from Operations   16,434.52  9,036.06 

Other Income 185.90  163.05 

Total Income 16,620.42  9,199.11 

Total Expenditure 12,295.46  8,393.90 

Profit/(Loss) before Taxation 4,324.96  805.21 

Tax Expenses/(Credits) 1,125.10 218.61 

Profit/(Loss) for the year 3,199.86  586.60 

Share of Profit of Associate (54.67)  (3.57) 

Net profit after taxes and Share in profit of Associate 3,145.19  583.03 

Capital Redemption Reserve 81.21 81.21 

Reserve Fund u/s Sec 45 IC of RBI Act, 1934 1,741.05  1,093.02  

Balance in Profit/(Loss) Account in balance sheet (Retained 

Earnings) 

8,533.33 5,705.51 

 

Standalone Financials                                                                                                   

(₹ in Million) 

Particulars Standalone 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Revenue from Operations   16,368.82 8,961.76  

Other Income 196.24  144.51 

Total Income 16,565.06  9,106.27 

Total Expenditure 12,186.48  8,324.74 

Profit/(Loss) before Taxation 4,378.58  781.53 

Tax Expenses/(Credits) 1,138.42  203.73 

Profit/(Loss) after Taxation 3,240.16  577.80 

Capital Redemption Reserve 81.21 81.21 

Reserve Fund u/s Sec 45 IC of RBI Act, 1934 1,741.05  1,093.02  

Balance in Profit/(Loss) Account in balance sheet (Retained 

Earnings) 

6,742.67  4,150.54 

 

 



 
 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY 

 

The Company during the financial year 2022-2023 has shown tremendous growth and progression and 

continuous to further upscale its business operations, creativity and its vision. Some of the important 

financial parameters of the Company are mentioned below for your reference: 

 

(₹ in Million) 

Particulars March 2023 March 2022 

Total Revenue 16,565.06  9,106.27  

Total Expenses 12,186.48   8,324.74  

PAT 3,240.16  577.80  

CRAR 50.87% 61.31% 

GNPA 2,706.39 1,196.20  

NNPA 1,101.28 1,660.00  

Net Owned Funds 38,997.43 35,717.75  

 

DIVIDEND 

In order to conserve the cash resources for future growth and expansion plans of the Company, the Board 

does not recommend any interim/final dividend for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

 

AMOUNT PROPOSED TO BE CARRIED TO RESERVES 

The details of the transfer to other reserves as part of regulatory requirements are given below: 
 

Regulatory Reserve u/s 45 (1C) of RBI Act 

In accordance with the provisions of section 45-IC of the RBI Act, 1934, the Company is required to transfer 

an amount equivalent to 20% of profit after tax, to its Statutory Reserve. During the current year, ₹ 648.03 

Million were transferred to the statutory reserve. 

 

The break-up of the amounts/profits proposed to be carried to reserves for FY 2022-23, is set out herein 

below: 

(₹ in Million) 

Particulars FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22 

Reserve Fund u/s Sec 45 IC of RBI Act, 1934 648.03  115.56 

STATE OF COMPANY AFFAIRS 

Share Capital 

During FY 2022-23, the issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Company underwent following 

changes: 

 

Changes in Paid-Up Share Capital 

Allotment of equity to Employees on exercise of ESOP: 

 

The ESOP liquidation event took place during the year and the employees of the company who had received 

ESOP during their employment in the company were given an opportunity to liquidate their ESOPs.  

  

In accordance with the provisions of DMI Employee Stock Option Plan, 2018 and amended ESOP Plan 

2018, the Company allotted 37,551 equity shares for an aggregate consideration of ₹ 2.88 Million to 



 

 

specified employees of the Company on exercise of their stock options in December 2022 and further 

37,190 equity shares were allotted for an aggregate consideration of ₹ 0.71 Million to specified employee 

in February 2023.  

 

Issue of Convertible Share Warrants: 

 

The Company during the financial year under review, issued and allotted 2,630 convertible share warrants 

on November 03, 2022 to eligible employees of the Group Company in accordance with the terms of 

Warrant Subscription Agreement executed between the Company and the Warrant Holders.  
 

BORROWING PROFILE 

The Company maintained an optimum mix of borrowings between bank term loans and capital markets.  

During the Financial year 2022-23, the Company raised debt by means of borrowing from various banks. 

 

During the year under review, the Company had raised ₹21,350 Million by availing the fresh term loan 

facilities and demand loans /cash credit facilities from various banks and financial institutions and the 

details of these are provided below: 

 

S. 

No. 

Type of Security Secured/Un

secured 

Security, if any Amount (₹ in 

Million) 

1 Term Loans Secured Hypothecation of Book 

Debt of the Company 

18,800 

2 Cash Credit / WCDL/OD Secured Hypothecation of Book 

Debt of the Company 

2,550 

 Total   21,350 

 

The Company has been able to maintain strong relationships and raise funds through public sector banks 

like State Bank of India, Bank of Maharashtra, Punjab National Bank, Indian Bank. The Company is 

actively trying to establish new relationships with large public and private sector banks and diversify its 

borrowing profile.  Therefore, as on March 31, 2023, total outstanding bank borrowing of the Company 

stands at ₹ 20,985.70 Million. 

 

Further, the Company issued Market-Linked Debentures (MLDs) and repaid Non- Convertible Debentures 

(NCDs) which matured during the year, hence the total outstanding by way of debt securities of the 

Company as on March 31, 2023, stands at ₹ 16,837.91 Million.  

 

S. No MLD Payment Date Sanctioned Amount (₹ in millions) 

1 INE604O07167 21-10-2022 1500.00 

 

During the year, the Company also ventured out in the Securitization market to issue Pass- Through- 

Certificates and raised ₹ 10,146.42 Million, details of which are given below: 

 

S. No. Securitization Bank Amount raised (₹ in millions) 

1 MOST I Credit Suisse 6,650.39 

2 PLUM II Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited 772.71 

3 PLUM I DCB Bank Limited 1,028.74 

4 PLUM III DCB Bank Limited 1,694.58 

  Total   10,146.42 

 

The amount outstanding as on March 31, 2023, in respect of the above stands at ₹ 2,902.81 Million.  



 

 

 

To summarize, the borrowing mix of the Company consisting of term loans, working capital, cash credit 

limits, debentures and securitization stands as follows as on March 31, 2023: 

 

S. 

No. 

Type of Security Amount outstanding 

(₹ in Million) 

% of total borrowings 

outstanding as on March 31, 

2023 

1 Term Loans 20,489.36 50.31% 

2 Cash Credit / WCDL/OD 496.34 1.22% 

3 Non-Convertible Debentures 16,837.91 41.34% 

4 Securitization 2,902.81 7.13% 

 Total 40,726.42 100.00 % 

 

CREDIT RATING 

 

The Company’s credit rating by various credit rating agencies as on March 31, 2023 are given below: 

 

Type of Borrowing  Rating Agency Amount (₹ 

in Million) 

Rating 

Long Term Bank Facility ICRA Limited 39,620.00 ICRA AA- (Stable) 

Non- Convertible Debentures ICRA Limited 1,000.00 ICRA AA- (Stable) 

Commercial Paper ICRA Limited 3,000.00 ICRA A1+ (Stable) 

Market Linked Debentures ICRA Limited 2,000.00 ICRA AA- (Stable) 

Long Term Bank Facility Care Edge Ratings 2,850.00 CARE AA-; Stable 

Non- Convertible Debentures Care Edge Ratings 500.00 CARE AA-; Stable 

Non- Convertible Debentures 
Brickwork Ratings India 

Private Limited 
500.00 BWR AA-(Stable) 

 

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION  

Human Resources are key to the growth and success of an organization, more so in financial services 

industry. It is therefore imperative to align the interests of the employees and shareholders of the Company. 

Employee Stock Option schemes have been universally accepted as retention and wealth creation tool. 

 

During the financial year under review, 74, 741 stock options were exercised by employees of the Company 

at the exercise price prescribed under various applicable ESOP schemes of the Company and in accordance 

with the provisions of the DMI ESOP Plan 2018 as amended from time to time, subsequent to which equity 

shares of face value of Rs. 10 each were allotted to such employees of the Company.  

 

The disclosures required as per Rule 12(9) of Companies (Share Capital & Debentures) Rules, 2014 with 

respect to ESOP issued by the Company during the year under review are given below: 

 

(a) Options granted: 2,31,48,606  

(b) Options vested: 66,21,962 

(c) Options exercised: 74, 741  

(d) Total number of shares arising as a result of exercise of option: 74, 741  

(e) Options lapsed: 16,70,747  

(f) Exercise price: As per various ESOP Schemes of the Company 

(g) Variation of terms of options: NIL 



 

 

(h) Money realized by exercise of options: ₹  

(i) Total number of options in force: 1,91,23,461  

(j) Employee wise details of options granted during the year:  

(i) Key managerial personnel:  

• Company Secretary- 83,194 

• Chief Financial Officer- 1,54,709  

(ii) Any other employee who receives a grant of options in any one year of option amounting 

to five percent or more of options granted during that year: NIL 

(iii) Identified employees who were granted option, during any one year, equal to or exceeding 

one percent of the issued capital (excluding outstanding warrants and conversions) of the 

company at the time of grants: NIL 

DIRECTORS’ AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

Board Composition 

The composition of the Board follows the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, (“Act”) and 

the rules framed thereunder, guideline(s) issued by the Reserve Bank of India and other applicable laws 

inter alia with respect to appointment of women director and non-executive director(s).  

 

The Board met 8 (Eight) times during the financial year 2022-23 viz. May 20, 2022, August 12, 2022, 

September 28, 2022, October 17, 2022, November 14, 2022, January 11, 2022, February 14, 2023 and 

March 27, 2023. The intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

 

Further, in accordance with Standard 9 of the Secretarial Standards-1 on “Meetings of the Board of 

Directors”, the details on the number of meetings attended by each Director during financial year 2022-23 

is given below: 

 

Name of the Directors Category Number of meetings held during 

the financial year 2022-23 

Held Entitled Attended 

Mr. Tammir Amr Nominee Director 8 5 4 

Mr. Gaurav Burman Nominee Director 8 8 5 

Mrs. Jayati Chatterjee Non- Executive Director 8 8 8 

Mr. Shivashish Chatterjee Joint Managing Director 8 8 7 

Mr. Gurcharan Das Non- Executive Director 8 8 7 

Mr. Nipendar Kochhar Non- Executive Director 8 8 7 

Mr. Alfred Victor Mendoza Nominee Director 8 3 3 

Mrs. Bina Singh Non- Executive Director 8 8 7 

Mr. Yuvraja Chanakya Singh Joint Managing Director 8 8 8 

 

During the year under review, Mr. Tammir Amr resigned from the office of Nominee Director with effect 

from November 14, 2022 and subsequently Mr. Alfred Victor Mendoza was appointed as a Nominee 

Director on the Board and Member of the Committees of the Board with effect from November 14, 2022. 

Further, in accordance with Standard 9 of the Secretarial Standards-1 on “Meetings of the Board of 

Directors”, the details on the number of meetings attended by each Director during financial year 2022-23 

is given below: 



 

 

*During the year under review, Mr. Tammir Amr resigned from the office of Nominee Director with effect from November 14, 2022 and 

subsequently Mr. Alfred Victor Mendoza was appointed as a Nominee Director on the Board of the Company and Member of the Committees 

of the Board with effect from November 14, 2022 for which Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and SEBI was duly intimated. 

 
S. 

No. 

Name of Director Capacity  Nature of change  Effective date 

1. Mr. Tamir Amr Nominee Director Resignation November 14, 2022 

2. Mr. Alfred Victor Mendoza Nominee Director Appointment November 14, 2022 

 

Details of any relationship amongst the Directors 

 

S. No. Name of Director Name of Relative Nature of relation 

1. Mrs. Jayati Chatterjee Mr. Shivashish Chatterjee Son 

2. Mr. Shivashish Chatterjee Mrs. Jayati Chatterjee Mother 

3. Mrs. Bina Singh Mr. Yuvaraja Chanakya Singh Son 

4. Mr. Yuvaraja Chanakya Singh Mrs. Bina Singh Mother 

 

Committees of the Board and their Composition 

 

The Company has several committees which have been established as a part of the best corporate 

governance practices and are in compliance with the requirements of the relevant provisions of applicable 

laws and statutes. There Committees constituted by the Board are namely Audit Committee, 

Loan/Investment and Borrowing Committee, Risk Management Committee, Nomination Committee, Asset 

S. 

No. 

Name of Director  Director 

Since 

Capacity 

(Executive/N

on-

Executive/ 

Chairman/ 

Promoter 

Nominee 

/Independent 

DIN No of Board Meetings  No 

of 

othe

r 

Dire

ctors

hips  

Remuneration  No. of 

Shares held 

in and 

Convertible 

instruments 

held  in the 

NBFC 

     Held Entitled Atte

nded 

 Salary and 

other Comp 

Sitting 

Fees 

Comi

ssion 

 

             

1. Mr. Tamir Amr 05/03/2015 Nominee 

Director 

07030832 8 5 4  NA NA NA NA 

2. Mr. Gaurav Burman 29/01/2013 Nominee 

Director 

01870814 8 8 5 14 NA NA NA  NA 

3. Mrs. Jayati 

Chatterjee 

02/09/2008 Non- 

Executive 

Director 

01401127 8 8 8 2 NA 2,40,000 NA NA 

4. Mr. Shivashish 
Chatterjee 

30/12/2010 Jt. Managing 
Director 

02623460 8 8 7 7 4,29,21,722 NA NA 10,53,340 

5. Mr. Gurcharan Das 25/08/2011 Non- 

Executive 
Director/ 

Chairman 

00100011 8 8 7 3 NA 1,40,000 NA NA 

6. Mr. Nipender 
Kochhar 

11/09/2008 Non- 
Executive 

Director 

02201954 8 8 7 3 NA 2,40,000 NA NA 

7. Mr. Alfred Victor 

Mendoza 

14/11/2022 Nominee 

Director 

08432874 8 3 3 3 NA NA NA NA 

8. Mrs. Bina Singh 02/09/2008 Non- 

Executive 

Director 

01178506 8 8 7 3 NA 1,40,000 NA 2,44,918 

9 Mr. Yuvraja 
Chanakya Singh 

26/08/2009 Jt. Managing 
Director 

02601179 8 8 8 6 4,17,55,551 NA NA 13,11,221 



 

 

Liability Committee, Securities Allotment Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, IT 

Strategy Committee, Review Committee, Identification Committee and IT Steering Committee. 

 

The composition of these Committees as on March 31, 2023 is provided below. Further, in accordance with 

Standard 9 of the Secretarial Standard-1 on “Meetings of the Board of Directors”, the details on the number 

and dates of meetings of the Committees held during the financial year 2022-23 indicating number of 

meetings attended by each Director is given below.  

 

➢ Audit Committee (AC) 

➢ to recommend appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the Company and 

review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process; 

examination of the financial statement and the auditors’ report. 

 

➢ 5 (Five) Audit Committee Meetings were held during the financial year 2022-23 viz. on May 20, 2022, 

August 10, 2022, November 11, 2022, February 13, 2023 and March 27, 2023. The attendance of the 

members is as follows: 

 
S.no Name of director / 

Member 

Member of 

Committee 

since 

Capacity Number of Meetings of the 

Committee held during the 

financial year 2022-2023 

 

No. of 

shares 

held in 

the 

NBFC 

Held Entitled Attended  

1. Mr. Tammir Amr 05/03/2015 Director / 

Member 

5 3 2 NA 

2. Mr. Gaurav Burman 29/01/2013 Director / 

Member 

5 5 2 NA 

3. Mrs. Jayati Chatterjee 02/09/2008 Director / 

Member 

5 5 4 NA 

4. Mr. Nipendar Kochhar 11/09/2008 Director / 

Member 

5 5 5 NA 

5. Mr. Alfred Victor Mendoza 14/11/2022 Director / 

Member 

5 2 2 NA 

6. Mr. Yuvraja Chanakya 

Singh 

26/08/2008 Director / 

Member 

5 5 5 13,11,221 

 

➢ Risk Management Committee (RMC) 

➢ Adhere to the Risk Management Practices as prescribed and monitor the progress of the Risk Control 

Matrix as approved by the Board. 

 

➢ 4 (Four) Risk Management Committee Meetings were held during the financial year 2022-23 viz. on 

June 01, 2022, August 10, 2022, November 11, 2022 and February 14, 2023. The attendance of the 

members is as follows: 

 
S.no Name of director / 

Member 

Member of 

Committee 

since 

Capacity Number of Meetings of the 

Committee held during the 

financial year 2022-2023 

 

No. of 

shares 

held in 

the 

NBFC 

Held Entitled Attended  

1. Mr. Jatinder Bhasin 20/05/2022 Member 4 4 4 NA 



 

 

2. Mr. Shivashish Chatterjee 30/12/2010 Director / 

Member 

4 4 4 10,53,340 

3. Mr. Yuvraja Chanakya 

Singh 

26/08/2008 Director / 

Member 

4 4 4 13,11,221 

4. Mr. Arindam Das 11/09/2019 Member 4 4 4 NA 

5. Mr. Vivek Gupta 11/09/2019 Member 4 4 4 NA 

6. Mr. Krishan Gopal 12/11/2021 Member 4 4 4 NA 

 

➢ Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

➢ To ensure that the general character of the management shall not be prejudicial to the interest of its 

present and future stakeholders and envisages ensuring the ‘fit and proper’ status of proposed or 

existing Directors.  

 

➢ 4 (Four) Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meeting were held during the financial year 2022-

23 viz. on May 20, 2022, 12 August, 2022, November 14, 2022 and March 27, 2023. The attendance 

of the members is as follows: 

 
S.no Name of director / Member Member of 

Committee 

since 

Capacity Number of Meetings of the 

Committee held during the 

financial year 2022-2023 

 

No. of 

shares held 

in the 

NBFC 

Held Entitled Attended  

1. Mr. Tammir Amr 05/03/2015 Director / 

Member 

4 3 3 NA 

2. Mr. Gaurav Burman 29/01/2013 Director / 

Member 

4 4 4 NA 

3. Mr. Shivashish Chatterjee 30/12/2010 Director / 

Member 

4 4 4 10,53,340 

4. Mr. Alfred Victor Mendoza 14/11/2022 Director/Member 4 2 2 NA 

5. Mr. Yuvraja Chanakya Singh 26/08/2008 Director / 

Member 

4 4 4 13,11,221 

 

➢ Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) 

➢ Attend to aspects relating to Asset Liability Management such as availability of adequate funding for 

projected disbursements. 

 

➢ 2 (Two) Asset Liability Committee Meetings were held during the financial year 2022-23 viz. on 

August12, 2022 and February 14, 2023. The attendance of the members is as follows: 

 
S.no Name of director / Member Member of 

Committee 

since 

Capacity Number of Meetings of the 

Committee held during the 

financial year 2022-2023 

 

No. of 

shares held 

in the 

NBFC 

Held Entitled Attended  

1. Mr. Tammir Amr 05/03/2015 Director / Member 2 2 2 NA 

2. Mr. Gaurav Burman 29/01/2013 Director / Member 2 2 2 NA 

3. Mr. Shivashish Chatterjee 30/12/2010 Director / Member 2 2 2 10,53,340 

4. Mr. Alfred Victor Mendoza 14/11/2022 Director / Member 2 1 1 NA 

5. Mr. Yuvraja Chanakya Singh 26/08/2008 Director / Member 2 2 2 13,11,221 

6. Mr. Krishan Gopal 12/11/2021 Member 2 2 2 NA 

7. Mr. Manish Srivastava 12/11/2021 Member 2 2 2 NA 



 

 

8. Mr. Prateek Kapoor 12/11/2021 Member 2 2 2 NA 

 

➢ Securities Allotment Committee (SAC) 

➢ Consider and transact the matter of raising of funds up to the limit specified by the Board on private 

placement basis and allot Equity Shares, Preference Shares, Compulsorily Convertible Debentures, 

Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures, Commercial Paper or any other security as defined 

under Companies Act, 2013. 

 

➢ 1 (One) Securities Allotment Committee Meeting was held during the financial year 2022-23 viz. on 

February 14, 2023. The attendance of the members is as follows: 

 
S.no Name of director / Member Member of 

Committee 

since 

Capacity Number of  Meetings of the 

Committee held  during the 

financial year 2022-2023 

 

No. of 

shares 

held in 

the 

NBFC 

Held Entitled Attended  

1. Mr. Jatinder Bhasin 14/11/2022 Director / Member 1 1 1 NA 

2. Mr. Gaurav Burman 29/01/2013 Director / Member 1 1 1 NA 

3. Mr. Shivashish Chatterjee 30/12/2010 Member 1 1 1 10,53,340 

4. Mr. Alfred Victor Mendoza  14/11/2022 Director / Member 1 1 1 NA 

5. Mr. Krishan Gopal 12/11/2021 Member 1 1 1 NA 

6. Mr. Yuvraja Chanakya Singh 26/08/2008 Director / Member 1 1 1 13,11,221 

 

➢ Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR) 

➢ Formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which shall indicate 

the activities to be undertaken by the Company including the activities as specified in Schedule VII of 

Companies Act, 2013. 

 

➢ 2 (Two) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee Meetings were held during the financial year 

2022-23 viz. on May 20, 2022 and February 06, 2023. The attendance of the members is as follows: 

 
S.no Name of director / Member Member of 

Committee 

since 

Capacity Number of Meetings of the 

Committee held during the 

financial year 2022-2023 

 

No. of shares 

held in the 

NBFC 

Held Entitled Attended  

1. Mr. Tammir Amr 05/03/2015 Director / Member 2 1 1 NA 

2. Mr. Gaurav Burman 29/01/2013 Director / Member 2 2 2 NA 

3. Mrs. Jayati Chatterjee 02/09/2008 Director / Member 2 2 2 NA 

4. Mr. Alfred Victor Mendoza 14/11/2022 Director / Member 2 1 1 NA 

5. Mrs. Bina Singh 02/09/2008 Director / Member 2 2 2 2,44,918 

 

➢ IT Strategy Committee 

➢ Approving IT strategy and policy documents and ascertaining that management has implemented 

processes and practices.  

 

➢ 3 (Three) IT Strategy Committee Meetings were held during the financial year 2022-23 viz. on May 

19, 2022, September 28, 2022 and February 14, 2023. The attendance of the members is as follows: 

 



 

 

S.no Name of director / Member Member of 

Committee 

since 

Capacity Number of Meetings of the 

Committee held during the 

financial year 2022-2023 

 

No. of 

shares held 

in the 

NBFC 

Held Entitled Attended  

1. Mr. Tammir Amr 05/03/2015 Director/ 

Member 

3 2 2 NA 

2. Mr. Shivashish Chatterjee 30/12/2010 Director/ 

Member 

3 3 3 10,53,340 

3. Mr. Alfred Victor 

Mendoza 

14/11/2022 Director/ 

Member 

3 1 1 NA 

4. Mr. Krishan Gopal 12/11/2021 Member 3 3 3 NA 

5. Mr. Saurabh Nigam   18/09/2017 Member 3 3 3 NA 

6 Mr. Manish Srivastava 18/09/2017 Member 3 3 3 NA 

7 Mr. Yuvraja Chanakya Singh 26/08/2008 Director/Memb

er  

3 3 3 13,11,221 

8 Mr. Manikant R. Singh 21/06/2021 Member 3 3 3 NA 

 

➢ IT Steering Committee 

➢ The Committee shall provide oversight and monitoring of the progress of the project, including 

deliverables to be realized at each phase of the project and milestones to be reached according to the 

project timetable. 

 

➢ 2 (Two) IT Steering Committee Meetings were held during the financial year 2022-23 viz. on September 

28, 2022 and February 14, 2023. The attendance of the members is as follows: 

 
S.no Name of director / Member Member of 

Committee 

since 

Capacity Number of Meetings of the 

Committee held during the 

financial year 2022-2023 

 

No. of 

shares held 

in the 

NBFC 

Held Entitled Attended  

1. Mr. Shivashish Chatterjee 08/10/2021 Director / Member 2 2 2 10,53,340 

2. Mr. Arindam Das 08/10/2021 Member 2 2 2 NA 

3. Mr. Krishan Gopal 08/10/2021 Member 2 2 2 NA 

4. Mr. Vivek Gupta 08/10/2021 Member 2 2 2 NA 

5. Mr. Saurabh Nigam   08/10/2021 Member 2 2 2 NA 

6. Mr. Yuvraja Chanakya Singh 08/10/2021 Director/Member  2 2 2 13,11,221 

 

➢ Review Committee 

➢ To review and approve the Order given by Identification Committee with respect to declaring a 

borrower as a Wilful Defaulter. 

 

➢ 1 (One) Review Committee Meeting was held during the financial year 2022-23 viz. on August 12, 

2022. The attendance of the members is as follows: 

S.no Name of director / Member Member of 

Committee 

since 

Capacity Number of Meetings of the 

Committee held during the 

financial year 2022-2023 

 

No. of shares 

held in the 

NBFC 

Held Entitled Attended  

1. Mr. Tammir Amr 05/03/2015 Director / Member 1 1 1 NA 

2. Mr. Gaurav Burman 29/01/2013 Director / Member 1 1 1 NA 



 

 

3. Mr. Shivashish Chatterjee 30/12/2010 Chairman/ 

Member 

1 1 1 10,53,340 

 

➢ Loan Investment & Borrowing Committee 

➢ To approve all borrowings including loans from banks and financial institutions, commercial papers, 

any other security on such terms and conditions as the management may deem fit within the limits as 

approved by the Board and Shareholders 

 

➢ 14 (Fourteen) Loan Investment & Borrowing Committee meeting were held during Financial Year 2022-

2023 viz on May 28, 2022, June 28, 2023 , June 30, 2022, July 05, 2022, November 03, 2022, November 

22, 2023, December 24, 2022, December 29, 2022, January 13, 2023, January 24, 2023, February 23, 

2023, March 20, 2023, March 27, 2023 and March 29, 2023 . The attendance of the Members is as 

follows:  

S.no Name of director / Member Member of 

Committee 

since 

Capacity Number of  Meetings of the 

Committee held  during the 

financial year 2022-2023 

 

No. of shares 

held in the 

NBFC 

Held Entitled Attended  

1. Mr. Tammir Amr 05/03/2015 Director / Member 14 5 5 NA 

2. Mr. Gaurav Burman 29/01/2013 Director / Member 14 14 14 NA 

3. Mr. Jatinder Bhasin  12/08/2022 Member 14 14 14 NA 

4. Mr. Shivashish Chatterjee 30/12/2010 Director / Member 14 14 14 10,53,340 

5. Mr. Krishan Gopal 12/11/2021 Member 14 13 13 NA 

6. Mr. Alfred Victor Mendoza 14/11/2022 Director / Member 14 9 9 NA 

7. Mr. Prateek Kapoor  12/08/2022 Member 14 13 13 NA 

8. Mr. Yuvraja Chanakya Singh 26/08/2008 Chairman/ 

Member 

14 14 14 13,11,221 

 

GENERAL MEETINGS 

Annual General Meeting 

During the year under review, the Annual General Meeting of the Company for the Financial Year ended 

March 31, 2022 was held on September 02, 2022. 

 

Extra-ordinary General Meeting(s) 

 

During the year under review, four (4) Extra-ordinary General Meeting(s) (EGM) of the Company were 

held. The Members accorded their approval in the requisite manner for the matters taken in the respective 

EGMs.  

 

S. 

No. 

Type of Meeting (Annual 

/ Extra-Ordinary) 

Date & Place Special resolutions passed 

1. Annual General Meeting  Date of the meeting-September 02, 2023 

Place of the meeting-Express Building, 

3rd Floor, 9-10, Bahadur Shah Zafar 

Marg, New Delhi- 110002 

Issuance of Convertible Share Warrants 

on Preferential Allotment Basis to 

Identified Employees of Associate 

Company 

2. Extra- Ordinary Meeting Date of the meeting-May 30, 2022  

Place of the meeting-Express Building, 

3rd Floor, 9-10, Bahadur Shah Zafar 

Marg, New Delhi- 110002 

To Approve the Reduction of Issued, 

Subscribed and Paid-Up Share Capital 

of the Company 



 

 

3. Extra- Ordinary Meeting Date of the meeting-November 15, 2022  

Place of the meeting-Express Building, 

3rd Floor, 9-10, Bahadur Shah Zafar 

Marg, New Delhi- 110002 

To consider and Approve increase in 

Authorized share capital of the 

Company. 

➢ To consider and Approve 

Amendment in ESOP Policy 

4. Extra- Ordinary Meeting Date of the meeting-March 09, 2023 

Place of the meeting-Express Building, 

3rd Floor, 9-10, Bahadur Shah Zafar 

Marg, New Delhi- 110002 

1. To Increase the Borrowing Limit to 

Rs. 15,000 Crores for The Financial 

Year 2023-24 

2. To approve Amendment in ESOP 

Plan 2018 (ESOP Policy) 

5. Extra- Ordinary Meeting Date of the meeting-March 27, 2023 

Place of the meeting-Express Building, 

3rd Floor, 9-10, Bahadur Shah Zafar 

Marg, New Delhi- 110002 

To Issue Equity Shares on Private 

Placement Basis 

 

Details of non-compliance with requirements of Companies Act, 2013 

There was no default in compliance with the requirements of Companies Act, 2013, including with respect 

to compliance with accounting and secretarial standards. 

Details of Penalties and Strictures 

The following penalties were imposed on the Company during financial year 2022-23, for which adequate 

disclosure have been made in the audited annual financial statements as at March 31, 2023: 

 

1) The Stock Exchange (BSE Limited) imposed a penalty of Rs. 12,980 under Regulation 13(3) of SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for quarter ended June 30, 2021. 

 

2) A Late Submission Fee (LSF) of Rs. 31,165 was imposed by the Reserve Bank of India under Regulation 

5 FEMA (Non-Debt) Regulation 2019 on June 9, 2022 

 

3) A Late Submission Fee (LSF) of Rs. 5,444 was imposed by the Reserve Bank of India under Regulation 

5 FEMA (Non-Debt) Regulation 2019 on May 10, 2022 

 

4) A Late Submission Fee (LSF) of Rs. 40,000 was imposed by the Reserve Bank of India under Regulation 

5 FEMA (Non-Debt) Regulation 2019 on July 12, 2022 

 

5) The Stock Exchange (BSE Limited) imposed a penalty of Rs. 5,64,040 under Regulation 54 of SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for quarter ended June 30, 2021. 

 

Breach of Covenant 

During the financial year under review, there were no instances where breach of covenants were observed 

for any loan availed or debt securities issued. 

Divergence in Asset Classification and Provisioning  

There were no instances of divergence in asset classification and provisioning as assessed by RBI during 

the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2023. 

 

 



 

 

 

Director(s) Disclosure: 

 

As per the provisions of section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 and based on the declarations and 

confirmations received, circulars, notifications and directions issued by the Reserve Bank of India and other 

applicable laws, none of the Directors of the Company are disqualified from being appointed as Directors 

of the Company. 

 

Key Managerial Personnel 

There was no change in the composition of Key Managerial Personnel of the Company during the year 

under review. 

 

As on March 31, 2023, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company comprises of the following: 

1. Mr. Shivashish Chatterjee- Jt. Managing Directors  

2. Mr. Yuvraja Chanakya Singh- Jt. Managing Directors 

3. Mr. Krishan Gopal- Chief Financial Officer  

4. Mr. Sahib Pahwa- Head- Company Secretary & Compliance  

 

Human Resource 

The Company is a people-centric organization with a strong belief in empowering its employees and 

creating a culture of equality, transparency, and respect. The Company provides a nurturing and conducive 

environment that helps attract amongst the best talent in the market and provides them with a platform that 

they can use to shape their careers. With a strong focus on growth, the Company strives to build a strong 

pipeline of leaders by offering unlimited growth opportunities, for those who chase excellence. 

 

DMI is a place that provides an entrepreneurial culture and focuses on working together for a shared 

purpose. We deeply value our stakeholders and work dedicatedly towards creating a difference in their 

lives. Over the years, we have worked together though the most turbulent times and have come out stronger. 

During these journeys, we have imbibed lessons from these challenges and utilized those learnings to set 

ourselves on the path of winning. More importantly, we have learned to accept defeats and celebrate wins. 

 

Considering the same the Company has successfully inducted significant talent at senior and mid-level into 

the Company and has been successful in retaining and developing the existing human resources. 

Accordingly, there was a significant increase in the total number of employees as on March 31, 2023: 

 

Financial Year  Number of employees 

2022-23 396 

2021-22 332 

 

SUBSIDIARIES/ASSOCIATES COMPANIES

During the year under review, below mentioned is the list of subsidiaries and associate of the Company- 

 

S. No. Name of Subsidiary Company Nature of Relationship 

1.  DMI Capital Private Limited Subsidiary Company  

2.  DMI Management Private Limited Subsidiary Company  

3.  Appnit Technologies Private Limited Subsidiary Company  

4.  DMI Alternatives Private Limited Associate Company 

 



 

 

 

Pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has prepared a consolidated financial 

statement of the Company which shall be laid before the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company 

along with the standalone audited financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 

31, 2023. The standalone and consolidated audited financial statements along with the salient features of 

the financial statements of the subsidiaries of the Company in the prescribed Form AOC-1 forms part of 

the Annual Report and are also available on the website of the Company at 

https://www.dmifinance.in/investor-financials.html 

 

The statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate 

companies/joint ventures pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, in Form AOC- 1, forms part of the consolidated financial statements 

of the Company and hence not repeated here for the sake of brevity. 

 

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS  

The Institute of Company Secretaries of India, a Statutory Body, has issued Secretarial Standards on Board 

and General meetings. The Company has complied with all the applicable provisions of the secretarial 

standards read with the MCA Circulars granting various exemptions and relaxations. 

 

ANNUAL RETURN  

 

The copy of Annual Return for Financial Year 2022-23, which will be filed with the Registrar of Company, 

will be hosted on the website of the Company and can be accessed at https://www.dmifinance.in/investor-

financials.html in accordance with provisions of Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of Companies 

Act, 2013 and rules framed therein. 
 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND REGULATORY CHANGES 

Deposits 

The Company in compliance with RBI being a Systemically Important Non-Deposit Accepting NBFC (ND-

SI- NBFC) has not accepted any public deposits during the year under review. The Board of Directors, in 

compliance with Non–Banking Financial Companies Auditor’s Report (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 

had passed the resolution on April 07, 2023 confirming that the Company would neither hold nor accept 

any ‘Public deposits’ as defined under RBI Regulations during the period commencing from April 01, 2023 

to March 31, 2024.  
 

Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 

2015 (“LODR Regulations”) Amendments: 

The Securities Exchange Board of India (SEBI) vide its multiple notifications introduced amendments and 

changes in the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) 

Regulations, 2015 (“LODR Regulations”) during the financial year 2022-23, some of which are briefly laid 

down below:  

S. 

No. 

Notification Number and 

Date 

Particulars of amendment 

1 Notification No. No. 

SEBI/LADNRO/GN/2022/103 

dated November 14, 2022 

• Clarification regarding the timeline of financial results for the last 

quarter of the FY to be submitted to the recognized stock exchange 

and also to the Debenture Trustee. 

• List of financial ratios to be disclosed in quarter and annual 

financial statements. 

https://www.dmifinance.in/investor-financials.html
https://www.dmifinance.in/investor-financials.html
https://www.dmifinance.in/investor-financials.html
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• Submission of declaration along with quarterly financial results to 

the stock exchange regarding utilization of issue proceeds of Non-

convertible securities 

• Submission of statement along with quarterly financial results to 

the stock exchange regarding material deviation(s), if any, in the 

use of issue proceeds of non-convertible securities. 

• Publication of financial results within 2 working days of board 

meeting. 

• Maintenance of 100% security cover in respect of secured listed 

non-convertible debt securities. 

 

REGULATORY CHANGES BY RESERVE BANK OF INDIA (RBI) 

1) Guidelines on ‘Loans and Advances – Regulatory Restrictions - NBFCs  

 

RBI vide its circular No. RBI/2022-23/29DOR.CRE.REC.No.25/03.10.001/2022-23 dated April 19, 

2022 introduced guidelines pertaining to grant of loans and advances to its Directors and relatives or 

parties in which Directors or his/her relatives is interested thereof as defined in the said Circular. Any 

loan granted to Director and his/her relatives or parties in which Directors or his/her relatives is 

interested aggregating to Rs. five crores and above shall be reported and approved by the Board of 

Directors. The proposal for sanction of less than aforementioned limit may be sanctioned but the matter 

should be reported to the Board. 

 

Any Loans and advances sanctioned to senior officers of the Company shall be reported to the Board. 

Further, provisions have also been included for disclosure in the annual financial statements of the 

Company regarding sanction of such loans and advances. Additionally, Company is required to 

incorporate Board approved policy on grant of loans to directors, senior officers and relatives of 

directors and to entities where directors or their relatives have major shareholding.  

 

2) Guidelines on Compensation of Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and Senior Management in 

NBFCs 

 

The Reserve Bank of India vide its circular DOR.GOV.REC.No.29/18.10.002/2022-23 dated April 29, 

2022, issued separate guidelines on Compensation of Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and Senior 

Management in NBFCs wherein NBFCs are required to put in place a Board approved compensation 

policy which shall at least include provisions pertaining to constitution of a Remuneration Committee, 

Principles for fixed/ variable pay structures, Malus/ claw back requirements. The Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee of the NBFC shall ensure that there is no conflict of interest in the 

appointment of directors on Board of the company, KMPs and senior management. 

 

3) Guidelines on Compliance Function and Role of Chief Compliance Officer (CCO) 

 

As part of the Scale Based Regulation (SBR) Framework introduced by the Reserve Bank of India, the 

RBI vide its circular Ref.No.DoS.CO.PPG./SEC.01/11.01.005/2022-23 dated April 11, 2022 

introduced provisions relating to appointment of a Chief Compliance Officer (CCO) and have an 

independent Compliance Function for all NBFC-UL and NBFC-ML. NBFC-UL and NBFC-ML shall 

put in place a Board approved policy and a Compliance Function, including the appointment of a CCO 

latest by April 1, 2023 and October 1, 2023, respectively.  

 

We are currently under process of framing the CCO Policy and shall be approved at the upcoming 

Board Meeting of the Company in compliance with the said circular. 

 

4) Guidelines on Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) 



 

 

 

In accordance with SBR framework, the NBFC-ML and NBFC-UP are required to make a thorough 

internal assessment of the need for capital, commensurate with the risks in their business. The Internal 

capital assessment shall factor in credit risk, market risk, operational risk and all other residual risks as 

per methodology to be determined internally. For this purpose, the policy on Internal Capital Adequacy 

Assessment Process (ICAAP) is required to be formulated to ensure availability of adequate capital to 

support all risks in business as also to encourage the Company to develop and use better internal risk 

management techniques for monitoring and managing their risks. 

 

In compliance with the said circular, the Board in its meeting held on August 12, 2022 incorporated 

and approved Policy on Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) of the Company and 

is also currently conducting its ICAAP exercise. 

 

5) Introduction of Guidelines on Digital Lending  

 

The Reserve Bank of India vide its press release dated August 10, 2022 introduced the framework for 

digital lending that can be carried out only by entities that are either regulated by the Reserve Bank or 

entities permitted to do so under any other law and such entities were clearly defined and segregated 

into 3 categories as per the Guidelines (Regulated Entities/RE). 

 

Provisions have been incorporated for consumer protection and enhancement wherein REs shall have 

to ensure that all loan servicing, repayment, etc., shall be executed   directly   in   their   bank account 

without any pass-through account/ pool account of any third party. Further, all REs and their Lending 

Service Providers (LSPs) shall have a suitable nodal grievance redressal officer to deal with FinTech/   

digital lending related complaints/issues raised by the borrowers. Any compliant not resolved by the 

RE, can be lodged by the borrower over the Complaint Management System (CMS) portal or other 

prescribed modes under the Reserve Bank- Integrated Ombudsman Scheme (RB-IOS). 

 

In furtherance, stringent clauses have also been included pertaining to increase in credit limit unless 

explicit consent of borrower is taken for each such increase. To increase the level of transparency by 

REs, there is a requirement to publish the list of LSPs engaged by REs on their website. Further, REs 

may capture the economic profile of the borrowers (age, occupation, income etc) before extending   any 

loans over (Digital Lending Apps) DLAs, with a view to assess the borrower’s creditworthiness in an 

auditable way. 

 

With respect to technology and data requirements, any collection of data by DLAs should be need-

based and with prior and explicit consent of the borrower, DLA should make its comprehensive privacy 

policy available in public domain, Details of any third parties, that are allowed to collect personal 

information via DLA to be disclosed and standards from handing security check have also been 

included in the Guidelines. 

 

Data handing and security over digital means of lending have been emphasized significantly wherein 

strict compliance with various technology standards/ requirements on cybersecurity stipulated by RBI     

or other agencies to be a pre-condition to offer digital lending by the REs and LSPs. 

 

With respect to regulatory and reporting requirements, REs to ensure that any lending done through 

DLAs is reported to Credit Information Companies (CICs). Each access/ enquiry of credit information 

by any RE or LSP from CIC shall be conveyed to the borrower through email/SMS. REs to ensure that 

all data is stored in servers located    within    India    while ensuring     compliance     with     statutory 

obligations/ regulatory instructions. 

 

6) Guidelines on Default Loss Guarantee (DLG) in Digital Lending 



 

 

 

The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) on June 8, 2023 has issued a guidelines on default loss guarantee 

(DLG) in digital lending, a move aimed at ensuring the orderly development of the credit delivery 

system, which shall be effective from the date of the circular. Briefly the circular states that RE may 

enter into DLG arrangements only with a Lending Service Provider (LSP)/ other RE with which it has 

entered into an outsourcing (LSP) arrangement, provisions relating to structure of DLG arrangements 

which must be backed by an explicit legally enforceable contract between the parties. It further states 

that DLG shall be accepted only in the forms specified in the said circular which our Operations, 

Business and Credit teams are already complying with. A cap of 5% on DLG cover on outstanding 

portfolio has been levied and provisions have also been incorporated for tenor of DLG, Invocation of 

DLG, disclosure requirements by the RE’s and grievance redressal measures. 

 

In compliance with the provisions of the said circular, the Company is currently working on 

incorporating a Board approved policy with respect to DLG arrangement. 

 

REGISTRATION UNDER THE CREDIT GUARANTEE FUND TRUST FOR MICRO AND 

SMALL ENTERPRISES AND CREDIT GUARANTEE FUND FOR MICRO UNITS (CGFMU) 

 

During the year under review, the Company obtained registration under the Credit Guarantee Fund Trust 

for Micro and Small Enterprises (CGTMSE) set by Government of India and SIDBI for facilitating 

guarantees in respect of credit facilities extended by NBFCs to borrowers in Micro and Small Enterprises 

(MSEs) and Credit Guarantee Fund for Micro Units (CGFMU) set up by Government of India with the 

purpose of guaranteeing payment against default in micro loans extended to eligible borrowers by 

Banks/NBFCs /MFIs / Other financial intermediaries, managed by the Board of NCGTC as the trustee of 

the Fund. 

 

CGTMSE vide its letter dated August 30, 2022 issued approval to the Company for an exposure limit not 

exceeding ₹ 100 Crores under Credit Guarantee Scheme for NBFCs (CGS-II). 

 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL 

POSITION OF THE COMPANY 

During the financial year under review, the Board and Shareholders of the Company approved an 

application under section 66(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 to be submitted with Hon’ble National 

Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”) for reduction of the Issued, Subscribed and Paid up share capital of the 

Company. The proceedings are currently under process with NCLT and reduction of share capital of the 

Company will be effective from the date of receipt of approval from the NCLT. 

 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

In compliance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social 

Responsibility Policy) Rules 2014, the Company had established a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 

Committee. The CSR Committee has formulated and recommended to the Board, a CSR Policy indicating 

the activities to be undertaken by the Company, which has been approved by the Board and the same has 

been put up on the Company’s website and available at the link: 

https://www.dmifinance.in/corporate-social-responsibility-policy.html 

The CSR Policy was adopted on May 2014 by the Company with the aim to contribute to the social and 

economic development of the community in which the Company operates. It also talks out the prescribed 

activities out of which the Company may opt to undertake and provides for modalities of execution of the 

projects undertaken, affixation of CSR budget and provides for mechanism for monitoring and reporting of 

the CSR activities undertaken.  

 

file:///G:/Users/sahib.pahwa/Downloads/%0dhttps:/www.dmifinance.in/corporate-social-responsibility-policy.html
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For the year ended March 31, 2023, the Company was required to spend ₹ 18.17 Million under CSR for 

financial year 2021-22 as prescribed under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has 

duly spent the required CSR expenditure of an amount of ₹ 17.40 Million towards various CSR projects 

and causes. Further, an amount of ₹ 0.77 Million was carried forward from the previous year as the company 

had spent excess amount during the financial year ended Mar 31, 2021.  

 

The statutory disclosures with respect to the CSR Committee, in terms of Section 135 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules 2014, in the form of the 

annual report on CSR Activities is laid down in Annexure-A which forms part of this Report. 

 

PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENTS LOANS AND GUARANTEES 

The Company being a Non- Banking Financial Company (NBFC) registered with the Reserve Bank of 

India (RBI) primarily engaged in the business of lending is exempted from provisions of Section 186 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”).  

 

However, pursuant to Section 134(3)(g) of the Act read with Section 186 and rules made thereto, the 

Company had given Corporate Guarantee for an aggregate amount of ₹ 3,878.97/- Million to various banks 

for the funds borrowed by DMI Housing Finance Private Limited. 

 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 188 of the Act and rules made thereunder, all related party 

transactions entered during FY 22-23 were on an arm’s length basis and in ordinary course of the business. 

 

The details as required to be provided under Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 are provided in 

Form AOC-2 is attached as Annexure-B to this report. 

 

Further, compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the RBI Master 

Directions- Systematically Important- Non-Banking Financial Companies – Non- Deposit Taking (Reserve 

Bank) Directions, 2016 dated September 1, 2016 (as amended from time to time) (“RBI Master 

Directions”), the Company has put in place a Board approved Related Party Transaction Policy (“RPT 

Policy”) for the purpose of obtaining requisite approval and reporting transactions with related parties.  

The policy can be accessed on the Company’s website at the link: https://www.dmifinance.in/pdf/Related-

Party-Transaction-Policy.pdf  

 

A list of all the Related Party Transactions were placed before the Audit Committee for approval. Further, 

the details of related party transaction in compliance with provisions of Companies Act, 2013, RBI Master 

Directions, Regulation 53(f) of Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with Para A of Schedule V, are disclosed in the notes forming part 

of the financial statements.    

 

DISCLOSURE UNDER PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY 

 

The Company is committed to create a safe and healthy work environment that enables its employees to 

work without fear of prejudice, gender bias and sexual harassment. The Company has in place an Anti-

Sexual Harassment Policy (Policy) in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at 

the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 (“Act”). The Company believes that 

sexual harassment at the workplace, if involving employees of the company, shall be considered a grave 

offence and is therefore punishable under the provisions of the Act. For this purpose, an Internal Complaints 

Committee (ICC) has been set-up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment.  

 

Scope of the Policy:  

https://www.dmifinance.in/pdf/Related-Party-Transaction-Policy.pdf
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The provisions of this policy are applicable to:  

• All employees of the company, regardless of the nature of their contract, duration of employment 

or position in the organization  

• Associates of the Company whether full-time, part-time, temporary, voluntary, contracted, or 

casual including researchers, trainees, and consultants  

• Volunteers and interns, during their association with the organization  

• Partners, clients, service providers and users of the services of the Company  

• Acknowledgment of Policy is taken from all the employees. 

 

All complaints of sexual harassment against employees are taken seriously and dealt with promptly. All 

investigations are conducted thoroughly and professionally, and accurate records of the investigation and 

the findings are properly maintained. Further, any employee who brings forward the charges of any instance 

of sexual harassment will not face any retaliation. The Company makes sure that anyone violating this 

policy is subjected to disciplinary action. 

Every year we conduct annual trainings/ workshops & awareness programmes for all staff and members of 

the Internal Committee. In this programme we cover the following topics: 

• Definition of Sexual Harassment  

• Definition of Employee 

• Duties of employer 

• What is workplace 

• Internal Committee Proceeding  

• Disciplinary action 

Two complaints were received under POSH during the year ended March 31, 2023 in accordance with the 

provisions of POSH Policy and POSH Act. One of the complaints has been satisfactorily resolved and the 

investigation for the other complaint is currently under progress. 

 

 

  



 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY  

In accordance with RBI Master Directions and the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has Board approved 

Risk Management Policy. The Board constituted Risk Management Committee and Audit Committee 

responsible for monitoring the progress of the Risk Control Matrix and loan portfolio and to establish 

standards to mitigate risks related to operations, credit, compliance, finance.   

 

Development and implementation of Risk Control Matrix (RCM) 

Key components of an organization’s risk management framework is the Risk Control Matrix (‘RCM’) 

which systematically captures key risks (operational, regulatory and financial) and mitigating internal 

controls. It enables assessment of key controls through testing of data pertaining to each control - control 

description, financial statement assertions, test procedures and management action plans, etc. Backward 

integration of RCMs with existing risk-control assurance platforms would assist in addressing key 

requirements of Internal Financial Controls (‘IFC’), under the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

Key benefits of RCM 

 

• Structured and consistent process for management of risk and controls. 

• Demonstrates organization’s ability to manage / mitigate risk in a comprehensive and timely manner. 

Strengthen Internal control/system reliance to ensure controls are adequate against all the risks 

involved. 

• Fostering formalized, uniform, well controlled and efficient operating processes within the 

organization. 

 Increase system efficiency and its ability to support and make quick decisions to help the organization 

move at speed with the regulatory and other requirements. 

 

Key Activities - Strengthening the Risk Control Matrices 

 

Preparation / Updation of RCMs for key businesses and support functions: 

 

Updating of risks and controls implemented withing key processes through testing and gap assessment 

Mapping controls to financial statement assertions and identify frequency of controls. 

 

Testing of RCMs and integration with Internal Audit (‘IA’) 

 

• Quarterly test of key controls captured in RCMs based on risk grading / prioritization and its alignment 

to IA testing (as per quarterly scope of work) for integrated coverage. 

 

Reporting to Risk Committee and Audit Committee 

 

• Reporting on controls testing (including high level view of key risks and controls) to be combined as 

part of quarterly IA reporting; 

• Reporting to Risk Committee and Audit Committee; 

Updated RCMs to be shared with the management. 

  



 

 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company to the best 

of their knowledge and ability, confirms that-  

a. in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022, the 

applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to 

material departures; 

b. the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 

state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the 

company for that period; 

c. they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for 

preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

d. they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and 

e. they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 

and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS  

The Company has an Internal Control System in place, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity 

of its operations. The scope and authority of the Internal Audit function is defined in the Internal Audit 

Manual. The Company has appointed an Internal Audit Head to manage Internal Audits of the Company. 

To maintain its objectivity and independence, the Internal Auditor reports to the Audit Committee. The 

Audit Committee has the responsibility for establishing the audit objectives and determines the nature, 

timing and extent of audit procedures as well as the locations where the work needs to be carried out. 

 

The Internal Audit Department monitors and evaluates the efficacy & adequacy of Internal Financial 

Controls & Internal Control system in the Company to mitigate the risks faced by the organization and 

thereby achieve its business objective. 

 

Broadly the objectives  are: - 

 

• Review the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal controls; 

• Review the operation of the Control Supervisory Mechanisms; 

• Recommend improvements in processes and procedures; 

• Surface significant observations and recommendations for process improvement and financial 

leakages in a concise report for discussion with senior management; 

• Review the compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures and policies. 

 

Based on the report of Internal Audit department, process owners undertake corrective action in their 

respective areas and thereby strengthen the internal controls. Significant audit observations and corrective 

actions thereon are presented to the Audit Committee.  

 

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS, COURTS OR 

TRIBUNALS  

No significant and material orders were passed by the RBI, regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the 

going concern status and Company’s operations in future. 

 

 

 



 

 

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

The particulars as required under the provisions of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 in respect of conservation of energy and technology absorption are not 

required to be furnished considering the nature of activities undertaken by the company during the year 

under review. Below mentioned are the required details: 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Foreign Exchange Earnings (in Million) Nil Nil 

Foreign Exchange Outgo/Expenditure (in Million) 194.19  139.24 

 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

Your Directors place on record their appreciation for the significant contribution made by all employees, 

who through their competence, dedication, hard work, co-operation and support have enabled the Company 

to achieve new milestones on a continual basis. 

 

The statement of Disclosure of Remuneration under Section 197 of the Act and Rule 5(1) of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (“Rules”), is appended as 

Annexure-C to the Report. The information as per Rule 5(2) of the Rules, forms part of this Report. 

However, as per first proviso to Section 136(1) of the Act and second proviso of Rule 5(2) of the Rules, the 

Report and Financial Statements are being sent to the Members of the Company excluding the statement of 

particulars of employees under Rule 5(2) of the Rules. 

 

The details are also available at the registered office of the Company, any member desirous of obtaining 

the same shall contact the Company Secretary during business hours on working days. 

The Board hereby confirms that the remuneration paid to the Directors in accordance with the relevant 

sections of Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed therein applicable to private companies. 

 

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/ VIGIL MECHANISM 

In terms of the requirement of Section 177 of Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 7 of the Companies (Meeting 

of Board and its Power) Rules, 2014, the Company has formulated a codified vigil mechanism for their 

Directors and Employees to report their genuine concerns or grievances about unethical and improper 

practices or any other wrongful conduct in the Company, without fear of punishment, victimization or unfair 

treatment. The vigil mechanism provides adequate safeguards against victimization of Employees and 

Directors who avail of the vigil mechanism and provide direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit 

Committee in appropriate or exceptional cases. Also, the Whistle Blower Policy of the Company has been 

put up on the Company’s website and available at the link: 

 

https://www.dmifinance.in/whistle-blower-policy.html 

 

During the year, no complaint was received under the Whistle Blower mechanism and the same was 

reported to the Audit Committee Meeting. 

 

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS AND REPORT 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with corresponding rules framed 

thereunder, the Board of Directors of the Company has appointed M/s VLA & Associates, Company 

Secretaries as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company to conduct the Secretarial Audit. for the financial 

year ended March 31, 2023. The Secretarial Audit Report given by the secretarial auditor in requisite form 

MR-3 is annexed to this Report as Annexure-D. 

 

https://www.dmifinance.in/whistle-blower-policy.html
https://www.dmifinance.in/whistle-blower-policy.html


 

 

The Auditors’ Report is self-explanatory and has no qualification or adverse remarks. 

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS 

 

As per the provisions of Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is not required to 

maintain cost records. 

 

STATUTORY AUDITORS 

The Company had appointed M/s. S.N. Dhawan & Co LLP, Firm Regd. No. 000050N/N500045 as the 

new statutory auditors at the 13th Annual General Meeting held on October 29, 2021 to hold office for 3 

years commencing from the financial year i.e. 2021-22 till the financial year 2023-24 as per the provisions 

of the Companies Act, 2013 and RBI Circular pertaining to appointment of Statutory Auditors. The firm 

carries extensive experience in the financial services sector and is one of the leading statutory audit firms 

in India. 

The Audit Report by Statutory Auditors for the financial year ending March 31, 2023 is unmodified, i.e., it 

does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer. 

Further, in accordance with the Companies Amendment Act, 2017, enforced on May 07, 2018 by Ministry 

of Corporate Affairs, the appointment of Statutory Auditors is not required to be ratified at every Annual 

General Meeting. 

AUDITOR’S OBSERVATION 

The Directors have examined the Auditors’ Report on accounts for the period ended March 31, 2023. The 

Auditors’ Report is self-explanatory and has no qualification or adverse remarks except as mentioned 

elsewhere.  

 

DISCLOSURE AS PER FOREIGN EXCHANGE MANAGEMENT (NON-DEBT INSTRUMENTS) 

RULES, 2019 

 

The company being a Foreign Owned and Controlled Company (FOCC), needs to report to RBI, in case of 

any investment made by them in any other company, by way of filing Form DI on the 

https://firms.rbi.org.in/ of Reserve Bank of India. During the year under review, the Company had entered 

into the following transactions as mentioned below and made the necessary reportings with Reserve Bank 

of India (RBI), thereby complied with all the reporting requirements as per Foreign Exchange Management 

(Non-Debt Instruments) Rules, 2019 within the statutory timeline.  

 

S.No Name of Investee 

Company 

Particulars of transaction Date of 

transaction 

Type of 

reporting 

required 

Amount (₹) 

1 Azad Engineering 

Private Limited 

Sale/transfer of equity shares 

of Azad to multiple investors 

December 5, 

2022 

FC-TRS 

reporting 

22,12,13,467 

2 Radiant Polymers 

Private 

Subscribed to 2,98,711 equity 

shares of face value of Rs. 100 

each and at a premium of Rs. 

1,456 

January 3, 

2023 

DI 

reporting  

46,47,94,316 

3 Biorad Medisys Private 

Limited 

Subscribed to 600 

Compulsorily Convertible 

Debentures (CCD) of face 

value of Rs. 10,00,000 each  

March 29, 

2023 

DI 

reporting 

60,00,00,000 

4 Biorad Medisys Private 

Limited 

Subscribed to 300 Non-

Convertible Debentures 

(NCD) of face value of Rs. 

10,00,000 each 

March 29, 

2023 

DI 

reporting 

30,00,00,000 

https://firms.rbi.org.in/


 

 

5 Radiant Polymers 

Private 

Transfer of 99,570 equity 

shares of Radiant to DMI 

Income Fund Pte Ltd 

 FC-TRS 

reporting 

154,999,623.30 
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Annexure-A 

 

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES  

 

During the year, the Company constituted Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR) pursuant 

to provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Corporate Social 

Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 are provided herein below: 

1. A brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company 

The Company adopted CSR Policy aims at supplementing the role of government in enhancing the 

welfare measures for the underprivileged communities. In order to fulfil and enhance its CSR 

responsibilities, the company will distribute its CSR efforts in accordance with the provisions of 

the companies Act 2013 and thus announce the following themes: 

 

• Health Sanitation; 

• Self-help groups empowering women: 

• Cleanliness and hygiene program; 

• Education 

2. The composition of CSR Committee 

S.no Name of Director Designation 

/Nature of 

Directorship 

Number of 

meetings of CSR 

Committee held 

during the year 

Number of 

meetings of CSR 

Committee 

attended during 

the year 

1 Mr. Tammir Amr Director 2 1 

2 Mr. Gaurav Burman Director 2 2 

3 Mrs. Jayati Chatterjee Director 2 2 

4 Mr. Alfred Victor Mendoza Director 2 1 

5 Mrs. Bina Singh director 2 2 

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects 

approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company. 

Weblink: The CSR Policy, Composition of CSR committee and details of the projects funded by 

the company can be accessed from https://www.dmifinance.in/investor-corporate-governance.html 

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) 

of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable 

(attach the report)- Not Applicable.  

  

https://www.dmifinance.in/investor-corporate-governance.html


 

 

 

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies 

(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the 

financial year, if any- NIL 

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5)- ₹ 2,43,72,40,000/- 

 

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5)- ₹ 1,62,48,266.67/- 

 

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial 

years- NIL 

 

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any- ₹ NIL 

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c)- ₹ 1,62,48,266.67/- 

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 

 

Total Amount 

Spent for the 

Financial 

Year (in Rs.) 

Amount Unspent (In Rs.) 

Total Amount transferred to 

Unspent CSR Account as per 

section 135(6) 

Amount transferred to any fund 

specified under Schedule VII as per 

second proviso to section 135(5) 

Amount Date of Transfer Name of 

Fund 

Amount Date of 

Transfer 

1,62,48,266.67 NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 

 

     (b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: 

 
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) 

S.No Name of the 

Project 

Item from the 

list of 

activities in 

Schedule VII 

to the Act. 

Local 

Area 

(Yes/No) 

Location  

of the  

Project 

(State/ 

District) 

Project 

Duration 

Amount 

allocated 

for the 

project (in 

Rs.). 

Amount spent in  

the current  

financial year  

(in Rs.) 

Amount 

transferred to 

Unspent CSR 

Account for 

the 

project as per 

Section 135(6) 

(in 

Rs.). 

Mode  

of 

Implement 

ation-

Direct 

(Yes/No) 

Mode of 

Implementation-

Through 

Implementing 

Agency (Name and 

CSR Reg No.) 

1 Ashoka 

University 
(Contribution 

to 

International 
Foundation 

for Research 

and 
Education) 

Education No Sonepat, 

Haryana 

3 years 88,24,467 88,24,467.00 NIL No The amount was 

indirectly transferred 
to (Contribution to 

International 

Foundation for 
Research and 

Education)- Reg. 

No.- CSR00000712 

2 Apnalaya 

and 
Agargamee 

Agragamee 

works with 
tribal 

communities 

in Odisha and 
Apnalaya 

works with the 

urban poor in 
Mumbai 

No Mumbai, 

Maharashtra 

3 years 20,00,000 20,00,000.00 NIL No The amount was 

indirectly transferred 
to the Impact 

Foundation (India) as 

the Implementation 
Partner Reg. No.- 

CSR00001920 

 Total      1,08,24,467.00    

  

 

 

 



 

 

 

     (c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: 

  

      (d) Amount Spent in Administrative Overheads- NIL 

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable- NIL 

 

(f)  Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e)- ₹ 1,62,48,266.67/- 

 

(g)  Excess amount for set off, if any- NIL 

         

S.No Particular Amount (in Rs.) 

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per 

section 135(5) 

 1,62,48,266.67 

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year  1,62,48,266.67 

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] - 

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or 

activities of the previous financial years, if any 

- 

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years 

[(iii)-(iv)] 

- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(1

) 

(2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) 

S.

no

. 

Name of the Project Item from the 

list of 

activities in 

Schedule VII 

to the Act. 

Local 

Area 

(Yes/No)  

Location of 

the Project 

(State/Distric

t) 

Amount Spent 

for the project 

(in Rs.). 

Mode of 

Impleme

ntation-

Direct 

(Yes/No) 

Mode of 

Implementation-

Through Implementing 

Agency (Name and CSR 

Reg No.) 

1 Param Shakti Peeth Provide full care 
and family 

based 

rehabilitation of 
abandoned 

children, 

destitute women 

No Vrindavan, 

Mathura Road 

20,00,000.00 Yes Param Shakti Peeth Reg No.- 
CSR00000072 

2 Jyoti Development Trust                                                                    Education, 

Nutrition 
No Midnapore, 

West Bengal 

10,00,000.00 Yes Jyoti Development Trust- 

Reg. No.-CSR00012807                                                         

3 Shelter Associates Providing 

low- cost 

housing and 

sanitation 

solutions 

No Pune, 

Maharashtra 

15,00,000.00 Yes Shelter Associates – Reg No. 

CSR00002004 

4 Chinmaya Organization 

for Rural Development 

(CORD) 

Rural 

development  

Yes New Delhi 9,23,800.00 Yes CORD-Reg No.  
CSR00000543 

 Total    54,23,800.00   



 

 

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: NIL 

 

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial 

year(s): NIL 

 

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created 

or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details)- Not Applicable 

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s). 

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset. 

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is 

registered, their address etc. 

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and 

location of the capital asset). 

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as 

per section 135(5)- Not Applicable 

Further, in terms of the amended CSR Rules, the Chief Financial Officer of the Company has 

certified that the funds disbursed have been utilized for the purpose and in the manner approved by 

the Board and Committee for FY 2023. 

 

 

 

 

S.no. Preceding 

Financial 

Year 

Amount 

transferred 

to Unspent 

CSR 

Account 

under section 

135 (6) (in 

Rs.) 

Amount spent 

in the 

reporting 

Financial Year 

(in Rs.). 

Amount transferred to any fund specified 

under Schedule VII as per section 135(6), if 

any. 

Amount 

remaining to 

be spent in 

succeeding 

financial years. 

(in Rs.) 

    Name of 

Fund 

Amount (in 

Rs.) 

Date of 

Transfer 

 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) 

S.no. Project ID Name of the 

Project 

Financial 

Year in 

which the 

project was 

commenced 

Project 

Duration  

Total 

amount 

allocated 

for the 

project (in 

Rs.). 

Amount 

Spent for 

the project 

in reporting 

financial 

year (in 

Rs.). 

Cumulative 

amount 

spent at the 

end of 

reporting 

Financial 

Year. (in 

Rs.) 

Status of 

the 

project - 

Completed/

Ongoing. 

         



 

 

 

For and on behalf of the Board of 

DMI Finance Private Limited 

              

       Sd/-                                                            Sd/-                                                  Sd/- 

 

 Mr. Yuvraja Chanakya Singh            Mrs. Bina Singh                             Mrs. Jayati Chatterjee 

 Jt. Managing Director                         Member- CSR Committee    Member- CSR Committee  

 DIN: 02601179                                      DIN: 01146087                              DIN: 01401127 

  

Address: 46, Second Floor,                Address: 46, Second Floor,              Address: 347, Pocket E,                  

Jor Bagh, New Delhi- 110003            Jor Bagh, New Delhi- 110003           Mayur Vihar, Phase-II,                

                                                                                                                          Delhi, 110091                                                                                                     

Place: New Delhi 

Date: August 14, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

Annexure-B 

 

Form No. AOC-2 

 (Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related 

parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s 

length transactions under third proviso thereto: 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: Not Applicable 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: 

(a)Name(s) of the 

related party and 

nature of 

relationship 

(b) Nature of 

contracts/arrange

ments/transactions 

(c) Duration of 

the contracts / 

arrangements/

transactions  

(d) Salient terms of the 

contracts or 

arrangements or 

transactions including 

the value, if any: 

(e) Justification for 

entering into such 

contracts or 

arrangements or 

transactions  

(f) date(s) of 

approval by 

the Board or 

Committee 

(g) Amount 

paid as 

advances, if 

any: 

R2V2 
Technologies 

Private Limited 

(Director of R2V2, 
father of Mr. 

Shivashish 

Chatterjee, Jt. 
Managing 

Director) 

Grant of an 
unsecured loan 

As per agreed 
terms provided 

in the Loan 

Agreement 

Grant of an unsecured 
loan in ordinary course of 

business and at the arm’s 

length basis  
Amount- ₹ 1,50,00,000 

- August 12, 2022 Not Applicable 

Appnit 
Technologies 

Private Limited 

(Subsidiary 
company) 

Execution of 
Service Agreement 

to avail cash deposit 

points/ merchant 
point/ live 

dashboard / 

acknowledgement 
of transaction 

services through SM 

As per agreed 
terms provided 

in the Service 

Agreement 

The Company has to pay 
to Appnit on the basis of 

service availed by the 

Company and Tax 
Invoices shall compute as 

per Payment Terms as 

specified in the 
Addendum to Agree-

ment. 

- March 27, 2023 Not Applicable 

Appnit 
Technologies 

Private Limited 

(Subsidiary 
company) 

Execution of 
Service Agreement 

to avail collection 

services through 
BBPS Biller 

Onboarding 

Arrangement.  

As per agreed 
terms provided 

in the Service 

Agreement 

The Company has to pay 
to Appnit on the basis of 

service availed by the 

Company and Tax 
Invoices shall compute as 

per Payment Terms as 

specified in the 
Addendum to Agree-

ment. 

- March 27, 2023 Not Applicable 

Shivashish 

Chatterjee Trust 
(Personal Trust of 

Jt. Managing 

Director) 

Transfer of Class C 

units of DMI 
Alternative 

Investment Fund- 

Special 
Opportunities 

Scheme held by the 
Company to 

Shivashish 

Chatterjee Trust  

As per agreed 

terms provided 
in the Share 

Purchase 

Agreement 

Transfer of Class C units 

of DMI Alternative 
Investment Fund- Special 

Opportunities Scheme as 

per agreed terms 

- March 27, 2023 Not Applicable 

Yuvraj Singh Trust 
(Personal Trust of 

Jt. Managing 

Director) 

Transfer of Class C 
units of DMI 

Alternative 

Investment Fund- 
Special 

Opportunities 

Scheme held by the 
Company to 

As per agreed 
terms provided 

in the Share 

Purchase 
Agreement 

Transfer of Class C units 
of DMI Alternative 

Investment Fund- Special 

Opportunities Scheme as 
per agreed terms 

- March 27, 2023 Not Applicable 



 

 

Shivashish 
Chatterjee Trust  

DMI Alternatives 

Private Limited 

(Associate 
Company) 

Transfer of Class C 

units of DMI 

Alternative 
Investment Fund- 

Special 

Opportunities 
Scheme held by the 

Company 

As per agreed 

terms provided 

in the Share 
Purchase 

Agreement 

Transfer of Class C units 

of DMI Alternative 

Investment Fund- Special 
Opportunities Scheme as 

per agreed terms 

- March 27, 2023 Not Applicable 

DMI Limited 
(Holding 

Company) 

Transfer of 
shareholding of the 

Company in DMI 

Alternatives Private 
Limited to DMI 

Limited 

As per agreed 
terms provided 

in the Share 

Purchase 
Agreement 

Transfer of shareholding 
of the Company in DMI 

Alternatives Private 

Limited as per agreed 
terms 

- March 27, 2023 Not Applicable 

Quickwork 
Technologies 

Private Limited 

(Private company 
with common 

director) 

Availing chat bot 
services and and 

other ancillary 

services like iPaaS 
(Integration 

Platform as a 

Service), provision 
of user interface/ 

dashboard 

As per terms of 
the Service 

Agreement  

Company shall pay to 
Quickworks a specified 

for rendering of chat bot 

services and other 
services as specified in the 

Agreement 

Amount- ₹ 58,05,685 

- September 28, 
2022 

Not Applicable 

 

By order of the Board of Directors 

For DMI Finance Private Limited         

           

Sd/-                                                                         Sd/- 

 

Mr. Yuvraja Chanakya Singh    Mrs. Jayati Chatterjee 

Jt. Managing Director    Director 

DIN: 02601179     DIN: 01401127       

 

Address: 46, 2nd Floor, Jor Bagh                        Address: 347, Pocket E, Mayur Vihar, Phase-II,  

New Delhi- 110002                                               New Delhi- 110091 

          

Place: New Delhi 

Date: August 14, 2023 



2™ Floor, 51-52, Sector-18, 
S.N. Dhawan & CO LLP Phase IV, Udyog Vihar, Gurugram, 

Chartered Accountants Hesyona: $2018, India 
Tel: +91 124 481 4444 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT a 

To the Members of 
DMI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED 

Report on the audit of the standalone financial statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the standalone financial statements of DMI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED (“the 
Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2023, and the statement of Profit 
and Loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement 
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including 
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with 
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2023, 
and its profit, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended 
on that date. 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in 
the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the standalone financial statements section of our 
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that 
are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act 
and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key audit matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance 
in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in 
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For 
each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that 
context. 

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated 
in our report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for 
the audit of the standalone financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these 
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to 
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of 
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide 
RNS basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying standalone financial statements: 

SO 
\) ‘el 

AR an & CO LLPis registered with limited liability with identification number AAH-1125 and its registered office is 108, Mercantile House, 15 Kasturba Gandhi Marg 
gi 110001, India 

      
     

 



  

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit 
matters 

  

(a) Impairment of financial assets as at bal ance sheet date (expected credit losses) 
  

Ind AS 109 requires the Company to provide 
for impairment of its loan receivables 
(designated at amortised cost and fair value 
through other comprehensive income) using 
the expected credit loss (ECL) approach. 
ECL involves an estimation of probability 
weighted loss on financial instruments over 
their life, considering reasonable and 
supportable information about past events, 
current conditions, and forecasts of future 
economic conditions which could impact the 
credit quality of the Company's loans and 
advances. In the process, a_ significant 
degree of judgement has been applied by 
the Management for: 

- Staging of loans i.e., classification in 
‘significant increase in credit risk’ (‘SICR’) 
and ‘default’ categories; 
- Estimation of behavioral life; 

Determining macro-economic factors 
impacting credit quality of receivables; 
- Estimation of losses for loan products with 
no/ minimal historical defaults 

Read and assessed the Company's 
accounting policies for impairment of 
financial assets and their compliance with 
Ind AS 109 and the governance framework 
approved by the Board of Directors pursuant 
to Reserve Bank of India guidelines. 

Evaluated the reasonableness of the 
Management estimates by understanding 
the process of ECL estimation and related 
assumptions and tested the controls around 
data extraction and validation. 

Assessed the criteria for staging of loans 
based on their past due status to check 
compliance with requirement of Ind AS 109. 
Tested a sample of performing (stage 1) 
loans to assess whether any SICR or loss 
indicators were present requiring them to be 
classified under higher stages. 

Assessed the additional considerations 
applied by the Management for staging of 
loans as SICR or default categories in view 
of Company's policy on _ one-time 
restructuring. 

Tested the ECL model, including 
assumptions and underlying computation. 
Assessed the floor/ minimum rates of 
provisioning applied by the Company for 
loan products with inadequate historical 
defaults. 

Tested assumptions used by _ the 
Management in determining the overlay. 

Assessed disclosures included in the 
standalone financial statements in respect of 
expected credit losses. 

  

(b) Information Technology (IT) system controls 

    Financial accounting and _ reporting 
processes, especially in the financial 
services sector, are fundamentally reliant on 

IT systems and IT controls to process 
significant transaction volumes, hence we 

identified IT systems and controls over 
financial reporting as a key audit matter for 

We tested the design and operating 
effectiveness of the Company’s IT access 
controls over the information systems that 
are important to financial reporting and 
various interfaces, configuration and other 
identified application controls.   
  

  
 



  

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit 
matters 

  

Automated accounting procedures and IT 
environment controls, which include IT 
governance, general IT controls over 
program development and changes, access 
to programs and data and IT operations, are 
required to be designed and to operate 
effectively to ensure reliable financial 
reporting 

We tested IT general controls (logical 
access, changes management and aspects 
of IT operational controls). This included 
testing requests for access to systems were 
reviewed and authorized. 

We tested the Company’s periodic review of 
access rights. We also tested requests of 
changes to systems for approval and 
authorization. In addition to the above, we 
tested the design and operating 
effectiveness of certain automated controls 
that were considered as key internal controls 
over financial reporting.         

Information other than the standalone financial statements and auditor’s report thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the annual report but does not include the standalone 
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. These reports are expected to be made 
available to us after the date of this auditor's report. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we 
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read 
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially 
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we 
are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and shall comply with 
the relevant applicable requirement of SA 720 (Revised), ‘The Auditor's Responsibilities Relating 
to Other Information. 

Management’s responsibility for the standalone financial statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the 
Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and 
fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in 
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the 
Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing 
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 

 



preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view 
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Management is responsible for assessing 
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Management either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do 
so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 
process. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the standalone financial statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial 
statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We are also: 

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we 
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate 
internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements in place and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls. 

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management. 

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 



» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the 

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 

and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 

matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the 

current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 

report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 

rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report 

because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the 

public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 

4. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’), issued by the 

Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 443 of the Act, we give in 

the “Annexure A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, 

to the extent applicable. 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report to the extent applicable, that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 

so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive 

Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this 

Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian 

Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 

2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 

31 March, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial 

statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 

separate Report in “Annexure B”. 

 



(9) 

(h) 

ill. 

V. 

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 

the requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended; in our opinion and to the best 

of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company being a 

private Company, Section 197 of the Act related to the managerial remuneration is not 

applicable. 

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion 

and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position as 

on 31 March 2023 in its standalone financial statements — Refer note 44 to the standalone 

financial statements. 

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 

which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 

and Protection Fund by the Company. 

a. The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 

funds which are material either individually or in the aggregate have been advanced 

or loaned or invested either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other 

sources or kind of funds by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, 

including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether 

recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly 

lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by 

or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 

security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

b. The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 

funds which are material either individually or in the aggregate have been received 

by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding 

Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 

Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities 

identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate 

Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 

Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

c. Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable 

and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has 

caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 

11(e) as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement. 

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has not 

proposed final dividend for the year. 

 



Vi. As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended is 

applicable for the Company only with effect from 1 April, 2023, therefore, reporting 
under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, is 
not applicable. 

For S.N. Dhawan & CO LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No.: OOOOSON/N500045 

& 
By 

we Jain 

Partner 

Membership No.: 087701 

  

Place: Gurugram 

Date: 22 May 2023



Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report 

Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 

section of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of DMI FINANCE 

PRIVATE LIMITED on the standalone financial statements as of and for the year ended 31 

March 2023 

(a) In respect of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets: 

A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, 

including quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment 

and relevant detail of right of use assets. 

B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of 

intangible assets. 

(b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its ‘Property, Plant 

and Equipment’ and ‘Right of use Assets’ under which property, plant and 

equipment and right of use assets are verified in a phased manner, over a period 

of three years, which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of 

the Company and the nature of its assets. In accordance with this program, 

certain property, plant and equipment and right of use assets were verified during 

the year and according to the information and explanation given to us, no material 

discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records 

examined by us, the Company does not hold any immovable property under the 

head property, plant and equipment other than properties where the Company is 

the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee. 

(d) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment including right 

of use assets and intangible assets during the year, being under cost model. 

Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(i)(d) of the Order are not applicable. 

(e) There are no proceedings which have been initiated or are pending against the 

Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions 

(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) (as amended in 2016) and rules made 

thereunder. 

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have 

any inventory. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order are not 

applicable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year, the 

Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in 

aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. In our opinion and 

according to the information and explanations given to us, the quarterly returns or 

statements filed by the Company with such banks are in agreement with the unaudited 

books of account of the Company for the respective quarters. The Company has not 

obtained any working capital limits from any financial institution. 

 



(a) The Company’s principal business is to give loans. Accordingly, the provisions of 
clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order are not applicable. 

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and 
conditions of grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees 
provided during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s 
interest. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of loans and 
advances in the nature of loans, the schedule of repayment of principal and 
payment of interest has been stipulated by the Company. Refer notes 7.1 and 49 
to the standalone financial statements for summarised details of such 
loans/advances which are not repaid by borrowers as per stipulations. Having 
regard to the nature of the Company’s business and voluminous nature of loan 
transactions, it is not practicable to furnish entity-wise details of amount due, due 
date for repayment or receipt and the extent of delay. 

Summary of loan assets categorized as credit impaired (stage 3) and loan assets 
categorized as those where credit risk has increased significantly since initial 
recognition (stage 2) as at the balance sheet date is as under: 

  

  

  

      

Category of loan Stage 2 Stage 3 
(gross) (Rs./ millions) (Rs./ millions) 

Consumer Loans 1,690.44 113.81 
Corporate Loans (excluding credit 1,784.28 2,240.59 
substitute) 
  

Further, except for those instances where there are delays or defaults in 
repayment of principal and / or interest as at the balance sheet date, in respect of 
which the Company has disclosed asset classification in note 7.1 to the 
standalone financial statements in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards 
(Ind AS), the parties are generally repaying the principal amounts, as stipulated, 
and are also regular in payment of interest, as applicable, except for delays in 
some cases. 

(d) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans (excluding credit 
substitute), the aggregate amount of loans, where any instalment is overdue for 
more than 90 days as at 31 March 2023 is Rs. 2,354.40 millions. In our opinion 
and according to the information and explanation given to us, reasonable steps 
are being taken by the Company for recovery of overdue amount of principal and 
interest. 

(e) The Company's principal business is to give loans. Accordingly, the provisions of 
clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order are not applicable. 

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit 
procedures performed, the Company has not granted any loans or advances 
either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of 
repayment during the year. 

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act in 

   

 



respect of loans granted, investments made, guarantees issued, and security 

provided. 

Vv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

Company has not accepted any deposits during the year and there are no amounts 

which are deemed to be deposits during the year within the meaning of Sections 73 

to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as 

amended). Further the Company had no unclaimed deposits at the beginning of the 

year. 

vi. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government 

has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 

of the Act, in respect of Company’s products/ services. Accordingly, the provisions 

of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable. 

vil. 
(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 

is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, 

provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, cess and other material statutory 

dues, as applicable, to the appropriate authorities,. Further, no undisputed amounts 

payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six 

months from the date they become payable. 

The operations of the Company during the year do not give rise to the liabilities of sales- 

tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise and value added tax. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues 

referred to in sub-clause (a) that have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities 

on account of any dispute except for the following case: 

  

  

Amount Period to 
Name of Nature of PpIMauEE pall Under which — the Forum where Remarks, _ if 

the statute dues (Re Protest amount dispute any 
millions) (Rs./ pending 

i relates 
millions) 

Demand 
So raised by IT 

Income on Assessment 2 ae Department 

Tax Act, 2.26 Nil year 2017- as per 
Tax Tax-Appeal 

1961 18 [CIT(A)} Assessment 
Order dated 
12.04.2021 

vii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there were 

no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or 

disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 

1961 (43 of 1961). 

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 

has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest 

thereon to any lender during the year. 

 



Xi. 

XiL. 

(b) 

(c) 

(d) 

(e) 

(f) 

(a) 

(b) 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the Company 

has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government 

or any government authority. 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term 

loans availed by the Company were applied for the purpose for which the loans were 

obtained, though idle/surplus funds which were not required for immediate utilization were 

temporarily invested in liquid funds, pending utilisation. 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination 

of the financial statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term 

basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company. 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on an 

overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the 

Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the 

obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures, as applicable. 

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised 

loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures, or 

associate companies. 

The Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer 

(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(x)(a) 

of the Order are not applicable. 

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or 

convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally) during the year. Accordingly, 

provisions of clause 3 (x)(b) of the Order are not applicable. 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no material 

fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the course 

of our audit, other than the instances of fraud amounting to Rs. 20.3 millions comprising 

of 116 instances noticed and reported by the management in terms of the regulatory 

provisions applicable to the Company, as mentioned in note 53 (v) of standalone financial 

statements 

To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Act 

has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and 

Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended) with the Central Government, during the year and 

upto the date of this report. 

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received 

by the Company during the year. 

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xii)(a) to 

(c) of the Order are not applicable. 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all 

transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 188 of the Act, 

where applicable, and the requisite details have been disclosed in the financial 

statements etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards. Since, the 

 



xiv. 

XV. 
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xviii. 

xix. 

XX. 

  

Company is a private limited Company, therefore, the provisions of Section 177 of 

the Act are not applicable to the Company.. 

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its 

business. 

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued to the company 

till date, and covering the period under audit. 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions during the year with its 

directors or persons connected with them covered under Section 192 of the Act. 

(a) The Company is required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the RBI Act, 1934 

and the Company has obtained the registration. 

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance 

activities without a valid Certificate of Registration from the RBI as per the RBI Act, 

1934. 

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (“CIC”) as defined in the regulations 

made by the Reserve Bank of India. 

(d) The Group has no CIC which are part of the Group. Accordingly, the provision of 

clause 3(xvi) (d) of the order are not applicable. 

The Company has not incurred any cash losses during the current financial year 

covered by our audit and in the immediately preceding financial year. 

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the 

financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and 

payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 

statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and 

based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has 

come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists 

as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities 

existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one 

year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance 

as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based 

on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor 

any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the 

balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

(a) The Company has not transferred the amount remaining unspent in respect of 

other than ongoing projects, to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Act till the 

date of our report. However, the time period for such transfer i.e. six months from 

the expiry of the financial year as permitted under the second proviso to sub- 

section (5) of Section 135 of the Act, has not elapsed till the date of our report.



(b) There is no unspent amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on 

ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a special account in compliance with 

provision of sub-section (6) of Section 135 of the said Act. 

xxi. | The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of 

standalone financial statements. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect 

of said clause under this report. 

For S.N. Dhawan & CO LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No.: OOOO5ON/N500045 

yor 
Vinesh Jain 

Partner 

Membership No.: 087701 
UDIN: 23087701BGWNIJ1315 

  

Place: Gurugram 

Date: 22 May 2023



Annexure B 
(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements of 
the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of DMI FINANCE PRIVATE 
LIMITED, on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023) 

Independent Auditor’s report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial 
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of DMI 
FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as at 31 March 2023 in conjunction with our audit 
of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal financial control with reference to financial statements criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
‘Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of 
the company’s business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under 
the Act. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India ("the ICAI") and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial 
Controls and, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system with reference to 
financial statements. 

 



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements 

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process 

designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 

preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 

accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial 

statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records 

that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the 

assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 

necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 

accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 

accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide 

reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, 

or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial 

statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial 

statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 

material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of 

any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future 

periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial 

statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls 

system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference 

to financial statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on the internal 

financial control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company 

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by 

the ICAI. 

For S.N. Dhawan & CO LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No.: OOO0OSON/N500045 

gs 
gore 
Vinesh Jain 

Partner 

Membership No.: 087701 

UDIN: 23087701BGWNIJ1315 

  

Place: Gurugram 
Date: 22 May 2023



  

  

OMI Finance Private Limited 
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023 

{All Arnount in Rs. In militens, untass otherwise stated} 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Notes AS at March 31, 2023 As at Mareh 33, 2072 

ASSETS 
Financlal assets 

Cash and cash covivalents 4 5,628.39 6,533.27 
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents § 560.10 294,45 
Trade receivables 6 308.05 $7.07 

Loans ? 67,331.33 46,801.15 
Investments 8 8,465.14 10,688.86 
Other financial assets g 1,089.58 1,608.08 

Total financtal ossats 83,382.56 5,982.88 

Non-financial assets 

Current tax assets 10 185.78 284,71 
Oaterred tax assets {net} 11 1,127.26 803.53 
“Property, plant and equipment 12 140.53 104.18 
Capitat work In progress 43 {a) - 23,27 
Intangible assets uader development 13 {b} 8.78 . 

Right of use assets - 16 196,35 234.95 
Other intangible assets 15 21.66 3141 
Other non financial assets 16 165.66 103.56 

Total non-financial assets 1,845.92 4,585.61 

Assets held for sale Ww 75.00 143.88 

TOTAL ASSETS 85,303.48 67,712.37 

FAB! AND Equi 

VIABIUTIES 

Financial liabifties 
Payables 

A} Trade payables 18 {a) 

(i) total outstanding ducs of micro and small enterprises 8.97 94.79 
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and 1,133.20 659.67 
small enterprises 

8) Other payables 48 {b) 

{i) total outstanding dues af micro and small enterprises + . 

{il) toral outstanding dues of creditors other thon micra and 525,06 379.87 
small enterprises 

Debt securities . 19 16,837.91 18,552.27 
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 20 23,888.51 8,965.53 
Lease Mabilities zi 242.29 276.36 
Other financial abilities 22 283.58 162.87 

Total financial fiabilities 42,919.92 25,091.36 

Non financial Habilities 
Provisions 23 96.35 77.25 
Other non-financial Nabilities 26 BO 628 

Total non-financial Hlabitities 322.39 140,14 

Equity 
“Equity share capital 25 6,567.75 6,567.00 

Other equity 26 35,493.42 31,913.87 
Total equity 42,081.27 38,480.87 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 85,303.48, G2.11237   

See accompanying notes forrning part of the standalone financial statement, 

In terms of our report attached 

/For$.N. Dhawan & COLL For ond on behalf of tho Board of Directors of 
Firm Registration No. QOO0SON/N500045 DM1 Finance Private Limited 
Chartered Accountants 5 CIN: UES9Z9DL20NBPTC 182749 . 

iS Mal hy \ a wae ; AM -& May 
ooo Mingsh lala SbivaShIsh Chatterjee 

> Paftners {it. Managing Olroctor) 

DIN: 02623460   Membership No. 087701 

rice: NEW YORK 
Pte 2M AY 202%     

om mec MER DECHL 
: Pae OOYCRN pord 2 | Date 9g MeN, 2023 date gg MAY , 2028 
te: GUROG RAM 

  



    

  

  

OMI Financa Private Limited 
Standalone Statement of profit and foss for the year ended March 

(All Amount In Rs. tn millions, unfess otherwise stated) 

31, 2023 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Notes Far the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 teh 31,2022 
Revenue from operations 

Interest Income 
27 15,969.48 78371 Fees and commission income 28 201.74 118.86 Net gain on fair value changes 29 197.60 1,005.79 Total revenue from Operations 

16,368.82 8961.76 
Other income 

30 196,24 144.51 Total Income 
15,565.06 9,106.27 

Expenses 
Finance costs 

31 3,018.66 1,916.53 Fees and commissian expense 32 1,329.74 671.05 Impairment on financial Instruments 33 4,012.20 3,411.93 Employee benefits expense 34 1,235.22 839.86 Depreciation, arartization and impairment 35 108:20 98.68 Other expenses 
36 2,482.46 1,386,69 a rtemerer treat re el ng, 

Total expanses 
12,186.48 8,324.74 

Profit before tax 
4,378,58 78153 

Tax expense/ (credit): 
(1) Current tax 47 1,520,76 645.05 (2} Deferred tax 

47 (382.24) (443.32) Income tax expense 
1,138.42 203.73 

Net profit for the year 
3,240,316 377.86 

Other comprehensive income 
3} Items that will not-be reclassified to profit or loss 

{i) Re-measurement gains-an gratuity 
5.93 0.52 Ul} Net gain/loss on fair valua of equity instruments thraugh other 227.72 837.53 comprehensive income 

Income tax relating to above 
(58,71) (210.94} Subtotal {a} 
174.54 627.11 

) Items that will be reclassified te profit or loss 
fi) Gain/(loss} on Fair Value changes 

0.57 (ncome tax relating to above item 
: (0.14} Subtotal (b} 
- 0.43 

Other comprehensive Iicome 
174.54 627,54 

Total comprehensive income for the year ae 20 205 3 
Earnings per equity share (face value of Rs,.10 per share} 37 

Basic (Rs.} 

Diluted {Re.) 

See accompanying notes forming part of the standalone financial statement. 

‘In'teems of our-report attached 

ForS.N. Dhawan & CO LLP 
Firm Registration No. CO00SON/N500045 
Chartered Accountants 

oe 
Vinesh Jain : 
“Partner AN 

Membership No.087701 

OMI Finance Private Limited 

CIN: U65929DL2008PTC182749 

    
DIN: 02623460 

Place: we Ww YoRK 

Sate: 92 MAY ; 2628 

  

mee GO REGRAM 
a ace: ELHT SQ _ Pate 30 MAY, 2023 Place: NEW D 

Date: 2 MAY , 2.02% 
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For and on behalf of the Board of Diractars of 
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Yuvspja Chantkya Singh 

anaging Director} 
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1 

2] Statement of Cash Flows has heen prepared under Indlract method as set out In the IND AS 7 

DMI Finance Private Limited 

Express Bulking, ard Floor, Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg, New Oelht-110002 

CIN - UGS929DL2008PTC182749 

Statement of Standalone Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2023 

{All Amount In Rs. tn aifilions, unless otherwise stated} 

A Cash flow from operating activites: 
Profit bafore tax 

AciJustments for 

Depreclation aud amortisation 

Net gain on fate value changes 

Impairment on finatsciat instruments 

Interest expense for leasing arrangements 

Effective interest rate adjustment for financtal Insteurants 

Asset held for sale written off 
Dividend income 
Employee stock option/shure warrant axpense 

Operating profit before working capttal changes 

Changes In working capital 

{increase} in financial and other assets 

Increase in Mnanclat and other liabilities 
Decraase In non financtat assets 

increase In aon financial tiabilltfes 

Total of changes in working capital 

Direct taxes paid {net of refunds} 

Net cash flow generated from / {used In) operating activities (Af 

a Cash flow from Investing activities: 

inflow {outflow on accaunt of : 

  

  

  

  

Year anded Year unded 

March 31, 2023 March 32, 2022 

4,378.58 781.53 

108.20 98.68 

(197,60) (1,005,739) 

4,012.20 3,603.77 

26.33 16.09 

75,08 12,76 
68.88 4.97 

(3.34) . 
160.41 79,01 

8,628.74 3,632.02 

{24,670.84) {17,963.79) 
654.01 388.95 

(62,10) {15,03} 

187.78 35.92 

{23,894.45) {27,553.95) 

{x.d22.83 {715.38) 
  

(16,684.24) (14,637,33} 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Purchase of Praperty, plant and equipment {71.44} (61.62) 
(including capital work-ia-progress)/ Intangible 
assets 

Purchase of Investment (76,951.65) 8,725.49 
Sale of invastmaat 79,996,70 : 
Olvidend Income 3.34 : 
Movement of fixed deposits (net} (265,65) {27.24) 
Net cash flow from / {used In} fnvesting activities (B} 2,714.30 8,636,632 

€ Cash flow fram tinancity activites: 
Proceed from Issue of equity shares {including share premium} 497 2,342.62 
Recaipt of upfront money on share warrant 0.22 . 
Proceeds from borrowings {other than debt securities} 31,517,19 8,850.00 
Rapayment of borravings (other than debt securities} {16,664,49) (1,077.84) 
Procaads from debt securittas 1,500.00 
Repayment of debt securities (3,219.16) - 
Lease payments (70.67} {87.10} 
Net cash flow generated from financing activitles (C} 13,068.06 10,057.68 

Net increase [n cash and cash equivatents (A+B4C) (904,88) 4,057.00 
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginatng of the year 6,533.27 2,476.27 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year §,628.39 6,533.27 

Notes: 

} Components of cash and cash equivatents As at March 34, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 
Cash on hand 

0,05 0,05 
Balance with banks 

In current accounts and overdraft accounts 5,628.34 5,533.22 doposits with original maturlty of less than 3 months : 1,000,00 sentence OO.09 Total cash and cash equivatents 5,628.39 6,533.27 & nee 7 15 2: 

"Statement of Cush Flows" 

3) For disclosure of Investing und financing activitles that do net require the use of cash and cash equivalents, refer note 45. 

Seq accompanying notes forming part of the standatone Hnancial statement. 

ln terms of our report attached 

For S.N. Dhawan & CO LLP 
Firm Registration No. OUOOSON/§ 

Chartered Accountants 

Vinesh Jain 

Partner 

Place: ce) U RY GAA ™ 

2 MAY, 2023 

    

For and on behalf of the Beard of Olractors of 
OMI Finance Private tinted! 

CIN: UGSIZ9OL200SPTC182749 

an” 

a] 
Siitvostth cant aicfee 

fit, Maugplog Ofc) 

DIN:.02023469 

Place: AS Ela YoRY, 

22 MAY 2023 

ChichFinanetat Officer) 

, piace: NE tao Heculr 

| 22 MAY,2023 

a 
| Le 

Yuveal a oe 
Us va bplag Dievssor) 

OIN/OLYOLTF 

rue: NEW HECHT 

Gave; 22, AY, 262% 

VAN: 

  

   Sahib Pahwo



A.
 

Eq
ui
ty
 
sh
ar
a 

ca
gi
ta
l 

(r
ef
er
 
no

re
 

25
} 

Fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 
en
de
d 

32
1 
Ma

rc
h 

20
23

 

Eq
ui

ty
 
sh
ar
es
 

of
 
IN

R 
10

 
ea

ch
 

is
su
ed
, 

su
bs
cr
ib
ed
 

an
d 

fu
ll

y 
pa
id
 

At
 

1 
Ap

ri
l 

2
0
2
2
 

Ch
an
ge
s 

in 
Eq

ui
ty

 
Sh
ar
e 

Ca
pi
ta
l 

du
a 

to
 
pr
io
r 

pe
ri
od
 

er
ro
rs
 

Re
st
at
ed
 
ba
la
nc
e 

at
 

1 
Ap
ri
l 

20
22

 
Is
su
e 

of
 
sh
ar
e 

ca
pi
ta
l 

{M
ot
e 

25
) 

At
 
FL
 
Ma
rc
h 

20
23

 

Fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ae

 
en
de
d 

31
 
Ma
rc
h 

20
22
 

Eq
ui
ty
 
sh
ar
as
 

of
 
IN

R 
10
 
ea
ch

 
is
su
ed
, 

su
bs

cr
ib

ed
 

an
d 

fu
ll

y 
pa

id
 

At
 

Ll 
Apr

il 
20

22
 

Ch
an

ge
s 

in 
Eq
ui
ty
 
Sh
ar
e 

Ca
pi
ta
l 

du
e 

to
 
pc

io
r 

pe
ri

od
 

er
ro
rs
 

Re
st
at
ed
 

ba
la

nc
e 

at
 

1 
Ap
ri
l 

20
21
 

is
su
e 

of
 
sh
ar
e 

ca
pi
ta
l 

At
 
31

 
Ma
rc
h 

20
22
 

DM
I 

Fi
na
nc
e 

Pr
iv
at
e 

Li
mi
te
d 

S
t
a
t
e
m
e
n
t
 

of
 
Ch
an
ge
s 

in
 
Eq
ui
ty
 

fo
r 

th
e 

ya
ar
 
en
de
d 

Ma
rc
h 

31
, 

20
23

 

{A
l 

Am
ou
nt
 

in 
25
. 

In 
mi

ll
io

ns
, 

un
le
ss
 
ot
he
nw
is
a 

st
at
ed
) 

 
 

N
u
m
b
e
r
 

71
,2

3,
93

,4
01

 
 
 

‘ 

73
,2

3,
93

,A
01

 

74
74
1 

72
.2

4,
68

,1
42

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

N
u
m
b
e
r
 

§9
,9

3,
50

,9
33

 

89
,9
3,
50
,9
33
 

1,
30

,4
2,

46
8 

71
,2
3,
93
,4
60
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

 
 

IN
R 

Mi
ll
io
ns
 

6,
43
6.
58
 

 
 

6,
43

6.
53

 

13
0.
42
 

6,
55
7.
00
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Re
se
rv
es
 
an
d 

Su
rp

lu
s 

Ot
he

r 
Co
mp
re
he
ns
iv
e 

la
co

me
 

 
 

S
t
a
t
u
t
o
r
y
 
r
e
s
e
r
v
e
 

u/
s 

4S
-I
C 

of
 R

BI
 

Ac
t 

  

Se
cu

ri
ti

es
 

Pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
s 

. 
p
r
e
m
i
u
m
 

Sh
ar
e 

ba
se
d 

pa
ym
en
t 

Ca
pi
ta
l 

re
de
mp
ti
on
 

ou
ts
ta
nd
in
g 

re
se
rv
e 

ra
se
ne
 

Sh
ar
e 

wa
rr
an
t 

re
se
rv
es
 

Up
fr

on
t 

mo
ni

es
 

re
ce
iv
ed
 

on
 
Sh
ar
e 

Re
ta

in
ed

 
ea
rn
in
gs
 

wa
rr

an
ts

 

R
e
m
e
a
s
u
r
e
m
e
n
t
 

ga
in
f{
le
ss
) 

on
 
de
fi
ne
d 

be
ne
fi
t 

pl
an
 

Ga
in

/{
lo

ss
} 

on
 

Fa
ir
 

Va
lu
e 

ch
an
ge
s 

{D
eb
t 

an
d 

Eq
ui
ty
) 

Re
al

is
ed

 
Ga
in
 

on
 

In
ve
st
me
nt
s 

To
ta
l 

ot
he

r 

co
mp

re
he

ns
iv

e 

in
co
me
 

To
ta
l 

st
he
r 

aq
ui
ty
 

 
 

Ba
la

nc
e 

as
 
an
 
Ap

ri
l 

1, 
20

21
 

97
7.

46
 

Pr
oh
t 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 
- 

Ot
he
r 

Co
mp
re
he
ns
iv
e 

in
co

rn
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar
 

- 
Tr

an
st

ar
 

to
 
sp
ec
ia
l 

re
se
rv
e 

LI
S.

S5
 

Sh
ar
e 

op
ti

on
s 

ex
er

ci
se

d 
du

ri
ng

 
th
e 

ye
ar
 

- 
Up

fr
on

t 
Mo

ni
es

 
on

 
Sh
ar
e 

Wa
rr

an
t 

re
ce
iv
ed
 
du

ri
ng

 

th
e 

ve
ar
 

Tr
an

sf
er

 
to

 
Sh
ar
e 

Wa
rr

an
t 

re
se
rv
e 

” 
P
r
e
m
i
u
m
 

on
 
is

su
e 

of
 e

qu
it
y 

sh
ar

es
 

- 

23
,4

95
.3
5 

14
0.

95
 

- 
81

.2
1 

- 
96
.0
7 

- 
- 

2,
21

2.
20
 

- 
- 

- 
25

,7
07

.5
5 

- 
3,

68
8.

30
 

- 
57

7.
30

 

. 
(1
15
.5
5)
 

4,
15

0.
54

 
4 

1.
47

 

33
.2

7 
: 

$1
0.
18
 

34
.0

5 

$6
1.

59
 

28
,4
17
.3
2 

57
7.

30
 

82
7.
58
 

46
.0
7 

0.
50
 

32
.4
4 

2,
23
2.
20
 

31
,9
13
.8
7 

 
 

Ba
la

nc
e 

as
 
on

 
Ma
rc
h 

31
, 

20
22

 
1,

09
3.

02
 

Pe
af
it
 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar
 

- 
Ot
he
r 

Co
mo
re
he
ns
iv
e 

in
co

me
 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 
- 

Tr
an

sf
er

 
to

 
sp
ec
ia
l 

re
se

rv
e 

64
8.
03
 

Sh
ar

e 
oo

ti
on

s 
gr

an
te

d 
du

ri
ng

 
th

e 
va
or
 

- 
Sh

ar
e 

op
ti

on
s 

ex
er

ci
se

d 
du
ri
ng
 

th
e 

ye
ar
 

. 
Up

fr
on

t 
Mo

ni
es

 
on
 
Sh

ar
e 

Wa
rr

an
t 

re
ce

iv
ed

 
du

ri
ng

 
th

e 
ve

ar
 

Tr
an
sf
er
 

to
 
Sh
ar
e 

Wa
rr
an
t 

re
se
rv
e 

- 
P
r
e
m
i
u
m
 

on
 

is
su

e 
of

 e
qu

it
y 

sh
ar
es
 

- 

Ba
la

nc
e 

as
 
on
 
Ma
rc
h 

31
, 

20
23

 
L
7
4
1
a
s
   

  
42
36
 

- 
4.

22
 

- 
- 

- 

25
,7

41
.7
7 

30
5.
07
 

74
.8
0 

81
.2
1 

- 
3,
24
0.
16
 

- 
{6
48
.0
3}
: 

6,
76

2.
87

 
  ad

4 

5.
31
 

82
3.
85
 

16
.9
7 

  17
4,
54
 

83
6.
13
 

  3,
29

0.
16

 

47
4.
54
8 

12
1.
09
 

{3
.0
2}
 

0.
22
 

22
.3
6 

4.
22
 

35
,4
93
.4
2 

 
 

Se
e 

ac
co

mp
an

yi
ng

 
no
te
s 

fo
rm

in
g 

pa
rt

 
of

 
th
e 

st
an
da
lo
ne
 

fi
na

nc
ia

l 
st

at
em

en
t.

 

In
 
te

rm
s 
of
 

ou
r 

re
po

rt
 
at

ta
ch

ed
 

Fo
c 

$.
N,
 
D
h
a
w
a
n
 

& 
CO

 
LL
P 

Fi
rm

 
Re
gi
st
ra
ti
on
 

No
. 

OO
OO
SO
N/

NS
00

0¢
, 

Ch
ar

te
re

d 
Ac
co
un
ta
nt
s 

y 
i
B
 

Pa
rt
ne
r 

M
e
m
b
e
r
s
h
i
n
 

No
. 

03
77
01
 

  
 

Pl
ac
e:
 
Q
V
a
U
G
R
A
 
™
 

om
 

DL 
D
M
A
Y
 

52
.6
23
 

Fo
r 

an
d 

on
 
be

ha
lf

 
of

 
th
e 

Bo
ar
d 

of
 
Di
re
ct
or
s 

of
 

OM
I 

Fi
na
nc
e 

Pr
iv

at
e 

Li
mi
te
d 

CI
N:
 
U
6
S
I
2
Z
S
D
L
2
0
0
8
P
T
C
1
3
2
7
4
8
 

  

DI
N:
 
02
62
34
60
 

Pl
ac
e:
 
N
E
L
 

Y
 
o
R
 

Da
te
: 
2
2
 
M
B
Y
 

, 
2
0
2
 

3
 

  

Pl
ac
e:
 
N
E
w
 

D
E
L
 
u
r
 

Da
te
: 

22
 
MA
Y,
 
20
2%
 

o pen, . 

  

Ma
s 

L 
. 

Y
u
v
y
a
j
a
 
C
h
a
n
a
k
y
a
 
Si

ng
n 

Ut
/M
an
ag
in
g 

Di
re

ct
or

) 
pi
nd
 0

26
01
17
9 

ma
e 
E
W
 

HE
CH

T 

J / 

  

2
0
2
3
 

2
2
M
 

Ay
 

, 

 



3.1 

DMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to the standatone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

Corporate Information 

DMI Finance Private Limited Is a Private Limited Company ("The Cornpany") and Incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 having Corporate Identification 

Number is (CIN} UGS929DL2008PTC182749 on September 02, 2008. 

The Company engaged In lending activities as Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) regulated by the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’). The Company had obtained its licence from 

Reserve Bank of India (RBI) to operate as Non deposit Accepting Non Banking Financial Company (NBFC-ND) on January 05, 2009 vide registration No. RBI N-14.03176. 

The registered office of the Company is located at Express Building, 3rd Floor 9-10, Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg New Delhi, 

These financial statements were authorised for Issue In accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on 22 May, 2023, 

Basis of preparation of Financial Statements 

a} Statement of compliance 

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with indlan Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS' or 'the Accounting Standards’) notified under Section 133 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 {the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act. 

All amount disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest Rupecs millions as per the requirements of Schedule Ill, unless otherwise 

stated. 

b) 8asls of preparation and presentation 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS} a5 per the Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Rules , 2015 as 

amended from time to time and notified under section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 {the act} along with other relevant provisions of the Act and the Master Direction - Non- 

Banking-Financial Company Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and deposit taking company {Reserve bank) Directions, 2016 (‘the NBFC Master 

Directions’) as amended issued-by RBI. The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. 

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees {INR} and all values are rounded to the millions, except when otherwise indicated. 

c} Basis of measurement 

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis as a going concern and under the historical cost convention except for the assets and Ilabilities measured at 

fair vaine as follows: 

- certain financial assets and {labilities and contingent consideration is measured at falr value; 

- assets held for sale ~ measured at fair value less cost to sell; 

- defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value; and 
- share-based payments — measured at fair value. 

d} Presentation of financial statements 

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity. Financial assets and {inancial tiabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only offset 

and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event, the 

parties alsa intend to settle on a net basis in all of the following circumstances: 

« The normal course of business 

+ The event of default 
« The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and/or its counterparties. 

Summary of significant accounting policies 

a) Use of estimates,judgements and assumptions 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 

amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosure and the disclosure of contingent Habilitles, at the end of the reporting year. Estimates 

and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized In the year in which the estimates are revised, Although 

these estimates are based on the management's best knowledge of Current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the 

outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or Habilities in future years. 

{n particular, Information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the 

amounts recognized In the financial statements is included in the following notes: 

i. Business Model Assessment 

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the Solely Payments of Principle and Interest (’SPPI’} and the business model test. The 

Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how Company’s financial assets are managed together ta achieve a particular business objective. This 

assessment includes judgement reflecting al! relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets Is evaluated and their performance measured, the risks 

that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are evaluated. The Company monitors financial assets 

measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income that are derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal 

and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Company's continuous assessment of 

whether the business mode! for which the remaining financlal assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change 

in business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets. 
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impairment of financial assets 

Judgement Is required by management In the estimation of the amaunt and timing of future cash flows when determining an impalrment allowance for loans and 
advances. In estimating these cash flows, the Company makes judgments about the borrower's financial situation. These estimates are based on assumptions about a 
number of factors such as credit quality, level of arrears etc, and actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to the impairment allowance, 

Share-based payments 

Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most apprapriate valuation model, which is dependent on the terms and 
conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the share option, 
volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. 

Fair value measurement of financial instruments 

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction In the principle (or most 
advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. the exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated 
using another valuation technique. When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted 
prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow ("DCF") madel, The inputs to these models are 
taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include 
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial 
instruments. 

Effective Interest Rate ('EIR') method 

The Company’s EIR methodology, recognises Interest income / expense using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the 
expected behavioral life of loans given / taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at various stages and other characteristics of the product 
life cycle (including prepayments and penalty interest and charges}. 

This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behavior and life-cycle of the instruments, as well expected changes to India’s 
base rate and other fee income/exvense that are intearal parts of the instrument. 

Defined employee benefit assets and abilities 
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial 
valuations, An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ fram actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the 
discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities Involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is 
highly sensitive to changes In these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. 

Cash and cash equivalents 

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short- 
term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an 
Insignificant risk of changes in value, In the balance sheet, any bank overdrafts, If applicable, are included as a component of borrowings. 

Revenue recognition 

> 

interest income 

Interest Income is recorded using the effective interest rate (‘EIR’) method for all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, debt Instruments measured at fair 
value through other comprehensive income ('FVOC!"} and debt instruments designated at fair value through profit and loss {('FVPTL'). 

The EIR (and therefore, the amortlsed cast of the assets) is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the 
financial instrument or a shorter year, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. The calculation of the effective interest rate takes into 
account all contractual terms of the financial instrument {for example, prepayment options) and includes transaction casts and fees that are an integral part of the 
contract but not future credit losses. Transaction costs include incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of financial asset. 

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other than credit risk, the adjustment is recorded as a positive ar negative 
adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset in the balance sheet with an increase of reduction in interest incame. The adjustment is subsequently amortised 
through Interest income in the Statement of profit and loss. 

The Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets, other than credit-impaired assets under stage 3. When a 
financtal asset becomes credlt-impaired and is, therefore, regarded as ‘Stage 3’, the Company calculates the interest to the extant recoverable. If the financial assets 
cures and is no longer credit-impatred, the Company reverts to calculating interest income. 

Income other than interest : 

Revenue {other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments are applicable) is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable. ind 
AS 115 - "Revenue from contracts with customers" outlines a single comprehensive model of accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers and 
supersedes current revenue recognition guidance found within Ind ASs. 

Fee and commission income 

All other financial charges such as cheque return charges, legal charges, collection charges etc are recognized on receipt basis. These charges are treated ta accrue an 
realization, due the uncertainty of their realtzation. 
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a . Net galn/loss on fair value changes 

Any differences between the fair values of financial assets classified as fair value through the profit ar loss, held by the Company on the balance sheet date is recognised 

as an unrealised gain/loss. In cases there is a net gain in the aggregate, the same is recognised in "Net gains on fair vatue changes” under Revenue from operations and if 

there ig a net loss the same is disclosed under “Expenses” in the statement of profit and loss. 

C. Other Income 

Income on units of mutual funds is recognized on receipt basis as and when redeemed in cash based on the NAV of redemption date, The company also recognises gain 

on fatr value change of mutual fund measured at FVTPL. All Other income is recognized on accrual basis of accounting principle. 

D. Dlvidend Income 

Dividend income is recognized when the Company's right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend. 

Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition cost (including incidental expenses directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended 

use} less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price, non-refundable taxes or levies, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria 

are met and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use, Subsequent expenditure related to PPE is capitalized only when it is 

probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost of item can be measured reliably, Other repairs and maintenance casts 

are expensed off as and when incurred, 

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future econamic benefits are expected from 

its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the 

asset} Is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecagnised. 

Intangible Assets 

Intangible Assets are recognized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to assets will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the assets can 

be measured rellably, Computer software which is not an integral part of the related hardware ls classified as an Intangible asset. Intangible assets are measured and 

recorded at cost and carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life as determined by management. The amortization period and the amortization 

method are reviewed at feast at each financial year end. If the expected useful life of the asset Is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization period Is 

changed accordingly, 

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and 

are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset fs derecognized. 

Depreciation and amortization 

Depreciation 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment's is calculated on written down value (WOV) basis. Depreciation is provided based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in 

Schedule to the Companies Act, 2013 as under: 

  

Particulars Useful tife (years) 

Furniture and Fixtures 10 

Vehicle 8 

Computer, printers 3-6 

Office Equipment 
S 

Leasehold improvements and allied office equipment's are amortized on a straight-line basis over useful life estimated by management. 

Salvage Value of the assets has been taken five percent of Original Cost (except intangible assets) as prescribed in Schedule il. 

Depreciation on assets acquired/ sold during the period is recognized on a pro-rata basis to the statement of profit and oss from/ upto the date of acquisition/ sale. 

The residual values, useful fives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial period end and adjusted prospectively, if 

appropriate. 

Amortization 
The Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basts over the estimated useful economic life. The Company estimates that useful Ilfe of an intangible asset will not 

exteed five years from the date when the asset fs available for use. lf the persuasive evidence exists to the effect that useful life of an Intangible asset exceeds five years, the 

Company amortizes the intangible asset over the best estimate of its useful life. 

Impalrment of non-financial assets 

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date If there is any indication of impairment based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is 

recognised wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds Its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount Is the greater of the assets, net selling price and value in use. 

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the 

time value of money and risks specific to the asset. in determining net selling price, recent market transactlans are taken into account, if avaliable. {f no such transactions can 

be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life. 
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h} Leases 

h 

iW, 

Company as a lessee: 

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of teases for land and buildings, The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, ar contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to contrat the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: 
* The contract involves the use of an identified asset 
»* The Company has substantially all the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and 
* The Company has the right to direct the use of the asset 

Measurement and recognition: 

At lease commencement date, the Company recognises a tight-of-use asset and a lease liability on the balance sheet. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Company, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the lease, and any tease payments made in advance of the lease commencement date (net of any incentives received). 

The Company depreciates the right-of-use assets on a Straight-line basis from the lease commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of use asset or the end of the lease term, The Company also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist. At the commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily available or the Company's incremental borrowing rate. 

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest. it is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there are changes in in-substance fixed payments. When the tease liability is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of use asset, or profit and loss if the right-of-use asset is already reduced to zero. 

Short term Lease: 

The Company has elected nat to recognise right of use asset and lease liabilities for short term leases of property that has lease term of less than 12 months, The 
Company recognises lease payment associated with these leases asan expense on a straight-line basis aver lease term. 

Campany as a lessor: 

As a lessor the Company classifies its leases as either operating or finance teases, A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset, and classified as an operating lease if it does not. 

i} Provisions 
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a Present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embadying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of profit and toss net of any reimbursement.pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting Is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time Is recognised as a finance cost. 

1} Contingent Habilities and assets 

Contingent liabilities 

The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of: 

* A present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will not be tequired to settle the obligation, 
* A present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible, 
* A possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote. 

Contingent liabilities are reviewed at each balance sheet date. 

Contingent assets 

Contingent assets are not recognised. A contingent asset is disclosed, as required by Ind AS 37, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable. 

k) Employee benefits 

Defined contribution plan 

The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local regulations. The Company has no further payment obligations 
once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due. if the contribution payable to the scheme for service received befare the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the 
deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. {f the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for 
services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future 
Payment or a cash refund. 

Defined benefit plan 

The plan provides for lump sum payments to employees upon death while in employment or on separation (rom employment after serving for the stipulated years 
mentioned under ‘The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972", Liabilities with regard ta the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation at each Balance Sheet date using 
the Projected Unit Credit Method. 
Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts Included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability 
and the return on plan assets {excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit fiabillty), are recognised Immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCl In the year in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent years. 
Past service casts are recognised In statement of profit or loss on the earlier of: The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and the date that the Company 
recognises related restructuring costs. 
Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company recagnises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and Joss: Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and fosses on curtailments 
and non-routine settlements; and Net interest expense or Income. 
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ji, Compensated absences 

Entitlements to annual leave are recognized when they accrue to the employees. Leave entitlements can be availed while in service of employment subject to restrictlon 

on the maximum number of accumutations. The Company determines the liability for such accumulated leave entitlements on the basis of actuarial valuation carried 

out by an independent actuary at the Year end. 

Forelgn currencies 

In preparing the financial statements, transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional currency (foreign currencies} are recognised at the rates of exchange 

prevailing at the dates of the transactions, At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at 

that date, Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated In foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was 

determined. Non-monetary Items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated. 

Exchange differences on monetary Items are recognised In profit or loss in the period in which they arise. 

Taxes 

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. The income tax expense or credit for the periad is the tax payable on the taxable income of the current period based on the 

applicable income tax rates adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and unused tax losses, 

Current tax 

Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid te the tax authorities in accordance with the Incame-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India and tax laws prevailing in the 

respective tax jurisdictions where the Company operates. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the 

reparting date. Current income tax relating to items recognized directly In equity is recognized in equity and not in the statement of profit and loss. 

Deferred tax 

Deferred taxes reflect the impact of timing differences between taxable income and accounting Income originating during the current year and reversal of timing differences 

for the earlier years. Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax faws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred income tax relating to 

items recognized directly in equity Is recognized In equity and not in the statement of profit and loss. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable timing differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible timing differences only ta the extent that there is 

reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. 

At each reporting date, the Company re-assesses unrecognized deferred tax assets. it recognizes unrecognized deferred tax asset to the extent that it has become reasonably 

certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable Income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date. The Company writes-down the carrying amount of deferred tax asset to the extent that It is 

no longer reasonably certain, that sufficient future taxable Income will be available against which deferred tax asset can be realized. Any such write-down is reversed to the 

extent that it becomes reasonably certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be avallable, 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set-off current tax assets against current tax liabllities and the deferred tax 

assets and deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority. 

Earning per share 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of the company (after deducting preference dividends and 

attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. 

Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during 

the reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the pertod is adjusted for events such as shared based payments, bonus issue, 

bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares} that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a 

corresponding change in resources. 
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders of the company and the weighted average 

number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

Financial instruments. 

A financial instrument fs any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and 2 financlat liability or equity instrument of anather entity. 

i. Financia Assets 

A. Initial recognition and measurement 

The financial asset is hetd within a business model with the objective to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on 

specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPP!) on the principal amount outstanding. 

Financial assets, with the exception of loans and advances to customers, are initially recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company becomes a party to 

the contractual provisions of the instrument. Loans and advances to customers are recognised when funds are disbursed. The classification of financial instruments at 

initial recognition depends on their purpose and characteristics and the management's intention when acquiring them. 

Accordingly, the Company measures bank balances, loans and advances, trade receivables and other financial instruments at amortised cost. 

B.  Classificatlon and subsequent measurement 

The financtal asset at amartised cost subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. 

Interest Income, foreign exchange gain and losses and {mpalrment are recognised In statement of profit and loss, Any gain and loss on derecognition is recognised in 

statement of profit and loss. 

For the purpose of subsequent measurement , financial assets are classified in three categories: 

* Debt Instrument at amortised cost 

* Debt Instrument at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT) 

= Debt instrument and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss(FVTPL) 
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Oebt instruments at amortised costs 

A debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cast If both the following conditions are met: 

* The asset Is held within a business madel whose objective fs to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and 
» Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method less impairment. Amortised 
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in 
interest income in the statement of profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

Debt instruments at FVTOCI 

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met: 

« The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and 
«The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI. 
Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially a5 well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the 
other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest incame, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the profit 
and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI |s reclassified frorn the equity to P&L. interest earned whilst halding FVTOCI 
debt instrument is reported as interest incame using the EIR method, 

Debt Instruments at FVTPL 

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is 
classified as at FVTPL. 

in addition, the Campany may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is 
allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency {referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’), Debt instruments included within the 
FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L. 

Business model: The business model reflects haw the Company manages the assets in order to generate cash Hows. That is, where the Company’s abjective is solely to 
collect the contractual cash flows from the assets, the same is measured at amortized cost or where the Company's objective is to collect both the contractual cash 
flows and cash flows arising from the sale of assets, the same Is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income ({FVTOCI). tf neither of these is applicable 
(e.g. financial assets are held for trading purposes}, then the financial assets are classified as part of ‘other’ business model and measured at FVTPL. 

SPPI: Where the business madel |s to hold assets to callect contractual cash flaws {1.e. measured at amortized cost), the Company assesses whether the financial 
instruments’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest (the ‘SPPI test’). In making this assessment, the Company considers whether the contractual 
cash flows are consistent with a baste fending arrangement Le. interest includes only consideration for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending risks and 
2 profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a 
basic lending arrangement, the related financial asset is classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss. The amortized cost, as mentioned above, is 
computed using the effective interest rate method, 

The losses arising from Impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and foss. 

F, Derecognition 

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantiaily 
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and 
continues to contro! the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the 
Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards ot ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also 
recugnises a colfateralised borrowing for the proceeds received. 

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and 
the cumulative gain or foss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would 
have otherwise been recognised in profit or toss on disposal of that {Inanclal asset. 

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Company retains an option to repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Company 
allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing involvement, and the part It no longer 
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no 
longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised 
in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial 
asset. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recagnised in ather camprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part 
that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts. 

Equity Investments and Mutual funds 

All equity investments In scape of Ind AS 109 are measured al fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as held at FVTPL. For afl other 
equity instruments, the Campany may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company 

makes such election on an instrument-by- Instrument basls. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. 

if the Company decides to classify an equity Instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. 
There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to Statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment, However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or 
loss within equity, 
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Financial Liabllities 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial liabilities are classified and measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial lfabllity is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for trading or It fs 

designated as on initial recognition, All financial liabilities are recognised Initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly 

attributable transaction costs, Other financial liabillties are subsequently measured at arnortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense are 

recognised in Statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in Statement of profit and lass, 

The Company's financial liabilities include loans, debentures and borrowings including bank overdrafts and trade & other payables, 

Loans, Qebenture and borrowings 
Alter initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in 

profit or oss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process, 
Amortised cost is calcutated by taking inte account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an Integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisatlon is 

included as finance costs in the Statement of profit and loss. 

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost 
financial abilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated a5 at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The 

carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on the effective Interest method. Interest expense that 

is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the ‘Finance costs' line item. 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The 

ellective interest rate Is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the 

elfective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial lability, or (where appropriate} a shorter period, to 

the net carrying amount on initial recognition. 

Financial guarantee contracts 
A financial guarantee contract Is a contract that requires the issuer ta make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor 

fails to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt Instrument. 

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the 

higher of: 

+ the amount of loss allowance determined In accordance with impairment requirements of ind AS 109; and 

+ the amount Initially recognised fess, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of Income recognised, 

Derecognition of financial labillties 

The Group derecognises financial Habilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired, An exchange between with a 

lender of debt Instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financlal liability and the recognition of a new 

financial liability, Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability (whether or not attributable to the financial diffleulty of the debtor} is 

accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recagnition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the 

financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or joss. 

Reclassification of financial assets and liahilities 

The Company doesn’t reclassify its financial assets subsequent to thelr initial recognition, apart fram the exceptional circumstances tn which the Company acquires, 

disposes of, or terminates a business line, Financial liabilities are never reclassified. 

Fair value measurement 
Fair vatue is the price that woutd be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability In an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement 

date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or 

In the absence of a principal market, in the mast advantageous market for the asset or liability The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the 

Company. 

The fair value of an asset or a ltability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market 

participants act in their economic best interest. 

Afair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's abllity to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and 

best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use 

of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs, 

All assets and labilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, 

based on the lowest level Input that is significant to the falr value measurement as a whole: 

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable. 

Level 3 — Vatuation techniques for which the lowest level Input that is significant to the fair value measurement Is unobservable. 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels 

in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole} at the end of each reporting 

year, 
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DMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

1. Impairment of financial assets 

i. Overview of the Impairment principles {'ECL'} 

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company is required to measure expected credit losses on its financial instruments designated at amortized cost and fair value 

through other comprehensive income. Accordingly, the Company is required to determine lifetime fosses on financial instruments where credit risk has increased 

significantly since its origination. For other instruments, the Campany is required to recognize credit losses over next 12 month period. The Company has an option to 

determine such losses on individual basis or collectively depending upon the nature of underlying portfolio. The Campany has a process to assess credit risk of all 
exposures at each year end as foliows: 

Stage | 

These represent exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or that has low credit risk at the reporting date. The 

Company has assessed that all standard exposures (i.e. exposures with no overdues} and exposure upto 30 day overdues fall under this category. In accordance with ind 

AS 109, the Company measures ECL on such assets over next 12 months, 

Stage if 

Financial instruments that have had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition are classified under this stage. Based on empirical evidence, significant 

increase in credit risk is witnessed after the overdues on an exposure exceed for a period more than 30 days. Accordingly, the Company classifies all exposures with 

overdues exceeding 30 days at each reporting date under this Stage. The Company measures lifetime ECL on stage tI loans. 

Stage fll 

All exposures having overdue balances for a period exceeding 90 days are cansidered to be defaults and are classified under this stage. Accordingly, the Company 

measures lifetime losses on such exposure. Interest revenue on such contracts is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortized cost (net of 

impairment allowance} Instead of the grass.carrying amount. The method is similar to Stage Ii assets, with the probability of default set at 100%. 

When estimating ECL on a collective basis for a group of similar assets, the Company applies the same principles for assessing whether there has been a significant 

increase in credit risk since initial recognition. 

it. The calculatian of ECLs 

The mechanics of the ECL calculation invalve the use of following key elements: 

Probability of default (PD) - The probability of default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon (12-manth or lifetime, depending upon the 

stage of the asset}. PD estimation is done based on historical internal data available with the Company. 

Exposure at default (EAD) — it represents an estimate of the exposure of the Company at a future date after considering repayments by the counterparty befare the 

default event occurs. The autstanding balance as at reporting date Is considered as EAD by the Company. Considering the PD determined above factors in amount at 

default. there Is no separate reauirerent to estimate EAD. 
Loss given default (LGO) — it represents an estimate of the loss expected to be incurred when the event of default occurs. The Company uses historical loss 

data/external agency LGD far identified pools for the purpose of calculating LGD. 

Hi. Definition of Default and cure 

The Company considers a financial instrument as defaulted and classifies it as Stage Ili (credit-impaired) for ECL calculations typically when the borrower becomes 90 

days past due on contractual payments. The Company may also classify a loan in Stage 1H if there is significant deterioration in the financial condition of the borrower or 

an assessment that adverse market conditions may have a disproportionately detrimental effect on the loan repayment. Thus, as a part of the qualitative assessment of 

whether an [nstrument is in default, the Company also considers a variety of instances that may indicate delay in or non-repayment of the laan. When such events 

occur, the Company carefully considers whether the event should result in treating the borrower as defaulted and therefore assessed as Stage MI for ECL calculations or 

whether Stage Il is appropriate. 
Classification of accounts Into Stage Il is dane when there is a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, typically when contractual repayments are more 

than 30 days past due. 

itis the Company's policy to consider a financial instrument as ‘cured’ and therefore re-classified out of Stage Il! or Stage Ii when none of the default criteria which 

resulted in their downgrade are present. 

iv. Forward fooking information 

While estimating the expected credit losses, the Company reviews macro-economic developments occurring in the economy and market it operates in. On a periodic 

basis, the Company analyses if there is any relationship between key economic trends like GDP, Unemployment rates, Benchmark rates set by the Reserve Bank of India, 

inflation ete. with the estimate of PD, LGD determined by the Company based an its internal data. While the internal estimates of PO, LGD rates by the Company may 

not be always reflective of such relationships, temporary averlays are embedded in the methodology to reflect such macra-ecanomic trends reasonably. 

v, Write-offs 

Financial assets are written off either partially or In thelr entirety only when the Company has no reasonable expectation of recovery. If the amount to be written off is 

greater than the accumulated loss allowance, the difference recorded as an expense in the period of write off. Any subsequent recoveries are credited to impairment on 

financial instrument an statement of profit and lass. 

vi.Collateral repossessed 

The Company’s policy is to sell repossessed assets. Non-financial assets repossessed are transferred to asset held for sale at fair value less cost to sell or principal 

outstanding whichever is fess at repossession date. 

Share based payments 

Equity-settled share based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. 

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity settled share based payments is expensed on a straight line basis aver the vesting year, based on the Company's 

estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a correspanding increase In equity. At the end of each reporting year, the Company revises its estimate of the 

number of equity instruments expected ta vest, The impact of the revision of the original estimates, If any, is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss such that the 

cumulative expenses reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the Share Based Payments Reserve. 

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share. 

Segment reporting 

Operating segments are reported In a manner consistent with the Internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The Company's primary business 

segments are reflected based on the principal business carried out, i.e. lending activities as Nan-Banking Finance Company (NBFC} regulated by the Reserve Bank of india 

(‘RBI’), The risk and returns of the business of the Company is not associated with geographical segmentation, hence there is no secondary segment. 
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DMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

r) Interest In Subsidiaries and associate entities 
Investment in subsidiaries and associate entities are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying 

amount of the investment {s assessed and written down value immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of investment in subsidiaries or the loss of significant 

influence over jointly controlled entities, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognised In the statement of profit and loss, 

3, Borrowing Cost 
Borrowing Costs consists of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowings of funds. Borrowing costs also includes exchange difference to 

the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs. 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset are capitalized as a part of the cost of that asset that necessarily takes a 

substantial period of time to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. The Company considers a period of twelve months or more as a substantial period 

of time. 
Transactlon costs In respect of long term borrowing are amortized over the tenure of respective loans using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. All other borrowing costs 

are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the periad in which they are incurred. 

Recent pronouncements 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time 

to time. On 31 March, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2015, applicable from 1 April, 2023, as below: 

Ind AS 1— Presentation of Financial Statements 
The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policles rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information, together with 

other information, is material when it can reasonably be expected to Influence decistons of primary users of general purpose financial statements. The Company does not expect 

this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements. 

Ind AS 12 ~income Taxes 
The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations, The amendments narrowed the scope of the 

recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 {recognition exemption} so that it no longer applies to transactions that, on Inittal recognition, give rise to equal 

taxable and deductible temporary differences, The Company Is evaluating the impact, If any, In Its financial statements, 

Ind AS 8 ~ Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors 
The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The definition of a change in accounting estimates has been replaced 

with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in financlal statements that are subject to measurement 

uncertainty”, Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies requtre items in financial statements to be measured In a way that Involves measurement uncertainty. 

The Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its financlal statements. 

  



DMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to the standalone financial statements 

(All Amount In Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated) 

4 Cash and cash equivalents 

As at March 31, 9 As at March 31, 

2023 2022 

Cash on hand 0.05 0.05 
Balance with banks 

- balance in current accounts and overdraft accounts 5,628.34 $,533,.22 

Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months - 1,000.00 

§,628,39 6,$33.27 

§ Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 

Deposit with original maturity of more than 3 months* 560.10 294,45 

560.10 294.45 

* Deposits being lien marked against corporate credit cards and overdraft accounts or pledged as margin for credit 

enhancement 

6 Trade receivables 

Considered good - Unsecured 308.05 57.07 
Considered good - Secured - - 

Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - - 

Receivables — credit impaired . . 

308.05 57.07 
Less: Impairment toss allowance 

Total 308.05 57.07 

Trade receivables fram related parties {see note A0) 

Trade receivables aging schedule 

As at 31 March 2023 

  

lessthan6 6 months-1 
Months year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 year Total Particulars 

Undisputed Trade Receivables ~ considered good 308.05 : . - - 308.05 
Undisputed Trade Receivables ~ which have significant increase in - 

credit risk - - - - . 

Undisputed Trade receivable — credit impaired - - - . . - 

Disputed Trade receivables - considered good - - - - . - 

Disputed Trade receivables — which have significant Increase in credit - - - . . - 

Disputed Trade receivables — credit impaired - - - . . - 

308.05 : : * : 308.05 

As at 31 March 2022 

  

lessthan6 6 months-1 
Months year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 year Total Particulars 

Undisputed Trade Receivables ~ considered gaad $7.07 - - . : 57.07 

Undisputed Trade Recelvables — which have significant increase in . 

credit risk - - - - - 

Undisputed Trade receivable — credit Impaired - - - - . - 

Disputed Trade receivables - considered good - - . . . - 

Disputed Trade recelvables ~ which have significant increase in credit - 

risk - - . . . 

Disputed Trade receivables — credit Impaired - - - . . - 

57.07 - - : : 57.07 

Note: The ageing of trade receivables has been determined fram the transaction date 

 



7 Loans 

iv 

} 

(A) Term loans 

Corporate loans* 

Consumer loans 

Tota! (A) Gross 

Less: Impairment loss allowance 

Total (A) Net 

{8) 
Secured by tangible assets and intangible assets 

Unsecured 

Total (8) Gross 

Less: impairment loss allowance 

Total (6) Net 

(C) Sector 

Public sector 

Others 

Total (C} Gross 

Less: impairment loss allowance 

Total (C) Net 

{D} 
In Indla 

Outside India 

Total (D) Gross 

Lass: Impairment loss allowance 

Total (D} Net 

DMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to the standalone financial statements 

{Ali Amount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated) 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 

Amortised cost Fair value Total Amortised cost Fair value Total 

through other through other 

comprehensive comprehensive 
income income 

12,041.06 137.80 12,178.86 15,680.69 367.90 16,048.60 

59,114.03 . $9,124.03 33,856.86 - 33,856.86 

74,355.09 137.80 71,292.89 49,537.55 367.90 $9,905.46 

3,945.18 16.38 3,961.56 3,092.83 11.48 3,104.32 

67,209.91 121.42 67,331.33 46,444,73 356.42 46,801.15 

11,990.70 137.80 12,128.50 15,680.69 367.90 16,048.60 

59,164.39 : 59,164.39 33,856.86 - 33,856.86 

71,155.09 137.80 71,292.89 49,537.55 367,90 49,905.46 

3,945.18 16.38 3,961.56 3,092.83 11.48 3,104.31 

67,209.91 121.42 67,331.33 46,444.73 356.42 46,801.15 

71,155.09 137.80 71,292.89 49,537.55 367.80 49,905.46 

74,155.08 137.80 71,292.89 49,537.55 367.90 49,905.46 

3,945.18 16.38 3,961.56 3,092.83 11.48 3,104.31 

67,209.91 121.42 67,331.33 46,444.73 356.42 46,801.15 

71,155.09 137.80 74,292.88 49,537.55 367,90 49,905.46 

71,155.05 137.80 71,292.89 49,537.55 367.90 49,908,46 

3,945.18 16.38 3.961.56 3,092.83 11.48 3,104.31. 

67,209.91 421.42 67,331.33 46,444.73 356.42 46,801.15 
  

*Corporate loan portfolio includes loan outstanding from employees of Rs. 0.32 millions (previous year: Rs. 1.72 millions} 

Notes: 
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets which generate a fixed or variable interest incorne for the Company. The carrying value may be affected by 

changes In the credit risk of the counterparties. 

Secured Loans granted by the Company are secured by equitable mortgage/registered mortgage of the property and/or undertaking to create a security and/or personal 

guarantees and/or hypothecation of assets and/or receivables and/or pledge of shares/debenture units and other securitles. 

Corporate loan portfollo includes non-convertible debentures of Rs. 2,338.58 millions (previous year: Rs. 3,774.76 millions) 

Disclosure in respect te loan given to Key management personnel (KMP} 

Type of Borrower 

Key management personnel (KMP} 

  

Amount of loan or advance in the 

nature of loan outstanding 

Percentage to the total loans and 

advances In the nature of loans 

  

As at March 31, 

2023 

As at March 31, 

2022 

As at March 31, 

2023 

As at March 31, 

2022



OMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to the standalone financial statements 
{all Amount in &@s. in millions, unless otherwise stated) 

7.1 impalrment allowance for loans and advances toe borrowers 

Summary of loans by stage distribution is as follows: 

loans 

  

Summary of credit substitutes and compulsory convertible debentures by stage distribution is as follows: 

Credit substitutes and campulsory convertible debentures 

  

An analysis of changes In the grass carrying amount In relation to cansumer and corporate lending {except credit substitutes and compulsory canvertible debentures) is, as fallows: 

foans 

Assets repayments 24,405.79 25,287.16 | 15,164.63 (574,39) 14,603.20 

amount balance $9,114.03 

i joans Stage 2 Total 

Assets repayments and (3,727.77) (17. (124.72) 2,478.79 2,282.06 

a6 7 

  

An analysis of changes In the gross carrying amaunt of Investments In relation to Credit Substitutes and Campulsary Convertible Gebentures ts, 85 follows: 

Assets originated, fepayments and 1,511.3 4,511.33 

   



DMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to the standalone financial statements 

{All Amount In Rs. In millions, unfess otherwise stated) 

An analysis of changes In the €CL allowances In relation to consumer and corporate fending (except Credit Substitutes and Compulsory Convertible Debentures) ts, a3 follows: 

foans 

- 47. 

62.86 3,184.52 3,568.40 279,75 {172.17) 1,372.30 1,475.88 
Assets repayments 

repayments 160.89 (13.35) 355.88 

offs : : : : : : . 

credit loss allowance closing balance 256.96 1,338.45 1,139.32 2,734,73 1,855.56 $41.05 2,521.90 

  

An analysis of changes in the ECL allowances of Invastment In relation to Credit Substitutes and Compulsory Convertible Ocbentures {refer note &) is, as follaws: 

in rate 

on new assets repayments (701.53) {701.53} 317.35 

credit toss allowance closing balance 351.99 2AL717 1,193.33 1,513.18 

  

7.2 Collaterat 
In case of corporate term loans the Company Is in the business of extending secured loans mainfy backad by mortgage of property (residential or commercial). 

in additlon to the shove mentioned collateral, the Company holds other types of collateral and credit enhancements, such as cross-collateralisation on other assets of the borrawer, 

share pledge, guarantees of parent/holding/group companies, personal guarantees of promoters/partners/proprietors, hypothecation of recelvables via escrow account and others 

in its normal course of business, the Company does not physically repossess properties or other assets, but recovery efforts are made on delinquent loans through collection executives, 

along with legal maans to recover due loan repayments. 

Once contractual loan repayments are more than 90 days past due, repossession of praperty may be initialed under the provisions of the SARFAES! Act 2002. Re-possessed property is 

dispased of In the manner prescribed tn the SARFAES! act to recover outstending debt. 

© 

 



OMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to the standalone financial statements 

(AIL Amount In &s. in millions, unless otherwise stated} 

8 investments 

As at March 31, 2023 

{A) Equity instruments 

lnvastments in Subsidiaries / Associates 
Equity shares In OMI Management Services Private Limited 

Equity shares in OMI Alternatives Private Limited 
Equity shares in OMI Capital Private Limited 
Equity shares [a Appnit Technologies Private Limited 

Subtotal 

Others 
Equity shares fn OMI Consumer Cradit Private Limited 

Equity shares in Flash Electronics Private Limited 
Equity shares in Alchemlst Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 

Equity shares in Azad Engineering Private Limited 

Equity shares in Radiant Polymers Private Umited 
Subtotal 

Preference shares 
{nvestments In Subsidiaries / Assactates 
Compulsorily eanvertible preference shares in OMI Capital Private 

Limited 
Compulsorily convertible preference shares In Appnit Technologies 

Private Limited 
Subtotal 

Compulsory af Gpationsily Convertibte Debantures 
7,500 Compulsory convertible debentures in Flash Electronics India 

Private Limited of face value Rs 100,000 each 
600 Complusory convertible debentures In Biorad Medisys Private 

Limited of face value of Rs, 10,00,000 each 
Subtotal 

Credit Substitutes 
805 units of Saha Estate Dovalaper Private Limited of face value Rs 

1,000,000 fully paid up 

629 units of Raheja icon Entertainment Private Limited of face value 

Rs 1,000,000 fully paid up 

Subtotal 

investment in Pass through certiticates(uaquoted) 

Other instruments 
Security receipts In Alchemist XV Trust 
Units of OME AIF Special Gpportunities Scheme 
Subtotal 

Tatal (A) Gross 
Lesa: Impairment toss allowance 

Total (A) Net 

Investments outside India 
investments in india 

Total (8) Gross 
Less: Impairment toss allowance 

Total (8) Net 

{Bi 

* At cost 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

At fair value 
At falr value through ether 

Amortised cost through profit B Subtatal Others*® Total 
comprehensive 

and loss 
Income 

- - . . 0.96 6.96 
- . + - 4.26 426 
. - . - 1.80 1.80 
- . . . 463.03 483.03 

: . : : 470.05 470.05 

- - 3.48 3.48 - 3.48 
. - 818,97 813,97 - 818.97 

. . 218,76 215.76 . 215.76 

- 227.04 - 227.04 . 227.08 
: : 100.10 160,10 100,10 
: 227.04 1,138.31 1,365.35 x. 1,365.35. 

385.56 . 385.56 ca 385,56 

. - - . 21.97 21.97 

385.56. - 385.55 23,97 407.53 

- + 1,560.00 3,560,00 - 1,560.00 

* - 600.27 600,27 - 600.27 

: : 2,160.27 2,460.27 - 2,460.27 

943,72 : 358.36 1,302.08 - 1,302.08 

172.92 - 179.07 351.99 . 351.99 

1,116.64 : 537.43 2,654.07 : 1,654.07 

- 3,535.31 ° 3,515.23 - 3515.33 

: * 3.73 9.73 + 9.73 

. - 9.73 9.73 - 9.73 

1,116.64 4,427.91 3,845.74 9,090.29 492.02 $,$82.31 
$68.70 : A4B47 2,227.47 = 4,417.37 

447,94 AS27,91 3,397.2? 7,973.12 $92.02 $,465.14 

1,536.64 4427.91 3,845.74 9,090.29 492.02 9,582.33 

1,116.64 4,427.91 3,448.74 9.090.29 492.02 9,582.32 

668.70 : AdB.4? £,447,17 = 3,117.37 
447.94 4527.91 3,397.27 7 973.12 492.02 8,465.14 
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Notes to the standafone financial statements 

{All Amount tn Rs. tn milhians, untess otherwise stated) 

  

At fairvalue 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

At falr valve through other 

As at March 34, 2022 
Amortised cost through profit Subtotal Others? Total 

comprehensive 
and loss 

income 

{A} Equity Insteuments 
investments In Subsidiaries / Associates 

Equity shares in OMI Management Services Private Limited . - + * 0.56 0.96 

Equity shares in OM! Alternatives Private Limited 
- - - S542 5.12 

Equity shares in OMI Capital Private Limited 
- - - - 0.99 0.95 

Equity shares in Appnit Technologies Private Limited : : : : 463,03 463.03 

Subtotal 
: > : . 470,10 470,40 

Others 
Equity shares In DM! Consumer Credit Private Limited “ - 237 3.37 - 3.37 

Equity shares tn Flash Electrontes Private Limited . ~ 793.97 793,97 . 193,97 

Equity shares In Alchemist Asset Recanstructlon Company Limited - . 2145.76. 245.76 - 215.76 

Subtotal 
: : 1,013.10 1,013,186 : 1,013.10 

Preference shares 
fevestments In Subsidiaries / Associates 

compulsorily convertible preference shares in OMt Capital Private - 363.84 * 363.84 - 363.84 

Limited 

Computsorily convertible preference shares in Appnit Technologies * * . . 21.97 24.97 

Private Limited 

Sudtetal 
oa 363.84 : 363.84 21,97 385.84 

Mutual funds 
234,062.94 units of Garoda BNP Paribas Uiquid Fund - Direct Growth . 574,14 . 974.14 . 57444 

448,933.27 HDFC Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth Option 
1,753.13 . 1,753.13 . 4,753.13 

468,743.91 SBI Liquid Fund Direct Growth 
1,562.37 1,562.37 . 4,862.37 

208,156.56 UTI Liquid Cazh Plan - Direct Plan - Growth 
726,06 . 726.06 : 726,06 

1,879,040.68 ICICE Liquid Fund - OP Growth 
592.38 592.38 592.38 

222,254.65 Axls Liquid fund - Direct Growth 
50479 503.79 §01,79 

Subtotal 
: $,709.86 : 5,709.86 L 5,709.86 

Computsory or Optionally Convertible Debentures 

7,800 Compulsory convertible debentures in Flash Electronics india - . 1,148.13 2,148.53 : 1,148.13 

Private Limited of face vatue Rs 100,000 each 

4,777 Compulsory convertible debantures in Azad Engineering india - 631.43 - 631.43 . 631.43 

Private Limited of face value of As. 1,00,000 each 

4,200 Opttonally convertibie dehentures In Azad Engineering India : 434.44 - 434.44 34.44 

Private Limited of face value of Rs, 1,00,00 each 

Subtotel 
: 4,068.87. 1,148.13 2,234.00 : 2,214.00 

Credit Substitutes 

472 units of Panchsheel Bulidtech Private Limited of face value Rs 69,50 : 23.76 93,26 . 93.26 

4,000,000 fully paid up 

500 units of Radiant Polymers Private Limited af face value Rs 626.00 . . 626.00 : 626.00 

1,000,000 fully paid up 

629 units of Raheja fcon Entertainment Private LUmited of face value 172.92 . 179.07 351,99 - 351.99 

Rs 1,000,000 fully paid up. 

808 unlts of Saha Estate Developer Private Limited of face value Rs 822.30 . aL14t 4,133.71 - 2,133.71 

1,000,000 fully patd up 

Subtotal 
1,690,72 : $14.24 2,204.96 : 2,204.56 

Other Insteuments 
Sectirity recelpts in Alchernlst XV Trust 

- 194.48 . 194.91 : 194,21 

Units of DMI AIF Spectal Opportunities Scheme : 2 10.10 30.10, : 10.10. 

Subtotal 
- 194.14 10.10 264,23 : 204.21 

Total {A} - Gross 
4,690.72 7,333.68 2,685.57 11,709.97 492.07 12,202.04 

Less; Impairment toss allowance 
1,348.26 6179 303.13 1,543.38 + 4,543.38 

Tatal {A} Net 
542,46 7,272.89 __ 2,382.44 10,195.79 492.07 10,688.86 

{8) investments outside India 
. : - . - . 

Investments In India 
1,690.72 7,333.68 2,685.57 11,709.97 492.07 42,202.04 

Total (B)- Gross 
1,690.72 7,333.68 2,685.57 13,709.97 492,07 12,202.04 

Less: Impairment loss allawance 
1,148.26 61.79 303.13. 1,513.18 : 1,513.18 

total (6}-Net 

* At cost 

Notes: 

(i) For movement of Impairment loss allowance refer note 7.1 

{il} Information of subsidiaries and associates 

  

   10,196.79.     46 7,271.89 ets B2,44 92.02, 20,888.86      

  

Name of entity 
  

Subsidiaries 

OMI Management Services Private Limited 

DMI Capital Pelvate Urited 

Appnit Technologles Private Umiled (wef. 20 Jan 2022) 

Associate 
DM Alternatives Private Limited 

Princtpal Activity Placa of Principal piaceof = AsatMarch3i, Asat Mareh 31, 

Incorporation business 2023 2022 

Financial Service {Asset Management) Delhi Delhi 100.00% 100,00% 

Financial Service (Merchant Banking) Oelht Delht 100.00% 100.00% 

Financial Services(Prepald Instrument Lucknow, Uttar NOIDA, Uttar 94.04% 94.04% 

issuar) Pradesh Pradesh 

investment Manager Dalhi Detht 49.00% 49.00% 

 



DMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes ta the standalone financial statements 
(All Amount in Rs. In millions, untess otherwise stated) 

3 Other financial assets (at amortized cost) 

As at As at 

March 32, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Security deposit 

26.14 25.55 First loss default guarantee recoverable 
133,13 90.54 interest accrued on fixed deposits 
11.03 13.74 Money with partners pending for disbursement 

: 898.89 Recoverable from partner 
104,24 - Unbilled revenue and recoverables 
815.01 579.36 Total 

1,089.55 1,608.08 rr ES 
10 Current tax assets 

1 

Advance income-tax (net) 

185.78 284.71 284 
Total 

185.78 284.71 Sr rr SI 
1 Deferred tax assets 

Deferred tax liability 
Fair value of financial Instruments 

402.77 455.81 Difference in income recognition on unrealized gain on mutual fund investments 
- 18,31 et Total deferred tax Ilabllities 

402.77 474.12 nm EAA ID Ocferred tax asset 
Provision for employee benefits 

29,11 19.45 Oifference in written dawn value as per Companies Act and Income-tax Act 
14.54 11.30 EIR adjustment for processing fee 

260.36 77.29 Liability against leases 
11.05 9.91 impairment loss allowance 

1,200.30 1,131.17 Notional interest on Market linked debentures 
14,57 - Carry forward of Interest disallawed u/s 948 

: 28.53 28 Gross defarred tax asset 
1,529.93 1,277.65 So 

ELE BS 
- 

ST —————————EEEE 
Net Deferred Tax (Uability)/ Asset 

1,127.16 803.53 se 

  
{Charged)/ credited (Charged) /credited 

  

  
  

  
  

  

  

  

  

  
  

  
  

  

As at toother As at 
f def t 

t: ‘ 
Movement of deferred tax assets March 31, 2022 tos ‘atement of comprehensive March 31, 2023 profit and loss 

income _ Uabilities 
Fair value of financial instruments 

455.81 {110.36} 57.32 402,77 Difference in income recognition on unrealized gain on mutual fund investments 18.31 (18.33) . - 

Deferred tax liabilities 
474.12 (128.67) 57.32 402.77 Assets 

Provision for employee benefits 
19.45 11.05 (1.39) 29,11 Difference in written down value as per Companies Act and Income-tax Act 11.30 3.24 - 14,54 EIR adjustment for processing fee 
77,29 183.07 - 260.36 Liability against leases 
9.91 414 - 11.05 Impairment loss allowance 

4,131.17 69.13 . 1,200.30 Notional interest an Market linked debentures - 14.87 14,87 Carry forward of interest disallowed u/s 948 28.53 (28.53) - : Deferred Tax Assets 
1,277.65 253,67 (1.39) 1,529.93 Net Deferred tax asset 

803,53 382.34 {58.71} 4,127.16 

[Charged}/ credited (Charged}/ credited 
Movement of Deferred tax assets 

As at to statement of to other As at 
° 

March 31, 2021 comprehensive March 31, 2022 profit and toss 
income 

Llabilities 
Fair value of flnancial instruments 

82.80 162.07 210.94 455.81 Difference in income recognition on unrealized gain on mutual fund investments 69.48 (51.17) . 18.31 
Deferred Tax Liabilities 

152.28 110.90 210.94 474.12 Assets 

Provision for employee benefits 
14.28 §.31 (0.14) 19.45 Difference in written down value as per Companies Act and income-tax Act 6.47 4.83 - 114.30 EIR adjustment for processing fee 
30.81 46.48 - 77.29 Liability against leases 
7.44 2.47 - 3.91 impairment loss allowance 

640.90 490.27 * 1,131.17 Carry forward of interest disallowed u/s 948 25.67 2.86 : 28.53 Deferred tax assets 
725,57 552,22 (0.14) 1,277.65 Net Deferred tax assets 
573.29 441.32 (211.08) 803.53   

 



        

Nates: 

a 

DM! Finance Private Limited 

Notes to the standalone financial statements 
{All Amount In Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated) 

Property, plant and equipment {at cost or deemed cost) 

Gross cartylng amount 
Balance as at Miacch JE, 2021 

Additions 
Disposals 
Gatlance as at March 31, 2022 
Additions 
Disposals 

Balance as al March 32, 2023 

Accurmutated depreciation 
Balance as at March 31, 2021 
Charga for the year 
Disposals 
Balance as at March 31, 2022 
Charge tor the year 

Olspasals 
Balance as at March 31, 2023 

Net carrying amount 

As at March 33, 2021 

At at March 41, 2022 
As at March 31, 2023 

Nleaschotd P 

  

Furniture and Lense hold 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

fhettes Computers Vehicles Office equipment entt Total 

1.68 37,31 5.36 34.86 141.24 217.65 

> 19.54 . DAF > 20.01 

{0.04} : 5 (0.28) (1.97) (4.29) 

£84 $6.85. 5.36 32.04 137.27 233.36 

0.10 29,19 . G76 41.98 80.03 

2 (0,42) : : - 40,12) 
194 85.52 5.46 35.80 181,25 323.27, 

0.90 27,84 4.27 22.A2 46.37 101.80 

O28 11.28 0.33 ADS 45.81 31.75 

§2.03) : : (0.271, (3,77) {4.07} 

432 38.82 4.60 26,23 58.41 £29.38 

0.21 18,34 9.20 5.08 19.81 43.4 

2 {0.08} x - = (0.08) _ 

1.33 $7.08 4.80. 24.31 78.22 372,76 

0.98 1.03 3.44 3A ST 116.25, 

0.72 0.76 5.84 78.66 104.18 

0.63 0.56 7.49 103.03 140.53 

  

  

incurred for the construction on the property ahtained on lease as disclased in Note 14 - Reght of use assets, 

1H During the current financial year and tn the previous finaneist year there [sna tevaluation of Pragerty, plants and caupment. 

1) There tg no proceeding Inltiated against the Company lor the properties under the Bena Transactions {Prohthliton) Act. 1908 and the rules made thereunder. 

{a} Capitat work in progress 

Capital work In progress. 

As at 34 March, 2023 

Projects in progress 

Projects temporarily suspended 

As at 34 March, 2022 

Projects in progress 

Projects termporarlly suspended 

Asst Asat 
March 32, 2023 Morch 31, 2022 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Contractual commitments to be executed on capital account amounting ta Rs. 4.05 millions (previous year: (8,25 millions} 

(b} Intangible assets under develonnrent 

intangible assets under developmcnt 

As at 31 March, 2023 

Projects in progress 

Projects temporarily suspended 

As at 31 March, 2022 

Projects in progress 
Projects temporarily suspended 

Note: 

  

  

  

  

  

  

23.27 

23.22 

Amount in CWIt for x pedad 
tees than 1-2 years 2.2 years More than Total 

Ayear Synars. 

Amount [n CWIP for a period 

Less than 2-2 yrats 2-2 years More than Total 

Lysar Zyoars 

23.27 - . : 23.27 

23,27 > ~ ‘ 23,27 

Asal Avat 
March 34, 2027 March 31, 2022 

8.78 . 

2.78 

Amount In, assets onder fs for a pestod 
Less than 1-2 years 2-3 yrars More than Total 

Jyear Ayears. 

8.78 . - . 8.78 

a7e : . : 9.78 

Amount In, ible assets under i tor a period 
Less than 12 years 23 years Mote than Total 

t year, A yeas, 
  

  

Contractual commttmonts to be executed on capital account amounting to R¢. 2.90 rmulllons. (n¢evinws year: Ni} 

 



DMI Finance Private tmited 

Notes to the standatone financial statements 

{All Amount in Rs. in milllons, untess athenwise stated) 

14 Right of use assets 

Aight of use Total 
agsets. 

Gtoss carrylng amount 

Balanca as at March 32, 2021 293.01 293.91 
Auditions 

75,08 75.08 
Disposals 

x ~ 
Gatance as at March 32, 2022 

368.39 368.99 
Addilions 

10.27 10.22 
Olsposals 

: : 
Balance as at March 31, 2023 

379.26 379,26 8D 2G 

Depredation 
Dalance as at March af, 2021 83.26 83.20 

Additlons 
$0.84 £0.84 

Disposals 
a - 

Balance as at March 31, 2022 134.04 134.04 
Addittons 48.47 AB.B7 
Disposals o z 
Balance as at March 31, 2023 182.91 £82.91 

Net camying amount 
As at March 31, 2021 OT 
As ot March at, 2022 234,95 234.95 
As at March 31, 2023 

196.95 196,35 

Nate: For other details pleate refer Note 46 

1S Other Intangible assets 

Sodtware Total 
Gfoss carrying amount 

Balance as at March 31, 2021 39,91 59,91 
Additions 24.69 24.60 
Disposals ~ = 
Balance as at March 34, 2022 £3.60 64.60 

Additions 5.95 5.95 
Diposals 

* : 
Balance as at March 31, 2023 70.85 70.55 

Amaitization 
atance as ar March 38, 2021 mu VAAL 

Additions 
16.09 16.09 

Disposals : - 
Balance as al March 31, 2022 33.20 33,20 

Additions 
15.69 15.69 

Disposals 
s : 

Balance as ot March 31, 2023 48.69 AG.89 

Nel carrying amount 

As at Match 32, 2021 22,80, 22.80 
As at Morch 34, 2022 3b4l 31.41 
As at March 31, 2023 21,66 21.66 

  

 



DMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to the standalone financial statements 

{All Amount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated} 

  

  

16 Other non- financial assets 

17 

Prepaid expenses 

Other non-financial assets* 
  

Total 

“Includes 18.63 million incurred for expenses related to issue of equity shares and 

shall be adjusted with share premium of the issue. 

Assets hetd for sale 

Assets under settlement (see nate below) 
  

Asat Asat 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

145,39 102,57 

20.27 1.00 

165.56 4103.56 

75.00 143,88 

75,00 143.88 
  

Note : These assets represent assets acquired from the Company's borrowers as a part of Company’s risk management strategy. 

In these cases, the Company had entered into settlement agreement as a prudent measure by the management wherein the 

borrower was approached and there was a mutual consensus between the Company and borrower to transfer the asset in the 

name of the Company towards settlement of the loan amount. 

Basis the development, the Company, on prudent basis, has impaired asset under settlement amounting to Rs. 68.88 million 

(previous year: Rs.45.97 million) 
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DMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to the standalone financial statements 

(All Amount in Rs. in millions, unless otherwise stated) 

Payables 

Trade payables 

. Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (See 

note li below } 
. Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 

small enterprises 

Other payables 

. Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (See 

note ii below ) 

ii. Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 

stnall enterprises 

Total 

1) Trade payable and other payable ageing schedule 

As at 31 March 2023 

As at As at 

arch 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 

8.97 

1,133.20 

1,142.17 

525.06 

94.79 

659.67 

754.46 

379.87 

  

525.06 379,87 
  

  

1,667.23 1,134.33 

  

Particulars 

Tatal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 

Total outstanding dues of creditors ather than micro enterprises and 

small enterprises 

Disputed dues of micra enterprises and small enterprises 

Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and smalt 

enterprises 

Less than 1 

year 

8.97 

1,483.56 

1-2 years 

134.94 

2-3 years More than 3 years 

31.58 8.18 

Total 

8.97 

1,658.26 

  

Total 

As at 31 March 2022 

1,492.53 134.94 31.58 8,18 1,667.23 

  

Particulars 

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smail enterprises 

Total outstanding dues of creditors ather than micro enterprises and 

small enterprises 

Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 

Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 

enterprises 

Less than 1 

year 

94.79 

997.44 

1-2 years 

33.92 

2-3 years More than 3 years 

$.10 3.08 

Total 

94.79 

1039.54 

  

Total 

  

1,092.23 33.92 5.10 3.08 1,134.33



OMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to the standalone financial statements 

(All Amount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated) 

il) Amount outstanding if Micro,Small and Medium Enterprises Development Enterprises 

Based on the responses received from certain suppliers, the Company has certain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 

Development Act, 2006 (‘MSMED Act’). The disclosures pursuant to the said MSMEO Act are as follows: 

1) The Principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at year end 

- Principal amount 

+ Interest thereon 

ii} the amount of interest patd by the buyer in terms of section 16 of MSMED Act, along with the amounts 

of the payment 

ili} the amount of Interest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment (which has been paid 

but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the 

MSMED Act 

iv) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid 

v) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date 

when the interest dues above are actually paid to the smallinvestor 

19 Debt securities (at amortised cost} 

Non convertible debentures (refer note 19.1) 

Market linked debentures (refer note 19.2} 

Secured ** 

Unsecured 

Total 

Debt securities in india 

Debt securities outside india 

Total 

* * 

milflons). 

  

  

  

  

  

As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

8.97 94.79 

- 0.03 

0.03 - 

15,352.85 18,552.27 

1,485.06 : 
16,837.91 18,552.27 

1,984,92 499.27 

14,852.99 18,053.00 
16,837.91 18,552.27 

16,837.91 18,552.27 

16,837.91 18,552.27 
  
  

Secured against exclusive floating charge by way of hypothecation of foans and receivables of the Company of Rs. 2,668.62 millions (previous year Rs, 893.22 

The Company has not created the Debenture redemption reserve as it is not mandatorily required in accordance with provisions of the Companies Act 2013. 

 



19.1 

» 
or 

49.2 

Terms of redeemable non-convertible debentures (NCO's) 

OMI Heance Private Limited 

Notes to the standatone financial statements 

(All Arnaunt in As, in millions, unless otherwise stated} 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Secured 
Nominal value Amount Amount 

ISIN Dateofatlotment Date of redemption tdebenture Number Rate of Interest Facevaive  qutstanding as at outstanding a4 at Terms of redemption 
borne’ March 31,2022 Masch 31, 2022 

iNecuagu7iss June 30, 2020 june 30, 2023 40,00,000 soa 9.00% 500 fay a5 499.27 36 Months from the date of Allotment. Coupon payment frequency is yearly 
Total 229.85 499.27 

All secured against exciusive charge on the standard assets portfolio secelvables as per the respective agreenients. 

Unsecursd 

Naminal value Amount Amount 
isin Bate olsliatmem «= Date of redemption tdebenture Number Rate of interest Facevalue guistanding as at outstanding at at Terms of redemption 

bende March 32,2023 March 31, 2022 

36 months {rom date af allatmeat, Coupon payment 

INE6O4008066 October 1, 2019 October 4, 2022 10,006,000 1,160 10.35% 1,160.00 1,160.00 frequency is quacterly, Matured and paid during Financial 

yout 2023, 

36 mouths from date of allotment, Coupon payment 

INE604008074 October 21,2019 October 23, 7022 410,00,000 2.040 10.35% 2,040.00 : 2,040.00 frequency is quartecly. Matured and paid ducing Financiat 
year 2023. 

INEGOAONRAA? November 25,2019 November 25, 2023 19,00,000 2,080 BSom 2,040.00 2,040.00 2,040.00 42 Menths from the Oate of Allotment. Coupon payment 
frequency is quarterly 

48 mont hh 1 Al . INE6O400Bos0 December 18,2019 December 10, 2023 10,00,000 267 850% 867.00 867.00 867,00 48 manths from the Date af Allatment. Coupon payment 
frequency ts quacterly 

48 months fi al INE604008108 Fetsruary 20,2020 February 20, 2024 10.00,000 7172 8.50% 2,172.00 7,172.00 7,172.09 4H months from the Date of Allotment Counan payment 
frequencyis quarterly 

INEGOAOOR 24 February 28, 2426 February 28, 2024 40,08,000 andy 950% 4,640.00 4,640.00 4.6ay.qn 48 months fram the Date of Allatment. Counon payment 
feaquency is quarterly 

46 monihs f ate of Ail . INEGOIO0BI16 March 12,2020 March 12, 2024 10,00,000 134 850% 134.00 134.00 134,00 (8 menths from the Gate of Alotment. Counon payment 
frequency is quarterly 

Toral 14,853.00 10,053.00 

Terms af cedieemable Market Linked Debentures (MLO's} 
Secured 

ISIN No, Dats of allotment Date of redempiion Naminal value Number Rute af interest Face value Amount Amount Terms of redemption 

per debenture auistanding asst outstanding as at 

(March 31.2023 March 31. 2077 
t . : me604007167 October 21,2022 Actober 21, 2024 10,00,000 1500 As per Table Below * 4,500.00 1485.06 24 Months irom the date of Allotment. Coupan is payable 

anfat maturity, 

Total aes, 06 : 
  

. GSEC 
Aedemption Date 

     



OMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to the standalone financial statements 

(All Amount in Rs. in millions, unless otherwise stated} 

  

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 

20 Sorrowings (other than debt securities) (at amortised cost) 

  

Secured* 
Term loans 

From banks (See note lv and vi below) 20,489.36 8,717.10 

Other loans 
Securitisation - PTC Borrowings (See note fii and v below) 2,902.81 - 

Cash credit and overdraft 

From banks (See note | and ti below) 496.34 248.43 

23,888.51 8,965.53 

Borrowings In India 23,888.51 8,965.53 

Borrowings outside india - - 

Total 23,888.51 8,965.53 

Notes: 

i) Secured against exclusive floating charge by way of hypothecation of loans and recelvabtes of the Company to the extent of Rs. 28,663.73 millions (Previous year: Rs. 14,257.92 

ralltions). 

tl} Exclusive Hypothecation charge on the standard receivables of the Company at all times and cash credit is repayable on demand, 

tii) Secured against exclusive floating charge by way of hypothecation of loans and receivables of the Company to the extent of Rs, 3748.46 millions 

iv) Terms of repayment of borrowlngs as on March 31, 2023 are as follows: 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

            

lender pisbursement Repayment Rate of interest Security cover oe woes on wah ee 

Bank of Baroda-1 1,000 | 16 quarterly installments >6,00%<12% 133% - 248.50 

Bank of Baroda-2 500 |16 monthly Installments >6,00%<12% 133% 245,25 373.33 

Bank of Baroda-3 500 116 quarterly installments >6.00%<12% 133% 373.58 497,50 

Bank of Baroda-4 1,000 |12 quarterly Installments >6,00%<12% 125% 929.14 . 

Bank of Baroda-S 1,000 |12 quarterly Installments >b.00%<42% 125% 994,31 - 

Karnataka Bank Limited 200 | 44 quarterly installments >6.00%<12% 125% 89.86 163.22 

Karnataka Bank-2 250 [14 quarterly Installments >6.00%<12% 125% 110.93 221.86 

Karnataka Bank-3 500 [11 quarterly Installments 26.00%<12% 125% 361.95 - 

Bank of Maharashtra 500 {42 monthly installments >6.00%<12% 125% 320.31 476.93 

Bank of Maharashtra-2 2,000 [42 monthly Installment >6.00K<12% 128% 1,846.91 - 

HDFC Bank Limited-2 750 [8 quarterly installments >6.00%<12% 125% 102.64 $12.58 

HDFC Bank Limited-3 B00 [8 quarterly installments >6.00%<12% 125% 399.23 797.04 

HOFC Bank Limited-4 1,000 {8 quarterly installments >6.00%<12% 425% 747,92 - 

HOFC Bank Limited-5 1,000 |8 quarterly installments >6.00%<12% 125% 830.56 

HDFC Bank Limited-6 2,000 |8 quarterly Installments >6,00%<12% 125% 2,000.00 - 

State Bank Of India~-1 1,000 [15 quarterly Installments >6.00%< 12% 125% 596.82 865,74 

State Bank Of India-2 2,000 |15 quarterly installments >6.00%<412% 125% 1,591.46 1,985.82 

State Bank of india -3 2,000 |15 quarterly Installments >6.00%< 12% 125% 1,988.97 - 

Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited 400 [24 monthly installments >6.00%<12% 125% 149.50 349.44 

Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd.-2 750 [24 monthly Installment >6,00%<12% 125% 468.26 : 

Indusind Bank Limited soo [12 quarterly installments >6.00%<12% 125% 331.15 495.74 

industnd-2 soo [12 quarterly Installments >6.00%<12% 125% 494,98 

Punjab National Bank sag [35 monthly installments >6.00%<12% 133% 312.51 483,82 

South Indian Bank Limited 500 [15 quarterly installments >6,00%<12% 125% 398.02 499,04 

Indian Bank 750 (16 quarterly installments >6.00%<12% 125% 560.45 746.57 

indian Bank-2 500 | 11 quarterly instaliments >6,00%<12% 125% 497.48 : 

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking 1,000 |Upte 3 Months >6.00%< 12% 125% 999,73 . 

Corporation 

CSB Bank Limited 500 112 quarterly installments >6,00%<12% 125% 373.43 

DCB Bank 250 111 quarterly instatlments >6.00%<12% 125% 250.02 

Bandhan Bank $00 |45 monthly Installment >6.00%<12% 125% 498.48 . 

Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited 300 137 monthly Installment >6,00%<12% 125% 275.16 . 

Jammu & Kashmir Bank Limited $00 |14 quarterly Installments >6.00%<12% 125% 496.25 - 

HDFC Bank WCDL 450 |Upto 90 days >6,00%<12% 125% 450.00 - 

HODFC Bank CC WCOL 500 {5 months >6.00%<12% 125% $00.00 - 

Total 20,489.36 8,717.10           
 



OMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to the standalone financial statements 

(All Amount in Rs. In millions, unfess otherwise stated) 

‘otal Amount Payment Terms ransaction ason Outstanding as on 

2,381.00 | Monthly Payout to the Trust {>6.00%<12% par 119,00 

772.70 | Monthly Payout to the Trust par 552.50 

905.30 | Manthly Payout to the Trust par 748.30 

PLUM Hl 1,491.20 | Monthly Payout to the Trust 1,483.01 

  

vi) Secured term loans from banks amounting to Rs. 20,489.36 millions and carry rate of interest in the range of 6,00% to 12% p.a. The loans are having tenure of upto 4 years from 

the date of disbursement and are repayable in both monthly and quarterly Installments. The secured term loans are secured by hypathecation (exclusive charge) of the book debt 
recelvables of the Company. 

vil} There are no term loans from financial institutions. 

vill) The Company has nat defaulted In the repayment af dues to its lenders. 

ix)The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any of banks, financial institution or any other lender. 

x) Company has been submitting monthly/quarterly receivable/stack data with the lenders as per the provision of sanction jetters and there are no discrepancies between 
receivable/stock data submitted to the lenders and book of accounts. 

xi) The corporate guarantee given by the Company for borrowings of fellaw group company on which charge is created on the assets of Company have not been considered far the 

disclosure as their charge Is not due for the satisfaction. Further, the Company doesn't have any charges or satisfactlon which fs yet to be registered with ROC beyond statutary 
period 

xi} The company has utilised the funds raised raised from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which they are borrawed. 
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Asat As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

  

21 tease liabilities 

Lease liabilities (refer note 46) . 242.29 276.36 
242.29 276.36 
  

22 Other financial fiabilitles 
Interest accrued but not due 

- Debt securities 208.49 156.43 

- Borrowings other than debt securities 75,49 6.44 
283.98 162.87 

23 Provisions 
Provision for gratuity (refer note 38) 38.20 32,58 
Provision for compensation absences 58.15 44.67 

96.35 77,25 
  

24 Other non-financtal liabilities 

Statutory dues payable 221.33 58.18 

Security deposit ATi 4.71 

226.04 62.89 
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25 Equity share capital 

25. 

25. 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount 

A. Authorized share capital 

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 1,36,50,00,000 19,650.00 96,50,00,000 9,650.00 

Compuisorily convertible preference shares of Rs. 10 each 3,50,00,000 350.00 3,50,00,000 350.00 

2,00,00,00,000 20,000.00 1,00,00,00,000 10,000.00 

B. Issued, subscribed and paid up 

Fully called-up and paid-up 

Equlty shares of Rs. 10 each 65,51,52,742 6,551.53 65,50,78,001 6,550.78 

Sub total (A) 65,51,52,742 6,551.53 65,50,78,001 6,550.78 

Partly called-up and paid-up 

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 5,73,15,400 16,22 5,73,15,400 16,22 

Sub total (B) 5,73,15,400 16.22 573,415,400 16.22 

Totat (A+B} 71,24,68,342 6,567.75 71,23,93,401 6,567.00 

1 The reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year 

Balance at the beginning of year 71,23,93,402 6,567.00 69,93,50,933 6,436.58 

Changes in equity share capital due ta prior period errors ~ - - * 

Restated balance at the beginning of the period 74,23,93,401 6,567.00 69,93,50,933 6,436.58 

Shares Issued during the year 74,741 0.75 1,30,42,468 130.42 

First call money called on party paid up shares - - ‘ - . 

Balance at the end of year 71,24,68,142 6,567.75 71,24,93,401 6,567.00 

2. Shares held by holding Company 

As at March 31, 2023 Asat 

Na, af shares % holding No. of shares % holding 

OMI Limited §1,98,89,603 72.37% $1,98,89,603 72.98% 

51,98,89,603 72.97% 31,98,89,603 72.98% 

25. 

  

As per records of the Company, including Its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received fram shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the 

above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares. 

  

    

3 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company 

Name of the shareholder Asat Asat 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

No. of shares % holding No. of shares % holding 
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up and partly paid up 

DMI Limited $1,98,89,603 72.97% $1,98,89,603 72.58% 

NIS Ganesha S.A, 6,47,35,441 9.03% 6,47,35,441 9.09% 

K2V2 5,73,15,400 8.04% S,73,15,400 8.05% 

Note: As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other deciarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the 

above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial awnerships of shares. 

During the current year, the Company has issued 74,741 equity shares of Rs. 10 per share at applicable exercise price under the ESOP plans. The amount received on 

these issues aggregates to Rs. 3.60 million. 
( 

{il} The Authorised share capital has been increased from RS. 10,000 million to Rs.20,000 millian. The same was approved by the shareholders of the Company in it's meeting 

held on Nov 15, 2022. 

(li) % holding Is calculated on the basis of number of shares held by the respective sharehotder. 
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25.4 Details of shares held by promaters 

25,5 

25.6 

25.7 

  

  

Particulars Asat March 31, 2023 As at 31 March 2022 

Equity shares of As. 10 each fully paid up 

No. of shares at the beginning of the year 51,98,89,603 51,98,89,603 

Change during the year - “ 

No. of shares at the end of the year 51,98,89,603 $1,98,89,603 

% of total shares 72.97% 72.98% 

% change during the year (0.01%) (1.83%) 

OMI Limited Is the promoter of the Company 

Rights, preferences and restrictions 

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. The dividand 

proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. in the event of liquidation of the Company, the 

holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of ail preferential amounts, The distribution will be in proportion to 

the number of the equity shares held by the shareholders. 

Aggregate number of shares Issued for consideration other than cash during the five years 

The Company has not issued any shares pursuant to a contract without payment being received in cash nor ailotted as fully paid up by the way of bonus shares and there 

has not been any buy back of shares in the current period and the immediately preceding four years. 

Uncalfed and Unpaid Capital 

There are 5,73,15,400 equity shares issued by the Company against which, the Company has received Rs. 16,52,47,259 (including securities Premium of Rs. 14,90,25,873). 

Balance amount is not called up by the Company. 

25.8 The Company has filed an application under Section 66(1)}{a) of Companies Act, 2013 with Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”) for reductlon of issued, 

Subscribed and Paid-up share Capital of the Company on June 8, 2022. Pursuant to such capital reduction 57,315,400 partly paid equity shares are expected to be reduced 

to 1,622,138 shares. Further, the order from NCLT is awaited. 
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26 Other equity 
  

As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Securities premium 25,711.77 25,707.55 

Capital redemption reserve 81.21 81.21 

Statutory reserve u/s 45-IC of RBI Act 1,741.05 1,093.02 

Share based payrnent outstanding reserve 305.07 187,02 

Share warrant reserve 74.80 32.44 

Retained earnings 6,742.67 4,150.54 

Other comprehensive income 836.13 661.59 

Upfront monies received on share warrant 0.72 0.50 

Total 35,493.42 31,913.87 

Securities premium 

Opening balance 25,707.55 23,495.38 

Add : Premium an shares issued during the year {including shares issued under Employees 4.22 2,212.20 

Stock Option plan) 

Closing balance 25,711.77 25,707.55 

Capital redemption reserve 

Opening balance 81.21 81.21 

Add : Additions during the year - - 

Closing balance 81.21 81.21 

Statutory reserve u/s 45-IC of RBI Act 

Opening balance 1,093.02 977.46 

Add ; Transfer during the year from Surplus In statement of profit and loss 648,03 415,56 

Closing balance 1,741.05 1,093.02 

Share based payment outstanding reserve 

Opening balance 187.02 140.95 

Add: Granted/vested during the year 121.09 73.56 

Less : Exercised during the year {3.04} (27,49) 

Closing balance 305.07 187.02 

Share warrant reserve 

Opening balance 32.44 - 

Add : Addition during the year 42.36 32.44 

Closing balance 74,80 32.44 

Retained earnings 

Opening balance 4,150.54 3,688.30 

Add : Profit for the year 3,240.16 577.80 

Less : Transfer ta reserve fund as per section 45 IC of RBI Act, 1934 {648.03} (415.56) 

Closing bafance 6,742.67 4,150.54 
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Asat As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Upfront monies received on share warrant 

Opening balance 0.50 - 

Add: Amount received during the year 0.22 0.56 

Closing balance 0.72 0.50 

Other Comprehensive Income 

Opening balance 661,59 34.05 

Add: Remeasurement gain on defined benefit plan 4,14 0.39 

Add : Gain on Fair Value changes (debt and equity) 170.40 610.18 

Add: Realised Gain on Investments - 16.97 

Closing balance 836.13 661.59 
  

Security premium 

Securities premium represents premium received on issue of shares. The amount Is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies 

Act 2013 

Capita! redemption reserve 

The same had been created in accordance with provisions of the Companies Act 2013 on buy back of shares. 

Statutory reserve u/s 45-IC of RBI Act 

The reserve Is created as per the provision of Section 45 (IC) of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, This is a restricted reserve and no appropriation 

can be made from this reserve fund except for the purpose as may be prescribed by Reserve Bank of India. 

Share option outstanding account 

The reserve is used to recognise the fair value of the options Issued to employees of the Company and subsidiary companies under Company's 

employee stock option plan. 

Share warrant reserve 

The reserve is used to recognise the fair value of the warrants issued to consultants of the Company and subsidiary companies. 

Retained earnings 

Retained earnings or accumulated surplus and represents total of all profits retained since the Company's inception. Retained earnings are 

credited with current year profits, reduced by losses, if any, dividend payouts, of any such other apprapriations to specific reserves. 

Upfront monies received on share warrant 

Upfront monies received on share warrant represents the upfront monies received against the share warrants issued by the Company. 
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Interest Income 

  

Year ended March 31, 2023 Year ended March 31, 2022 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

On financial On financial 

instruments On financial assets On financial assets instruments Onfinanclal assets On financial assets 
measured at fair measured at measured at fair measured at falr measured at measured at falr value 

value through Profit = Amortised cost value through OCI vaiue through Profit © Amortised cost through GCI 
& Loss & Loss 

Interest incame on portfolia loans - 15,391.00 2L51 : 7,280.54 30,22 
Interest Income on Investments 106.92 256.47 155.50 22.89 310.55 154.84 
Interest on deposits with bank . 38.08 - - 38.06 - 

106.92 15,685.55 177.01 22,89 7,629.15 185.06 

Total interest income 15,569.48 7,837.41 

Fees and commission income 

Amount invoiced Revenue booked 

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended 

March 31,2023 March 31,2022 March 31,2023 March 31,2022 

Fee on card reload 1.82 21.42 1.82 21.42 

Others * 199.92 97.44 

1.82 24.42 201.74 118.86 

"includes Income related to recoveries from Consumer loans 

Net gain on fair vafue changes 

Year ended Year ended 

(A) Net gain on financtal instruments at fair value through profit and loss 

On financiat instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss 

{B} others 

Analysis of fair value changes" 

Realised 

Unrealised 

"shows the change fram the date of investment 

Other income 
Cost sharing from group companies 

Income on Treasury Instruments 

Miscellaneous income 

Finance costs 

Interest on financial flabllities (measured at amortised cost} 

interest on debt securities 

- on non convertible debentures 

- on market linked debentures 

interest an borrowings {other than debt securities) 

» on bank term loan 

- on bank cash credit 

Other Interest expense 

- on delayed deposit of statutory dues 

- on leasing arrangements 

+ securitisation 

Other borrowing costs 

  

March 31,2023 

197.60 1,005.79 

197.60 1,005.79 

337.47 716.69 

(139.87) 285.10 

197.60 1,005.79 

174.89 122.74 

- 16.88 

21.35 4.89 

196,24 144,51 

1,533.36 1,685.76 

62.11 - 

1,189.84 211.88 

20.19 0.58 

- 0.08 

26.33 16.09 

179,96 - 

6.87 2.14 

3,018.66 1,916.53 

March 31,2022
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Year ended Year ended 

32 Fees and commission expense 
March 31,2023 March 31,2022 

Selling partner commission 
1,329.74 671.05 

1,329.74 671.05 

33 Impalrment on financlal instruments 

Expected credit loss allowance 
461.24 1,999.90 

Write offs 
3,550.96 4,412.03 
4,012.20 3,411.93 

34 Employee benefits expense 

Salaries, wages and bonus 
1,031.40 716.97 

Contribution to provident and other funds 
15.04 11.63 

Gratuity expenses (refer note 38} 
13.36 10.44 

Share based payment to employees ** 
133.48 73.56 

Staff welfare expenses 
41.94 27.26 

1,235.22 839.86 

** includes 12.39 miillons of warrants issued by Graup Company (DMI Housing Finance} to employees of the Company 

35 Depreciation and amortization 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment {See note 12) 43.64 31,75 

Amortisation of right of use assets (See note 14) 48.87 50.84 

Amortisation of other intangible assets (See note 15} 
15.69 16.09 

108.20 98.68 

36 Other expenses 

Advertisement expenses 
25.10 8.85 

Legal and professional tees* 
367.74 587,72 

Travelling and conveyance expenses 
73.64 10.48 

Auditor's remuneration (refer note 36.1) 
4.84 4.05 

(7 expenses 
A87.78 255.21 

Rates and taxes 
7.00 1.76 

Rent 
10.69 4,58 

Goods and service tax 
420.12 198.45 

Director's sitting fee 
0.76 0.68 

Corporate sociat responsibility (refer note 36.2} 
16.28 17.40 

Repair and maintenance 
25.94 14.55 

insurance expense 
0.10 0.24 

Credit evaluation fee 
328.60 151,27 

Credit rating fee 
9.93 5.24 

Customer onboarding expenses 
0.06 0.07 

Assets held for sale written off 
68.88 45.97 

Miscellaneous expenses 
135.03 80.18 

2,482.46 1,386.69 

* includes share warrant expense amounting to Rs. 40.79 millions (previous year Rs. 32.44 milllons} 

46.1 Auditor's remuneration (excluding applicable taxes) 

~as auditors 
3.36 2.80 

- for tax services 
0.36 0.30 

~ for other services* 
1.12 0.95 

4.84 4.05 

* includes amount of INR 0.15 millon paid to erstwhile auditor In previous year 
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36.2 Corporate social responsibility (CSR} 

In respect of Corporate Social Responsibility activities, gross amaunt required to be spent by the Company during the year was Rs. 16.25 mifllons in F¥ 2022-23 {Previous Year As, 17.40 
millions) and Company has spent Rs. 15,32 milllons in FY 2022-23 {Previous Year Rs. 17,40 millions), 

Year ended Year ended 

March 31,2023 March 31,2022 
Gross smount unspent for the last year 

  

Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 16.25 17.40 
Amount spent during the year 15.33 17.40 
Constructian/acquisition of any asset - . 

Pald in cash 15.33 17.40 
Yet to be paid in cash 0.92 - 

Nature of CSR Activities 

Education, Nutrition and Women Empowerment 9,83 14.16 
Promoting and development towards healthcare - 2.74 
Promoting Indian Classical art and culture among youth - 0.50 
Training and heiping Indian Athletes to win Olympic Gald medals - - 
Provide supporting in eradication of hunger - . 
Uplifment of abandoned and poor 4.00 - 
Provision of low cost sanitation 1.50 - 

Notes : 

a) There Is no transaction with related parties as defined under the IND AS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ 

b} There Is a provision of 0.92 millions in the baoks as at March 31, 2023 

Year ended Year ended 7 Earning per share (EPS. 3 ep (ers) March 31,2023 March 31,2022 

Net profit attributable to equity shareholders 3,240.16 577.80 

Net profit for the year for basic EPS 3,240,16 577.80 
Ditutive impact of convertible instruments - “ 
Net profit for the year for dilutive EPS 3,240.16 577,80 

Nominal value of equity shares {in Rs.) 10,00 10.00 

Weighted-average number of equity shares far basic EPS {Face value of share Rs. 10 each} 65,67,16,725 64,77,49,654 

Convertible instruments 98,34,747 1,21,00,997 
Weighted-average number of equity shares for dilutive EPS (Face value of share Rs. 10 each) 66,65,51,472 65,98,50,651 

Basic EPS 
4.93 0.82 

Dilutive EPS 4.86 0.81 
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38 Retirement benefit plan 

Defined contribution plan 
A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions; there is no legal or constructive obligation to pay further 

contributions. The assets of the plan are held separately from those of the Company in a fund under the control of trustees. 

The total expense charged to income during the current year Rs. 15.04 millions (previous year: Rs, 11.63 millions ) represents contributions payable to these 

plans by the Company at rates specified in the rules of the plan. 

Defined henefit pian 

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days 

salary {last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The scheme is unfunded. 

Provision for unfunded Gratuity for all employees is based upon actuarial valuations carried out at the end of every financial year. Major drivers in actuarial 

assumptions, typically, are years of service and employee compensation. Pursuant to the issuance of the Indian Accounting Standard (IndAS} 19 on 

‘Employee Benefits’, commitments are actuarially determined using the ‘Projected Unit Credit’ Method. Gains and losses on changes in actuarial 

assumptions are accounted for in the "Other comprehensive Income". 

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and the funded status and amounts 

recognised in the balance sheet for the respective plans: 

  

  

  

  

  

  

Changes in the defined benefit obligation: As at Asat 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Batance at the beginning of the year 32.58 22.78 

Current service cost 11,02 8.90 

Interest cost 2.34 1.54 

Benefits Paid (2.21) (0.12) 

Remeasurement (gain) / loss (5,53} (0.52) 

Balance at the end of the year 38.20 32.58 

Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss is as under: Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 34, 2022 

Current service cost 11.02 8.90 

interest cost on defined benefit obligation 2.34 1,54 

Net Impact on profit before tax 13.36 10.44 
  

Amount recognised in the other comprehensive income: 

Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense) - - 

Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions - - 

  

Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions (1.00) (2.05) 

Experience adjustments {4.53} 1.54 

impact on other comprehensive income {5.53} (0.52) 
  

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity and post-employment benefit obligations for the company’s plans are shown below: 

Economic assumptions 

Discount rate 7.36% 7A8% 

Future salary increases 6.00% 6.00% 

Demographic assumptions 

Retirement age 60 60 

Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability 100% of IALM (2012- 100% of IALM (2012- 

14) 14) 

Attrition at ages (withdrawal rate) 

(i) up to 30 years 3.00% 3.00% 

(ii) From 31 to 44 years 2.00% 2.00% 

{iii} Above 44 years 1.00% 1.00% 

Note: The discount rate is generally based upon the market yields available on Government bonds at the accounting date relevant to currency of benefit 

payments for a term that matches the liabilities. Salary growth rate is Company's Jong term best estimate as to salary increases and takes account of 

inflation, seniority, promotion, business plan, HR policy and other relevant factors on fong term basis as provided in relevant accounting standard. 
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  Sensitivity analysis for gratulty liability Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
impact of the change in discount rate 

Impact due to increase of 0.50 % (2.75) (2.37) 
Impact due to decrease of 0.50% 3.05 2.61 

impact of the change in salary increase 

Impact due to increase of 0.50 % 2.34 2,63 
Impact due to decrease of 0.50% (2.16) {2.40} 

The following is the maturity profile of gratuity: 
  

  

  

  

Expected payment for future years As at As at 

March 34, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Oto 1 year 

0.74 0,49 
1 to 2 year 0.54 0.52 
2 to 3 year 0.60 0.52 
3 to 4 year 0.68 0.55 
4to 5 year 0.89 6.55 
5 to 6 year 0,88 0.70 
Gth year onwards 33,90 29.25 
Total expected payments 38.20 32,58 

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at 31 March 2023 is 20.21 years (Previous year : 20.17 years} 
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I. Reconciliation af options 

DMI Finance Private Limited 

Nates to the standalone financtal statements 

{All Amount in Rs. In millions, untess otherwise stated} 

  

  

                    

  

  

  

March 31, 2023 

Welghted average 
Options outstanding Granted during the | Exercised during | tapsed during the |Outstanding at the remaining 

Scheme Name at the beginning of 
the year year the year year end ofthe year | contractual life {in 

years) 
OMi ESOP plan 2018 24,527 - 1,489 - 23,038 0.08 

OMI Retention Plan, 2018 10,90,536 - 20,609 - 10,69,927 0.50 

OMI ESOP Plan, Managernent Scheme 5,86,222 - - 7,074 5,79,148 0.30 

DMI ESOP Plan, Legacy Scheme 3,14,148 - 32,794 2,81,354 - 

DMI ESOP PLAN 2019 6,946,899 - 7,497 14,154 625,248 1.00 

DMI ESOP RETENTION PLAN 2019 24,00,000 - - 65,000 13,325,000 2.06 

DMI Employment Contract 2020 23,068 - - - 23,068 2.88 

DMI Retention Bonus {NBFC Apr'z0} 5,80,000 - - 3,05,000 2,75,000 2.06 

DM Finance ESOP Plan 2020 3,88,823 - 7,529 18,200 3,63,094 2.00 

DMI Variabie2019-20 9,865 - , : 9,865 2.76 

DMI Finance Plan 2021 4,33,708 - 4,823 75,946 3,532,939 3,60 

DMI Finance Plan 2021 2,00,000 . - . 2,00,000 3.00 

Founder Circle Award 2020-21 (NBFC Apr'21} 4,30,000 : - 1,60,000 2,70,000 3,00 

Founder Circle Award 2020-21 (NBFC Jul'21} 37,23,000 - - 7,12,000 30,11,000 3.32 

OMI Employment Contract 2021-22 -1 2,222 - - 2,222 - 3.64 

OM! Employment Contract 2021-22 -11 12,210 - * - 12,210 3.72 

DMIESOP Plan, Management - {il 18,315 - . - 18,315 3.79 

OMI Employment Contract 2021-22 - tl 6,105 . . . 6,105 3,83 

DMI Employment Contract 2021-22 -IV 7,326 - - - 7,326 3.92 

OMi Employment Contract 2021-22 -V 3,663 * . . 3,663 3,93 

DMt Finance ESOP Plan 2022 - 1 . 5,18,651 - 47,287 5,01,364 4,00 

DMI Finance ESOP Pian 2022 - It - 2,497 - - 2,497 4.25 

Employment Contract - Aug'22 - il : 1,670 - - 1,670 4.37 

Employment Contract - Aug'22 - Ill - 1,670 - - 1,670 4.40 

Employment Contract -Jun'22 - 5,945 - . 5,945 4.23 

Employment Contract - Mar'23 - 29,154 - - 29,154 4.92 

Employment Contract - Nov'22 . 2,188 . - 2,188 461 

Employment Contract - Sep’22 - 2,188 . - 2,188 4,50 

Employment Contracts - Apr'22 : 1,784 - - 1,784 4.08 

Employment Contracts - Jui'22 . 30,000 . - 30,000 4.25 

Employment Contracts - May'22 - 30,000 - - 30,000 4.09 

Founder Circle Award 2022-23 (NBFC Feb'23) . 1,00,48,700 : - 1,00,48,700 5.84 

Total 99,00,637 1,06,74,447 74,741 13,76,882 1,91,23,462 

March 31, 2022 

Weighted average 
Options outstanding Granted during the | Exercised during | Lapsed during the [Outstanding at the remaning . 

Scheme Name at the beginning of 
the year year the year year end of the year contractual Ife {in 

years) 

OMI ESOP plan 2018 3,22,023 - 2,97,496 . 24,527 0.96 

DMI Retention Plan, 2018 14,83,941 - 3,96,642 . 10,890,536 1 

DMI ESOP Plan, Management Scheme 6,04,396 - 18,174 - 5,86,222 5 

DMI ESOP Plan, Legacy Scheme 18,27,677 - 45,13,529 . 3,14,148 i 

OMI ESOP PLAN 2019 6,88,660 - 41,761 . 6,46,899 2 

DMI ESOP RETENTION PLAN 2019 14,00,000 - - - 14,006,000 2.96 

DMI Employment Contract 2020 23,068 “ . : 23,068 3.88 

DMI Retentlon Bonus (NBFC Apr'20} 5,80,000 + . . 5,860,000 3 

OMI Finance ESOP Plan 2020 3,399,387 - 20,564 - 3,88,823 3 

OM! Variable2019-20 11,355 : 41,490 - 9,865 3.76 

DM! Finance Plan 2021 . 4,33,708 - . 4,33,708 4,01 

DMI Finance Plan 2021 . 2,00,000 - 2,00,000 4.01 

Founder Circle Award 2020-21 (NBFC Apr'23) - 4,360,000 - . 4,30,000 4.01 

Founder Circle Award 2020-21 (NBFC Jul'21} - 37,23,000 - . 37,23,000 4.33 

DM! Employment Contract 2021-22 -f - 2,222 - - 2,222 4.64 

DMI Employment Contract 2021-22 - I! - 12,210 - . 12,210 4.73 

OMI ESOP Plan, Management - tl : 18,315 . . 18,315 48 

OMI Employment Contract 2021-22 - Hi - 6,105 - - 6,105 4.83 

DMI Employment Contract 2021-22 - iV - 7,326 - - 7,326 4,92 

OMI Employment Contract 2021-22 -V - 3,663 . - 3,663 4.94 

Total 73,40,507 48,396,549 22,79,656 * 99,00,637                 

   



  

DMI Finance Private tmited 

Notes to the standalone financial statements 

(All Amount in Rs, in millions, unless otherwise stated} 

it. Computation of falr value 

for undertaking falr valuation of ESOP, the Company Is using Black-Scholes Model. 

  

  

Scheme Name Falr rte ee) of Volatility Risk free rate Dividend Yield fExercise price (As.)| Option falr value 

OMI ESOP PLAN 2019 95,49 30.00% 7.35% - 98,49 38.86 

DMI ESOP RETENTION PLAN 2019 : 101.87 30.00% 6.50% - 100,00 40,75 

OM! ESOP PLAN 2018 2281 15.00% 6.00% : 43,90 0,67 

DM! Retention Plan, 2018 24.68 15.00% 7.50% - 46.74 4.15 

DMI ESOP Plan, Management Scheme 95.49 15.00% 7.50% - 62.21 49,45 

DMI ESOP Plan, Legacy Scheme 24,68 15,00% 7.00% - 13.29 15.32 

DMI Emptoyment Contract 2020 4113.34 30.00% 6.14% : 113.34 43.35 

DM! Retention Bonus (N@FC Apr'20) 116.36 30.00% 6.14% - 116,36 44,51 

DMI Finance ESOP Plan 2020 116.36 30.00% 6.14% - 116.36 44,51 

DMI Variable2019-20 
113.34 30.00% 6.14% - 113.34 43.35 

OMI Finance Plan 2021 413.00 30.00% 6.60% - 113.34 43.49 

OMI Finance Plan 2021 113,00 30.00% 6.60% : 113.00 43.30 

Founder Circle Award 2020-21 (NBFC Apr'2i) 113,00 30,00% 6.14% . 113.34 43.49 

Founder Circle Award 2020-21 (NBFC Jul'24) 112.86 30,00% 6.14% : 112.86 43.17 

DM! Employment Contract 2021-22 -1 209.00 30.00% 6.60% - 203.00 81.89 

OMI Employment Contract 2021-22 - ft 209.00 30.00% 6.60% . 209.00 81.89 

DMI ESOP Plan, Management - ill 
209.00 30.00% 6.60% - 209,00 81.89 

DMI Employment Contract 2021-22 - II! 209,00 30.00% 6.60% - 209.00 81.89 

OMt Employment Contract 2021-22 -1V 209,00 30.00% 6.60% - 209,00 81.89 

DMI Employment Contract 2021-22 -V 209.00 30.00% 6.60% - 209.00 $1.89 

OMI Finance ESOP Plan 2022 -| 212.81 29.82% 6.83% . 212.81 84,13 

DMI Finance ESOP Plan 2022 - ff 212,81 29.82% 6.83% - 212.81 84.13 

Employment Contract - Aug'22 - Il 217.77 29.91% 765% - 217,77 89.83 

Employment Contract - Aug’22 - It 2417.77 29.91% 7.65% . 217.77 89.83 

Employment Contract - Jun'22 212.81 23.82% 6.83% - 212.81 84.13 

Employment Contract - Mar'23 225.41 29.91% 765% . 225.11 92.86 

Employment Contract -Nov‘'22 227,77 29.91% 7.65% : 221.53 88.32 

Employment Contract - Sep'22 217.77 29.91% 7.68% - 221.53 88,32 

Employment Contracts - Apr'22 212.81 29.82% 6.83% - 212.81 84.13 

Employment Contracts - Jul'22 217.77 29.91% 7.65% . 217.77 89.83 

Employment Contracts - May'22 212.81 29.82% 6.83% . 242.81 84,13 

Founder Circle Award 2022-23 (NBFC Feb'23) 225.11 29.91% 7.65% - 225.11 103.28                 
The Company applies the fair value method of accounting to account for stock options issued by It ta the employees of the Company. The fair market value of such instruments as at the 

grant date is recognized as an expense over the period in which the related services are received. Accordingly, fair value of the stock options and restricted stack units is amortized ona 

straight-line basis over the vesting period of the stock options. The Company recognise share based compensation tn the Statement of Profit and Lass with a corresponding credit to Share 

based payments outstanding reserve. 

The Company has entered inte cost chargeback agreement with the granter and post this agreement the Company would be required to pay the difference of market price of the options 

and exercise price of the options exercised by the employees of the Company, to OMI Housing finance Private Limited, Therefore, in the current year, share based campensation expense 

has been recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss with a corresponding credit toa liability account viz Share Options Outstanding Account disclosed under notes. 

During the Financtal year 2018-19, as per the scheme options were granted to employees of the Granter. The Company has recognised the expense of Rs. 0.07 Milllons {previous year: Rs. 

0.70 Millions} as share based compensation expense In relation to these options with a corresponding credit to a tlability account which is Rs. 10.06 millions as on March 34,2023 {Rs. 9.99 

Millions as on March 31, 2022). 

The employees’ compensation expense for Stock options during the year ended 31 March 2023 amounts to Rs. 133.44 millions (previous year Rs, 72.86 millions}. 
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Notes to the standatone financial statements 
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40 Olsclosures in respect of Related Partles as per Indian Accounting Standard (IndAS} — 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures 

(a) List of related parties 

Holding company 
OMI Limited 

Subsidiaries 
OMI Management Services Private Limited 
OMI Capital Private Limited 

Appnit Technologies Private Limited (w.e.f, 20 Jan 2022) 

Assaciate 

OMI Alternatives Private Limited 

Fellow subsidiaries 
OMI Consumer Credit Private Limited 
DMI Housing Finance Private Limited 

Key managerial personned (KMP) 

Name 

Mr. Yuvraja Chanakya Singh 
Mr. Shivashish Chatterjee 
Mrs. Bina Singh 

Mrs, Jayatl Chatterjee 
Mr. Gurcharan Das 
Mr. Gaurav Burman 

Mr. Tamer Amr 

Mr. Nipender Kochhar 
Mr. Krishan Gopal 

Mr. Sahib Pahwa 

Mr. Alfred Mendoza 

Relatives of KMeP 
Mis. Mallika Singh 
Ms, Promita Chatterjee 

Enterprises over which key management personnel and relatives of such personnel exercise si; 
undertaken: 
K2V2, Partnership Firm 
DMI Alternative Investment Fund 
Quickwork Technologies Private Limited 

Entity with Signiflcant influence 
Ganesha Fixed income Limited 

{b} Significant transactions with related parties; 

Designation 

Joint Managing Director 

doint Managing Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Oirector 

Director (upto 14 November 2022} 

Director 

Chief Financial Officer 
Company Secretary 

Nominee Director (w.e.f 14 November 2022) 

ignificant intizence with whom transactions have been 

  Name of related party 

DMI Housing Finance Private Limited 

OMI Management services Private Limited 

DMI Capitat Private Umited 

OMI Alternatives Private Umited 

Ganesha Fixed Income Limited 

Appnit Technologies Pvt Ltd 

  

Nature of transaction 

Cost share recovery 

Share based payment 

Reimbursement of expense paid by 

related party on behalf of entity 

Cost share recovery 

Cost share recavery 
Share based payment 

Cost share recovery 
Share based payment 
Reimbursement of expense incurred on 

behalf of related party 

Interest expenses 

Cost share recovery 
Reimbursement of expense paid by 

related party on behalf of entity 
Other expenses 

For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

63.09 

12.45 

4.00 

0.06 

0.60 

0.81 

88.21 
0.85 
1.34 

11.39 

13.85 

165 

13,20 

59.70 
0.70 
3.67 

0.06 

0.60 

60.70 
0.13 

5.49 

41.39 
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Notes to the standalone financial statements 
(All Amount in Rs. tn miflions, unless otherwise stated) 

  

Name of related party Nature of transactions For the year ended 

March 34, 2023 

For the year ended 

March 34, 2022 

Mr. Sahib Pahwa’ Interest income : 0.03 
Remuneration 6.03 5.18 
Loan received back . 0.Si 

Mrs. Bina Singh Sitting fee 0.14 0,12 
Share Warrants Expense - 0.77 

Mr. Yuvraja Chanakya Singh Remuneration 42,56 35.20 

Past employment benefits 0.36 0.36 

Mr. Shivashish Chatterjee Remuneration 41.40 26.31 
Post employment benefits 0.36 0.36 

Mrs, Jayatt Chatterjee Sitting fees 0.24 0.22 
Share Warrants Expense - 0.77 

Mr. Gurcharan Das Sitting fees 0.14 0.42 

Share Warrants Expense : 0.77 

Mr. Nipender Kochhar Sitting fees 0.24 0.22 
Share Warrants Expense - 0.77 

Mr. Krishan Gopai* Remuneration 10.69 9.35 

Quickwork Technologies Private Limited Other Expenses 5.81 1.08 

Ms, Paromita Chatterjee Consultancy Fee 1.19 0.70 

“Remuneration does not Include post employment benefits 

{c) Outstanding balances with related parties: 

  

  

Name of related party Nature of balances Asat As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

DMI Alternatives Private Limited Employee Stock 4,10 4.96 
Option Plan 

recoverable 
Trade Receivable 26.98 - 

DMI Capital Private Limited Employee Stock 0.81 - 

Option Plan 

recoverable 

DM! Housing Finance Private Limited Employee Stock 22.45 9.99 

Option Plan payable 

Corporate 3,878.97 4,329.99 
Guarantee 

Ganesha Fixed Income Limited Borrowings from 
Nan-convertlble 134.00 434.00 

debentures 

(d) Disclosure pursuant te Schedule V of Clause A (2} of Regulation 53(f} of the SEBI (Listing obligations and disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015: 

There is na loan or advance given by the Company to either holding company or subsidiary companies. 
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Notes to the standalone financial statements 

{alt Amount Jn Rs, tn millions, unless otherwise stated) 

The date on which the Cade on Social Security, 2020{the "Code"} relating ta employee benefits during employment benefits wil come Inte effect is yet to be notified and the 

related nules are yet to be finalized. The Company will evaluate the code and its rules, assess the impact, if any, and account for the same when they become effective. 

io terms of Requirement as per RB! notification no. RBI/2019-20/170 DOR{NBFC}.CC.PD.NO.109/22.40.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020 on implementation of indian 

Accounting standards, Non-banking Financial Companies {NBFCs) are required to create an impairment reserve for any shortfatl In impairment allowances under Ind AS 109 

and Income Recognition, Asset classificatian and provistoning {IRACP) norms (including proviston on Standard Asset}.The impalrment allowances under Ind AS 109 made by 

Company exceeds the total Provision required under IRACP (Including dard Asset provisioning).as at March 31, 2023 and accardingly no amount is required ta be 

transferred to impairment reserve 

  

Cagital 

The Company actively manages ils capital base to cover risk inherent to its business and meets the capital adequacy requirements of the regulator, Reserve Bank of indta (RBI). 

(I) Capital management: 

Objective 

The Company's objective is to matntaln appropriate levels of capital to support Its business strategy taking into account the regulatory, economic and commercial 

environment. The Campany alms to maintain a strong capital base to support the risks inherent to Its business and Its growth strategy. The Company endeavours to maintaln 

a higher capital base than the mandated regulatory capital at all thmes. 

Planning 

The Company's assessment of capital requirement is allgned to its planned growth which forms part of an annual operating plan which is approved by the Board and also a 

long range strategy. These growth plans are aligned to assessment of risks- which include credit, liquidity and Interest rate. 

The Company endeavours to maintain its Capital Risk Adequacy Ratio (CRAR) higher than the mandated regulatory norm. Accordingly, Increase in capital is planned well in 

advance to ensure adequate funding for its growth. 

{fi} Regulatory capital 
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 

CRAR - Tler F capltal (2%) 49.94% 57.46% 
CRAR - Tier tl capital (24) 0.93% 3.85% 

CRAR (%} 50.87% G1.31% 

The CRAR is computed as per the Master Direction - Non Banking Financial Company - Systematically important Non-Deposit taking Company and Oeposit taking Company 

(Reserve Bank) Directlons, 2016 read with the circular issued by Reserve Bank of India on March 13, 2020. 

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest- 

bearing foans and borrawings. Breaches in meeting the tinancial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call ioans and borrowings. 

No changes were made in the objectives, pollcies ar processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022. 

Contingent [fabllities and commitments (te the extent not provided for} 

a, Contingent Habilitles 

As at March 32,2023 9 As at March 31, 2022 

Contingent Ifabilitles not provided In respect af: 

i, Corporate Guarantees given to banks on behalf of fellow subsidiary (note 3) 3,878.97 4,323.99 
li.Guarantees issued by bankers on behall of Company - - 

Clalms against the Company not acknowledged as debt 

|. Hncame tax (note 2) 2,26 2.26 

Notes: 
4. The Company has given corporate guarantees to banks against different facilities to ils fellow subsidiary DMI Housing Finance Private Limited of Rs. 3,878.97 million as at 

March 31, 2023 (March 31,2022: Rs. 4,329.99 million} 

2. During the previous year, the Company has received an assessment order for FY 2016-17 wherein the assessing officer has made an addition for an amount of Rs.6.42 

millions on account of disallowance of deductlan under section 80G of the Income-tax Act, 1961. The Company has appealed before Cormmissioner of Income Tax-Appeal 

{CIT(A}) against the order. This disallowance has resulted into an additional demand of Rs. 2.26 milllan but the Company has already paid the taxes more than by Rs. 2.31 

milllon therefore, the Company is nat required to pay any additional demand. In p of favourable case laws and judiclal precedents wherein similar facts have been 

addressed, the Company expects that the additional demand will be deleted by CIT (A}. Hence no provision there against ls considered necessary at this point in time as the 

IIketihood of flabiflty devaiving on the Company Is less than probable. 

  
  

b. Commitments As at March 31,2023 9 As at March 31, 2022 

Commitments for acquisition of property, plant and equipment {net of advances} 4.05 18.25 

Carmmitments for Intangible assets under development (net of advances} 2.90 - 

¢. Others 
In case of un-disbursed loan facility, the Company has sole and absolute discretion to allow or reject any further drawdown request, Hence, undrawn commitment for the 

Company are amaunting to Nil (previous year Rs. Nii}. 
Jd. The Company has other commitments, for purchase of goods and services and employee benelils, la the normal course of business. 

8. The Company did not have any long term contracts Including derivative cantracts for which there were any matetial foreseeable losses. 
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{All Amount in Rs. In millions, untess otherwise stated) 

Reconcittation of llabilities arlsing from flmoncing activities 

Particulars 

April], 2021 

Cash flows: 

> Aspayment 

- Proceeds 
Non-cash 

- Deferment / amortisation of upfront fees and other charges 

~ Additions during the year 

~ Others 

March 31, 2022 

Cash flows: 

~ Repayment 

- Proceeds 

Non-cash 

- Deferment / amortisation of upfront fees and other charges 

- Additions during the year 

- Others 

March 31, 2023 

teases 

  

Borrowings other Uabliity against teased 

  

  

  

  

Debt ities Total 
sect than debt securitles assets 

18,551.69 1,581.19 242,23 18,975.17 

- (1,077.84] (57.10) (1,134.94) 

: 8,850.00 - 8,850.00 

0.58 12.18 . 12.76 

- : 75.08 75.08 

- . 16.03 16.09 

18,552.27 8,965.53 276.36 27,794.16 

{3,219.16} (16,664.49) (70,67) {19,954.32} 

1,500.00 31,517.19 - 33,017.19 

4,80 70.28 75.08 

- - 10.27 10.27 

“ - 26.33 26,33 

16,837.91 23,888.52 242,29 40,968.72 
  

The Company has tease contracts for office and residenttal spaces taken on fease. The lzase terms are between 1 to 10 years. 

The Company also has certain tease with lease terms of 12 months or less. The Company applies the ‘short-tecm tease’ recognition exemptions lor these leases. 

The carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognized and the movements during the period are as follows: 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Balance at the beginning of the year 234.95 210.71 

Addltions made during the year 10.27 75:08 

Amartisation on right of use assets 48.87 50.84 

Balance at the. cnd of the year 196,35 234,95 

The carrying amounts of fease Habllitles and the movernents during the period are as follows: 

Particulars March 33, 2023 Morch 31, 2022 

Balance at the beginning of the year 276.36 242,29 

Additions made during the year 10.27 75.08 

Interest accretion for the year 26.33 16.09 

Payments made during the year {70.67) (57.10) 

Bafance at the end of the year 242,29 276.36 

The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 10%, with maturity ranging to 2030-31. 

The following are the amounts recognized in profit and loss : 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Depreciation expense in respect of right-of-use asset 48.87 50.84 

Interest expense in respect of lease liabilities 26,33 16.09 

Expense relating to short-term leases (included on other expenses) 10.69 458 

Total amount recognised tn profit of loss 35.89 FUSE 

The Company's total cash outflows for leases was Rs 70.67 Millions during the year (previous year Rs 57.10 Millions} 

Maturity Analysis of Lease L{abllittes 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Upte i month 427 2.65 

Over Imonth to 2 month 4.30 2.83 

Over 2 months to 3 months 4.36 3.82 

Over 3 months to 6 months 13.47 11.66 

Over 6 months to 1 year 28.37 24.02 

Over lyear to 3 years 71.63 80.24 

Over 3 years and upto 5 years 19.7% 72,20 

Over 5 years 36.18 78.94 

Total 242,29 276.36 
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Notes to the standalone financial statements 

{All Amount in Rs. in millions, unless otherwise stated) 

47 Tax expenses 

The major components of incame tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 are : 

Year ended Year ended 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Current tax 1,520.76 645.05 
Deferred tax credit (382,34) 444.32) 
income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or toss 4,138.42 203.73 

  

The major components of tax expense and its reconciliation to expected tax expense based on the enacted tax rate applicable to the Company Is 25.17% 
(March31, 2022: 25.17%) and the reparted tax expense in statement of profit and loss are as follows: 

  

Year ended Year ended 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Profit befare tax 4,378.58 781.53 
Income-tax rate 25.17% 25.17% 

Expected tax expense 1,102.00 196.70 

Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility disallowed u/s 37 4.09 4.38 
Interest paid to Associated Enterprise disallowed u/s 948 2.87 ~ 
Reversal af DTA on Interest Paid to Associated Enterprise 31.39 - 

Capital Expenditure disallowed u/s 37 0.63 2.08 
Others {2.56} 0.57 

Tax expense 1,138.42 203.73 
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(All Amount In Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated) 

48 Maturity analysis of assets and Ilabilities: 

  

  

  

  

  

    

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 

Particulars Within 12 — | After 12 months Totat Within 12 — | After 12 months Total 
months months 

ASSETS 

Financial assets 

Cash and cash equivalents §,628.39 - $,628.39 6,533.27 - 6,533.27 

Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 421.78 138.32 560.10 294,45 - 294,45 

Trade receivables 308.05 - 308.05 57,07 - $7,07 

Loans 46,041.37 21,289.96 67,331.33 30,117.80 16,683.35 46,801.15 

Investments 4,194.09 4,271.05 8,465.14 6,960.76 3,728.10 10,688.36 

Other financial assets 983.85 105.70 1,089.55 847.73 760.35 1,608.08 

Nor- financial assets 
Current tax assets (net} 185.78 . 185.78 284.74 - 284,71 

Oeferred tax assets (net) - 1,127.16 4,127.16 - 803.53 803.53 

Property, plant and equipment - 140.53 140.53 - 104,18 4104.18 

Capital work in progress - - - - 23.27 23.27 

Right to use assets $2.61 143.74 196.35 50.30 184,65 234.95 

Intangible assets - 21.66 21.66 - 314i 31.41 

Intangible assets under development - 8.78 8.78 - 

Other non- financial assets 163.42 2,24 165.66 103,56 - 103.56 

Assets held for sale 75.00 . 75.00 143.88 : 143.88 

58,054.34 27,249.14 85,303.48 45,393.S3 22,318.84 67,712.37 

| LIABILITIES AND EQUITY. 

LIABILITIES 

Financial Nabilities 

A} Trade payables 
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 8.97 - 8.97 94.79 . 94.79 

small enterprises 

{i} total outstanding dues of creditors other than 4,133.20 - 1,133.20 659,67 : 659.67 

micro enterprises and small enterprises 

8) Other payables 

{i) total outstanding dues of micra enterprises and - . - . - - 

small enterprises 

(il) total outstanding dues of creditors other than $25.06 : 525.06 379.87 - 379,87 

micro enterprises and small enterprises 

Debt securities 15,353.00 1,484,912 16,837.91 3,200.00 15,352.27 18,552.27 

Borrowings (other than debt securities} 12,123.90 41,764.61 23,888.51 3,397.96 5,567.57 8,965.53 

Lease liabilities 54,77 187.52 242.29 44.99 231.37 276.36 

Other financial liabifities 226.08 57.90 283,98 162.87 - 162.87 

Non flnanctal llabilities 

                Provisions 2.48 93.87 96,35 1,82 75.43 77,25 

Other non-financial liabilities 221.33 471 226.04 62,89 - 62.89 

Equity 
Equity share capita! - 6,567.75 6,567.75 - 6,567.00 6,567.00 

Other equity - 35,493.42 35,493.42 - 31,913.87 31,913.87 

29,648.79 55,654.69 85,303.48 8,004.86 $9,707.51 67,712.37 
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{AH Amount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated} 

Disclosure of expected credit lass and provisions required as per Income Recognition and Asset Classification norms; 

{Amount in Rs, Crores} 
  

  

  

  

  

  

        

Asset Lass Allowances Provisions Difference 
G ii it Provisi 

Asset Classification as per RBI Norms classification as ross Carrying Amaun é rovisions) as Net Carrying required as per between Ind as 
er Ind AS 109 as per Ind AS required under Ind AS Amount IRACP norms 109 provisions 

A 109 and IRACP norms 

Q) (2) (3} (4) (5)=(3)-(4) {6} (7) = (4)-{6} 
Performing Assets 

Standard Stage 1 6,892.61 164.19 6,728.42 27,57 136.62 

Stage 2 347,47 183.17 164.30 1.39 181.78 

Subtotal 7,240.08 347,36 6,882.72 28.96 318.40 

Non-Performing Assets (NPA) 

Substandard Stage 3 175.48 69.05 106.43 17.55 51,50 

Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3 - : - . - 

1 to 3 years Stage 3 95.16 91.46 3.70 28.55 42.91 

More than 3 years Stage 3 - . - - - 

Subtotal far doubtful 95,16 91.46 3.70 28.55 62.91 

Loss Stage 3 - - - 

Subtotal for NPA 270.64 160.51 110.15 46.10 114.41 

Other items such as guarantees, loan Stage 2 - - - - - 
commitments, etc. which are in the scope of ind 

AS 109 but not covered under current Income Stage 2 - - . - - 
Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning 

{IRACP) norms Stage 3 . . . . . 

Subtotal : x : : : 

Stage 1 6,892.61 164.19 6,728.42 27.57 136.62 

Total Stage Z 347.47 4183.17 164.30 1.39 ABL.78 

“e Stage 3 270.64 160.51 110.13 46.10 114.41, 
Total 7,510.72 507.87 7,002.85 75,06 432,81                 
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58 Events occurring after reporting date 

There are no significant events after the reporting period which require any adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements. 

53 Previous year/periods figures have bean regrouped/rearranged to make them comparable with the current year/period classification 
in accordance with amendments in Schedule It. 

60 There is no change in the Statutory auditor of the Company in the current year. 
61 There are no events observed after the reported period which have an impact on the Company's operation. 

62 The financial statements were approved for issue by Board of Directors an May 22 , 2023. 

For $.N. Dhawan & CO LLP 
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DMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to the standalone financial statements 

{Ail Amaunt In As. In millions, unless otherwise stated) 

Vetails of resol plan impt vied under the Resolution f k for COVID-19 related stress as per R8l circular dated August 6 2020 (Resolution Framework ~ 1.0} and May 5, 2024 (Resolution 
Framework 2.0) are given below: 

{Amount in Rs, crores} 
  

Exposure to accounts classified Exposure to accounts 

  

  

as Standard consequent to classified as Standard 

Type of borrower implementation of resolution tae eeeere jee Of (A) amount written off Of (A) amount paid by the consequent to 

plan — Position as at the end of during the year during the year borrowers during the-year implementation of resolution 

the previous year {A} March pian — Position as at the end 

34,2022 of this year March 31,2023 

Personal Inans 

OF which MSMEs 1.66 - . Las 0.31 

Others 36.71 101 5.43 16.28 13.99 

Corporate Persons* . - - : : 
Total 38.37 1.01 5.43, 17,63 14,31, 
  

*As defined in Section 3(7) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 

Disclosures pursuant to Master Direction ~ Reserve Bank of India (Transfer of Loan Exposures) Directions,2021 In terms of RBI circular ABI/DOR/2021-22 DOR.STR.REC.51/21.04.048/2021-22 dated 

September 24,2021: 

Octalts of stressed loans transferred during the year ended March 31,2023   
  

Particulars ToARCs To permitted transferees 

No. of accounts No's 1 8783 

Aggregate principal outstanding of loans transferred Rs.crores 15.41 32.54 

. Weighted average residual tenor of the loans transferred 5 - . 

Net book value of loans transferred (at the time of transfer} Rs.crores 4,02 - 

Aggregate consideration Rs.crores 6.99 2.67 
Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred In earlfer years . - 

  

  Details of toans acquired during the year From tenders * From ARCS 

Aggregate principal outstanding of loans acquired Rs.crores - - 

. Aggregate consideration paid Rs.crores + - 
i. Weighted average residual tenar of loans acquired - - 

* Lenders listed in clause 3 of the Reserve Bank of India (Transfer of Loan Exposures) Directions,2021 In terms of RBI circular RBI/DOR/2021-22 DOR.STR.REC.S1/21.04.048/2021-22 dated September 

24,2021: 

Olsclosure on significant rattos: 
  

  

Particulars Description Asat Asat 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Debt-Equity Ratio [(Debt securities+ Borrowings (other than Debt Securities}} / Total equity 0.97 0.72 

Net profit margin Net profit after tax / total revenue from operations 19.79% 6.48% 

Total debts to total assets {(Debt securities+ Borrowings {other than Debt Securities}] / Total assets 47.74% 40.64% 

Gross Non-Pertorming Assets Gross Stage Ill loans EAD / Gross total loans EAD 3.60% 2.18% 

(Gross Stage IN Joans EAD - tmpairment loss allowance for Stage Itt} / {Gross total loans . 4 
Net Non-Performing Assets EAD-Impairment loss allowance for Stage ill } 1.50% 0.31% 

Asset cover ratio (number of times)* Amount of secured assets / Secured debt 1,28 1.73 

Provision coverage ratio (%} {Impaitment loss allowance for Stage fil / Gross Stage ill [oans EAD } 59.31% 85.13% 
  

* Asset Cover ratio is given for listed nan convertible debt securities only. 

Other Statutory Information 

Ouring the current financial year, Company has not undertaken any transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section S60 of Companies Act, 1956, 

. Penalties imposed by the regulator during the financtal year ended 31 March, 2023 are mentioned (n Note 54, 

. There are no such transaction which are not recorded in the books of account earlier and have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the current financial year in the tax assessments under the 

Income tax act, 1961, 

. The Company has not traded or invested In Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year. 

. The Company has not received any fund fram any person or entity, Including fareign entity (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise} that the Company shall: 

{a) directly or indirectly lend or invest In other persons or entitles identified In any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries} or 

(b} provide any guarantee, security of the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

. The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s} or entity{ies}, including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the intermediary shall 

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest In other persons or entities identified In any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like te or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries, 

The Company, as part of its normal business, grants loans and advances, makes investment, provides guarantees to and accept deposits and borrowings from its customers, other entitles and persons. 

These tr ons are part of Company's normal non-banking finance busi which is conducted ensuring adherence to all regulatory requirements, 

Other than the transactions described above, no funds have been advanced ar loaned or Invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to 

or in any other person(s) or entity{les}, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”} with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall lend or invest In party 

identified by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Geneficlartes}. The Company has not recelved any fund from any party(s} (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Company shall whether, 

directly or indirectly lend or invest In other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries. 
The Company has complied with the aumber of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 for the financial years ended 

March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022. 

  

. The Company does nat possess any immovable property {other than properties where the Campany {s the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed In favour of the lessee) whose title deeds are 

not held in the name of the Company during the financial year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022. 

. There are no transactions of undisclosed income not recorded in the books of accounts. 

The Company has utilised the funds raised from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which they were berrawed, 
if. Tha Company has not been declared as wilful detaulter by any of banks, financial institution or any other lander. 

No proceedings have been initlated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benam! Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder in 

the financial years ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022. 
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DMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to the standalone financial statements 

{All Amount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated} 

Liquidity risk 

Public Disclosure on Liquidity Risk for the year ended March 31, 2023 pursuant to RBI circular dated November 04, 2019 on Liquidity Risk Management Framework for Non-Banking Financial 

Companies and Core investment Companies 

  

  

Funding concentration based on significant counterparty (refer note 1 below} (Amount In Rs. crores} 

Number of counterparties =A tr % of Total % of Total Number of significant counterparties jum Pi moun deposits abilities 

As at 31 March 2023 15 3,926.68 - 90.81% 

As at 31 March 2022 12 2,737.79 . 93,66% 

*Accrued interest but not due and unamortised transaction costs are included in borrowings. 

*Above mentioned amount includes borrowing through PTC amounting to Rs 291.20 Cr, which has been considered as a single counterparty. 

Top 20 large deposits 
There are no deposits accepted by the Campany during the year as Company is non-deposit taking NBFC, 

  

  

Top 10 borrowings {Amount in Rs. crores} 
Total 

amountof Percentage of amount of top 

top 10 10 borrowings to total 

borrowings barrowings 
* 

As at 31 March 2023 3,655.29 89.13% 

As at 31 March 2022 2,680.51 96.84% 

*accrued interest but not due and unamortised transaction costs are included in borrowings. 

*Above mentioned amount includes borrowing through PTC amounting to Rs 291.20 Cr, which has been considered as a single counterparty. 

  

  

  

Funding Concentration based on significant Instrument/product {refer note 2 below) (Amount in Rs, crores) 

As at March 31, 2023 Ais at March 31, 2022 
Nature of significant Instrument/product % of Total % of Total 

, Amount® —wabitttes AOU? sbttties 
Non-convertible debentures 1,704.64 39.42% 1,870.87 64.00% 

Term loans 2,085.57 47,54% 872.35 29.84% 

PTC borrowings 291.20 6.73% - - 
Cash Credit 49.63 ‘1.15% - - 

Total 4,101.04 94.84% 2,743.22 93.84% 
  
*Accrued interest but not due and unamortised transaction costs are included in borrowings. 

  

  

Stock ratios: (Amount in Rs. crores} 

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 
Particulars % ofTotal %ofTotal % of Total % of Total % of Total % of Tatal 

Amount Amount 
publicfunds _ llabilltles assets public funds Wabilities assets 

  

  

Commercial papers : - . : - - - 
Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year} - - . - - - - : 

Other short-term liabilities (refer note 20 and note 3 below) 245,26 5.98% 5.67% 2.88% 248,43 8.30% 8.50% 3,67% 

  

  

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 
Total public funds (refer note 4 below) 4,101.04 2,991.65 
Total liabilities _ 4,324.23 2,923.15 
Total assets 8,530.35 6,771.24 

Note 

1) Significant counterparty is defined as a single counterparty or group of connected or affiliated counterparties accounting in aggregate for more than 1% of the NBFC-NDSI's, NBFC-Ds total 

liabilities as defined in RBI Circular RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC.No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated November 4, 2019 on Liquidity Risk Management Framework far Non-Banking Financial 
Companies and Core Investment Companies. 

2) Significant instrument/product is defined as a single instrument/praduct of group of similar instruments/ products which in aggregate amount to more than 1% of the NBFC-NDSI's, NBFC-Ds 
total fiabillties, as defined in R8I Circular RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC.No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated November 4, 2019 on Liquidity Risk Management Framework for Non-Banking 
Financlal Companies and Core tnvestment Companies. 

3} Other short-term liabilities include ail short-term borrowings other than Commercial papers and Nanconvertible debentures with original maturity less than one year. 

4} Public funds Include funds raised elther directly or indirectly through public deposits, inter-corporate deposits (except from associate}, deposits from corporates (except from associate}, bank 
finance and all funds received from outside sources such as funds raised by issue of Commercial Papers, debentures etc. but excludes funds raised by issue of instruments compulsorily convertible 
into equity shares within a period not exceeding 5 years from the date of issue, as defined in Master Olrectian - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking 
Company and Oeposit taking Company (Reserve Bank} Direction, 2016, 

institutional set-up for lguidity risk management 

Refer note $1(A): Risk management structure and 51(B) Liquidity risk and funding management for institutional set-up for liquidity risk management. 
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DMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes ta the standalone financlal statements 

(Alt Amount In Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated) 

(XXV) Disclosure of complaints 

4) 

2} 

Summary Information on complaints recelved by the NBFCs from customers and from the Offices of Ombudsman 

  

S.no_Particulars * : 
A, Complzints received by the NBFC fram its customers 

1. Number af complaints pending at beginning of the year 3 3? 

il, Number of complaints received during the year 7794 3778 

Ut, Number of complaints disposed during the year 7724 9812 

Of which, number of campiaints rejected by the NBFC - . 

iv. Number of complaints pending at the end of the year 73 3 

8. Matntainable complaints received by the NBFC from Office of Ombudsman 

Number of maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from Office of 

Ombudsman 571 5B2 
Of (jj), number of complaints resolved in favour of the NBFC by Office of 

Ombudsman 571 582 

Of {i}, number of complaints resolved through concillation/mediation/advisories 

issued by Office of Ombudsman 0 a 
Of {l), number of complaints resolved after passing of Awards by Office of 

Ombudsman against the NBFC 0 0 

il, Number of Awards unimplemented within the stipulated time {other than those 

appealed) NA NA 

Note: Maintalnable complaints refer to complaints on the grounds specifically mentianed in Integrated Ombudsman Scheme, 2021 (Previously The Ombudsman 

Scheme for Non-Banking Financial Companies, 2018} and covered within the ambit of the Scheme. 

Top flve grounds of complaints recelved by the NBFCs from customers 

  

  

  

  

  

  

Number of % Increase] 
complaints Number of decrease in the Number of Number of 

pending at the complal ber of complaints compl 
Sno Grounds of complaints beginning of the recelved during complaints pending at the end pending beyond 30 

year the year received over the of the year days 

previous year 

March 31,2023 

i. Incarrect CIBIL updated 2 1,630 {53.63%) 4 - 

ii. Charged extra fee . 2,066 7.66% 40 - 
ili, Payment not updated 3 3,592 3.34% 24 - 

iv. Bounce charges related . 7 {65.49%} 2 - 
v. Collection related . 294 20.99% 3 - 

vi, Other complaints : 140 (64.01%) : - 
3 7,794 73 : 

March 33,2022 

1 Aneorrect CIBIL updated 6 3515 103,06% 2 - 

i. Charged extra fee 6 1919 NA - - 
il, Payment not updated 4 3476 NA 1 - 

iv, Bounce charges related 2 236 NA - > 

v. Collection related 12 243 305.00% - - 
vi. Other complaints 6 389 548,33% - - 

36 59778 3 - 
  

   



XXIV) Sectoral Exposure 

DMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to the standalone financial statements 

{All Amount in Rs. in millions, unless otherwise stated) 

  

S.No Sectors As at March 31,2023 

Totat Exposure 

(Rs. crore)* 

1 Agriculture and Allied Activities 

2 Industry 

(i) Real Estate 

(il) Manufacturing and Services 
iil] Micro small and medium 

enterprises 

(iv) Others 

Gross NPAs {Rs. Percentage of Total Exposure 

Gross NPAs to (Rs. crore}* 

total exposure in 

that sector 

As at March 31,2022 

Gross NPAs (2 Percentage of 

Gross NPAs to 

total expasure in 

that sector 

  

Total of Industry 
  

3 Services 

(i) Financlal Services 

(ii) Others 
  

Total of Services 
  

4 Personal Loans 

(i) Term Loans 
{li} Others (Consumer durables and 

credit Hlnes} 
  

Total of Personal Loans 
  

§ Others 

  

Grand Total (142+3+4+5) 

1,128.23 254.26 22.54% 1,381.41 112.68 B.16% 

391.02 . - 596,61 + - 

$8.15 0.17 0.30%. §4.27 0.18 0.33% 

75.03 5.00 6.66% 68.73 . - 

1,652.43 259.43 15.70% 2,101.02 4112.86 8.49% 

5.04 - - - . : 

5.04 . . . . 0.00% 

3,071.47 8.51 0.28% 1,570.97 6.09 0.38% 

2,781.78 2,69 0.10% 1,759.52 0.67 0.04% 

5,883.25 11.20 0.19% 3,330.49 6.76 0.43% 

7,510.72 270.63 15.89% 5,431.51 119.62 8.91% 
  

* Total exposure includes investment In credit substitues. 

 



DMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to the standalone financial statements 
(All Arnaunt in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated} 

XVIH) Disclosure relating te Securitization 

As required in terms of paragraph 116 of Master Direction ~ Reserve Bank of india (Securitisation of Standard Assets) Directions, 2021 

{Amount in Rs. crores} 
S.No Particulars Ason Asan 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

No of SPEs holding assets for securitisation transactions originated by the originator 4 . 

1 (only the 5PVs relating to outstanding securitization exposures to be reported here} 

2 Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPEs 374.85 - 

Total amount of exposures retained by the originator to comply with MRR as on the date of 
balance sheet 

a Off Balance Sheet Exposure 
{i} First Loss - - 

{ii) Others . - 

b On Balance Sheet Exposure 

{} First Loss $2.28 - 
{ti} Others 84,55 - 

4 Arnount of exposures to securitisation transactions other than MRR 

a Off Balance Sheet Exposure 
{i} Exposure to own securitisations 

First Loss . - 
Others - - 

(ti) Exposure to third party securitisations 

Fitst Loss . . 
Others : - 

b On Balance Sheet Exposure 

(i) Exposure to own securitisations 
First Loss . . 

Others - - 
{ii} Exposure to third party securitisations 

First Loss . - 

Others . . 

Sale consideration received for the securitised assets 555.02 - 
Gain/ioss on sale on account of securitisation - 

wn
 

a Form and quantum {outstanding value) of services provided by way of, liquidity support, post- : : 

securitisation asset servicing, etc. 

~ Performance of facility provided . . 

Please provide separately for each facility viz. Credit enhancement, liquidity support, servicing 

agent etc, Mention percent in bracket as of total value of facility provided. 

{a} Amount paid 

{b) Repayment received 

{c} Outstanding amount 

Average default rate of portfolios observed in the past, Please provide breakup separately far - . 

each asset class |.e, RMBS, Vehicle Loans ete 

Amount and number of additianal/top up loan given on same underlying asset. Please provide - - 

breakup separately for each asset class }.e. RM&S, Vehicle Laans etc oe
 

20 investor complaints (a) Directly/indirectly received and; (b) Complaints outstanding NA NA 

XIX) Loans to Directors, Senlor Officers and relatives of Directors 

As required in terms of paragraph 7 of Loans and Advances — Regulatory Restrictions - NBFCs 
(Amount in Rs, crores} 

Sr. No. Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
1 Directors and thelr relatives - - 
2 Entities associated with directors and their relatives : - 
3. Senior Officers (including KMP) and their relatives - - 

XX) Details of Related party transactions are given in Note 40. 

XXt) There is no financing to Parent Company product in current and previous year, 

XXH} There is no postponement af revenue recognition in current and previous year. 

XXHI} There is no drawdown from reserves in current and previaus year. 

   



DMI Finance Private Limited 
Notes to the standatone financial statements 

{All Amount in Rs. in millions, unless otherwlse stated) 

Amount Outstanding 

Assets side {March 31,2023} 

  

Long Term Invesiments** 

2 Quoted 

(i) Shares 

{A} Equity 

(8) Preference - 
(ii) Debentures and Bonds . 

(ili) Units of Mutual Funds - 

(iv) Government Securities . 

{¥} Others (Please specify} - 

2  Unquoted 

(i) Shares 

{A} Equity 68.65 

{8) Preference 2,20 

(ii) Debentures and Bands 199.83 

{ili} Units of Mutual Funds : 
{iv} Government Securities > 

{v) Others - Units of Alternative Investment Fund and investment in pass through certificate 156.42 

& Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (3) and (4) above: 
  

  

Category Amount net of provision 
Secured Unsecured Total 

a Subsidiaries . . - 

b Companies in the same group - - - 

c other related parties - - . 

Other than related parties 939.38 5,793.76 6,735.13 

Total 

7 Investar group-wise classiftcation of all Investments (current and long term) in shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted} 

  

Book value {net 

  

  

  

Category Market Value of provisions} # 

Related Party 

a Subsidiaries 61.25 87.33 
b Companies in the same group 0.77 0.77 

c Other related parthes : . 

Other than related partles 896,22 758.41 

Total 958,23 846.51 

8 Other information 
Particulars Amount 
Gross Non Parlorming Assets 

a Related parties - 

b, Other than related parties 270.63 

Net Non Performing Assets 

a Related parties : 

b, Other than related parties 110.13 

* Net of impairment Joss allowance 

+* The Company has not disclosed the breakup of investment Into long term investment and current investment as the classification Is not 

required under Indian Accounting Standards Issued by MCA for NBFCs. 

# Book vafue Is carrying value as per IND AS 

   



DMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to the standalone financial statements 

(All Amount in Rs, In miflions, unless otherwise stated) 

XVil) Schedule te the Balance Sheet 

As cequired in terms of paragraph 19 of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically important Non Deposit taking 

Campany and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 

{Amount in Rs. crores) 
  

  

S.No Particulars Amount Outstanding Amount 

Uabliities side {March 31,2023} Overdue 

1 Loans and advances availed by the NBFC Inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not 

paid: 
a Oebentures : Secured 207.66 . 

Debentures : Unsecured 1,496.98 - 

{other than fatling within the meaning of public deposits*) . : 

6 Deferred Credits - - 

¢ Term Loans 2,056.49 : 
d Inter corporate loans and borrowings . : 

e Commercial Paper - - 

& Public Deposit . . 
g Other loans {lease liability, Cash credit & Securitization) 364,14 : 

2 Break-up of (1)(f) above (Outstanding public deposits Inclusive of Interest accrued thereon but 
not paid) 

a Inthe form of Unsecured debentures . : 

b In the form of partly secured debentures i.e, debentures where there is a shortfall in the . . 

value of security 

«Other public deposits - . 

  

  

Amount Outstanding 
Assets glde (March 31,2023} 

3. Break-up of Loans and Advances Including bills recelvables (net} * 
a Secured 939.38 

b Unsecured 5,793.76 

4 Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards asset financing 
4 Lease assets including fease rentals under sundry debtors . 

{a} Financial lease . 
{b} Operating lease . 

2 Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors . 

{a) Assets on hire 
{b} Repossessed Assets . 

3 Other Joans counting towards asset financing activities . 

{a) Loans where assets have been repossessed - 

{b) Loans other than (a) above . 

S Break up of investments 

Currant investments 

1 Quoted - 
di) Shares . 

(A) Equity . 

(8) Preference - 
(ii) Oebentures and Bonds : 

(18) Units of Mutual Funds . 
tiv) Government Securities - 

(v} Others (Please specify} . 

2  Unquated 
(Shares 

tA) Equity 114.89 
(8) Preference 38.56 

(li} Debentures and Bonds 69.88 

lif} Units of Mutual Funds . 
{iv} Government Securitles - 

{v} Others - investment in pass through certificates 196.08 

   



x} 

x) 

xt) 

xu} 

xtil) 

xiv) 

wv) 

xvi} 

DMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to the standalone financial statements 

(All Amount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated) 

Concentration of Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs 

Concentratian of Deposits 

Concentration of Advances 

Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers 

Percentage of Advances to twenty largest borrowers to Total Advances 

Concentration of Exposures 

Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers / customers 

Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers to Total Exposure of the borrowers / customers 

Concentration of NPAs** 
Total Exposure ta top four NPA accounts 

**Represent Stage til loans Including interest 

Movement of NPAs 

Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) * 

Movement of NPAs {Gross} 

Opening balance 

Additions during the year 

Reductions during the year 

Closing balance 

Movement of Net NPAs 

Opening balance 

Additions during the year 

Reductions during the year 

Closing balance 

Movernent of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on standard assets} 

Opening balance 

Provisions made during the year 

Write-off / weite-back of excess provisions 

Closing balance 
* Net Advances are taken net of provisions against Stage 3 assets 

Overseas Assets (for those with Joint Ventures and Subsidiaries abroad) 
The Company does not have any Joint Venture or Subsidiary abroad, therefore no details to be reported 

Gff- Balance sheet SPVs sponsored 
The Company does not have any Off- Balance sheet SPV, therefore no details to be reported 

Disclosure of Gold Loan Portfollo 
Total Gald Loan Portfolio 
Total Assets 
Gold toan portfolio as % of Tatal Assets 

Disclosure of Gold Auction 

Number of loan aecounts 
Outstanding Amount 

Value fetched on auctions 

Details of Off balance shect exposure 

Refer note 44 for details of contingent liabilities and commitments 

Loan accounts past due 90 days and not treated as tmpalred 

Number of loan accounts 

Loan outstanding 
Overdue Amount 

  

(Amount in Rs. crores) 

March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022 

1,266.15 1,502.33 

16.86% 27.68% 

1,266.15 4,502.33 

16.86% 27.68% 

232.79 106.54 

(Amount in Rs. crares} 

  

4.50% 0.31% 

419.62 142.35 
367.72 6.94 
16.74 29.67 

270.63 119.62 

16.60 53.59 
(216.65) (454.21) 
(310,20) (114.21) 
140.13 16.60 

103.02 88.76 
384.38 158.45 

326.91 143.88 

  

103,02 

  



DM Finance Private Limited 

Nates to the standalone financial statements 

{Ail Amount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated) 

Vi} Exposures 
A Exposure to Real Estate Sector 

(Amount in &s. crores) 

Category March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 
a) Direct Exposure (Includes loans and credit subsututes) 

i) Residential Mortpages - 

Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that fs or will be occupied by the borrower or that is rented $4.45 49.74 

ii} Commercial Real Estate - 
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates (office bulldings, retall space, multipurpose commercial premises, multi- 4,428,29 1,389.09 
family residential buildings, multl-tenanted commercial premises, Industria! or warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, 

development and construction, etc.}. Exposure would also include non-fund based limits 

ii} investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitized exposures - 

Resldential - . 
Commercial Real Estate : - 

b} Indirect Exposure 387.90 433.00 
*This includes corporate guarontee given to DM! Housing Finance Pvt Led 

Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector * 1,570.64 1,871.83 
“includes exposure to sub-standards ossets as well 

B Exposure to Capital Market 

Category 

{i} direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units of equity-orlented mutual funds the 441.29 428.72 

corpus of which is not exclusively invested Ih corporate debt; 

{il} advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securitles or on clean basis to Individuals for investment in shares - 

{including IPOs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of equlty-oriented mutual funds; 

{tl} advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual 184,31 $73.66 

funds are taken as primary security; 

{iv) advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security of shares or convertible bonds or convertible : 

debentures or units of equity orlented mutual funds Le. where the primary security other than shares / convertible bonds / 

convertible debentures / units of equity oriented mutual funds ‘does not fully cover the advances: 

{v) secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers and market makers; - : 

{vi} loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds / debentures or ather securities or on clean basis for - - 

meeting promoter's cantribution to the equity of new companies in anticipation of ralsing resources; 

(vii) bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues; 

(viii) Underwriting commitments taken up by the NBFCs in respect of primary issue of shares or convertible bonds or convertible - - 

debentures or units of equity orlented mutual funds 

{ix} Financing to stockbrokers for margin trading 

{x} All exposures to Alternative Investment Funds: 
{i) Category I 

{lt} Category Hl 0.89 0,89 

(if} Category HI - - 

Total Exposure to Capital Market 596.45 1,003.27 

c Details of financing of parent company products 

The Company has not financed any parent company product during the current year and previous year . . 

D Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGU) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the NBFC 
The Company has not exceeded any slngle or group borrower limits during the FY 2022-23 and FY 2021-22 as per prescribed RBI - . 

guidelines therefore no details are belng provided 

£ Unsecured Advances 

The Company has not granted unsecured advances against collateral of intangible securities such as charge over the rights, licenses or authority. 

Additional Disclosures 
VH} = Provisions and contingencies 

Break up of ‘Provisions and Contingencies’ shown under the head expenditure In Statement Profit and Loss 

Provisions for depreciation on investment {39.60} 91.81 

Provision towards NPA 54,26 7431 

Provision made towards income tax 152.08 64.51 
Provision made towards deferred tax {32.36} (65,24) 

Other provision and contingencles 
Provision for gratuity 0.78 0.98 

Provision for compensated absences 4.35 1.0? 

Provision for Standard Assets 386.56 261.26 

Vij = Draw Down from Resarves 
The Company has not draw downed any amount from the Reserves during the current year and previous year 
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DMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to the standalone financial statements 

{All Amount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated) 

lv} Information namely, area, country of operation and joint venture partners with regard to Joint ventures and overseas subsidiaries 

The Company has its main operations in India situated In Delhi/NCR and also has offices situated in Mumbai, Bengaluru, Noida, Gurugram and Kolkata. The Company has not 
entered into any Joint ventures and does not have any overseas subsidiaries. 

I) Capital to risk assets ratio (CRAR} 
Partteulars Numerator Denominator 

f) CRAR (%} Adjusted Tier | and Tier It Risk weighted assets 

ti} CRAR- Tier | capital (%} Adjusted Tier I Capital Risk weighted assets 

Ht} CRAR- Tier | capital (%) Adjusted Tier tI Capital Risk weighted assets 

iv) Amount of subardinated debt raised as 

v} Amount ralsed by Issue of Perpetual Debt instruments 

Basis of Ratlos 

a, Adjusted Tier I Capltal # 
b, Adjusted Tier II Capital # 

Total Capitat 
tt Net of first loss credit enhancement of As. 26.14 crores on pass through certificate 

(Previous Year: Nil} 

c. Risk weighted assets 

fl) Investments 
Particulars 

1) Vatue of Investments " 
i) Gross Value of [nvestments {at cost)* 

a) In india 

b} Outside India 

i) Provisions for Depreciation** 

a} In india 
b) Outside India 

it) Net Value of Investments 

a) In India 
b) Outside India 

2) Mavement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments. 
1) Opening Balance 
ii) Add: Provisions made during the year 

iH} Less : Write-off / write-back of excess provisions during the year 
iv) Closing Balance 

  

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

50.87% 61.31% 

49,94% 57.46% 

0.93% 3.85% 

Year ended 31st (Amount in Rs. crores) 

  

  

  

March 2023 Year ended 31st March 2022 

3,899.74 3,571.77 

72.29 235.45 

3,972.03 3,811.22 

7,808,70 6,216.50 

March 31, 2023 

938.23 

111,72 

846.51 

151.32 

(33.60) 
441,72 

{Amount in Rs. crores} 

March 31, 2022 

4,220.20 

151.32 

1,068.89 

53.51 

91.81 

151.32 

*The Company has investment in FVOCI, FVTPL and Amortised Cost category, the fair valuation of which ts included in the gross value of Investment. 

**Provision of depreciation comprises of Impairment loss allowance on the investments, 

# Investments Include credit substituas and pass through certificate. 

Ii} Gerivatives 

» 

The derivatives do not include embedded derviatives as per IND AS 109, r 

. Exchange Traded Interest Rate (IR) Oerivatives fn 

The Company has not dealt in derivatives during the FY 2022-23 and FY 2021-22, therefore no details are to be disclosed 

The Campany have no dealings in exchange traded Interest rate derivatives during the FY 2622-23 and FY 2021-22, therefore no details are to be disclosed. 

a . Disclosures an Risk Exposure In Derivatives 

The Company does not deal in derivatives therefore no details are to be disclosed, 

 



DMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to the standalone financial statements 

(All Amount In Rs. in millions, unless otherwise stated) 

53 Disclosures in accordance with RB! circular no. DNBR {PD} CC.N0.002/03.10.001/2014-15 dated November 10, 2014 and subsequent circular no. ONSR (PD) CC.No. 029/ 

Q3.10.002/ 2014-15 dated April 16, 2015 and amendments thereof 

Registratlon/ license/ authorization, by whatever name called, obtained from other financtal sector regulators; 

The Company is a private limited company registered with Reserve Bank of India as a Non- banking finance company vide certificate of registration no. 14.03176 dated January 5, 

2003 

Ratings assigned by eredit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year; 
During the year the following ratings have been assigned to the Company 

{Amount in Rs, crores} 
  

Name of the rating agency Amount Rating Type of facitity 
At the beginaing 

of year 
Change during Year Remarks 

  

Brickwork Ratings Withdrawn Bank Loan- Fund Based- 

Tem Loan 

BWR AA-/Stable Withdrawn Withdrawn on July 5, 2022. 

  

Brickwork Ratings $0.00 BWR AA-(Stable} Non-convertible 

debentures 

BWR AA-(Stable] No Change Reaffirmed on July 5, 2022. 

  

CARE Ratings 

CARE Ratings 

ICRA Ratings 

285.00 

50.00 

300.00 

CARE AA-; Stable 

CARE AA-; Stable 

ficRAJAi+ 

Long-term bank facilities 

Long Term Insteurnents 

Non-convertible 
dehentures. 

Commercial paper 

CARE AA-; Stable 

NA 

{ICRAJAL+ 

Na Change 

Newly Assigned 

No Change 

Rating Reaffirmed on January 05, 2023 

Rating Reaffizmedon March 23,2023 | 
New Rating [CARE]AA- {Scable}; Assigned on 

January 05, 2023 

Rating Rea 

Rating Reaffirmed on Apri} 18, 2622 

Rating Reaffirmed on September 02, 2022 

Rating Reaffirmed on October 18, 2022 

Rating Reaffirmed on February 24,2023 

  

ICRA Ratings 100.00 [ICRAJAA- (Stable) Non-convertible 

debentures 

{ICRAJAA- (Stable) No change Rating Reaflirmed on April 18, 2022 

Rating Reaflirmed on September 02, 2022 

Rating Reaftirmed on October 18, 2022 

Rating Reaffirmed on February 24,2023 

  

ICRA Ratings 3,962.00 {ICRAJAA- (Stable) Long term fund based 

bank facilities 

[ICRA}AA- (Stable) No change Rated amount enhanced fram Rs. 750 

Crores to Rs, 1350 Crores on April 18,2022; 

(ICRAJAA: {Stable}; assigned/reatfirmed 

Rated amount enhanced from As. 1350 
Crores to Rs. 3850 Crores on September 02 

12022; (ICRA]AA- (Stable); 

assigned/reaffirmed 

Rating Reaffirmed on October 18, 2022 
Rated amount enhanced (rom Rs. 3850 

Crores to Rs, 3962 Crores on February 24, 

2023; (ICRAJAA- (Stable); 

assigned/reaffirmed 
  

ICRA Ratings 200.00 PP-MLD [ICRAJAA- 

{Stable} 

Long-term Market Linked 

Debentures 

NA Newly Assigned New Rating of PP-MED[ICRAJAA- (Stable); 

Assigned on October 18, 2022 

Rating Reaffirmed on February 24,2023 
  

ICRA Ratings 97.88 [ICRAJAAA(SO} PTC Series A (MOST-I} NA Newly Assigned New Rating of Provisional |ICRAJAA+ (SO); 

Assigned on June 30, 2022 

{ICRA]AA+t (SO) Provisional rating confirmed 

as final on Nayvember 11, 2022 

Rating upgraded from [ICRAJAA+ (SO} ta 

{ICRA]AAA (SO} on February 16, 2023 

  

ICRA Ratings 90.53 [ICRAJAA(SO} PTC Series Al (PLUM-I} NA Newly Assigned New Rating of Provisional [ICRAJAA (SO); 

Assigned on fanuary 04, 2023 

[ICRAJAA (S0} Provisional rating confirmed 

  

ICRA Ratings 77.22 [ICRAIAA(SO} PTC Serles At {PLUM-II) NA Newly Assigned 

as 
New Rating of Provisional [ICRAJAA (SO); 

Assigned on January 02, 2023 

{ICRAJAA (SO} Pravisional rating confirmed 

  
ICRA Ratings   149.12 {ICRAJAA(SO) PTC Series Ai (PLUM-Itl) NA Newly Assigned 

as 
New Rating of Provisional [ICRAJAA (SO); 

Assigned on March 16, 2023     

lid) Penalties, if any, levied by any regulator; 
The following penalties were Imposed on the campany during financial year 2022-23: 

1) The Stock Exchange {BSE Limited) Imposed a penallty of Rs. 12,980 under Regulation 13(3) of SEAI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for 

2) A Late Submission Fee (LSF) of Rs. 31,165 wes Imposed by the Reserve Bank of india under Regulation 5 FEMA (Non-Debt} Regulation 2019 on June 9, 2022 

3} A Late Submission Fee (LSF) of Rs. 5,444 was imposed by the Reserve Bank of India under Regulation S FEMA (Non-Debt) Regulation 2019 on May 10, 2022 

4} A Late Submission Fee (LSF) of Rs. 40,000 was imposed by the Reserve Bank of india under Regulation 5 FEMA {Non-Debt} Regulation 2019 an luiy 12, 2022 

5} The Stock Exchange (BSE Limited) imposed a penality of Rs. 5,64,040 under Regulation S4 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements} Regulations, 2015 for 

quarter ended June 30, 2021, 

 



DMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to the standalone financial statements 

(All Amount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated) 

These includes Credit substitutes & corporate loans. The fair values of such instruments are estimated using a discounted cash flow model based on 

contractual cash flows using actual or estimated yields and discounting by yields incorporating the counterparties’ credit risk. These instrument are 

classified in Level 3. 

Assets and liabilities other than above 

The carrying value of assets and liabilities other than investments and borrowings at amortised cost represents a reasonable approximation of fair value 

   



DMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to the standalone financial statements 

{All Amount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated) 

Sensitivity of fair value measurements to changes in unobservable market data 

The table below describes the effect of a 10% movement in the significant unobservable input. 

All changes, except for financial instruments at FVOCI would be reflected in Statements of Profit and Loss. 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Favourable Unfavourable Favourable Unfavourable 

Particulars changes changes changes changes 

Instruments measured through FVTPL 

Compulsorily convertible preference shares in OMI Capital Private Limited 38.56 (38.56) 36.38 (36.38) 

Compulsorily convertible debentures of Azad Engineering Private Limited . . 63.14 (63.14) 

Equity shares of Azad Engineering Private Limited 22.70 (22.70) - - 

Investment in pass through certificate 351.53 (351.53) - . 

Tatal (A) 412.79 (412.79) 99,52 (99.52) 

instruments measured through FVTOCI 

Equity shares in DMI Consumer Credit Private Limited 0.35 {0.35} 0.34 (0.34) 

Equity shares in Alchemist Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 21.58 (21.58) 21.58 (21.58) 

Credit Substitutes 53.74 (53.74) 51.42 (51.42) 

Non-convertible debentures - unquoted 13.78 (13.78) 36.79 (36.79) 
Compulsory convertible debentures of Biorad Medisys Private Limited 60.03 (60.03} - - 

Equity shares in Flash Electronics Private Limited 81,90 (81.90) 79.40 (79.40) 

Compulsory convertible debentures of Flash Electronics Private Limited 156.00 (156.00) 114.81 (1414.81) 

Equity shares in Radiant Polymers 10,01 (10.01) . - 

Units of DMI AIF Special Opportunities Scheme 0.97 (8.97) 1.01 (1.01) 

Total (B) 398.36 (398.36) 305.35 (305.35) 

Total (A+B) 811.16 (811.16) 404.87 (404.87} 
  

The above analysis has been made without considering the impact of tax. 

Fair value of financial instruments not measured at fair value 
Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair values of the Company’s financial instruments that are not carried at fair value 

in the financial statements. This table does not include the fair values of non~financial assets and non-financial liabilities. 

  

  

  

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Financial assets: Fair value Carrying value Fair value Carrying value 

Loans and advances 

Corporate loans 9,322.71 9,322.71 13,120.52 13,120.52 - 

Investments ~ at amortised cost 

Credit Substitutes 447.94 447,94 758.25 758.25 

Financial liabilities: 

Debt securities 16,837.91 16,837.91 18,553.00 18,553.00 

The carrying value of the financial instruments is near to the fair value, accordingly, the same has been considered for the disclosure above. 

Valuation methodologles of financial instruments not measured at fair value 
Below are the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for the above financial instruments which are not recorded and measured 

at fair value in the company’s financial statements. These fair values were calculated for disclosure purposes only. The below methodologies and 

assumptions relate only to the instruments in the above tables. 

Borrowings - At Amortised cast 

These includes Term Loans. The fair values of such liabilities are estimated using a discounted cash flow model based on contractual cash flows using 

actual or estimated yields and discounting by yields incorporating the counterparties’ credit risk. These instrument are classified in Level 3. 

Investments - At amartised cost 

 



DMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to the standalone financial statements 

{All Amount ia Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated) 

impact on fair value of level 3 financial Instruments measured at fair value of changes to key assumptians 
The table summarises the valuation techniques together with the significant unobservable inputs used to caleulate the fair value of the Company's level 3 assets 

and liabilities. 

  

March 31, 2023 Fair value of Level Vaiuation technique Significant unobservable inputs 

  

  

  

  

  

3 assets 

Computsorily convertible preference shares in OMI Capita! Private 

Limited 385.56 Net Worth of Investee Company fnstrument price 

Equity shares in DMI Consumer Credit Private Limited 3.48 Net Worth of Investee Company instrument price 

Compulsory convertible debentures of Biorad Medisys Private 600.27 Discounted Projected Cash Flows fnstrument price 
Limited 

Equity shares In Alchernist Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 215.76 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Olscount margin / spread 

Credit Substitutes 537.43 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Discount margin / spread 

Equity shares in Flash Electronics Private Limited 818.97 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Instrument price 

Compulsory convertible debentures of Flash Electronics 1,560.00 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Discount margin / spread 

Non-convertible debentures - unquoted 137.80 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Discount.margin / spread 

Equity shares In Azad Engineering Private Limited 227.04 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Discount margin / spread 

Equity shares in Radiant Palymers Private Limited 100.10 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Discount margin / spread 

Units of OMI AIF Special Opportunities Scherne 9.73 Assets under management of units of instrument price 

respective class of investee Fund 

Investment in pass through certificate 3,515.31 Net Asset Value of investee Company Instrument price 

Total 8,111.45 

March 31, 2022 Fair vatue of Level Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs 

3 assets 

Compulsorily convertible preference shares in DM! Capital Private 

tmited 363.84 Net Worth of Investee Company instrument price 

Equity shares in DMI Consumer Credit Private Limited 3,37 Net Worth of Investee Company instrument price 

Compulsorily convertible debentures of Azad Engineering Private 631.43 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Discount margin / spread 

Limited 

Equity shares In Alchemist Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 215.76 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Discount margin / spread 

Credit Substitutes 514,24 Discounted Projected Cash Flaws Discount margin / spread 

Equity shares in Flash Electronics Private Limited 793.97 Ofscounted Projected Cash Flows Instrument price 

Computsory convertible debentures 1,148.13 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Discount margin / spread 

Non-convertible debentures - unquoted 367.90 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Discount margin / spread 

Security recelpts of Alcharnist XV Trust 194.11 Net asset value Instrurnent price 

Optionally convertible debentures of Azad Engineering Private 434,44 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Discount margin / spread 

Limited 

Units of OMI AIF Special Oppartunities Scherne 10.10 Assets under management of units of Instrument price 

respective class af Investee Fund 

Total 4,677.28 
  

Quantitative analysis of significant unobservable Inputs 

Instrument price 

Given the nature of this approach, there is no range of prices used as Inputs. 

Discount margin/spreads 

Discount margin/spreads represent the discount rates used when calculating the present value of future cash flows. In discounted cash flow models such spreads 

are added to the benchmark rate when discounting the future expected cash flows. Hence, these spreads reduce the net present value of an asset or increase the 

value of a flability. They generally reflect the premium an investor expects to achieve over the benchmark interest rate to compensate for the higher risk driven by 

the uncertainty of the cash flows caused by the credit quallty of the asset. They can be implied from market prices and are usually unobservable for ifitquid or 

complex Instrurnents. 

    

 



DM
it

 
Fi

na
nc

e 
Pr
iv
at
e 

Li
mi
te
d 

No
te
s 

to
 
th

e 
st

an
da

lo
ne

 
fi
na
nc
ia
l 

st
at

em
en

ts
 

(A
ll

 
A
m
o
u
n
t
 

in
 
Rs

. 
In
 
mi

ll
io

ns
, 

un
le
ss
 
ot

he
rw

is
e 

st
at
ed
) 

Va
lu
at
io
n 

t
e
c
h
n
i
q
u
e
s
 

Fi
na
nc
ia
l 

in
st
ru
me
nt

s 
me
as
ur
ed
 

at
 
FV

TP
L 

{o
th

er
 
th
an
 
se
cu
ri
ty
 
re

ce
ip

ts
 

of
 
Al

ch
em

is
t 

XV
 
Tr

us
t 

an
d 

CC
PS

} 

Th
e 

eq
ui

ty
 
in
st
ru
me
nt
s 

ar
e 

tr
ad

ed
 

on
 
pu
bl
ic
 
st
oc
k 

ex
ch

an
ge

s 
wi
th
 
re
ad
il
y 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
ac
ti
ve
 

pr
ic
es
 
on

 
a 

re
gu

la
r 

ba
si

s 
an

d 
ar
e 

cl
as

si
fi

ed
 

as
 
le
ve
l 

1. 
Un

it
s 

he
ld
 

in 
mu

tu
al

 
fu
nd
s 

ar
e 

va
lu

ed
 

at
 
NA

V 
of
 
re
sp
ec
ti
ve
 
in

ve
st

me
nt

 
an
d 

ar
e 

cl
as
si
fi
ed
 

as
 
Le

ve
l 

1. 

Eq
ui

ty
 
in
st
ru
me
nt
s 

me
as

ur
ed

 
at

 
FV
OC
I 

Eq
ui

ty
 
in
st
ru
me
nt
s 

in
 
no
n-
li
st
ed
 

en
ti
ti
es
 
ar

e 
va

lu
ed

 
an
 

a 
ca

se
-b

y-
ca

se
 
ei

th
er

 
ba
se
d 

on
 
ne

t 
wo
rt
h 

of
 
in
ve
st
ee
 
c
o
m
p
a
n
y
 

or
 
va
lu
at
io
n 

re
po

rt
 
is

su
ed

 
by
 
i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t
 
Va

lu
er

 
us
in
g 

di
sc
ou
nt
ed
 

ca
sh

 
fl
ow
 
m
e
t
h
o
d
,
 

ar
e 

cl
as
si
fi
ed
 

as
 
Le
ve
l 

3.
 

De
bt
 
Se
cu
ri
ti
es
 
an
d 

lo
an

s 
at
 
FV
OC
I 

A.
 

Fa
ir

 
Va
lu
e 

is 
ca

lc
ul

at
ed

 
by
 
di
sc
ou
nt
in
g 

fu
tu

re
 
ca
sh
fl
ow
s.
 

8.
 
Th

e 
di

sc
ou

nt
in

g 
sp
re
ad
 

is 
ca
lc
ul
at
ed
 

as
 
s
u
m
m
a
t
i
o
n
 

of
 
yi
el
ds
 

of
 
G-
Se
c 

fa
r 

si
mi
la
r 

te
nu

re
, 

se
ct

ar
 
sp
ec
if
ic
 
sp

re
ad

, 
li
qu
id
it
y 

sp
re

ad
 

an
d 

sp
re

ad
 
ba
se
d 

on
 
sc

or
e 

fr
om
 
in

te
rn

al
 

ri
sk
 
ra

ti
ng

 
mo

de
l,

 

C.
 
Th
e 

ri
sk

 
ra
ti
ng
 
m
o
d
e
l
 
in

co
rp

or
at

es
 

bo
th
 
qu
an
ti
ta
ti
ve
 

an
d 

qu
al
it
at
iv
e 

in
fo
rm
at
io
n 

on
 
th

e 
bo

rr
ow

er
. 

S
o
m
e
 

of
 
th
e 

fa
ct

or
s 

th
at
 

ri
sk
 
mo

de
l 

co
n 

Ar
ea

 
de
li
ve
re
d 

in
 
pa

st
 
ac

ro
ss

 
s
e
g
m
e
n
t
s
 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l 
st

re
ng

th
 

{o
f 

th
e 

en
ti

ty
 
an

d 
gr
ou
p}
 

De
bt

 
tr

ac
k 

re
co

rd
 
(d

eb
t 

re
pa

id
 

in
 
pa

st
, 

cu
rr
en
t 

& 
pa

st
 
de
li
nq
ue
nc

y}
 

St
ag

es
 

of
 
va
ri

ou
s 

pr
oj
ec
ts
 

of
 
de
ve
lo
pe
r 

As
se

t 
co
ve
r 

(C
as

hf
lo

w 
an

d 
Se
cu
ri
ty
) 

Th
er
e 

ha
ve

 
be
en
 

no
 
tr

an
sf

er
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

Le
ve
l 

1, 
Le
ve
l 

2 
an
d 

Le
ve
l 

3 
fo

r 
th
e 

Ye
ar

 
en

de
d 

Ma
rc
h 

31
, 

20
23
 

an
d 

Ma
rc
h 

31
, 

20
22
 

  

Mo
ve

me
nt

s 
in 

Le
ve

l 
3 

fi
na

nc
ia

l 
in

st
ru

me
nt

s 
me

as
ur

ed
 

at
 

fa
ir
 
va
lu
e 

 
 

i 
OM
I!
 

AIF
 

Un
it
s 

of
 

A 
Se

cu
ri

ty
 
re
ce
ip
ts
 

C
r
e
d
i
t
 

Co
mp
ul
so
ri
ly
 

O
p
t
i
o
n
a
l
l
y
 

Sp
ec
ia
t 

0 
* 
ro
ni
ti
es
 

of
 
Al

ch
em

is
t 

XV
 

Su
bs
ti
tu
te
s*
 

NC
D 

Un
qu
ot
ed
* 

Co
nv
er
ti
bl
e 

Co
nv
er
ti
bl
e 

“a
 

Tr
us
t 

De
be
nt
ur
es
* 

De
be
nt
ur
es
* 

Sc
he
me
 

Eq
ui
ty
 
Sh
ar
es
 

Co
mp
ul
so
ri
ly
 

co
nv
er
ti
bl
e 

pr
ef

er
en

ce
 
sh

ar
es

 
- 

OM
I 

Ca
pi
ta
! 

Pr
iv
at
e 

Li
mi

te
d 

Pa
ss

 
T
h
r
o
u
g
h
 

Ce
rt
if
ic
at
e 

To
ta
l 

 
 

At
 
Ap
ri
l 

O4
, 

20
21

 
53
3.
87
 

11
.0

1 
19

4.
11

 
49

7.
68

 
. 

14
2.
83
 

82
6.

47
 

. 

Pu
rc
ha
se
 

- 
- 

. 
10

0.
00

 
23

0,
60

 
18

0.
00

 
42
0.
00
 

C
h
a
n
g
e
 

in
 
cl

as
si

fi
ca

ti
 

I
n
c
o
m
e
 
Ac

cr
ue

d 
- 

- 
- 

: 
- 

10
3.
42
 

48
.7

2 

Sa
le
s 

/ 
se
tt
le
me
nt
s 

- 
(1

.0
7)

 
. 

{8
3.

44
} 

(5
.5

2)
 

(1
07
.6
5)
 

{3
4.

28
} 

Tr
an

sf
er

s 
in

to
 
Le
ve
l 

3 
. 

. 
- 

- 
. 

- 
- 

Tr
an

sf
er

 
fr

om
 
Le

ve
l 

3 
- 

- 
- 

- 
+ 

- 
- 

Ga
in
s 

/ 
lo

ss
 

fo
r 

th
e 

pe
ri

od
 
re

co
gn

iz
ed

 
in

 
th
e 

S
t
a
t
e
m
e
n
t
 

of
 
Pr

of
it

 
an

d 
- 

0.
17
 

- 
- 

: 
44
1,
32
 

- 

Lo
ss
 

Ga
in
s 

/ 
Jo

ss
 

fo
r 

th
e 

pe
ri
od
 
re

co
gn

iz
ed

 
in
 
th
e 

ot
he
r 

c
o
m
p
r
e
h
e
n
s
i
v
e
 

47
9,

23
 

- 
. 

- 
- 

33
6.
01
 

- 

in
co

me
 

  

31
2.

78
 

- 
2,
51
8.
75
 

93
0.
60
 

15
2.
13
 

(2
31
.9
6)
 

43
2.
55
 

81
5.
24
 

 
 

At
 
M
a
r
c
h
 

31
, 

20
22

 
4,

01
3.

10
 

10
.1

0 
19

4.
11

 
51
4.
24
 

36
7.

91
 

1,
77
9.
56
 

43
4.

48
 

4,
67
7.
30
 

 
 

P
u
r
c
h
a
s
e
 

2,
21
2.
15
 

- 
- 

- 
- 

60
0.

00
 

- 

C
h
a
n
g
e
 

in
 
cl

as
si

fi
ca

ti
on
 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 

I
n
c
o
m
e
 
Ac

cr
ue

d 
- 

- 
- 

55
.8
7 

21
.5

0 
99
.1
5 

22
.5

 

Sa
le
s 

/ 
se
tt
le
me
nt
s 

(3
76
.2
0)
 

- 
(1
94
.1
1)
 

{2
2.

54
} 

{2
57
.1
6}
 

{7
46
.7
1}
 

($
81

.3
2)

 
Tr

an
sf

er
s 

in
to
 
Le

ve
l 

3 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

Tr
an
sf
er
 
fr
om
 

Le
ve
l 

3 
- 

: 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

Ga
in
s 

/ 
lo

ss
 

fo
r 

th
e 

pe
ri
od
 
re

co
gn

iz
ed

 
in

 
th
e 

St
at
er
ne
nt
 

of
 
Pr

of
it

 
an

d 
{1
99
.1
1}
 

+ 
- 

- 
5.
55
 

5.
46
 

12
4.
38
 

Lo
ss

 
we 

RE
 
he
, 

Ga
in

s 
/ 

lo
ss

 
fo
r 

th
e 

pe
ri
od
 
re

co
gn

iz
ed

 
in 

th
e 

ot
he
r 

co
mp

re
he

ns
iv

e 
{1

84
.5

9}
 

(0
.3

7}
 

- 
{1

0.
14

} 
- 

in
co
me
 

  
Ti
s 

We
 

 
 

1,
36

5.
35

 
9.
73
 

= 
53

7.
43

 
13
7.
80
 

2,
16

0.
27
" 

  

  

an
d 

Lo
ss

 
co

ns
is

ts
 

of
 
in

co
me

 
ot
he
r 

th
an

 
fa
ir
 
va
lu
e 

ch
an

ge
 

  

- 
39

06
.8

6 

: 
91
.9
7 

- 
{4

83
.5

2}
 

     
     

38
5.
56
 

3,
51

5.
31

 

5,
61

9.
01

 

29
0.
93
 

{2
,6
61
.5
5}
 

(4
2.
00
) 

22
7.

73
 

8,
11

1.
45



DM
I 

Fi
na

nc
e 

Pr
iv

at
e 

Li
mi

te
d 

No
te
s 

to
 
th

e 
st
an
da
lo
ne
 

fi
na

nc
ia

l 
st

at
em

en
ts

 

(A
ll

 
A
m
o
u
n
t
 

in
 
Rs
. 

in
 
mi
ll
io
ns
, 

un
le
ss
 
ot
he
rw
is
e 

st
at

ed
) 

52
 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l 
in

st
ru

me
nt

s 

Va
tu
at
io
n 

pr
in
ci
pl
es
 

Fa
ir
 
va

lu
e 

is 
th
e 

pr
ic
e 

th
at
 
wo

ul
d 

be
 
re

ce
iv

ed
 

to
 

se
ll
 

an
 
as
sa
t 

or
 
pa

id
 

to
 
tr
an
sf
er
 

a 
li

ab
il

it
y 

in
 

an
 
or

de
rl

y 
tr

an
sa

ct
io

n 
in
 
th
e 

pr
in
ci
pa
l 

(o
r 

mo
st
 
a
d
v
a
n
t
a
g
e
o
u
s
}
 
ma
rk
et
 

at
 
th

e 
m
e
a
s
u
r
e
m
e
n
t
 

da
te
 
un
de
r 

cu
rr

en
t 

ma
rk
et
 
co
nd
 

re
ga

rd
le

ss
 

of
 
w
h
e
t
h
e
r
 

th
at
 
pr
ic
e 

is
 
di
re
ct
ly
 
ob
se
rv
ab
le
 

or
 
es
ti
ma
te
d 

us
in

g 
a 
va

lu
at

io
n 

te
ch
ni
qu
e.
 

  

In
 
ar
de
r 

ta
 
s
h
o
w
 
h
o
w
 

fa
ir
 
va

lu
es

 
ha

ve
 
be

en
 
de
ri
ve
d,
 

fi
na

nc
ia

l 
in

st
ru

me
nt
s 

ar
e 

cl
as

si
fi

ed
 
ba
se
d 

an
 

a 
hi

er
ar

ch
y 

of
 v
al

ua
ti

on
 
te

ch
ni

qu
es

. 

Va
lu

at
io

n 
g
o
v
e
r
n
a
n
c
e
 

Th
e 

Co
mp

an
y'

s 
pr
oc

es
s 

to
 
de

te
rm

in
e 

fa
ir
 v

al
ue

s 
is 

pa
rt

 
of
 

its
 
pe

ri
od

ic
 
fi
na
nc
ia
l 

cl
as

e 
pr

oc
es

s.
 
Th

e 
Au
di
t 

Co
mm

it
te

e 
ex
er
ci
se
s 

th
e 

ov
er

al
l 

su
pe

rv
is

ia
n 

ov
er

 
th

e 
me

th
od

ol
og

y 
an
d 

mo
de
ls
 

to
 
de
te
rm
in
e 

th
e 

fa
ir
 
va
lu
e 

as
 
pa
rt
 

of
 

its
 

ov
er

al
l 

mo
ni

to
ri

ng
 

of
 
fi

na
nc

ia
l 

cl
as
e 

pr
oc
es
s 

an
d 

co
nt

ro
ls

. 
Th
e 

re
sp

on
si

bi
li

ty
 

of
 
on
go
in
g 

m
e
a
s
u
r
e
m
e
n
t
 

re
si

de
s 

wi
th

 
bu

si
ne

ss
 

un
it

s.
 
On
ce
 
su
bm
it
te
d 

fa
ir
 
va

lu
e 

es
ti
ma
te
s 

ar
e 

ai
so

 
re
vi
ew
ed
 

an
d 

ch
al
le
ng
ed
 

by
 

th
e 

ri
sk

 
an
d 

fi
na
nc
e 

fu
nc

ti
on

s.
 

As
se

ts
 
an
d 

li
ab

il
it

ie
s 

by
 
fa
ir
 
va
lu
e 

hi
er

ar
ch

y 

Th
e 

fo
ll
ow
in
g 

ta
bl
e 

sh
ow
s 

an
 
an
al
ys
is
 o

f 
fi

na
nc

ia
l 

in
st

ru
me

nt
s 

re
co
rd
ed
 

at
 

fa
ir

 
va
lu
e 

by
 
le
ve
l 

of
 
th

e 
fa
ir
 
va
lu
e 

hi
er
ar
ch
y:
 

 
 

32
 
Ma
rc
h 

20
23
 

32
 
Ma
rc
h 

20
22
 

Le
ve
l 

1 
Le

ve
l 

2 
Le

ve
l 

3 
To

ta
l 

Le
ve
l 

2 
le

ve
l 

2 
Le
ve
l 

3 
To

ta
l 

As
se
ts
 
m
e
a
s
u
r
e
d
 

at
 
fa
ir
 
va

lu
e 

on
 

a 
re

cu
rr

in
g 

ba
si

s 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l 
in
ve
st
me
nt
 
m
e
a
s
u
r
e
d
 

at
 
FV

TP
L 

Mu
tu
al
 
fu
nd
s 

- 
- 

- 
- 

5,
70
9.
86
 

> 
- 

5,
70

9.
86

 

Se
cu
ri
ty
 
re
ce
ip
ts
 

of
 
Al

ch
em

is
t 

XV
 
Tr
us
t 

: 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

19
4.
11
 

19
4.

11
 

Co
mp
ul
so
ri
ly
 
co

nv
er

ti
bl

e 
de

be
nt

ur
es

 
of
 
Az

ad
 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
Pr

iv
at

e 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

. 
63

1.
43

 
63

1.
43

 
Li

mi
te

d 

Op
ti

on
al

ly
 
co

nv
er

ti
bl

e 
d
e
b
e
n
t
u
r
e
s
 

of
 
Az
ad
 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
Pr

iv
at

e 
- 

. 
- 

- 
- 

: 
43

4.
44

 
43
4.
44
 

Li
mi

te
d 

Co
mp
ul
so
ri
ly
 
co
nv
er
ti
bl
e 

pr
ef
er
en
ce
 
sh
ar
es
 

in
 
DM
I 

Ca
pi

ta
l 

Pr
iv

at
e 

- 
- 

38
5.

56
 

38
5.

56
 

- 
- 

36
3.
84
 

36
3.

84
 

Li
mi

te
d 

Eq
ui

ty
 
sh

ar
es

 
in
 
Az

ad
 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
Pr

iv
at

e 
Li
mi
te
d 

22
7.
04
 

22
7.

04
 

. 
- 

- 
- 

in
ve
st
me
nt
 

in 
pa

ss
 
th

ro
ug

h 
ce
rt
if
ic
at
e 

3,
51

5.
31

 
3,

51
5.

31
 

T
o
t
a
 
fi

na
nc

ia
l 

i
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
 
m
e
a
s
u
r
e
d
 

at
 
FV
TP
L 

- 
- 

4,
12
7.
91
 

4,
12
7.
91
 

5,
70

9.
86

 
: 

1,
62

3.
82

 
7,

33
3.

68
 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l 
in

ve
st

me
nt

s 
m
a
a
s
u
r
e
d
 

at
 
FV

OC
T 

Cr
ed
it
 
Su

bs
ti

tu
te

s 
- 

~ 
53
7.
43
 

53
7.
43
 

- 
- 

51
4.
24
 

§1
4,

24
 

C
o
m
p
u
l
s
o
r
y
 
ca
nv
er
ti
bi
e 

d
e
b
e
n
t
u
r
e
s
 

of
 
Fl
as
h 

El
ec

tr
on

ic
s 

In
di
a 

Pr
iv

at
e 

- 
- 

1,
56

0.
00

 
1
,
5
6
0
.
0
0
 

- 
- 

4
,
1
4
8
.
1
3
 

1,
14

8.
13

 

Li
mi

te
d 

C
o
m
p
u
i
s
o
r
y
 
co

nv
er

ti
bl

e 
d
e
b
e
n
t
u
r
e
s
 

of
 
Bi
or
ad
 
Me
 

Li
mi

te
d 

lo
an
s 

No
n-
co
nv
er
ti
bl
e 

d
e
b
e
n
t
u
r
e
s
 

- 
u
n
q
u
o
t
e
d
 

- 
- 

13
7.

80
 

1
3
7
.
8
0
 

- 
- 

36
7.
90
 

43
67
.9
0 

Un
it

s 
af
 
OM

I 
AI

F 
Sp

ec
ia

l 
Op
po
rt
un
it
ie
s 

S
c
h
e
m
e
 

- 
~ 

9.
73
 

9.
73
 

- 
- 

10
.1

0 
10
.1
0 

Eq
ui
ty
 
In

st
ru

me
nt

s 

D
M
I
 
C
o
n
s
u
m
e
r
 

Cr
ed

it
 
Pr

iv
at

e 
Li

mi
te

d 
- 

+ 
3.
48
 

3.
48

 
- 

- 
3.
37
 

3.
37
 

Al
ch

em
is

t 
As
se
t 

Re
co

ns
tr

uc
ti

on
 
C
o
m
p
a
n
y
 
Li

mi
te

d 
- 

- 
21
5.
76
 

21
8.
76
 

- 
- 

21
5.
76
 

21
5.
76
 

Fl
as

h 
El

ec
tr

on
ic

s 
Pr

iv
at

e 
Li

mi
te

d 
~ 

- 
81

8.
97

 
81

8.
97

 
- 

- 
79

3.
97

 
79

3.
97

 

Ra
di
an
t 

Po
ly
me
rs
 

Pr
iv

at
e 

Li
mi

te
d 

- 
: 

10
0.
10
 

10
0.

10
 

To
ta

l 
fi
na
nc
ia
l 

in
ve

st
me

nt
s 

m
e
a
s
u
r
e
d
 

at
 
FV

OC
I 

- 
: 

3,
98
3.
54
 

3,
98
3.
54
 

- 
- 

3,
05

3.
47

 
3,

05
3.

47
 

  

- 
- 

6
0
0
.
2
7
 

60
0.
27
 

- 
- 

- 
- 

  

 
 

To
ta

l 
fi
na
nc
ia
l 

as
se

ts
 
m
e
a
s
u
r
e
d
 

at
 

fa
ir
 
va
lu
e 

- 
- 

8,
11

1.
45

 
9,

12
1.

45
 

5,
70

9.
86

 
- 

4,
67
7.
29
 

10
,3

87
.1

5 
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DMi Finance Private Limited 

Nates to the standalone financial statements 

{Ail Amount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated) 

Analysis of risk concantration 

The fallowing table shows the risk concentration by industry for the tInancial assels af the Campany: 

  

  

  

  

  

  

                    
  

March 31, 2023 
Financial [Government] Real estate MEME Services ond Retall Olbers Taisi 

services 
monutacturing 

Financial asset 

Cash and cash equivalents 
§,628.39 . . . . * : aa 

Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 560.10 - . . - . °. soe 

toans - Corporate (contractual atacunt of loans} 49.85 . 8,303.82 . 459.17 S 631.29 . oat 

Loans - Consumer foans {contractual amount of loans} * - ‘ $79.75 - 47,307.45 . 887. a 

Trade receivables 
26.98 . . - - 281.07 : 308,05 

investments 
4,088.12 - 618.03 . 3,225.26 . 3,533.73 8,465.14 

Other financial assets . . : + ‘ . 1,063.41 26.14 3,089,55 

Total 
7,353.44 . 8,921.85 579,75 3,684.43 $9,283.22 3,959.87 83,382.56 

March 32, 2022 
Fflnandal |Government| Real estate MSME Services and Retall Others Tatal 

services manutacturing 

Financiat asset 5 

Cash and cash equivaloats 6,593.27 : : : . - . 6,533.27 

Bank halance ather than Cash and cash equivalents 294.45 * - - . . . | 294.45 

toans - Corporate [rantractual amount of loans} - . 14,197.05 : 1,665.93 613.91 . 15,476.94 

teans - Consumer fons (contractual rsount of losits) : - . 525.07 + 32,799.14 . 33,324.21 

Hecelvables 
- . : - - 57.0F . 507 

investments 
6,969.56 724.35 - 2,969.06 - 59.55 10,679,52 

Other Ranaclal assets . . : - 1,582.53 25.55 1,608,098 

Total 13,797.28 : 11,918.44 $25.07 4,634.99 35,052.65 45.10 65,973.84 

Market risk 

Markel tisk is the tlsk that the value of on and off-balance sheet positions of a financial institutlon will be adv 

exchange rates, equity prices, credit spteads and/or commodity prices resulting In a lass te earnings and capital, 

arsely affected by movements In market tates or prices such as Interest rates, forelan 

  
Financial Institutions may be exposed to market Fisk in varlety of ways. Market rlsk exposure may be explicit (n portfollos of securities / equilles and instruments that are actively waded. Conversely fl 

tray be Uinpiictt such as interest rate Fisk due to mismatch of foans and deposits. Besides, market risk may alsa arlse from activities categorized a5 off-balance stivel Nem, Therefore, market risk Is 

potential far loss rasulting from adverse mayement in market cisk factors such as Interest rates, forex rates, equily and commadity prices. 

The Company's exposure to market risk is primarily on aceount of interest fate tisk and equity price risk, 

Total market risk exposure 

  

  

          

Particulars 
As at March 34, 2023 As at March 31, 2022] Primary cisk sensitivity 

ASSETS. 

Financial assets 

investments (Other than credit substitutes} 4,412.93 9,997.08 |Equity price 

Credit substitutes and pass through certificate 
5,169.38 2,204.96 [Intecest rate 

SABILITIES. 

Finanedal Habli(ties 

Debt seculites 
16,837.91 18,852.27 jInterest rate 

Borrowings (other than debt ities) 
23,883 St 8,965.53 jinterest sate 

  

{i} Interest rate risky 
Interest rate risk arises when there is 2 mismatch between positions, which are subject to interest rate adjustment within a specified period, The Company's lending, funding and investment 

activities give tise to Interest rate risk. The immediate impact of variation in interest rate is on the Company's net Interest Income, while a long term impact fs on the Company's net worth since the 

economic value of the assets, liabilitles and off-balance sheet exposures are affected. While assessing interest rate risks, signals given to the market by RBI and government daparntiments from tle to 

tire aod the financial industry's reaction to them shall be continuously smonilored. 

Que to the very mature of financing, the Company is exposed to moderate to higher interest fate risk, Lhis risk has a major Impact on the balance sheet as weil as the income statement of the 

Company. Interest rate risk arises duc ta: 

  

y Changes in regulatory or market conditions affecting the Inturest rates 
ay Shani term volatility 
ai) Propayment Ask translating Into a ecinvestment risk 

iv) Real dinaiust rate sk, 

Interest rate risk exposure As at March 32, 2023 As pt March 33, 2022 

Variable Rate Borrowings 
25,373.57 8,965.53 

Fixed Rate Gorrawings 
45,552.85 44,552.27 

Interest rate sensitivity 

The followlng table demonstrates the sensitivity to 3 reasonably possible change in interest rates {all other variables being constant) of the Company's statement of profit and loss: 

  

  

  

Particulars 
Effect on nat profit 

For the year ended For tha year anded 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Decrease In 50 basis points 
71.84 25.13 

increase in 50 basis paints, 
(72.54)! {25.93}       

  

  
  

{UI} Equity price rlsk 

Equity price risk is the risk that the fale value of equities changes 3s the result of changes in the fevel of equity Indices and individual stocks. A 10 per cent increase In the value of the Company's 

FYDCH equities at 31 March 2023 wauld have intteased equity by its. 330.83 millions [Previous year: RE 268.56 millfons}, An equivalent decrease would have resultad in an equivalent but opposite 

smpact, Further, A 10 per cent increase in the value of the Company's FVIPL equities at 31 March 2024 would have increased profits by Rs. 22.70 millions (Previous year: Ms, 653.54 millions}. An 

equivalent dectease would have resulted In an equivalent but oppasite Impact 

{tli} Forelgn Currency risk exposure 
The Campany |s not exposed to foretgn currency ish exposure. 

 



DMI Finance Private Limited 
Notes to the standalone finanelal statements 

{Ail Amount In Rs. in millions, unless olherwise stated} 

SQ Segment information 

The Joint Managing Directors {Chief Operating Decision Makers} review the operations at the Company level. The aperatians of the Company fall under “Flnancing activities” only, which is tonsidered to be the only reportable segment in accordance with the provisions of ind AS Lug ~ Operating Segments, The Company Operates in a single geographical segment, 1.¢., domestic. 

5 = Risk management 

totroductlon and risk prafite 

The Company Is 2 private finance company ia Inala and is regutated by the Reserve Gank Of India (ABI). in view of the intrinsic nature of opetations, the Company is exposed lo a variety al risks which can b¢ broadly classified as liquidity disk, credit tisk, interest rate risk and equity price risk, It is atso subject to various regulatory risks. , 

Alsk management structure and polictes 

Asa lending institution, Company is exposed to various risks that are related to tending business and operating environment. The Principal Objective in Company 's risk management processes ts to measure and monitor the various risks that Company Is sublect to and to follow policies and procedures to address such risks, Company 's tisk management framewark is driven by Uoard and its subcommittees including the Audit Committee, the Asset Liability Managemen! Committee and Risk Management Committee, Company gives due importance ta prudent lending practices and have implemented suitable measures for risk mitigation, whith include verlfication of credit history fram credit inforsnation bureaus, personal verification of a customer's business and residence, Leclinical and Icpal verilications, conservative foan to value. 

(A) Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the poteal tal far loss to an institution arising from either ils inability 10 meet its obligations or 10 fund increases In assets as they fall due without Incurting unacceptable cost ar losses, 

The Company manages liquidity risk by msasuring and managing nat {tinding requitements using a maturity ladder and calculation of cumulative surplus or defich of funds at selected maturity dates which has been adonted as a standard tool The Company's Assets-Liahiity ¢. (ALCO) fs bie for di 2 the mlx of available funding sources utilized ta ensute Company liquidity is managed prudently and appropriately. With regard to the process of liquldity management, ALCO also considers the current economic and market environment, near-term loan erovth projections and long-term strategic business decistons. 

  

The table below suramarises the maturlty profite of the undiscounted cash flaws al the Company’s financial assets and Uabliittes 

  

  

  

  

  

            

March 34, 2023 upto t month) Over Imonth Over2 Over 3 Over 6 months | Over dyeat to} Over 3 years | Over 5 years Total 
to2Zmonth | months to3] months to6 tolyear 3 years toS years 

manths manths 
Financial assets 
Cash and cash equivatents 5,628.39 - - - - . : . $,626.35 Bank balance other than Cash and cash cquivatents 219.10 . 24.03 0.20 178.45 138.32 . . 560.30 

Trade recelvabtes 266.76 41.29 . - “ . . > 308.05 
loans 6,903.44 7,440,46 7,584.35 16,298.35 16,681.26 22,832.66 4,959.68 2.170,97 43,821.0R 
Investments 156.66 206.20 1,106.57 3,774.12 1,691.09 3,139.62 1,063.70 1,697.22 10,835.18 
Other feancial assets 343.73 - 314,06 322.74 3.32 B1.8t + 23.89 1,089.55 
Financtal llabilittes 
Payables 338.22 663.34 337.03 39.58 291.09 7 : 1,667.23 
Debt securities : 298.41 $66.45 323,90 15,450.30 3,762.90 . . 48,407.95 
Borrowings father than debl securities) 3,238.70 669.00 1,853.20 2,790.70 5,483.90 12,071.40 826.40 . 26 633.30 
Lease abilities 6.29 6.29 6.31 19.20 38.58 102.01 95.52 aLGs 315.75 
Other financial flabllities 75.40 412.26 3B 3S > : 52.89 : Ss 283.98 

March 31, 2022 upte t month) Over Imanth Over2 Over 3 Over 6 months | Over dyear tof Over 3 years | Over $ years Total 
loZmonth | months to3| months to é tod year 3 years to S years 

months. months. 
Financlal assets 
Cash ahd cash equivatents 5,533.27 1,000.00 - . . - - - G,533.27 
Bank balsnce other than Cash and cash equivalents . : 23.00 266.20 5.25 . - - 294,45 

Trade recalvables 57.07 : - - : . . : 57.07 
Loans 6,740.85 4,372.93 4,640.01 9,885.18 10,997.12 19,405.34 4,798.16 1,418.45 60,951.03 
Investments 6,054.84 21.77 1,498.67 141.83 235,50 1,769.29 1,255.73 4,122.44 15,200.14 
Other financial assets $1,187.67 0.45 208.59 V11.62 74.20 . . 28.55 1,608,08 
Financla? tlablilties 

. 
Payables ATALA 229,76 20.45 33.06 366.55 70.37 . . 4,134.33 
Debt securities . 282,12 143,34 390,62 3,842.49 16,445,465 . - 21,094.18 
Borrowings (other than debt securities} TAB.82 138.73 489,51 972.76 1,897.40 4,958.11 1,194,70 . 9,840.03 
Lease labfiities 436 $41 6.08 18.24 36,25 117,96 95.76 90.34 374,74 
Other financial fialilities 6Ad 437.B7 38.61 - 2 : . : 362.87             

(8) Credit efck 
®) Credit risk arises from the potential that an obligor is either unwilling to perform on an abfigation or its ability to perform suct obligation is Impaired resulting in econemic loss ta the Company. The 

Company's credit risk management framework is categorized into following tala components: 

+ Senior management's oversight 

- Organizational structure 

+ Systems and procedures for identification, acceptance, measurement, monitoring and controlling risks, 

ils the overall responsibility of the Company's scntor management ta approve the Company's credit risk steateny and lending palicles relating to credit tisk and its management. The polletes are 
based on the Company's averall business steategy and the same is reviewed every quarter by the senlor management. 
To maintatn credit disetpiing and to anunclate credit risk management and contro! process there Is a snparate tisk management department Independent of taan origination function, The risk 
management department perloens the functian of credit nolicy formulation, credit limit setting, lag of credit s/ and teview /manitoring af d     

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure, 
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S.N. Dhawan & co LLP Phase IV, Udyog Vihar, Gurugram, 

Haryana 122016, India 

Tel: +91 124 481 4444 
Chartered Accountants 

Independent Auditor’s Report 

To the Members of 

DMI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED 

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of DMI FINANCE 

PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Holding Company’) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its 

subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) and its associate, which comprise the 

consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March, 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit 

and loss (including other comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in 

equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the 

consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies (“the 

consolidated financial statements”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 

us, and based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial 

statements of the subsidiaries and associate referred to in the Other matters section below, 

the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the 

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 

conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read 

with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other 

accounting principles generally accepted in India, of their consolidated state of affairs of the 

Group and its associate as at 31 March 2023, of consolidated profit, consolidated total 

comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for 

the year then ended. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 

Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described 

in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of 

our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by 

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI”) together with the ethical 

requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the 

provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We 

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by other 

auditors in terms of their reports referred to in sub-para (a) and (b) of the Other matters 

paragraph below is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

     

COsAShawan & CO LLP is registered with limited liability with identification number AAH-1125 and its registered office is 108, Mercantile House, 15 Kasturba Gandhi Marg 
~ > 

New Delhi 110001, India



Key audit matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These 
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as 
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on 
these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters 
to be communicated in our report.: 

  

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit 
matters 

  

(a) Impairment of financial assets as at balance sheet date (expected credit losses) 
  

Ind AS 109 requires the Group to provide for 
impairment of its loan receivables 
(designated at amortised cost and fair value 
through other comprehensive income) using 
the expected credit loss (ECL) approach. 
ECL involves an estimation of probability 
weighted loss on financial instruments over 
their life, considering reasonable and 
supportable information about past events, 
current conditions, and forecasts of future 
economic conditions which could impact the 
credit quality of the Group’s loans and 
advances. In the process, a_ significant 
degree of judgement has been applied by 
the Management for: 

- Staging of loans i.e., classification in 
‘significant increase in credit risk’ (‘SICR’) 
and ‘default’ categories; 
- Estimation of behavioural life; 
- Determining macro-economic factors 
impacting credit quality of receivables; 
- Estimation of losses for loan products with 
no/ minimal historical defaults 

    

Read and assessed the Group’s accounting 
policies for impairment of financial assets 
and their compliance with Ind AS 109 and 
the governance framework approved by the 
Board of Directors pursuant to Reserve Bank 
of India guidelines. 

Evaluated the reasonableness of the 
Management estimates by understanding 
the process of ECL estimation and related 
assumptions and tested the controls around 
data extraction and validation. 

Assessed the criteria for staging of loans 
based on their past due status to check 
compliance with requirement of Ind AS 109. 
Tested a sample of performing (stage 1) 
loans to assess whether any SICR or loss 
indicators were present requiring them to be 
classified under higher stages. 

Assessed the additional considerations 
applied by the Management for staging of 
loans as SICR or default categories in view 
of Group’s policy on one-time restructuring. 

Tested the ECL model, _ including 
assumptions and underlying computation. 
Assessed the floor/ minimum rates of 
provisioning applied by the Group for loan 
products with inadequate historical defaults. 

Tested assumptions used by _ the 
Management in determining the overlay. 

Assessed disclosures included in the 
consolidated financial statements in respect 
of expected credit losses. 

  

  
 



  

(b) IT and system controls 
  

Financial accounting and reporting 
processes, especially in the financial 

services sector, are fundamentally reliant on 
IT systems and IT controls to process 
significant transaction volumes, hence we 
identified IT systems and controls over 

We tested the design and operating 
effectiveness of the Group’s IT access 
controls over the information systems that 
are important to financial reporting and 
various interfaces, configuration, and other 
identified application controls. 

financial reporting as a key audit matter for 

the Group. 
We tested IT general controls (logical 
access, changes management and aspects 
of IT operational controls). This included 
testing requests for access to systems were 
reviewed and authorized. 

Automated accounting procedures and IT 
environment controls, which include IT 

governance, general IT controls over 
program development and changes, access 
to programs and data and IT operations, are 
required to be designed and to operate 
effectively to ensure reliable financial 
reporting 

We tested the Group’s periodic review of 
access rights. We also tested requests of 
changes to systems for approval and 
authorization. In addition to the above, we 
tested the design and_ operating 
effectiveness of certain automated controls 
that were considered as key internal controls 
over financial reporting.         

Information other than the consolidated financial statements and auditor’s report 
thereon 

e The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The 

other information comprises the information included in the annual report but does not 

include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. These 
reports are expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report. 

e Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information 
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

e In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is 
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements, or our knowledge 
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

e When we read information included in annual report, if we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with 
governance as required under SA 720 'The Auditors responsibilities relating to other 
information’. 

Management’s responsibility for the consolidated financial statements 

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation 
of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act, that give a 
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance 

aan Sengiuding other comprehensive income), consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement 
anges in equity of the Group including its associate in accordance with the accounting 

           
  



         

f=) 

principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified 
under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in 

the Group and of its associate are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group 
and its associate and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection 
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 

financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the 
consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the 
companies included in the Group and of its associates are responsible for assessing the ability 
of the Group and of its associates to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associate 

are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its 

associate. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 

to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 

assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 

are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial 

statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, 

we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Group has adequate 

internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements in place and the 

ARWAN & yoperating effectiveness of such controls. 
; O Ss 
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e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management. 

* Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 

exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the 

Group and its associate to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related 

disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 

to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 

date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and 

its associate to cease to continue as a going concern. 

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial 

statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements 

represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 

presentation. 

¢ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the 

entities within the Group and its associate to express an opinion on the consolidated 

financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of 

the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial 

statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the 

consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other 

auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits 

carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company of which we 

are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 

of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 

control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 

and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 

matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of 

the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 

auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, 

in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in 

our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Other matters 

wan We did not audit the financial statements of three subsidiaries, whose financial statements 

fee Heflect total assets (after eliminating intra-group transactions) of Rs. 686.71 millions as at 

\e) March, 2023, total revenues (after eliminating intra-group transactions) of Rs. 87.43 

       



b) 

millions, net loss after tax of Rs. 24.10 millions, total comprehensive loss of Rs. 24.55 

millions, and net cash outflow of Rs. 225.02 millions for the year ended on that date, as 

considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial statements have been 

audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and 

our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts 

and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub- 

section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is 

based solely on the reports of the other auditors. 

The consolidated financial statements also include the Group’s share of net loss after tax 

of Rs. 54.67 millions for the year ended 31 March 2023 and total comprehensive loss of 

Rs. 54.67 millions for the year ended 31 March 2023, as considered in the consolidated 

financial statements, in respect of one associate, whose financial statements have not been 

audited by us. These financial statements are unaudited and have been furnished to us by 

the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it 

relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this associate, and our report 

in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act in so far as it relates to the aforesaid 

associate, is based solely on such unaudited financial statements. In our opinion and 

according to the information and explanations given to us by the Management, inese 

financial statements are not material to the Group. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements above, and our report on Other legal and 

regulatory requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to 

our reliance on the work done and the reports of other auditors and the financial statements 

certified by the Management. 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 

iB With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor's 

Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order’) issued by Central Government in terms of Section 

143(11) of the Act, to be included in Auditor’s report, according to the information and 

explanations given to us, and based on the audit report issued by us for the Holding 

Company and based on our consideration of the audit reports issued by respective auditors 

of the three subsidiaries included in consolidated financial statements, we report that there 

are no qualifications or adverse remarks in these reports. 

The share of net loss of following associate company has been consolidated on the basis 

of unaudited financial statements, accordingly no audit report is available: 

  

Ss. Name CIN Holding Company / Subsidiary / 

No. Associate 

1 DMI Alternatives | U74999DL2016PTC305804 | Associate 

Private Limited 

  

            

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit and on the consideration of 

reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information 

of subsidiaries, as noted in the ‘Other Matters’ paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, 

that: 

 



(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid 

consolidated financial statements. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the 

aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our 

examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors. 

(c) The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including 

other comprehensive income), and the consolidated statement of cash flows and 

consolidated statement of changes in equity dealt with by this report are in agreement with 

the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated 

financial statements. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian 

Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding 

Company as on 31 March, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding 

Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiaries incorporated in India, 

none of the directors of the Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31 

March, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

(h) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to financial 

statements of the Group incorporated in India and the operating effectiveness of such 

controls, refer to our separate report in ‘Annexure A’. 

(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 

the requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 

us and based on the reports of statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies incorporated 

in India which were not audited by us, the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies 

being private companies, Section 197 of the Act related to the managerial remuneration is 

not applicable. 

(j) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion 

and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based 

on the consideration of the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements as 

also the other financial information of the subsidiaries, as noted in the ‘Other matter’ 

paragraph: 

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the 

consolidated financial position of the Group— Refer Note 46 to the consolidated financial 

statements. 

ii. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts 

including derivative contracts. 

 



There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in India. 

(a) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are 
companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under 
the Act, have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries that, to the 
best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested 
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by 
the Holding Company or any such subsidiaries to or in any other persons or entities, 
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in 
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(b) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are 
companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under 
the Act, have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries that, to the 
best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the Holding 
Company or any of such subsidiaries from any persons or entities, including foreign 
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries shall, directly or 
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditors of 
the subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements 
have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditors’ notice that 
has caused us or other auditors to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) 
and (ii) of Rule 11(e) contain any material misstatement. 

The Holding Company and its subsidiaries have not declared or paid any dividend during 
the year and have not proposed final dividend for the year. 

 



vi. As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended is 

applicable for the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, which are companies 

incorporated in India, only w.e.f. 1 April 2023, therefore, reporting under Rule 11(g) of 

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, is not applicable. 

For S.N. Dhawan & CO LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No.: OOOOSON/N500045 

a 
Vinesh Jain 

Partner 

Membership No.: 087701 

UDIN: 23087701BGWNIL8494 

  

Place: Gurugram 

Date: 22 May 2023



Annexure A 

Independent Auditor’s report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to 

financial statements under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the company as of and 

for the year ended 31 March, 2023, we have audited the internal financial controls with 

reference to financial statements of DMI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED (hereinafter referred 

to as the “Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries and its associate, which are companies 

incorporated in India, as of that date. 

Management's responsibility for internal financial controls 

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiaries and its associate 

which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining 

internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 

established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated 

in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (“the 

Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These 

responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 

financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct 

of the company’s business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the 

safeguarding of the company’s assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 

financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditors’ responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to 

financial statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiaries and its associate as aforesaid, 

based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit 

of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued 

by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable 

to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the 

Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 

audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with 

reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls 

operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 

internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating 

effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 

included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial 

statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 

design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 

 



procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks 
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the 
other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other matter paragraph below, is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial 
controls system with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiaries 
and its associate as aforesaid. 

Meaning of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and 

the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 

maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions 
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures 
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and 
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 

detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could 
have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections 

of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to 
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, which are companies incorporated 
in India, have, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls system with 
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements were operating effectively as at 31 March, 2023, based on the internal control over 

financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components 

of internal contro! stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

 



Other Matters 

Audit Report of three subsidiaries does not include report on the internal financial controls with 

reference to financial statements under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act 

(‘the Report on internal financial controls’), since in their opinion, the said report on interna 

financial controls is not applicable to these companies under MCA notification no. G.S.R. 

583(E) dates 13 June 2017, read with corrigendum dated 13 July 2017 on reporting on internal 

financial controls over financial reporting. Our report on internal financial controls with 

reference to financial statements in respect of these subsidiaries and associate are based on 

management assessment of the internal control over financial reporting as furnished by the 

management. 

For S.N. Dhawan & CO LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm's Registration No.:000050N/N500045 

Deen Jain 

Membership No.: 087701 

UDIN: 23087701BGWNIL8494 

Place: Gurugram 

Date: 22 May 2023 

 



  

  

  

DMI Finance Private Limited 
Consolidated Balance Sheet 3$ at March 34, 2023 

{All Amount in As. tn millions, unless otherwise stated} 

  

  

  

  

  

Notes As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 ASSETS 
> Financial assats 

Cash and cash equivalents 
4 5,635.76 5,829.64 Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 5 570.25 294.66 Trade recelvables 
5 312.09 1.03 lopas 
7 67,344.47 46,304.15 investments 
& 8,356.80 10,289.57 Other financlat assets 
g 2,090.00 1,610.08 Total financinf assets 

83,153.37 65,886.13 Non-financial assets 
Current tax assets . 10 198.76 296,13 Deferred tax assets (net) it 1,219.49 880.14 Property, plant and equipment 12 143,00 104.64 Capita wark in progress 

13 {a) - 23.27 Goodwill 
14 253,53 1 253.53 Intangible assets under development 13 (b} 8.78 * 

Right of use assets 
15 196.35 234.95 Other intangible assets 
26 21.66 3141 Other non- financial assets a 249.76 204.91 Total non-financial assets " 2,291.33 2078.98. Assets held for saic 
a8 75.00 143.88 TOTAL ASSETS 

85,539.70 68,058.55 
LIABILITIES AND Equiry 

UABILITIES 
Financlat ilabllitles 

Payables 
Al Yeade payables 

413 (i) total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 8.97 $4.79 Ul) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro pnd 3,265.75 697.23 Smail enterprises 
B) Other payables 

{f) total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises - : {i total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and 525.08 379.87 Small enterprises 
Debt securnics 

20 36,837.92 48,552.27 Borrowings (ather than debt securities} 21 23,889.34 8,958.07 Lease fiabifitles 
22 242.28 276.35 Other financlal Habililes 23 283.98 162.87 Total financial fabilities 

42,3953,30 25,151.46 
Non financial fiabifties 

: Provisions - 
24 302.31 86.60 Other non-financial Uablities 25 261.79 203.51 Total non-finanelal fiabllities 

364.10 190.42 EQUITY 

Equity share caphtst ein 26 6,567.75 6,567.00 Other equity : . 2 35,607.50 32,421.25 Equity attributable to equity shareholders of the company 42,175.65 38,688.25 Non Controlling Interest 
28 26.65 29,43 
  

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 
95,519.70 5i 5 « ———— ee See accompanying notes forming part of the consolida ted financtal Statement. 

Jn tetms of our report attached 

   

  

    

For S.N. Dhawan & CO LLP For ond on behalf of the Board of Directors af Firm Registration No. OOO0SON/NSOUD4s . OMI Finance Private Limited Chartered Accountants 
CINS US5929DL2008PTC182749 q 

- : 

ae? 
Vinesh Jala 

fe hrvashishiChattorce Partner i 
{it Mi iB Director} Membership No. 08770} 
DIN: 02623460 

Place: NECS YORK. 

Bate! 22. MAY 992% 

  

    

  

lef Financlal Officer} {Com Secretary} 
Z |. NG. A24785 ° Plate: Gao RU GRAM 3 Places NMHC DE CHE Places Meus DELHS Pare 92 MAY 202 Bate: sy M298 SCR MAY, 202% 

Os > QS 
     ee é 

a   



  

  

og BX 

DMI Finance Privato Umited 

Consolidated Statement af profit and joss far the year endod Marth 31, 2023 
{All Amount in Rs. in millions, unless otherwise stated) 

Revenuo from operations 
interest income 
Feés cad commission income 
Net gain‘on fair value changes 

‘Toul revenue from operations 

Other income 

Totsl income 

Expenses 

Finance costs 

Fees and commission expense 
tmpairment on financial instruments 
Employee benefits expense 
Depreciation, amortization and impaliment 
‘Othes expanses 

Total expenses 

Profit bafore share of profit of associate and tax 

‘Tax expense/ (credit): 
{1) Current tax 

{2) Deferred tax 
income tax expense 

Net profit for the year 

Traasfer to Non Controtting Interest 
Add: Share af (Loss} of associate 

Net Profit after Taxes and share af [Loss} of associate 

Other compeehensiva income 
a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit ar loss 
li) Re-measurement gatas on gratuity : 

Gl} Net gsinfloss on fair value of equity instruments through 
other comarehensive income 
incame tax relauing to above 

Subtatal fa] ° 

b} tcems that will be reclassified to profit or tass 
{ Gain on Fair Value changes 

Income tax relating te above item 

Subtorat (b} : 

Other comprehensive Income 

Total comprehensive Income for the year 

Profit far the year atubutable to 

+ Owners of the Company 

- + Nan Controlling interest 

Cither comprehensive income far the year atulbutabie to 
- Dviners of the Company 
= Non Controlling interest 

Total comprehensive income for the year attiburable to 
= Gwners of the Company 
«Hon Controfiing Interest 

Earmings per equity share (face value af Rs. 10 per share) 
Basic (Rs.} - 
Diluted (Rs. 

Notes 

25 
30 
31 

Bz 

33 

34 

35 

36 

37 

38 

45 

49 

~ 38 

See accompanying notas forming part of the consolidated financial statement. 

in terms of our report attached 

For$.N. Dhawan & COLLP 
Firm Registration No. DODOSON/NS00045 
Chartered Accountants 

Vinesh Jain 
Partner - 
Memberthip No. 08770. 

  

sce RU GRAM 

Date 2 NAY 2923 

  

    

  

            

re 
For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2073 Mareh 34, 2022 

15,970.05 1B37.41 
285.43 235.25 
399.05 963,40 

16,834.52 9,036.06 

185.99 163.05 - 

16,620.42 8159.1 

3,018.66 4,316.53 

21,357.33 677.01 

4912.26 3A11.S3 

1,281.6 “BEOTF 

108.93 99.43 

2,536.95 1A28.24 

12,295.46 8393.90 

“4,378.96 205.21 

1,523.02 ° 76.15 

397.92 S754) 

4,125.10 218-61 

3,199.86 586.60 

454.67) 13.57) 

3,145.19 583.03 

433 : 7430 

227,72 ~ $37.53 

(58.56) (232.33) 
176.03 $27.70 

- O57 

- : {0.24} 

: 0.43 

174,09 628.42 

eer IPB ES 

3,497.67 583.63 
(2.48) - 

274.09 S2R12 

3,321.76 120215 
(2.28) - 

4.87 0.83 

4.80 O81 

For and on bahalf of the Board of Directors of 
DM Founce Private Limited 
CIN: UGSS29DL2008FTC182749 

asl 
(it, Managing Dlrector)   
DIN: 02623460 

Places NEGS YoRid. 

Date 22 May, 202.2 

an Gopal 

Financial Officer} 

Pleet Ky EOD DET 

2. MAY, 2023. 
Date: 

     
   

   



  

  

  

- DMi Finance Private United 
Eopress Building, 3rd Floor, Dahsdur Shah Zafar Pore, New Dethts 16002 

CIN - US5S29DL2008PTICLER749 
Statement of Comso!ldsted Cash Flows for the year ended March 35, 2023 

{All Amaunt in As. in mitions, voless otherwise Stated} 

Vent ended Year ented 
March 31,2023 Marth 31, 2022 

A Cosh flow fram operating ottiviies: 
Profit before tax 

4326.38 805.23 
Adjustments for 

- Depreelation and amortisation 108.54 93,43 Ret gain on felevalee changes {159.06) {953.40} 
Impatment on financtal instruments 4,012.20 3AiL93 Inlerest expense for leasing arrangements 26.33 36.03 
Effecwive Interest rate ndjustment for Maanelal instruments 75.08 1276 Asset held fot calo wiltten off £9.47 4537 Ofidend tneome 

(3.34] - Sharv of profits of assoclates 
154.67) - Employee stock optien/share warrant expenis a1, 02 Operating profi before ‘working capital changes 8519.99 BSOFL1 

Changes in working capital 
{Increase} fo fnunctal and other assets 124,682.52} 196,445.42) Increase [n Noancial and other fabtition £49.09 410.09 Decrease in non Rnanclal assets 445.14) 187.23) increasa tn non financlsl fobiilies 178,92 85.84 Total of changes In working capital (23,199.74} {28,025.70} 
Direct taxes paid {net of refunds} 5.64) 24 

Nes cash How generated from / {used in} operating octhddes iy 1B 885.3! 15,25 9. 
B Cash flaw from investing activities: 

inflow fovtflow) on aerount oft 
Parchare of Property, plant and equipment {74.24} {68.88} 

finckiding caplial work-tn-progress}/ Intangible 
etsets 

Purchase of investment 176,931.65} SSES.7L Sale of favestment 79,927.20 - Dividend income 43s * Movement ol fixed deposits (aca) 275.39) 85) 
Net cash flow from f [used Is} Investing activities 43) 2,629.16 SAb9.38 

© Cash flaw from financing activites: 
Proceed from isuie df equity sharet {Including share premfum) 4g7 23ALE2 
_Recelet of upfront money on share warrant 0.22 - Proceeds from borrowings (otherthan debt zocurittes} 33,537.19 5,072.74 
Repayment of bosrowlaga [other thon debt secu titles) {19,686.20} 11,578.033 
Proreeds from debt securites 1,500.06 : Repaymeat of debt securities (3,219.16] > 
{ease payments £70.67] [S7.10} 
Net cash flow generated from financing setivisies ({) 23,006.35 10,080.22 RR 
Met Incressé in cosh and tosh equivalents [A1B+C} {2,125,45} 4,290.25 
Cash and cash equyvatents a3 at the beginning of the year 6,825.66 2533.91 

Tash ond cash equivalents on the date of srquisition fathe subsldlary . 5.83 
ee . Cash and cash equivalents ot the end of the year. 5,659.75 SRS oS 

Notes 

3) Campenents of cash and cosh cquivdlents AgatMarch3i 2023 Arst March 3, 2072 re ee RS Cash on hand ole oe 
Balance with banks 

- balanca In current accounts snd oventraft o¢esurits $599.66 S.B2354 
deposite with original maturity of less than 3 monty 0 

Yotal cash and cash equivaients 695.76 B25.ca 

2} Statement of Cash flows has been prepared under indirect mothod as set out in the IND AS? “Statement of Cash News", 

3} For disctosure of Investing ond financing octhrftles that do pot requira the use of cash and cash cquivatnts, refer note a? 

See accampanylag notes forming part of the consolidated financiat statement, 

Interms of our repo stlached 

     

    

For S.t¥. Ohawan & €0 LP Forand on behall of the Bourd al Directors a? 
Firm Repistratlon No, GOODSON/NS00045 ‘OMI Finenze Private Umited 
Chartered Accountants Ct: U6S92901 200RPTCEAz7aS 

a 

La 

Shhathish Chptredes 
2p. Manseinsitt, , 

Due D2s23400 

Phe: NEG YoRk 
Dare: iM AY, 2022 
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DMI Finance Private Umlted 

Notes te the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Corporate Infarmation 

DMI Finance Private Limited is a Private Limited Company {"The Company" or “The Holding Company"} and incorporaled under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 having Corporate !dentificaticn 
Number is (CIN) U6S929DL2G08PTC182749 on September 02, 2008. 

The Company is engaged in lending activities as Non-Sanking Finance Company (NBFC} regulated by the Reserve Bank of India (‘R8l}. The Company had obtained its licence fram Reserve Bank of India 

{RBl] io operate as Nom deposit Accepting Non Banking financial Company {NBFC-ND) on January 05, 2009 vide registration No. ROI  N-14,03176. 

The Heiding company together with it' subsidiartes listed In Note 2{e){Hi] are hereinalter colfectively referred te as ‘the Group’. Information on subsidiaries included in consolidated financial statements 

is given in Note 2fc}fii} 

The registered office of the Company {s facated at Express Suilding. 3rd Floor 9-10, Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg New Delhi 

These financia? were ised for issue in witha of the Board of Directors on 22 May, 2023. 

Basis of preparation of financial Statements 

a} Statement of compliance 

The consolidated financial staternents comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards {'Ind AS' or ‘the Accounting Standards’) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 
2043 [the Act} [Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015) and other relevant provisions of the Act. 

Ail amount disclosed in the consolidated financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest Rupees millions as per the requirements of Schedule fll, unless otherwise stated. 

b} Basis of preparation and presentation 

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS} as per the Companies {indian Acccunting Standards) Rules , 2015 as amended 

from time to time and notified under section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (the act} along with other relevant provisions of the Act and the Master Direction - Non-Banking-Financial Company 

Systemically Important Nen-Deposit taking Company and deposit taking company (Reserve bank) Directions, 201G (‘the N@FC Master Directions’) as amended issued by R81. The financial 
statements have been prepared on 2 going concern basis. 

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupecs {INR} and ail values are reunded to the milions, except when othenwise indicated. 

et] - Basis of measurement 

The consolidated financial staternents have been prepared on an accrual basis as a going concern ard under the historical cost convention except far the assets and ffabilities measured at fair 
value as follows: 

-  certaln financial assets and liabililies and contingent consideration is measured at fatr value; 

+ assets held for sale — measured at fair value less cost to sell; 
+ defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value; and 

-  share-based payments - measured at fair value. 

dj Presentation of financial statements 

The Group presents its balance sheet In order of liquidity. Financial assets and financial Habilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only offset and reported net when, in 

addition to having an unconditional tegally enforceable right to offset the recognised arnounts without being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to settle on a net basis in all of 
the following circumstances: 

* The normal course of business 

* The event of default 

+ The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and/or its counterparties. 
ej Principles of Consoltdatian 

{i) Subsidiaries 

The Company controls an entity when the Company is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the abilily to affect those returns thraugh its 

power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control fs transferred to the Company and ceases to be consolidated when the Company lases controf of the 

subsidiary. Fully consolidated means recognition of like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income and expense. Thereafter ihe portion of net profit o7 fass and equity is segregated between the 

Company’ share and share of non-controlling stakehoiders. 

Int tr balances and J gains on tr: ions between the Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated if there {s a profit on ultimate sale 

of goods. When necessary, amaunts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform to the Group's accounting policies. 

(if} Investment in Associates 

Associates include ail entities where the Company has the power to exercise a significant influence. Significant influence is the power te participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of 

the investee but is not control or joint control of those policies. 

The Company’ investment in associates are accounted using the equity method. Goodwill relating to associate is included in the carrying value of the investments and is not tested for 

impairment separately. Under equity method of accaunting, the investments are inilially recorded at cost 

and adjusted thereafter te recagnise the Company’ share of post-acquisition profit and loss, and the Company‘ share of other comprehensive income. Dividend received from associates are 

recognised as a reduction in the carrying arsount of the investments. Unrealised gains on transactions between the Company and its associate are eliminated to the extent of the Company’ 
interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated If there is a profit on ultimate sale of goods. 

  At each reporting date, the Company determines whether there is objective evidence that the fi in the associate is i d. if there [s such evict the carrying ammount is tested for 
impairment by comparing its recoverable amount [higher of value in use and fair value fess costs to sell] with its carrying 

amount and i if any, is ised as ‘Share of profit/{lass} in A: tates’ in the i d of profit and loss.   

iii) The consolidated financial slaternents include results of the following subsidiaries and associate of the Holding Company, conselidated in accordance wilh ind AS 110 ‘Consolidated Financial 
Slatements’. 

as at rep ig date Consoldated as Name of the Company Country of of 

Appnit Technologies Private Limited Subsidiary 
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DMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated Financiai Statements 

Surmmary of significant accounting policies 

Use of estimates,judgements and assumptions 

The pre ian of ii d Financiat inc ity with the Ind AS requires the to make jud; i and fons that affect the reported amounts of 

revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosure and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting year. Estimates and underlying assumptions are 

reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisfons to accounting estimates are recognized in the year in which the estimates are revised. Although these estimates are based on the management's best 
knowledge of Current events and actions, uncertainty about Ihese assumptions and estimates couid result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or 

liabilities in future years. 

In lar, i ion about signifi areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognized 
in the financial statements is included in the [ollowing notes: 

i. Susiness Model Assessment 

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the Salely Payments of Principle and Interest (‘SPPI'} and the business model test. The Group determines the 
business model at 2 level that reflects how Group's financial assels are managed together to achieve 2 icular business objective. This includes judy tetlecting all relevant 

evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance measured, the sisks thal affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how 

the managers of the assets are evaluated. The Group monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income that are derecognised prior to 

their maturity to undersiand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business far which the asset was held. Monitaring is part of the 

Group's continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial assets are held continues te be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whelher there has 

been a change in business model and so a prospective change to the classificalion of thase assets. 

  

i. Impairment of financial assets 

Judgment is required by management in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining an impairment allowance for loans and advances. In estimating these 

cash flows, the Group makes jud; about the b “s financial situallon. These estit are based on about a number of factors such as evedit quality, level of arrears 
ete, and actual resulls may differ, resulling in future changes to the impairment allowance. 

i, Share-based payments 

Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. 

This estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs to the vaivation model including the expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making 
assumptions about them. 

lv. fais value measurement of financial instruments 

The fair value af financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principle (ar most advantageous} market 

al the measurement date under current market conditions {ie. the exit price} regardless of whether that price is directly observable or eslimated using another vafuation technique. When 

the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using 

valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow [“OCF’} mode. The inputs to these models are taken fram observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a 

degree af jud, is required in fishing fair values. Jud; include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these 

factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. 

v. Effective interest Rate (‘EIR’) method 

The Company's EIA methodology, recognises interest income / expense using a rate of return that represents Lhe best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioral life 

af loans given / taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at various stages and other characteristics of the product life cycle (induding prepayments and penalty 

interest and charges}. 

This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behavior and tile-cycle of the instruments, as well expected changes to India's base rate and ather fee 
incomefexnense that are integral parts of Lhe instrument. 

vi. Defined employee benefil assets and Jisbilities 

The cost of the defined benefit gratuily plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial 

valuation involves raking various assumptions that may differ fram actual developments in the future. These include the delermination of the discount rate, future salary increases and 

mortality rates. Due to the cornplexities involved in the valuation and [ts long-term nature, 2 defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assurmplions are 

reviewed at each reporting date. 

fash and cash equivalents 
For the purpose of presentation In the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents incivdes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid 

investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant tisk of changes in value. In the 

consslidated balance sheet, any bank overdrafts, if applicable are included as a component of borrowings. 

Revenue recognition 

i. interest income 

Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate {"E1R') method for all financial ii 

comprehensive income ("FVOCI') and debt instruments designated at [air value through prolit and loss (FYPTL'). 

at ised cost, debt i dat fair value through other 

The EIR {and therefore, the amortised cost of the assets) is the rate that exaclly disceunts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected fife of the financial instrument or 

a shorter year, where appropriate, te the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. The calculation of the effective interest rate takes into accaunt all contractual terms of the financial 

instrument {for example, prepayment options} and includes transaction costs and fees that are an integrat part of the contract but not future credit losses. Transaction costs Include 

incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of financial asset. 

if expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other than credit risk, the adjustment Is recorded as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying 

amount of the asset in the balance sheet with an increase ot reduction in interest income. The adjustment is subsequently amortised through Interest income in the Statement of profit and 

loss. 

The Group calculates interest income by applying the EIA to the gross carrying amount of financial assels, other than credit-impaired assets under stage 3. When a financial asset becomes 

credit-impaired and is, thezefare, regarded as ‘Stage 3’, the Company calculates the interest to the extant recoverable. If the financial assets cures and is no longer credit-impaired, the 

H. Income other than interest 

Revenue {other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Financial instruments are applicable) is measured at Fair value of the consideration received or receivable. ind AS 135 - “Revenue 

from contracts with customers" outlines a single comprehensive model of accounting for revenue arising from contracts with custamers and supersedes current revenue recognition guidance 

found within ind AS. 
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DMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes ta the Consolidated Financlal Statements 

if Fee and commission income 

All other financial charges such as cheque return charges, legal charges, collection charges etc ate recognized on receipt basis. These charges are treated to accrue on realization, due the 
uncertainty of their realization. 

lv Net gain/loss on fair value changes 

Any differences between the fair values of financial assets classitied as fair value through the profit or loss, held by the Group on the balance sheet date is recognised as an unrealised 

Eain/less. in cases there is a net gain in the aggregate,the same is recognised in “Net gains on fair value changes” under Revenue from operations and if there is a net oss the same is 

disclosed under “Expenses” in the statement cl profit and fess. 

v Other fncome 

income on units of mutual funds is recognized on receipt basis as and when redeemed In cash based an the NAV of redemption date. The Group also recognises gain on fair value change of 
mutual fund measured at FVTPL, Alf Other income is recognized on accrual basis of accounting principle. 

vi Dividend Income 

Dividend Income is recognized when the Company's right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend 

Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and i are stated at isition cost fincluding Incidental directly attri 1o bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use] fess accurnulated 

depreciation and Impairment iosses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price, non-refundable taxes or levies, borrowing costs i! capitalization criteria are met and any attributabte cost of bri inging 

the asset to its working condition for its intended use, Subsequent expenditure related lo PPE is capitalized only when il is probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to 

the Company and the cost of item can be measured reliably. Other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed off as end when incurred. 

    

An item of property, plant and i and any partinitially ised is d upsn disposal or when no future ecanomir benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any 

gain or loss arising on dt ‘ian of the asset {calculated as the dilf between ihe net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset] is included in the statement of profit and 
loss when the asset is derecognised. 

Iintanglbte Assets 

(intangible Assets are recognized only é it is probable that the future economic benelits that ave attributable to assets will How fo the enterprise and the cost of the assets can be measured 

reliably. Computer software which is not 3n integral part of the related hard: is classified es an i ible asset. assets are and d at cost and carried at cast less 
2eccumulated amortization and accumulated impairment fasses, if any. 

  

  Intangible assets are amortized on 2 straight line basis over the esti d useful life as ¢: ined by . The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed 

atleast al each financial year end. If the expected uselul life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization period is changed accordi ingly. 

Gains or losses arising frorn derecogni ofan ible asset are das the diff & between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the 
statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized. 

{i} Goodwill 

Goodwill arising on a business combination represents the excess of the fair value of consideration over the identifiable net asset acquired. Fair value of consideration represents the aggrepale of 

the consideration fi d, a reliable esti payable, the amount of any nan-controiling interest in the acquiree and the fair value of any previous equity interest 
in the acquiree on the acquisition date. Net assets acquired represents the fair value of the identilisble 

assets acquired and habilities assumed. 

of 

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired In a business combination is allocated to each of the Cash generating units {CGUs), or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the 

acquisition itself or from the synergies of the combination or both. Each unit ar group of units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill 
is monitored for internal management purposes. 

Goodwill is not amortised but is tested for impairment. Gaodwi't impairment reviews ere generally undertaken annually. The carrying value of the CGU containing the 

goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher af value in use and the fair value fess costs of disposal. Any impairmentis recognised immediately 

as an expense and fs not subsequently reversed unless the CGU is classified as “Asset held for sale” and there is evidence of reversal. Goodwill is subsequently measured at cost less amounts 
provided for impairment. 

Depreciation and amortizatlon 
Depreciation 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment's is calculated an written down value (WDV) basis. Depreciation is provided based on useful life of the assets es prescribed in Schedule # to the 
Companies Act, 2023 as under: 

  

Particulars Usetul Life (years) 

Furniture and Fixtures 10 . 
Vehicle & 
Computer, printers 36 
Office Equipment 5s 

Leasehold improvements and allied office equipment’s are amortized on 2 straight-line basis over usetul life estimated by management. 
Salvage Value of the assets has been taken five percent af Original Cost fexcept intangible assets) as prescribed in Schedule il. 
Depreciation on assets acquired/ sold during the period is recognized on a pro-rata basis ta the statement of profit and loss from/ upte the date of acquisilion/ sale. 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial perlod end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate, 

Amortization 

The Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis ever the estimated useful economic fife. The Group estimates that usefuf life of an intangible asset will not exceed five years [rom the 

date when the asset is available for use. If the persuasive evidence exists to the effect that useful life of an intangible asset exceeds five years, lhe Group amortizes the intangible asset over the 

best estimate of its useful fife. 

Impairment of non-financial assets 

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on Internalfexlernal factors. An Impairment loss {s recognised wherever the 

carrying amount of an asset exceeds fis recoverable ammount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the assets, net selling price and value In use. In assessing value in use, the estimated fulure 

cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset. In determining net 

selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such can be Identified, an approp: uation model is used. After impairment, depreciallon is 
provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful fife. 
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DMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to the Cansolidated Financial Statements 

Leases 

Company as a lessee: 

The Greup’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The Group assesses whether 2 contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contraclis, of contains, 

2 lease if the contsact conveys the right to caniro! the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the sight to control 

the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses whether: 

+ The contract invoives the use of an identified asset 

« The Group has substantially all the econornic benefils from use of the asset through the periad ol the lease and 

+ The Group has the right to direct the use of the asset 

Measurement and recognition: 

At lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the balance sheet. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initiat 

measurement ol the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Group, an estimale of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the ease, and any lease payments 

made in advance of the lease commencement date inet of any incentives received}, 

The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis fram the lease commencement date te the earlier of the end of the useful fe of the right-of use asset ar the end of the 

lease term. The Group also assesses the cight-of-use asset for it when such indice’ exist. At the date, the Group measures the lease liability at the present value 

af the lease payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the fease if Lhat rate is readily available or the Company's incremental borrowing rate. 

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased far interest. it Is d to reflect any or jon, or if there are 

changes in in-substance fixed payments. When the lease liability is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of use asset, or profit and foss if the right-of-ase asset is 

already reduced te zere, 

Short term Lease: 

The Group has elected not ta recognise right of use asset and tease liabilities for short term leases of praperty thal has lease term of less than 12 months, The Group Fecopnises iease 

payment associated with these leases as an expense on 2 straight-line basis over lease term. 

Group as a lessor: 

As a fessor the Group classifies its leases as either operating or finance leases. A lease is classified as a finance tease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to 
ownership of Lhe underlying asset, and classified as an operating lease if it does not. 

Provisions 
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation {legal or constructive] as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will 

be required to settle the obligatian and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relaling to any provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net 

of any reimbursement.pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the cisks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised 

as a finance cost. 

Contingent liabilities and assets 

Contingent fiabuities 

The Group does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in ihe financial statements Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of: 

+ Apresent obligation arising from past events, when ft is nat probable that an outflow of resources will not be required to settle the obligation 

* Apresent obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possibic. 

= A posstble obfigation arising from past events, unless the prabability of outilow of resources is remote. 

Contingent liabilities are reviewed at each balance sheet date. 

Contingent assets 
Contingent assets are not recognised. A contingent asset is disclosed, as required ty Ind AS 37, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable. 

Employee benefits 

TH. 

  

Defined contribution plan 

The Group pays provident fund ibutions to publicly admint: provident funds as per local regulations. The Group has ne further payment obligations once the contributions have 

been paid. The contributions are accounted fer as defined contribution plans and the contribulions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due. Hl the contribution 

payabie to the scheme far service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting 

the contribution already paid. if the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheel date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the 

extent that the pre-payment will fead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund. 

Defined benefit pian 

The plan provides for lump sum payments te employees upon death while in employment or on separation fram employment after serving for the stipulaled years mentioned under ‘The 

Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972". Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation at each Balance Sheet date using the Projected Unit Credit Method. 

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding armounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan 

assets {excluding amounts included in net interest on the net delined benefit liability}, are recagnised immediately in the balance sheet with a correspanding debit or credit to retained 

earnings through OCI In the year in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or lass in subsequent years. 

Past service costs are recognised in staternant of profit or loss on the earlier of: The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and the date that the Group recognises related restructuring 

costs. 

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an 

expense in the statement of profit and loss: Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and iosses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and Net interest 

expense or incame. 

Compensated absences 

Entitiements to annual leave are recognized when they accrue to the employees. Leave enlillements can be availed while in service of employment subject to restriction on the maximum 

number of accumutalions. The Group determines the liability for such accumulated leave entitlements cn the basis of actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary at the Year 

end, 

 



OMi Finance Private Limited 
Notes ta the Consolidsted Financial Statements 

  

i} Foreign currencies 

'n preparing the consolidated financial statements, transactions In currencies ather than the entity's functional currency (foreign currencies) are Tecognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at 

the dates of the transactions. At the end of each Teporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items 

carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-moneltary iterns that are measured in 

terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranstaied, 

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit o7 loss in the period in which they arise, 

m) Taxes 

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax, The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the taxable income of the current period based on the applicable income tax 

tates adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities atirihutable to temporary differences and unused tax fosses. 

Current tax 

Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorilles in accordance wilh the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in india and tax laws Prevailing in the respective tax 

Jurisdictions where the Group operales. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those thot 3re enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Current income tax 

relating to ilems Tecagnized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the statement of profit and less. 

Deferred tax 
Deferred taxes reflect the ienpact of timing differences between taxable income and accounting incone originating during the current Year and reversal of timing differences for the garlier years. 
Deferred tax is measused using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted os substantively enacted ot the reporting date. Deferred incame tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is 

recognized In equity and not in the Statement of profit and foss. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable timing dilferences. Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible timing differences only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty 
that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized, At each reporting date, the Group re-assesses unrecognited deferred tax assets. it recognizes unrecognized deferred tax asset to the extent that it has become reasonably certain, as the case may 
be, that sufficient future taxable Income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized, 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each Teporting date. The Group writes-down the carrying amount of deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably 
certain, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which deferred tax asset can be realized. Any such write-down is reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain, as 

the case may be, that sulficient future taxable income will be available. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax fiabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set-off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and defersed 
taxes refate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation avthority. 

n} Earning per share 

Basic earnings per share fs calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of the company {after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes} by the 
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period, Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period. 
The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the Period ts adjusted [or events such as shared based payments, bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and 
reverse share split (consolidation of shares} that have thanged the number of equity shares ding, without a corr ing change in 
For the purpose of taleulaling diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders of the group and the weighted average number of shares 
outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all difutive potential equity shares. 

©} Financial instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liabil ity or equity instrument of another entity. 
i, Financial Assets 

A, Initlal recognition and measurement 
The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates te cash flows 
that are sotely payments of Principal and interest (SPP! Hl cn the principal amount outstanding. 

Financial assets, with the exception of loans and advances to customers, are initially recognised on the trade date, ie., the date that the Group becomes a parly to the contractual provisions 
of the instrument. Loans and advances to customers are recognised when funds are disbursed. The classification of financiaf Instruments at initial Fecognition depends on their purpose and 
characteristics and the Management's intention when acquiring them, 

Accordingly, the Group measures bank balances, iaans and advances, trade receivables and other financial instruments at amortised cost. 
B. Classification and subsequent measurement 

‘The financial asset at amort, ised cost subsequently measured at amortised cost using elective interest method. The amerthsed cost is reduced by impairment losses, interest inceme, foreign 
exchange gain and losses and impairment are recognised in statement of profit and loss. Any gain ard loss on derecognition [s recognised in statement of profit and less. 
For the purpose of subsequent meas urement , financial assets are classified in three categories: + Gebt instrument at amortised cost 
+ Debt instrument at fair value through other comprehensive incame (FVTOCI) + Debt instrument and equity instruments at fair value thro ugh profit or Joss(FYTPL} 

  



DMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Debt instruments at emortised costs 

A debt instrument’ is measured at the amostised cost if both the following conditions are met: 

« The asset fs held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and 

= Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest {SPP} on the principal amount outstanding. 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate {EIR} method fess impairment. Amortised cast is catcufated by 

taking into account any discount cr premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR, The EIR amortisation is included in interest income in the statement of profit 

or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and toss. 

Debt insiruments at FVTOC 

A ‘debt insteument is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met: 

« The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and 

+ The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI. 

Debt instruments included within the EVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive 

income {OCi}. However, the Graup recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, 

cumulative gain ar lass previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FYTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR 

method. 

Debt insteuments at EVTPE 

FVTPL is a residual categary for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which dees not mect the criteria for categotitation as at amortized cost of as FYTOCI, is classified as at FYTPL. 

In addition, the Group may elect to desi a debt i which oth meets Bed cost or FYTOC! criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed anly if doing so 

reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency {referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’}. Debt instruments included within the FYTPL category are measured at fair value 

with all changes recognized in Ihe P&L. 

Business mode: The business model reflects how the Group manages the assets in order to generate cash flaws. That is, where the Group's objective is solely to collect the contractual cash 

flows from the assets, the same is measured at amortized cost or where the Group's objective is to callect both the contractual cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of assets, the 

same is measured at fair value through olher comprehensive income {FVTOC!). I neither of these is applicable {e.g. llnancial assets are heid for trading purposes), then the financial assets are 

classified as part of ‘other’ business model and measured at FVTPL. 

SPPI; Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contractuat cash flows fie. measured at amortized cost), the Group assesses whether the financial instruments’ cash flows 

represent solely payments of principal and interes? (the “SOP) test’). in making this assessment, the Group considers whether the cantractual cash flows are consistent with 2 basic lending 

arrangement i.e. interest incledes only consideration for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending risks and 2 profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement. 

Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a baste lending arrangement, the related financial assel is classified and measured at [air value 

through profit or loss. The tized cost, as tioned above, Is using the effective interest rate method, 

The lasses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 
  

F. Derecoganition 

  

The Group derecognises 2 financial asset when the contractual rights lo the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards 

of ownership of the asset to another party. if the Group neither transfers sor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to contral the transferced asset, the 

Group recognises its retained interest in the assel and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially ail the risks and rewards of ownership of 2 

transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also cecognises a collaleralised borrowing for the praceeds received. 

‘On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the dilference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the eumulative gain of 

fated in equity is ised in profit or loss If such gain or joss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or 

joss that had been recognised in other comp income and ace 

loss on disposat of that financial asset. 

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in ils entirety (e.g. when the Group retains an option to repurchase part of 2 transferred asset}, the Group allocates the previous carrying 

amount of the financial asset the part it i te ise under inuing invol it, and the part it no longer recagnises on the basis of the relative fair values of those 

parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part thal Is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part no 

longer recognised and any cumutative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have 

otherwise been recognised in profit or joss on disposal of that financial asset. & cumulative gain or oss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part 

that continues to be recognised and the part that js no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of hose parts. 

Equity Investments and Mutual funds 

All equity investments In scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as heid at FVTPL For all ather equity instruments, the 

Group may make an frrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Group makes such election on an insirument-by- instrument 

basis. The classificatian is made on, initial recognition and is irrevocable. 

if the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOC:, then ail fair value changes on the instrument, exciuding dividends, are recognized In the OCI. There is no recycling of the 

amounts fromm GC! to Statement of profit and loss, even on sate of investment. However, the Group may teansfer the cumulative gain or loss within equily. 
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Financia Liabilities 

initial recognition and measurement 

Financial Habilities are classified and measured at amortised cost of FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if It is classified as held-for trading or it is designated as on initial recognition, AH financial Habilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the ease of loans and bi ings and bles, net of directly tre ‘fon costs. Other financial liabllities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense are recognised in Staternent of profit and loss. Any gain or foss on derecognition 1s also recognised in Statement of profit and loss, 

  

The Group’s financial liabilities include loans, debentures and borrowin gs including bank overdrafts and trade & other payables. 

Loans, Oebenture and Dorrowlngs 

After initial eecognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amottised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised fn Profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. 
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on aequisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is induded as finance tosts In the Statement of profit and loss. 

nancial llabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost 
Financlal llabilitles that are not held-for-trading and are nat designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial ifabilities that are subsequently measured al amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset ts included in the ‘Finance costs’ fine item. 

The eflective interest method is 3 methad of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liabitity and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period, The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and paints paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts} through the expected life of the financial liability, or {where appropriate] a shorter period, ta the net carrying amount on initial recognition. 

Financial guarantee contracts 
A financial guarantee contract !s a contract that requires the issuer to make spacified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss Il incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. 

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Gro! up are initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of: 

+ the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of ind AS 109; and 
- the amount initially recognised fess, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised. 

Derecognition of financial Habilities 

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired, An exchange hetween with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as ah extinguishment of the originat financiat liability and the recognition of 3 new financial liability, Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing Financial liability {whether or net attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial lability and the recognition of a new financial lability. The difference between the carrying smeunt of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss. 

Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities 
The Group doesn’t reclassify Its financial assets sutsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the exceptional circumstances in which the Group acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business Jine. Financiat liabilities are never reclassified. 

Fale value measurement 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid lo transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fal value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

In the principal market for the asset or lability, or 
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous masket for the asset or liabitity The principal or the most advantageaus market must be accessible by the Group. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured Using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes ito account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The Group uses vatuati ni thet are appronriate in the ci and for which data are 
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 

io measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 2s 2 whole: 

Level 1 — Quoted {unadjusted} market prices in active markets for Identical assets of fiabili ties. 
level 2 ~ Valuation techniques far which the lowest levet input that is significant to the [air value measurement is directly or indirectly observable. level 3 ~ Valuation techniques for which the lawest level in put that is significant ta the fair value measurement is unobservable. 
For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whelher transfers have occurred betwaen levels in the hierarchy by re- assessing categorisalion (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each re porting year. 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

3, Impairment of financial assets 

|. Guerview of the impairment principies ("ECL’} 

In accordance with Ind AS 169, the Group is required lo measure expected credit losses on its financial instruments designated at amortized cost and fair value through other comprehensive 

income. Accordingly, the Group Is required to determine lifetime losses on linancial instruments where credit risk has increased significantly since its origination. For other instruments, the 

Group is required to recognize credit fosses over next 1? month period. The Group has an option to determine such lasses on individual basis of collectively depending upon the nature of 

underlying portfolio. The Group has a pracess to assess credit risk of all exposures at each year end as follows: 

  

Stage F 

These represent exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit tisk since initial recognition or that has low credit risk at the reporting date, The Group has assessed that 

all standard exp (Le. exp with no J and exp: upte 30 day fail under this category. In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group measures ECi on such assets 

over nexl 12 months. 

Stage El 

Financial instruments that have had a significant increase in credit risk since inittal recognition are classified under this stage. Based an empirical evidence, significant increase in credit risk is 

yatnessed alter the overdues on an exposure exceed for 2 period more than 30 days. Accordingly, the Group classifies all exposures with overducs exceeding 30 days at each reporting date 

under this Stage. The Group measures lifetime ECL on stage i foans. 

Stage fil 

All exposures having overdue balances far a period exceeding 90 days are considered to be defaults and are classified under this stage. Accordingly, the Group measures lifetime losses on 

such exposure. Interest revenue on such contracts is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortized cost (net of impairment allowance} instead of the gross carrying 

amount. The method és simitar to Stage H assets, with the prabability of default set at 100%. 

When estimating ECL on a collective basis for a group of similar assets, the Group applies the same principles for assessing whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since 

initial recognition. 

i. The calcuiation of ECis 

The mechanics of the ECL catculation involve the use of following key elements: 

Probability of default {PD} - The probability of default is an estimate of the likelihood of defau!l over 3 given time horizan {12-month or lifetime, depending upon the slage of the asset}. PO 

estimation is done based on historical internal data available with the Group. 

Exposure at default (EAD) ~ i! represents an estimate of the exposure of the Group at a future date after considering repayments by the counterparty before the default event occurs. The 

outstanding balance as at reporting date is considered as EAD by the Group. Considering the PD determined above factors in amount at default, there is no separate requirement to estimate 

EAD. 

Loss given default (LGD) - It represents an eslimate of the loss expected to be incurred when the event of default occurs. The Group uses historicat ioss data/external agency LGB for 

identified pools for the purpose of calculating LGD. 

fil. Definition of Default and cure 

The Group considers a financial insteument as defaulted and classifies it as Stage fll {eredit-impaired) for ECL calculations typically when the borrawer becomes 90 days past due an 

contractual payments. The Group may also classify a loan in Stage Ill if there is significant deterioration In the financial condition of the borrower of an assessment that adverse market 

conditions may have 2 disproportionately detrimental effect on the loan repayment. Thus, as a part of the qualitative assessment of whether an instrument is in default, the Group also 

considers a variety of instances that may indicate defay in or non-repayment of the loan. When such events occur, the Group carefully considers whether the event shoutd result in treating 

the borrower as defaulted and therefore assessed as Stage Hl for ECL catculations or whether Stage {i is appropriate. 

Classification of accounts into Stage I! is done when there is a significant increase in credit risk since initial recagnition, typically when contractual repayments are more than 30 days past duc. 

Itis the Group’s policy to consider a financial instrument as ‘cured’ and therefore re-classified out of Stage fli or Stage Il when none of the default criteria which resulted in their downgrade 

are present. 

lv. Forward Icoking information 

While estimating the expected credit losses, the Group reviews macro-economic developments occurring in the economy and market it operates in. On a periodic basis, the Group analyses if 

there is any relationship between key econamic treads like GDP, Unemployment rates, Benchmark rates set by the Reserve Bank of India, inflation etc. with the estimate of PB, LGD 

determined by the Group based on Its internat data. While the internal estimates of PD, LGD rates by the Group may not be always reflective of such relationships, tempoiary overlays are 

embedded in the methodology to reflect suck macro-economic trends reasonably. 

v. Write-offs 

Financial assets are written off either partially ar in their entirety only when the Group has no reasonable expectation of recovery. if the amount to be wrilten off is greater than the 

accumulated loss allowance, the difference recorded as an expense in the period of write off. Any subsequent recoveries are credited to impairment on financial instrument on statement of 

profit and loss. 

vi.Coliateral repossessed 

The Group's policy is to seit id assets. Non-li ial assets rep dare ferred to asset held (or sale at fair value less cost to sell or principal outstanding whichever is less at 

repossession date. 

Share based payments 

Equity-settled share based payments to em| ployees and others providing similar services are measured al the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. 

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity settled share based payments is expensed on a straight line basis over the vesting year, based on the Group's estimate of equity 

instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding Increase in equity. At the end of each reporting year, the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to 

yest, The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in Statement of Prolil and Loss such that the curnulative expenses reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding 

adjustment to the Share Based Payments Reserve. 

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share. 

Segment reporting 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The copmany’s primary business segments are reflected based 

on the principal business carried out, ie. fending activities as Non-Banking Finance Company {NBFC) regulated by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI). The risk and returns of the business of the 

Company is not associated with geographical segmentation, hence there is no secondary segment. 
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1) Interest in Subsidiazies and associate entities 
investment in subsidiaries and assaciate entit ies are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an ind! ization of impairment exists, the car rying amount of the investment Is assessed and written down valve immediate ly 10 its recoverable amaunt. Ga disposal of investment in subsidiaries or the loss of significant influence aver jointly controlled entities, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognised in the staternent of profit and loss. 

  

3) Borrowing Cost 
Borrowing Costs consists of interest and other costs that an entity incurs In connection with the borrowings of funds, Borrowing costs also includes exchange difference to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs. 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the isitlon or ion of 2 qualifying assel are lized as 3 part of the cost of that asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale, The Company considers a period of twelve months or more as 2 substantial period of time. 

Transaction costs in respect of long term borrowing are amortized over the tenure of respective loans using Effective interest Rate {EIR) method. All other borrowing costs are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss In the periad in which they are incurred. 

Recent pronouncements 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") nolilies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Autes as issued fram time to time. On 31 March, 2023, MCA ded the Ci jes {indian ing i yA di Rules, 2615, licable from ¥ April, 2623, as below: 

ind AS 1— Presentation of Financial Statements 
The amendments require com panies te disclose their material accou: nting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information, together with ether information, is material when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary users of €eneral purpose financial statements. The Campany does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements. 

ind AS £2 -incame Taxes 
The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tay on transactions such as leases and di 2 ing obligatl The id the scope of the recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 {recognition exemption) so that it ne longer applies te transactions thal, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. The Company is evaluating the impact, if any, in its financial statements. 

Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policles, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors 
The amendments will help entitles to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The definition of a change in accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”. Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in financial statements to be measured in a way that involves measurement uncertainty. The Company daes not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements. 
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(All Amount in Rs. in millions, unless otherwise stated} 

4 Cashand cash equivalents As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Cash on hand 
0.10 6.10 

Balance with banks 

- balance in current accounts and overdraft accounts* 
5,699.66 5,829.54 

Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months 
7 1,000.60 

§,699.76 6,829.64 

* Includes Escrow account balance of Rs. 15.82 millions {previous year: Rs. 8.38 millions} which is maintained as per 

guidelines of Reserve Bank of india for operating Semi closed Prepaid Payment Instrument and can be used only for the 

specified ourposes. 

5 Sank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 

Deposit with original maturity of more than 3 months* 
570.25 294.66 

570.25 294.66 

* Deposits being lien marked against corporate credit cards and overdraft accaunts or pledged as margin far credit 

enhancement 

6 Trade receivables 

Considered good - Unsecured 
312.09 61.03 

Considered good ~- Secured 

Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 
- - 

Receivables — credit impaired 
- 

312.09 61.03 

Less: Impairment loss allowance 
- - 

312.09 61.03 

Trade receivables from related parties (see note 42) 

Trade receivables aging schedule 

As at 31 March 2023 

  

. jess than 6 

Particulars months 6 months- 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 year Totai 

Undisputed Trade Receivables — considered good 308.23 - - - 3.86 312.09 

Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in 
- 

credit risk 
- - ~ 

Undisputed Trade receivable — credit impaired - - - - . - 

Disputed Trade receivables - considered good - - - - - 

Disputed Trade receivables — which have significant increase in credit - - - - . - 

Disputed Trade receivables — credit impaired   

As at 31 March 2022 

  

. 
less than & 

Particulars months & months- 1 year 2-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 year Total 

Undisputed Trade Receivables ~ considered good $7.17 - - - 3.86 61.03 

Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in . 
- 

credit risk 

Undisputed Trade receivable — credit impaired - - - - - - 

Disputed Trade receivables - considered good - . - - . 

Disputed Trade receivables — which have significant increase in credit 

risk 
Disputed Trade receivables — credit impaired   

$7.17 : : - 3.86 61.03 

Nate: The ageing of trade receivables has been determined from the transaction date 
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(Ail Amount In Rs. in millions, unless otherwise stated) 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

7 Loans 

As at As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Amortised cost Fair value Total Amortised cost Fair value Total 
through other through other 
comprehensive comprehensive 

income income 
(A) Term loans 

Corporate loans* 12,054.20 137.86 12,192.00 15,680.69 367.90 16,048.60 
Consumer loans 59,114.63 - 59,114.03 33,856.86 - 33,856.86 

Total {A} Gross 71,168.23 137.80 71,306.03 49,537.55 367.90 43,905.46 
Less: Impairment loss allowance 3,945.18 16.38 3,963.56 3,092.83 11.48 3,104.31 

Total (A) Net 67,223.05 421.42 67,344.47 46,444.73 356.42 46,801.15 

{8) 
Secured by tangible assets and intangible assets 11,999.70 137.80 12,128.50 15,680.69 367.90 16,048.60 
Unsecured 59,177.53 - 59,177.53 33,856.86 - 33,856.86 
Total (B} Gross 71,368.23 137,80 71,306.03 49,537.55 367.90 45,905.46 
Less: Impairment loss allowance 3,945.18 16.38 3,961.56 3,092.83 11.48 3,104.37 
Totai (B} Net 67,223.05 121.42 67,344.47 46,444.73 356.42 46,801.15 

{C} Sector 

Public sector - - - : - - 
Others 74,168.23 137.80 71,306.03 49,537.55 367.98 49,905.46 
Total (C) Gross 71,168.23 137.80 71,306.03 49,537.55 367.90 49,905.46 
Less: Impairment loss allowance 3,945.38 16.38 3,961.56 3,092.83 11.48 3,104.31 
Total (C} Net 67,223.05 121.42 67,344.47 46,444.73 356.42 46,801.15 

{b} 
In India 71,168.23 137.80 71,306.03 49,537.55 367.90 49,905.46 
Outside India - - - - - - 
Total (D) Gross 74,168.23 137.80 74,306.03 49,537.55 367.90 49,905.46 
Less: Impairment loss allowance 3,945.18 16.38 3,961.56 3,692.83 411.48 3,104.31 
Total (B) Net 67,223.05 121.42 67,344.47 46,444,73 356.42 46,801.15 

=
 

i 

ii 

iv 

} 

  

* Corporate loan portfolio includes loan outstanding from employees of Rs. 0.32 millions (previous year: Rs. 1,72 millions} 

Notes: 
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets which generate a fixed or variable interest income for the Holding Company. The carrying value may be affected 
by changes in the credit risk of the counterparties. 

Secured Loans granted by the Halding Company are secured by equitable mortgage/registered mortgage of the property and/or undertaking to create a security and/or personal guarantees and/or hypothecation of assets and/or receivables and/or pledge of shares/debenture units and other securities. 

Corporate loan portfolio includes non-convertible debentures of Rs. 2,338.58 millions (previous year: Rs. 3,774.76 millions) 

Disclosure in respect to loan given to Key management personnel {KMP) of Holding Company 

Amount of oan or advance in the Percentage to the total loans and 
nature of loan outstanding advances in the nature of loans 

  Type of Borrower 
As at Asat Asat As at 

March 31, 2023 March 34,2022 March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 Key management personnel (KMP) - - . 

  



DMi Finance Private Limited 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

{All Amount in Rs. In millions, uniess otherwise stated} 

2.1 Impaisment allowance for loans and advances to borrawers. 

Summary of loans by stage distribution is as fallows: 

foans 

7, 

  

Summary of credit substitutes and compulsory convertible debentures by stage distribution is as follaws: 

substitutes and compulsory convertible debentures 

  

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount in relation to consumer and corporate lending (except credit substitutes and compulsory convertible debentures) is, as follows: 

loans 

Assets originated, Netted off for repayments 24,405.79 25,257.17 | 15,164.63 izs6| 14,603.20 
41.43 

603.45. 

amount bafance 57,309.78 

loans 
Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stagel Stage 3 Total 

i fi Assets originated, ior repayments (7 (3,856.60) 2,478.79 2,182.06 

  

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying arnount of Investments in relation to Credit Substitutes and Compuisory Convertible Debentures is, as follows: 

substitutes and compulsory convertible debentures 

amount 

iginated, fi Assets originated, for repayments 4,520.66 1,520.66 

 



DMI Finance Private Limited 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

{Alf Amount In Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated} 

An analysis of changes In the ECL allowal inces in relation to consumer and corporate lending (except Credit Subst! itutes and Compulsory Cenvertibie Debentures} ls, as follows: 

foans 

    

  

for repayments 62.86] 3,384.52] 3,568.40 4372.30[ 1,479.88 
4 

repayments 
(13.35) 

Offs 
- - : - : : - - allowance closing balance 256.96 | 1,338.45} 1399.32 | 2,736.73 1.85556 25.28 642.05] 2,523.90 

An analysis of changes in the ECL allowances of Investment in relation to Credit Substitutes and Compulsory Convertible Debentures {refer note 8) Is, as follows: 

substitutes and compulsory convertible debentures 

  

on new assets for repayments {701,53} 

allowance closing balance 
351.99 2,117.17 1,193.33 315.85 1513.18 

7.2 Collateral 

in case of corporate term loans the Holding Company Is in the business of extending secured loans tnainly backed by mortgage of property (residential or commercial). 'n addition to the above mentioned collateral, the Holding Company holds other types of collateral and credit enhancements, such as cross-collateralisation on other assets of the 
borrower, share pledge, guarantees of parent/hoiding/group Personal of promoters/partners/prop oy h n of receivables vla escrow account and 
others 
In its normal course of business, the Holding Company does not physically repossess properties or other assets, but recovery efforts are made on delinquent leans through collection 
executives, along with legal means to recover due loan repayments. 
Once contractual loan repayments are more than 90 days past due, repossession of property may be initiated under the Provisions of the SARFAES! Act 2002. Re-possessed Property is. 
disposed of in the manner Prescribed in the SANFAES| act to recover outstanding debt. 

  

 



OM Finance Private Limited 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

(All Amount in As. In millions, unless otherwise stated) 

& investments 

As at March 31, 2623 

{A} Equity instruments 

(3; 

Investments in Subsidiaries / Assoctates 
Equity shares In DMI Alternatives Private ilmited 

Subtota! 

Mutual funds 

100,175.67 units in HDFC liquid fund-direct pian-growth 

Subtotal 

Others 
Equity shares in OMI Consumer Credit Private Limited 

Equity shares in Flash Electronics Private Limited 

Compulsory convertible preference shares in Alchemist Asset 

Reconstructian Company Limited 

Equity shares in Alchemist Asset Reconstr! uction Company Limited 

Equity shares in Azad Engineering Private Limited 

Equity shares in Radiant Polymers Private Li imited 

Subtotal 

Compulsory or Gptionally Convertible Debentures 

7,500 Compulsory cal nvertible debentures in Flash Electronics Indla 

Private Llmited of face value Rs 100,000 each 

600 Complusory converlible debentures in Siorad Medisys Private 

Limited of face value of Rs. 10,00,000 each 

Subtotal 

Credit Substitutes 

80S units of Saha Estate Developer Private Limited of face value Rs 

1,000,000 fully paid up 

629 units of Raheja Icon Entertainment Private Limited of face value 

Rs 1,000,006 fully paid up 

Subtotal 

Investment in Pass through certificates{unquoted) 

Other instruments 
Units of DMI AIF Special Opportunities Scheme 

Subtotal 

Total (A} Gross 

Less: Impalrmeat toss allowance 

Total {A} Net 

Investments outside India 

investments In India 

Total (B} Gross 
Less: Impairment loss allawance 

Total (8) Net 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

At talr value ee - 

Amortised cost through profit UB e Subtotal Equity method Total 
comprehensive 

and loss . 
income 

: - - : 72.63 71.63 

- - : 71,63 71.62 

: 443.10 = 443.10 : 443.10 

- 443.10 : 443.10 : 443.18 

« - 3.48 3.48 - 3.48 

. - 818.97 818.37 : 818.97 

- - 34.50 34.56 - 34.50 

- - 215.76 215.76 - 215.76 

- 227.04 - 227.04 : 227.04 

- = 208.36 100.10 100.38 

- 227.04 1,472.81 1,399.85 : 1,399.85 

. - 1,560.00 1,560.00 - 1,560.00 

- - 600.27 600.27 - 600.27 

- : 2,160.27 2,460.27 : 2,160.27 

943.72 - 358.36 1,302.08 - 1,302.08 

172.92 - 179.07 351.99 - 351.99 

1,116.64 = 537.43 1,654.07 = 1,654.07 

- 3,515.33 - 3,815.31 - 3515.34 

= = 3.73 9.73 z 9.73 

= : 9.73 9.73 = 9.73 

3,116.64 4,185.45 3,880.24 9,382.33 71.63 9,253.97 

668.70 = 448.47 3417.17 - 3217.17 

447.54 4,185.45 _ 3,431.77, 6,065.16 71.43 8,135.89 

1,115.64 4,185.45 3,880.24 9,182.33 74.63 9,253.97 

1,216.64 4,485.45 3,886.24 9,182.33 71.63 9,253.87 

668.70 : 44B.A7 1,317.17, = 4,127.27 

447.94 4,185.45 3,431.77 B,06$.16 73.63 8,135.80 

  

 



OM! Finance Private Limited 

Notes to Consolidated Financia! Statements 

{All Amaunt in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated} 

  

At fair value 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

At fair vatue through other 
As at March 31, 2022 Amortised cast = through profit . Subtetal Equity method Total comprehensive 

and loss 
income 

{A} Equity Instruments 

lnvestments in Associates 

Equity shares in CMI Alternatives Private Limited - = : - 126.30 126.30 Subtotal : : : : 326.30 426.30 Others 

Equity shares in DMI Consumer Credit Private Umlted - - 3.37 3.37 - 3.37 Equity shares in Flash Electronics Private Limiled - - 793.37 793.97 - 793.97 Equity shares in Alchemist Asset Reconstruction Company Limited > - 245,76 235.76 - 215.76 

Compulsory convertible preference shares in Alchemist Asset - - 3450 34.50 - 34.50 Reconstruction Company Limited 
Subtotat : : 1,047.60 1,037.60 = 1,047.60 Mutual funds 

234,062.94 3aroda BNP Paribas Liquid Fund - Direct Growth - 574.34 - 574.14 - 578.16 418,933.27? HDFC Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth Option - 1,753.13 - 1,753.13 - 1,753.13 76,685.49 HDFC Money Market fund - Regular Plan Growth 295.82 295.82 - 295.82 468,743.91 S8i Uquid Fund Direct Grawth - 1,562.37 a 4,562.37 - 4,552.37 208,156.56 UT! Liquid Cash Plan - Direct Plan - Growth - 726.06 726.06 - 726.06 4,879,040.68 ICICI Liquid Fund - DP Growth - 592.38 592.38 . 592.38 212,254.65 Axis Liquid Fund - Direct Growth x $01.79 501.79 = 592.79 Subtotal : 6,005.68 : 6,065.68 : 6,005.68 
Compulsory or Optionally Convertible Debentures 

7,500 Compulsory convertible debentures In Flash Electronics India . - 1,348.33 1,448.13 - 1,148.13 Private Umited of face value Rs 100,000 each 
1,777 Compulsory convertible debentures in Azad Engineering India . §31.43 - 631,43 - 631.43 
Private Limited of face value of Rs. 1,00,000 each 

4,200 Optionally convertible debentures in Azad Engineering india ~ 434.44 - $346.44 434,46 Private Limiled of face value of Rs. 1,60,00 each 

Subtotat 
: 2,065.87 3,148.33 7,240.00 - 2,214.00 Credit Substitutes 

472 units of Panchsheel Buildtech Private Limited of face value Rs 69.50 - 23.76 93.26 - 93.26 1,000,000 fully paid up 
500 units of Radiant Polymers Private Limited of face value Rs 626.00 . - 626.05 - 626.00 
1,000,008 fully paid up 

628 units of Raheja Icon Entertainment Private Limited of face value 172.92 - 179.07 351.95 - 351.99 
Rs 1,000,000 fully oaid up 
805 units of Saha Estate Developer Private Limited of face value Rs 622.30 - 311.41 4,433.71 - 1,133.71 1,008,009 fully paid up 

Subtotal 1,690.72 : $14.24 2,204.96 : 2,204.96 Other Instruments 

Security receipts in Alchemist XV Trust - 194.44 : 394.31 - 194.12 Units of DMI AIF Special Qpportunities Scheme : - 10.10 18.10 - 20.20 Subtotal = 184,34 416.10 204.2% = 294.24 
Tatal {A) - Gress 1,690.72 7,265.65 2,720.07 11,676.45 426.30 11,862.75 Less: Impairment loss allowance 4148.26 61.79 363.33 1,513.18 < 1,513.18 Fotal (A} Net 

$42.46 7,203.87 2,416.94 10,363.27 126.30 10,289.57 

(8) investments outiide india - « - - - . 
Investments in india 1,690.72 7,265.66 2,720.07 11,676.45 426.30 12,862.75 Total (8} - Gross 1,690.72 7,265.66 2,720.07 11,676.45 126.30 11,802.75 Less: Impalrment toss allowance 4,348.26 61.79 303.13 4513.18 : 1543.18 Total (6) - Net 342.46 7,203.87 2,436.94 10,363.27 226.30 10,289.57 

Notes: 

{i} For movement of impairment loss allowance refer note 7.4 
{ii] Detail of Group's associate is given below, Associate is included in the Group's financial statements using equity method of accounting: 

ee, . Place of Principal piace of particulars Asat Asat Name of entity Principal Activity Incorporation business. March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

DMi Alternatives Private Limited investment Manager Delht Dethi % share in profits 48% 45% 
  

  

{ll} An analysis of Group's investment in associate is as follows: 

(iv) 

Asat AS at 

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 
Balance at the beginning of (he year 125.36 129,73 
Addition/Adiustment 

- O.14 
Disposal . - 
Share of Profils/(Loss} {54.67} (3.57) 
Dividend received 

= = 
Balance at the end of the year 71,63 126.30 

Financial information 

None of the associates of the Group is individually material, financial information aggregating 100% of the results is as follows: 

Year ended Year ended 

March 31,2023 March 33, 2022 
Profit/ {loss} efter tay (111.57) {7.28} 
Other Comprehensive income 0.53 0.31) 
Total Comprehensive Income (241.04) 7.60) 

   



DMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

{All Amount ia Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated) 

9 Other financial assets [at amortized cost) 

£ 

1 

o 
me 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Asat Asat 

March 33, 2623 March 31, 2022 

Security deposit 26.24 25.55 

First loss default guarantee recoverable 133.13 90.54 

Interest accrued on fixed deposits 11.03 13.74 

Money with partners pending for disbursement : 898.89 

Recoverable from partner 104.24 - 
Unbilied revenue and recoverables 8S 8813 

pepe ecco 90.090 610.08 

Current tax assets 
Advance Income-tax {net} 198.76 296.33 

198.76 296.43 

Deferred tax assets 

Deferred tax liability 

Fair value of financial instruments 321.69 379,33 

Dilference in income recognition on unrealized gain on mutual fund investments 9.97 23.80 

Total deferred tax liabilines 3323.66 463.13 

Deferred tax asset 

Provision for employee benefits 30.85 20.96 

Difference in written down value as per Companies Act and Income-tax Act 45.42 12.18 

E1R adjustment for processing fee 260.36 77.23 

Liability against leases 11.05 $91 

Impairment loss allowance 4,260.30 1,134.17 

Notional interest on Market linked debentures 14.87 - 

Non deductible tax expenses 0.08 - 
Carry fonvard of losses 18.82 3.23 

Carry forward of interest disallowed u/s 948 : 28.53 
Gross deferred tax asset 1,851.15 1,283.27 

Net Deferred Tax (Lability)/ Asset 1,219.49 880.14 

Asat {Charged)/ credited (Charged}/credited to As at 

to statement Movement of deferred tax assets March 31, 2022 o statement of other comprehensive March 31, 2023 
profit and toss income 

Uabilities 
Fair value of financial instruments 379.33 {114.96} $7.32 321.68 

Difference in income recognition on unrealized gain on mutual fund investments 23.80 (13.83} - 9.937 

Deferred Tax Liabilities 403.13 (178.79) 37.32 331.66 

Assets 

Provision for employee benefits 20.36 14.13 {4.24} 30.85 

Difference in written down value as per Companies Act and Income-tax Act 22.18 2.94 + 15.12 

EIR adjustment for processing fee 77.29 183.07 - 260.36 

Liability against leases 3.91 414 - 11.05 

impairment loss allowance 4,131.17 $9.13 - 1,200.30 

Notional Interest on Market linked debentures - 14.57 - 14.57 

Non deductible tax expenses : 0.08 - 2.08 

Carry forward of Losses 3.23 15.59 - 19.82 

Carry forward of interest disallowed u/s 948 28.53 {28.53} : - 

Deferred Tax Assets 4,283.27 269.12 (1.24) 1,551.45 

Net Deferred tax assel 880.54 397.52 {58.56} 1,239.49 

Asat {Charged)/ credited (Charged}/ credited to Asat 

fs 1 i i Movement of Deferred tax assets March 31, 202! 0 statement 0: other comprehensive March 31, 2022 
profit and loss lacome 

Liabilities 

Fair value of financial instruments 19.18 149.02 211.13 3798.33 

Difference in income recognition on unrealized gain on mutual fund investments 7278 (48.98} - 23.86 

Deferred Tax Liabilitles 91.96 100.04 241.13 403.33 

Assets 
Provision for employee benefits 14.48 6.62 {0.14} 20.96 

Difference in written down value as per Companies Act and Income-tex Act 6.54 5.64 : 42,18 

EIR adjustment for processing lee 36.81 46.48 ~ 77,29 

Uablility against leases 743 2.48 - 8.91 

impairment loss allowance 640.90 490.27 - 1,431.17 
Carry forward of Losses - 3.23 - 3.23 

Carry forward of interest disallowed u/s 94B 25.67 2.86 : 28.53 
Deferred tax assets 725.83 557.58 {0.14} 1,283.27 
Net Deferred tax assets 633.87 457.54 (211.27) $80.14 
  

   



DMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

{All Amount in 8s. In millians, unless otherwise stated) 

412 Property, plant end equipment (at cost or deemed cost) 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Furniture and Computers Vehicles Office equipment _ Lert hold Total 
fixtures 

Gross carrying amount 

Balance as al March 33, 202] 1485 37.81 5.36 32.53 143.24 218.83 

Additions 8.08 19.64 ois O.47 oo1 2056 

Disposals (0.04) - : $9.33} (3.97) {6.32} 
Balance as at March 31, 2022 136 S7.65 5.55 32.69 137,26 235.07 

Additions al 32.21 : 6.74 43.598 82.04 

Disposals {0.05) {9.93} 2 40.02} : 43.91) 
Balance as at March 33, 2023 1,35 88.93 5.55 33.41 181.26 327.10 

Accumulated depreciation 

Balance as at March 33, 2023 3.90 28.03 427 23.02 46.38 162.60 

Charge for the yeat 0.26 41.31 GAL alo AS.BE 33.90 

Disposals (0.03) x = {2.27} (3.773 {4.07}, 
Batance as at March 31, 2022 1.13 39.34 4.65 26.85 $8.42 130.43 
Charge for the year 0.24 18.95 0.26 5.08 13.61 44,35 

Disposals 40.03) (0.63) - {0.02} : (0.65) 
Balance as at March 33, 2023 1.34 37.66 4.95 3151 78.23 174.0 

Net carrying amount 

As af March 31, 2022 G77 18.31 OBE S84 76.88 305.64 

As at March 31, 2623 G.BL 3L,27 0.60 750 103.63 $43.00 
  

Notes: 

Leasehold imp-ovements comprises expenditure incutred for the construction on the property obtained on fease as disclosed In Note 15 - Aight of use assets. 

i} During the current financial year and in the previous financial year there Is ne sevaliation of Property, plants and equipment, 

ih} There is na proceeding initiated against the group for the properties under the Genami Transactions (Prohibition} Act, 1908 and the rules made thereunder. 

  
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  
  

13 (a} Capital work In progress 

As at As at 

Paarch 31, 2023 Match 31, 2022 

Capital work in progress 23.27 

23.27 

As at 33 March, 2023 Amount in CWIP fot a petlod 

Less than 1-2 years. 2-3 years ote than Tatal 
Lyeor Ayears 

Projects in progress . - - - . 

Projects lemporszily suspended - : - - - 

As at 31 March, 2022 Amount In CWIP for a period 
Less than t-2 years 2-3 years More than Total 

iyear. dyears 

Projects in progress 23.27 - - - 23.27 

Prejects temporaclly suspended - - . - - 

23.27 = : 23.27 

Note: 

Contractual rammitments to be executed on capital account amounting to &s, 4.05 millinns {previous year: Rs. 19.25 millions} 

13 (b] Intangtble assets under development Asat Asat 

intangible assels under development 

As at 31 March, 2023 

iyear 

Projects in progress 

Projects temporarily suspended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

8.78 : 

B78 

Amount In Intangible assets under development far a peslod 
Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 

Jyears: 
Total 

  

As at 33 March, 2022 

iyear 

Projects in progress 

Projects temporarily suspended 

Amount In Intangible assets onder deve‘opment lo a parind 
Less than Ll years 2-3 years More than Total 

years 

  

Note: 

Contractual commitments to be executed on capital accoun! amounting to Rs. 

    

2.90 millions. {previous year: Nil) 

  



DMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to Consolidated Financiai Statemeats 

{All Amount in As. In millions, unless otherwise stated} 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

34 Goodwill 

Particulass Asat Asat 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Cast or deemed cost 253.5. 253.53 

faled impair toss : - 
253.53, 253.53 

Particulars Agat Asat 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Cost ot deemed cost - - 

Balance at the beginning of the year 294.53 - 

Additions on account of acquisitions/business combinations - 253.85 

Adjustments - - 
Foreign citrency Uransiatinn reserve = . 

Balance al the end of the year 253.53 253.53 

Pardaulars Asat Asat 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Salance at the beginning of the year 253,53 - 

Additions pn account of acquisitions/business combinations . 253.53 
josses ised in the year - - 

Balance at the end of the year 253.53 253.53 

Nates: 

i} Goodwill represents the cost of business acquisition in excess of the Group's interest in the net fair value of tdertifiable asscts, fiabilitfes and contingent liabilities of 
the aequiree. When the net fair value of the identifiable assets, Wiebililies and contingent liabilities acquired exceeds the cost of business acquisition, the bargain 

purchase excess Js recognited after teassesing the fair value of net assets acquired In the capital reserve. Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated Impairment 
losses. 

I} For the purpose of Impairment testing. goodwill acquired in one of the subsidiary Is compared with lhe synergies asising from the subsidiary. After testing, no 

impairment loss was assessed. 

45 Right of use assets 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Right of use Yotai 
assets 

Gross carrying amount 

Balance as at March 31, 2022 293.91 253.95 

Additions 75.08 75.03 
Disposals : 2. 
Balance as at March 33, 2022 368.99 366.59 

Additions 30.27 30.27 

Disposals : 
dalance as at Match 33, 2623 379.26 379.26 

Depreciatlon 

Balance as at March 31, 202) $3.20 82.20 

Additions $8.84 S284 

Disposa!s - - 

Balance as at March 31, 2022 134,04 134.04 
Addilions 48.87 48.87 

Disposals : > 
Balance as at March 31, 2023 262.91 462.9% 

Net carrying amount 

As at March 31, 2025 210.73 230.71 

As at March 31, 2022 234,395 234.35 

As at March 21, 2023 156.35, 196.35 

Note: For other details please refer Note 49 

£6 Other intangible assets 

Software Totat 
Gross carrying smount 

Balance as at March 33, 2021 39.91 39,92 

Additions 25.29 25.29 
Disposals 2 = 

Balance as al March 31, 2022 55.20 65.20 
Additions 5.95 5.95 

Disposals : : 
Balance as at March 31, 2023 F415. 74.35 

Amortzalian 
Balance as at March 33, 2623 i742 3711 

Additions 16.69 16.69 
Disposals - : 
Balance as at Masch 31, 2022 32,80 33.80. 

Additions 35.59 35.55 

Disposals - - 
Balance as at March 31, 2623 49.49 Ao.49 

  

Net careying amount 

As at March 33, 2022 31,41 31,41, 

As at March 33, 2023 21,66 21.65 
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DMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

{All Amount in As. In millions, unless otherwise stated} 

  

  

As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Other non- financial assets 

Prepaid expenses 
147.40 104.16 

Balances with statutory / government authorities 6.80 5.05 
Advance salary 1.588 0.04 
Advances given to service providerst F247 93.32 
‘Other non-financial assets* 21.51 2.35 

245.76 204.91 ee 

"includes As. 18.63 million (previous year ; Nil} incurred for expenses related to issue 
of equity shares and shall be adjusted with share premium of the Issue of the Holding 
company. 
dinchides advance to service provider of Rs. 72.47 millions {previous year: Rs. $5.32 
millions) in order to facilitate Prepaid card transactions 

Assats held for sale 

Assets under settlement {see note below) 78.06 143.38 

75.00 143.88 

Note : These assets represent assets acquired from the Holding Company’s borrowers as a part of Group’s risk management 
strategy. In these cases, the Holding Company had entered into settlement agreement as a prudent measure by the 
management wherein the borrower was approached and there was a mutual! consensus between the Holding Company and 
borrower to transfer the asset in the name of the Holding Company towards settlement of the loan amount, 
Basis the development, the Holding Company, on prudent basis, has impaired asset under settlement amounting to Rs. 68.88 
million (previous year: Rs.45.97 million} 

  



DMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

{All Amount in Rs. tn millions, untess otherwise stated} 

  

As at As at 

March 31, 2623 March 31, 2022 
  

Payables 

Trade payables 

i. Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (See 8.97 94.79 

note ii below } 

i. Totai outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 1,165.75 697.23 

  smajil enterprises 
1,174.72 792.02   

Other payables 

_ Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (See - - 

note ii below ) 

i, Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and $25.06 379.87 

small enterprises   

  

  

  

  

525.66 379.87 

Total 1,699.78 1,171.89 

i} Trade payable and other payable ageing schedule 

As at 31 March 2023 

Less than 1 
Particulars i-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total 

year 

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 

8.97 - - : 8.97 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 

small enterprises 1,515.98 135.07 31.58 8.18 1,690.81 

Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 

Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 

enterprises - - - - - 

  

  

  

Total 1,524.95 135.07 31.58 8.18 1,699.78 

As at 31 March 2022 

ticul Less than 1 
Particulars year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total 

  

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smail enterprises g i Pp 94.79 - - - 94.79 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 

small enterprises 1032.22 35.98 5.10 3.80 1077.10 

Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - - 

Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 

enterprises 

  

Total 1,127.01 35.98 5.10 3.80 1,171.89 
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DMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

(All Amount in Rs. in millions, unless otherwise stated} 

ii} Amount outstanding of Micro,Small and Medium Enterprises Development Enterprises 

Based on the responses received from certain suppliers, the Group has certain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 

Development Act, 2006 ("MSMED Act'}. The disclosures pursuant to the said MSMED Act are as follows: 

i) The Principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at year end 

- Principal amount 

- interest thereon 

ii) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of MSIMED Act, along with the amounts 

of the payment 

iii} the amount of interest due and payable for the year of defay in making payment {which has been paid 

but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the 

MSMED Act 

iv) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid 

v) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date 

when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small investor 

Debt securities {at arnortised cost) 

Non convertible debentures (refer note 20.1) 

Market linked debentures (refer note 20.2} 

Secured ** 

Unsecured 

Total 

Debt securities in India 

Debt securities outside India 

Totat 

As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

        

8.97 94.79 

- 0.03 

0.03 - 

15,352.85 18,552.27 

1,485.06 - 

16,837.91 18,552.27 

1,984.92 499,27 

14,852.99 18,053.00 

16,837.91 18,552.27 

16,837.91 18,552.27 

16,837.31 18,552.27 

  

  

** Secured against exclusive floating charge by way of hypothecation of loans and receivables of the Holding Company of Rs. 2,668.62 millions (previous year Rs. 
893.22 millions). 

The Holding Company has not created the debenture redemption reserve as it is not mandatorily required in accordance with provisions of the Companies Act 
2013. 

  



20.1 

DMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes te Consolidated Financial Statements 

{All Amount in As. in millions, unless otherwise stated} 

Terms of redeemable non-<convertible debentures (NCD's} 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Secured 

- Amount Ameunt 
Nominal vatue 

Ist Date olailotment Date of redemption debenture Number Rate of interest Facevalue outstanding ss at autsianding as at Terms of redemption r 
Berde March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 

INE604007159 June 30, 2020 June 30, 2023 10,00,000 500 9.00% 500 499.85 499,273 Months from the date of Allotment. Coupon payment 
frequency is yearly 

Total 499.85 439,27 

All secured against exclusive charge on the standard Ls portfatlo bles as per the ive age 

Unsecured 

Amount Amount 
. Nomlnaf vatve 

isin Dale of allotment Oate of redemption debenture Number Rate of interest Face value outstanding asat auistending asst Terms of redemption 
perce March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

36 months from date of allotment. Coupon payment 

INEGOAOOSNEE October 1, 2019 October 2, 2022 10,090,000 1,160 10.35% 1,160.00 : 1,160.00 frequency Is quarterly. Matured and paid during Financial 
year 2023. 

36 months frorn date of allotment. Coupan payment 

1604008074 October 23, 2019 October 23, 2022 19,00,000 2.040 10.35% 2,049.00 : 2,040.00 frequency Is quarterly. Matured and paid during Financial 
year 2023. 

Aga S a inesoacosoa2 November 25,2019 November 25, 2023 10,00,000 2.080 8.50% 2,046.00 2,060.00 2,920.00 48 months froin the Date af Allotment. Coupon payment 
frequency is quarterly 

inecoaoosps0 December 10,2049 December 10, 2023 10,00,00¢ 867 8.50% 867.00 867.00 267.00 48 months rom the Date of Allotment. Coupon payment 
frequency is quarterly 

Inz604008108 February 20,2020 ‘February 20, 2024 10,09,006 WAZ 850% 7,472.00 2,172.00 7,372.00 48 months trom the Date of Allotment. Coupon payment 
frequency is quarterly 

48 months from the Uate of allotment. INEGo4a08324 February 28,2020 February 28, 2024 10,09,006 4.640 9.50% 4,640.00 4,640.00 4,640.00 48 months from the Gate of aitotment. Coupon payment 
frequency is quarterly 

4 ths from t ‘ at. : 
INEso4a0si16 March 12, 2020 March 12, 7024 10,09,000 134 B.s0% 3324.00 134.00 134.09 22 months from the Date of Allotment. Coupon payment 

frequency is quarterly 

Total 14,853.00 18,053.00 

Terms of redeemable Market Linked Debentures {MLO's} 
Secured 

ISIN No. Date ofalotment Datcofredemption Nominalvaiue = Nursber Rate of interest Face value Amount Amount Terms of redemption 
per debenture outstanding as at outstanding as 2t 

March 34.2023 March 31. 2022 

34 Months from the dat iotment, ! INE604007167 Oclober 21, 2022 October 21, 2024 10,00,000 1,500 As per Table Below * 3,500.09 1485.06 : onths from the date of Allaiment, Coupon payment 
frequency fs at maturity. 

Total 1495.06 z 
  

on Redemption 

    

   



DMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

{All Amount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated} 

  

Asat March 31,2023 As at_ March 31, 2022 

21 Borrowings (other than debt securities] {at amortised cost} 

  

  

  

  

  

  

Secured 

Term loans 
From banks (See note }, iv and vii below} 20,489.36 8,717.10 

Other loans 

Securitisation ~- PTC 8orrawings (See note iii and v below} 2,962.82 - 

Cash credit and overdraft 

From banks {See note i and ii below} 496.34 248.43 

Sub-total (A} 23,888.51 8,965.53 

Unsecured 

Term foans 
From Individuals {See note vi below) 0.83 8.15 

From Corporates (See note vi below) - ALS? 

From banks - 2,82 

Sub-total (8) 0.83 22.54 

Total {A+B} 23,889.34 8,988.07 

Borrowings in India 23,889.34 8,988.07 

Borrowings outside India - . 

Totai 23,889.34 8,988.07 

Notes: 
i} Secured against exclusive floating charge by way of hypothecation of loans and receivables of the Holding Company to the extent of Rs. 28,663.73 millions {Previous year: 

Rs. 14,257.92 millions). 

ii} Exclusive Hypothecation charge on the standard receivables of the Holding Campany at all times and cash credit is repayable on demand. 

iii) Secured against exclusive floating charge by way of hypothecation of loans and receivables of the Holding Company to the extent of Rs. 3748.46 millions 

iv} Terms of repayment of borrowings as on March 31, 2023 are as fallows: 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

          
          

Bisbursement . Security Outstanding as on Outstanding as on 

lender Amount Repayment Rate of interest cover March 34,2023 March 31, 2022 

Bank of Baroda-1 1,000 |16 quarterly installments >6.00%<12% 133% - 248.50 

Bank of Baroda-2 500 }16 monthly install 5 >6.00%<12% 133% 249.25 373.33 

Bank of Baroda-3 500 {16 quarterly installments >6.00%<12% 133% 373.58 497.50 

Bank of Baroda-4 1,000 {12 quarterly installments >6.00%<12% 125% 829.14 = 

Bank of Baroda-5 1,000 }12 quarterly installments >6.00%<12% 125% 994.31 ~ 

Karnataka Bank Limited 200 $11 quarterly installments >6.00%<12% 125% 89.86 163.22 

Karnataka Bank-2 280 |11 quarterly (nstaliments >6.00%<12% 125% 110.93 221.86 

Karnataka Bank-3 500 {11 quarterly instaliments >6.00%<12% 125% 361.95 - 

Bank of Maharashtra 509 $42 monthly Installments >6.00%<12% 125% 320.31 476.93 

Bank of Maharashtra-2 2,009 [42 monthly Installment >6.00%<12% 125% 1,846.51 - 

HDFC Sank Limited-2 759 {8 quarterly installments >6.00%<12% 125% 102.64 512.55 

HDFC Bank Limited-3 800 /8 quarterly installments >6.00%<12% 125% 399.23 797.04 

HDEC Bank Limited-4 1,000 {8 quarterly installments >6.00%<12% 125% 747.92 - 

HDFC Bank Limited-5 . 1,000 }8 quarterly installments >6.00%<12% 125% 830.56 - 

HDFC Bank Limited-6 2,G00 {8 quarterly installments >6.00%<12% 125% 2,060.00 - 

State Bank Of india-2 1,000 |15 quarterly instaliments >6.00%<i2% 125% 596.52 865.74 

State Bank Of India-2 2,000 }15 quarterly installments >6.00%<12% 125% 1,591.46 1,385.82 

State Sank of India -3 2,000 [15 quarterly Installments >6.00%<12% 125% 1,988.97 - 

Katek Mahindra Bank Limited 400 |24 monthly installments >6.00%<12% 125% 148.90 349.44 

Kotak Mahindra Bank ttd.-2 756 }24 monthly Installment >6.00%<12% 125% 468.26 = 

Indusind Bank Limited SCO |12 quarterly installments >6.00%<12% 125% 331.15 435,74 

Indusind-2 S00 [12 quarterly Installments >6.00%<12% 125% 494.98 - 

Punjab National Bank S00 135 monthly installments >6.00%<12% 133% 342.51 483.82 

South Indian Bank Limited S00 §15 quarterly instaliments >6,00%<12% 125% 398.02 499.04 

Indian Bank 750 {16 quarterly installments >6.00%<12% 125% 560.45 746.57 

Indian Bank-2 500 }11 quarterly Installments >6.00%<12% 125% 487.48 - 

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking 1,000 |Upte 3 Months >6.00%<12% 125% 999.73 - 

Corporation 
CSB Bank Limited 500 |12 quarterly Installments >6.00%<12% 125% 373.43 - 

DCB Bank Limited 250 }11 quarterly Instaliments >6.00%<12% 125% 250.02 - 

Bandhan Bank 500 445 monthly Installment >6.00%<12% 125% 498.48 - 

Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited 300 }37 monthly installment >6.00%<12% 125% 275.16 : 

Jammu & Kashmir Bank Limited 500 |14 quarterly Installments >6.00%<12% 125% 496.25 - 

HDFC Bank WCDL 450 |Upto 90 days >6.00%<12% 125% 450.00 - 

HOFC Bank CC WCDL 560 |5 months >6.00%<12% 125% $60.00 - 

HOFC Bank Limited * 3148 monthly installment >6.00%<12% NA ~ 2.82 

Total 20,489.36 8,719.92 
  

“Unsecured foan taken by one of the subsidiary under Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line scheme 

   



  

DMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

{All Amount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated} 

v) Terms of repayment of Securitizatian- PTC borrowings as on March 31, 2023 are as follows: 

  

  

  
  

    

  
          
  

  

Securitisation Total Amount Payment Terms ROI Transaction |Outstanding as on fotstancing asan 

Structure March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 

MOSTi 2,381.00 | Manthly Payout to the Trust |>6.00%<12% At par 113.00 - 

on the Pay in Date 

PLUM Il 772.70 1 Monthly Payout to the Trust />6.00%<12% At par §52.50 - 

on the Pay in Date 

PLUMI 905.30 | Monthly Payaut to the Trust |>6.00%<12% At par 748,30 - 

on the Pay in Date 

PLUM III 1,481.20 | Monthly Payout to the Trust {>6.00%<12% Atpar 1,483.01 - 

on the Pay in Date 

Total 2,502.81 -         

vi) Unsecured loans from individuals and corporate are repayable on demand. 

vit) Secured term loans from banks amounting te Rs. 20,489.36 millions and carry rate of interest in the range of 6.00% to 12% p.a. The loans are having tenure of upto 4 years 
from the date of disbursement and are repayable in both monthly and quarterly installments. The secured term loans are secured by hypathecation (exclusive charge} of the 
book debt receivables of the Holding Company. 

viii} There are ne term loans from financial institutions. 

ix) The Group has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to its lenders. 

x}The Group has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any of banks, financial institution or any other lender. 

xi) The Group has been submitting monthly/quarterly receivable/stock data with the lenders as per the provision of sanction letters and there are na discrepancies between 
receivable/stock data submitted to the tenders and book of accounts. 

xii) The corporate guarantee given by the Holding Company for borrowings of fellow group company on which charge is created on the assets of the Holding Company have 
not been considered for the disclosure as their charge is not due for the satisfaction. Further, the Group doesn't have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered 
with ROC beyond statutory period 

xiii) The Group has utilised the funds raised from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which they are borrowed. 
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DMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to Consolidated Financlal Statements 

(All Amount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated) 

Lease liabilities 

Lease liabilities (refer note 48} 

Other financial liabilities 
Interest accrued but not due 

- Debt securities 
- Borrowings other than debt securities 

Provisions 

Provision for gratuity {refer note 40} 

Provision for compensation absences 

Other non-financial liabilities 
Statutory dues payable 

Advances for goods and services 
Prepaid Payment instrument dalances 

Security deposit 

Others 

  

Asat As at 

March 31, 2623) March 31, 2022 

242,25 
242.29 

208.49 
75.49 

283.98 

41.63 

60.62 
192,32 

223.62 
33.13 
9.33 
471 

261,79 

  

  

276.36 

276,36 

156.43 
6.44 

162.87 

34.56 
$2.04 
86.60 

64.48 

33.75 
0.22 
4,71 

0.35 

103.51
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26.3 

(i 

fi) 

DMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

{All Amount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated) 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Equity share capital 

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount 

. Authorized share capital 

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 1,96,56,06,G00 419,650.00 $6,50,00,000 9,650.00 

Compulsorily convertible preference shares of Rs. 10 each 3,50,00,000 350.00 3,58,00,000 350.00 

2,60,00,00,000 20,000.00 1,06,00,00,000 10,000.00 

. Issued, subscribed and paid up 

Fully called-up and paid-up 

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 65,51,52,742 6,551.53 65,50,78,001 6,550.78 

Sub total (A} 65,51,52,742 6,551.53 §5,50,78,001 6,550.78 

Partly called-up and paid-up 

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 5,73,15,400 16.22 5,73,15,400 16.22 

Sub total (8) §,73,15,490 16.22 5,73,15,400 16.22 

Total (A+) 71,24,68,142 6,567.75 71,23,93,401 6,567.00 
  

The reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year 

  

Balance at the beginning of year 71,23,93,401 6,567.00 69,93,50,933 6,436.58 

Changes in equity share capita} due to prior period errars - - - - 

Restated balance at the beginning of the period 71,23,93,401 6,567.00 69,93,50,933 6,436.58 

Shares issued during the year 74,741 0.75 1,30,42,468 130.42 

First call money called on party paid up shares - - - . 

  

Balance at the end of year 71,24,68,142 6,567.75 71,23,93,401 6,567.00 
  

Shares held by holding Company 
  

  

  

As at March 31, 2023 Asat March 31, 2022 

No. of shares % holding No. of shares % holding 

OMI Limited 51,98,89,603 72.97% 51,98,89,603 72.98% 

51,98,89,603 72.97% 51,98,89,603 72.98% 
  

As per records of the Holding Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from sharehalders regarding beneficial interest, 
the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares. 

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company 

  

Name of the shareholder As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 

No. of shares % heiding No. of shares % halding 
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 

DMi Limited 514,98,89,603 72.97% 51,98,89,603 72.98% 
NiS Ganesha S.A. 6,47,35,441 9.09% 6,47,35,441 9.09% 
K2VZ §,73,15,400 8.04% §,73,15,400 8.05% 

Notes: 

As per records of the Holding Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, 
the above shareholding represents both fegal and beneficial ownerships of shares. 

Ouring the current year, the Holding Company has issued 74,741 equity shares of Rs. 10 per share at applicable exercise price under the ESOP plans. The amount 
received on these issues aggregates to Rs. 3.60 million. 

{iii} The Authorised share capital has been increased from RS. 10,000 million to Rs.20,000 million. The same was approved by the shareholders of the Holding Company in 
it's meeting held on Nov 15, 2022. 

(iv) % holding is calculated on the basis of number of shares held by the respective shareholder. 

  



DMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

{All Amount in Rs. In miltions, unless otherwise stated} 

26.4 Details of shares held by promoters 

26.5 

26.6 

26.7 

  

  

Particulars As at As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 

No. of shares at the beginning of the year 51,98,89,603 §1,98,89,603 

Change during the year - - 

No. of shares at the end of the year 51,98,89,603 51,98,89,603 

% of total shares 72.97% 72.98% 

% change during the year (0.01%) (1.83%) 

DMI Limited is the promoter of the Halding Company 

Rights, preferences and restrictions 

The Holding Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. The 

dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the 

Holding Company, the holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Holding Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The 

distribution will be in proportion to the number of the equity shares heid by the shareholders. 

Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash during the five years 

The Holding Company has not issued any shares pursuant to a contract without payment being received in cash nor allotted as fully paid up by the way of bonus shares 

and there has not been any buy back of shares in the current period and the immediately preceding four years. 

Uncalled and Unpaid Capital 

There are 5,73,15,400 equity shares issued by the Holding Company against which, the Holding Company has received Rs. 15,52,47,259 {including securities Premium of 

Rs. 14,90,25,873). Balance amount is not called up by the Holding Company. 

26.8 The Holding Company has filed an application under Section 66{1){a) of Companies Act, 2013 with Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal {“NCLT”} for reduction of 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up share Capital of the Holding Company on June 8, 2022. Pursuant to such capital reduction $7,315,400 partly paid equity shares are 

expected to be reduced to 1,622,138 shares. Further, the order from NCLT is awaited. 

   



DM Finance Private Limited 

Notes to Consolidated Flnanciat Statements 

{AL Amount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated) 

27 Other equity 

Asat As at 

March 31, 2023 March 33, 2622 

Securities premium 25,741.77 25,707.55 

Capital redemption reserve BL2E BL21 

Statutory reserve u/s 4S-IC of RBI Act 4,741.05 1,053.02 

Share based payment outstanding reserve 305.07 187.02 

Share warrant reserve . 74.60 32.44 

Retained earnings 6,833.23 4,333.59 

Other comprehensive income 860.05 685.96 

Upfront monies recelved on share warrant 0.72 0.50 

Total 35,607.90 32,121.28 
SSS 

Securities premium 

Opening balance 25,707.55 23,495.35 

Add: Premtum on shares issued during the year {including shares Issued under Employees 422 2,212.20 
Stock Option plan} 

Closing balance 25,721.77 25,707.55 

Capital redemption reserve 

Opening balance 83.21 81.21 

Add : Additions during the year : ~- 

Closing balance 81.22 81.21 

Statutory reserve u/s 45-IC of RBI Act 

Opening balance 1,093.02 977.46 

Add : Transfer during (he year from Surplus in statement of profit and toss 648.03 115.56 
ace SON UE NEOs Eee 

Gosing balance 1,741.05 1,093.02 

Share based payment outstanding reserve 

Opening balance 187.02 140.95 
Add: Granted/vested during the year 221.83 74a.56 

Less : Exercised during the year (3.78) 427.49) 

Closing balance 305.07 187.02 

Share warrant reserve 

Opening balance 32.44 - 

Add : Addition during the year 42.36 32.44 EE 
Closing balance 74.80 32.46 

Retained earalngs 

Opening balance 4,333.59 3,873.76 

Add : Profit for the year 3,147.67 583.03 

Less: Loss on subsequent acquisition in Subsidiary . {7.64} 

Less : Transfer te reserve fund as per section 45 IC of RBl Act, 1934 {648.03} {115.56} 
Closing balance €,833.23 4,333.59 
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DMI Finance Private Limited 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

{All Amount In Rs. in millions, undess otherwise stated} 

Upfront monies received on share warrant 

Opening dalance 

Add : Amount received during the year 

Closing balance 

Other Comprehensive income 

Opening balance 

Add: Reraeasurerment gain on defined benefit plan 

Add : Gain on Fair Value changes {Debt and Equity} 
  

Asat AS at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

0,50 - 

9,22 a50 

0.72 0.56 

6B5.96 57.84 

3.69 0.37 

170.46 627,15 

866.05 585.96 Closing balance 

Security premium 

Securities premlurn represents premium received on Issue of shares. The amount Is ulilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 

Capitat redemption reserve 

The same had been cteated in accordance with provisions of the Companies Act 2013 on buy back of shares. 

Statutory reserve u/s 45-IC of RBI Act 

The reserve Is created as per the provision of Section 45 {IC} of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. This is 2 resteicted reserve and ro appropriation can be made from this reserve fund except for the purpose as 

may be prescribed by Reserve Bank of India. 

Share optian outstanding account 

The reserve is used to recognise the fair value of the options issued to employees of the Holding Company and subsidiary companies under Holding Company's employee stock option plan. 

Share warrant reserve 

The reserve is used to recognise the fair value of the warrants issued to consultants of the Holding and subsidiary companies. 

Retained zarnings 

Retained earnings or accumulated surpius and represents total of aif profits retained since the Holding Company's Inception. Retained earnings are credited with curzent year profits, reduced by losses, if any, 

dividend payouts, or any such other appropriations to specific reserves. 

Upfront monies received on share warrant 

Upfront monies received on share warrant represents the upfront monies received against the share warrants Issued by the Helding Company. 

Non-controlling interests 

Balance at the beginning of the year 

Share of profit/{loss} for the year 

Dividend 
Equity component of Preference Share Capital 

Non-contralling interests on acquisition infof Appnit Technologies Private Limited 

Balance at the end of the year 

Detalls of non-whatly owned subsidiary that have non-controliing interests 

The table shows detalls of non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group that has non-controlling interests: 

Asat Asat 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

29.43 - 

(2.48) - 

- 25.43 

25.65 29.33 

  

  

            
  

  

Name of Subsidiary Place of Proportion of ownership interests and | Profit/{loss} allacated to non-controlling 

incorporation and } voting rights held by non-centrolling interests 

aperation interests 

March 31,2023 il March 31,2022 March 31,2623 | March 31,2622 

Appnit Technologies Private Limited india 5.96%} 5.96% (2.48} | 29.13 

Particulars Asat Asat 
March 31, 2023 March 34, 2022 

Financial assets 152.82 239.15 

Non Financial assets 103.74 103.17 

Financial tisbilities 7.38 45.35 

Non Financial fiabillties 37.85 44,03 

Equity attributable to the owners of the company 184.67 223.82 

Non-controfling Interests 26.65 29.13 

Particulars Year ended Year ended 
——HMarch 31,2023 March 31, 2022 

Incame 48.02 - 
Expenses {including taxes) 3.74 - 

Profitfiloss) for the year (41.72) - 

Profitffioss) attributable to the owners of the Company {39.24} - 

Profit/{loss} altributable to the non-centrofling Interests {2.48) - 

Other comprehensive income for the year 0.08 - 
Other comprehensive income attributabie to the owners af the Company G.08 - 

Other pret income ic the non Interests + - 

Total comprehensive Income of the year {41.64} - 

Note: Above numbers are gross. 
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30 

31 

32 

33 

Interest income 

interest income on portfoilia foans 

interest income on investments 

Interest on deposits with bank 

Total interest income 

Fees and commission income 

Fee on card reload 

Consulting fee 

Payment gateway fee 

Others * 

DMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

(All Amount in Rs. in millions, unless otherwise stated} 

  

Year ended March 31, 2023 Year ended March 31, 2022 
  

  

  

  

On financial On financial 
instruments On financial assets On financial assets instruments On financial assets Ga financial assets 

Measured at fair measured at measured at fair measured at fair measured at measured at fair value 
vaiue through Profit Amortised cast vaiue through GC! value through Profit Amortised cost through OC! 

and Loss and Loss 

> 15,391.00 2151 - 7,280.24 30.22 

106.92 256.47 158.50 23.19 316.85 154.84 

- 38.65 - - 38.06 - 

106.92 15,686.12 177.01 23.19 7,628.15 185.06 

45,870.05 7,837.41 
  

*includes income related to recoveries from Consumer loans 

Net gain on fair value changes 

(A) Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit and loss 

on financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss 

(B} others 

Analysis of fair value changes* 
Realised 

Unrealised 

“shows the change from the date of investment 

Other income 
Cost sharing frem group companies 

lacome on Treasury instruments 

interest income on Income tax refund 

interest income on unsecured faans 

Liabilities written back 

Foreign exchange gain {net) 

Miscellaneous income 

Finance casts 

interest an financial jiabilities {measured at amortised cost} 

interest on debt securities 

- on non convertible debentures 

- on market linked debentures 

interest on borrowings (other than debt securities) 

- on bank term loan 

- an bank cash credit 

Other Interest expense 

- on delayed deposit of statutory dues 

- on leasing arrangements 

- securitisation 

Other borrowing costs 

  

Amount Inveiced Revenue booked 
  

  

  

  

    

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended 

March 314, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

1,82 21.42 1.82 21,42 

40.46 109.74 40.46 109.74 

35.98 35.98 - 

187,15 104.09 

78.26 131,16 265.41 235.25 

Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 33, 2022 

139.06 963.40 

195.06 963.40 

339.28 716.69 

(140.22) 246.71 

199.06 963.46 

158.73 122.08 

- 16.89 

6.32 O75 

1.25 1.10 

4.24 47.04 

0.01 0.09 

21.35 5.10 

185.96 163.05 

1,533.36 1,685.76 

62.11 - 

1,189.84 211.88 

20.19 0.58 

- 0.08 

26.33 16.09 

179.96 - 

6.87 2.14 

3,018.66 1,936.53 
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38.2 

DMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

{All Amount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated} 

Fees and commission expense 

Selling partner commission 

impairment on financial insteuments 

Expected credit foss allowance 

Write offs 

Employee benefits expense 

Salaries, wages and bonus 

Contribution te provident and other funds 

Gratuity expenses (refer note 40} 

Share based payment to employees 

Staff welfare expenses 

** includes 12.39 millions of warrants issued by fellow subsidiary (DMI Housing Finance} to employees of the Company 

Depreciation and amortization 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (See note 12} 

Amortisation of right of use assets (See note 15} 

Amartisation of other intangible assets {See note 16} 

Other expenses 

Advertisement expenses 

Legal and professional fees* 

Travelling and conveyance expenses 

Auditor's remuneration {refer note 38.1} 

IT expenses 

Rates and taxes 

Rent 

Goods and service tax 

Director's sitting fee 

Corporate social responsibility (refer note 38.2} 

Repair and maintenance 

Insurance expense 

Credit evatuation fee 

Credit rating fee 

Customer onboarding expenses 

Assets held for sale written off 

Amortization of premium on debenture 

Miscellaneous expenses 

* includes share warrant expense amounting to Rs. 40.79 millions {previous year Rs, 32.44 millions) 

Auditor's remuneration (excluding applicable taxes) 

- as auditors 

~ for tax services 

- for other services* 

* includes amount of INR 0.25 million paid to erstwhile auditor of the Holding company in previous year 

    

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

1,357.13 677.01 

4,357.13 677.01 

464.24 1,999.56 

3,550.96 1,412.03 

4,012.20 3,431.93 

1,074.65 724.50 

16.30 24.13 

14.29 11.29 

134.22 73.56 

42.45 27.29 

1,281.61 860.77 

44.35 31,90 

48.87 $0.84 

18.69 16.65 

108.93 99.43 

25.31 8.85 

915.69 611.21 

7$.43 10.53 

484 4.05 

49185 256.16 

744 6.57 

10.76 5.08 

420.12 201.20 

0.76 0.68 

16.88 18.42 

26.20 14.60 

150 6.24 

328.60 151.27 

$.93 5.24 

6.06 O07 

69.27 45.97 

~ 0.37 

112.41 87.77 

2,516.95 41,428.24 

3.36 2.80 

0.36 0.30 

4.12 0.95 

4.84 4.05 
 



DMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

{Ail Amount in Rs. in millions, unless otherwise stated) 

38.2 Corporate social respansibdility (CSR} 

In respect af Corporate Social Responsibility activities, gross amount required to be spent by the Group during the year was Rs. 16.25 millions in FY 2022-23 {Previous Year Rs. 17.40 

33 

millions} and Group has spent &s. 15.33 millions in FY 2022-23 {Previous Year Rs. 17.46 millions). 

Gross amount unspent for the last year 

Gross amount required to be spent by the Group during the year 

Amount spent during the year 

Construction/acquisition of any asset 

Paid in cash 

Yet to be paid in cash 

Nature of CSR Activities 

Education, Nutrition and Women Empowerment 

Promoting and development towards healthcare 

Promoting Indian Classical art and culture among youth 

Training and helping indian Athletes to win Olympic Gold medals 

Provide supporting in eradication of hunger 

Uplifment of abandoned and poor 

Provision of low cost sanitation 

Notes : 
a) There is no transaction with related parties as defined under the IND AS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures‘ 

b) There is a provision of 0.92 millions in the books as at March 31, 2023 

Earning per share (EPS} 

Net profit attributable to equity shareholders 

Net profit for the year for basic EPS 

Dilutive impact of convertible instruments 

Net profit for the year for dilutive EPS 

Nominal value of equity shares (in Rs.) 

Weighted-average number of equity shares for basic EPS [Face value of share Rs. 10 each) 

Convertible instruments 
Weighted-average number of equity shares for dilutive EPS (Face value of share Rs. 10 each) 

Basic EPS 

Dilutive EPS 

    

  

  

  

  

Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 32, 2022 

16.88 18.42 

15.94 18.42 

45.94 18.42 

0.94 - 

10.44 14.66 

- 3.27 

- 0.50 

4.00 - 

1.50 - 

Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

3,145.19 583.03 

3,145.19 583,03 

3,145.19 583.03 

10.00 10.08 

65,67,16,725 64,77,49,654 

98,34,747 1,21,06,997 

66,68,51,472 65,98,50,651 

4.87 0.83 

4.80 0.81



DMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

{Ail Amount in Rs. in millions, unless otherwise stated} 

40 Retirement benefit plan 

Defined contribution plan 

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions; there is no legal or constructive obligation to pay further 

contributions. The assets of the plan are held separately from those of the Group in a fund under the control of trustees. 

The total expense charged to income during the current year Rs. 16.30 millions {previous year: Rs. 24.13 millions ) represents contributions payable to these 

plans by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the plan. 

Defined benefit plan 

The Group has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days 

salary (last drawn salary} for each completed year of service. The scheme is unfunded. 

Provision for unfunded Gratuity for all employees is based upon actuarial valuations carried out at the end of every financial year. Major drivers in actuarial 

assumptions, typically, are years of service and employee compensation. Pursuant to the issuance of the Indian Accounting Standard {IndAS) 19 on 

‘Employee Benefits’, commitments are actuarially determined using the ‘Projected Unit Credit’ Method. Gains and losses on changes in actuarial 

assumptions are accounted for in the "Other comprehensive Income". 

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and the funded status and amounts 

recognised in the balance sheet for the respective plans: 

  

  

  

  

  

Changes in the defined benefit obligation: Asat As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Balance at the beginning of the year 34.56 24.67 

Current service cost 11.81 5.65 

Interest cost 2.48 1.64 

Benefits Paid (2.23) {0,22) 

On acquisition of Subsidiary - 0.12 

Remeasurement (gain} / toss (4.93) (1.30) 

Balance at the end of the year 41.69 34,56 

Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss is as under: Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Current service cost 11.81 9.65 

Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 2.48 1.64 

Net impact on profit before tax 14.29 11,29 
  

Amount recognised in the other comprehensive income: 

Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense) . - 

  

Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions ' (6.04} - 

Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions (1.85} {2.84} 

Experience adjustments (3.04} 1.55 

Impact on other comprehensive incame (4.93} {1.30} 
  

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity and post-employment benefit obligations for the Holding company’s plans are shown below: 

Economic assumptions 

Discount rate 7.36% 7.18% 

Future salary increases 6.00% 6.00% 
Demographic assumptions 

Retirement age 60 60 

Mortality rates inclusive of pravision for disability 100% of IALM (2012- 100% of iALM {2012- 

14) 14) 
Attrition at ages (withdrawal rate) 

{i) up to 30 years 3.00% 3.00% 

{ii) From 31 to 44 years 2.00% 2.00% 

(iii) Above 44 years 1.00% 1.00% 

Note: The discount rate is generafiy based upon the market yields available on Government bonds at the accounting date relevant to currency of benefit 

payments for a term that matches the liabilities. Salary growth rate is Holding Company’s long term best estimate as to salary increases and takes account 

of inflation, seniority, promotion, business plan, HR policy and other relevant factors on long term basis as provided in relevant accounting standard. 

  



DMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

(All Amount in Rs. in millions, unless otherwise stated} 

  

Sensitivity analysis for gratuity liability Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Impact of the change In discount rate 

Impact due to increase of 0.50 % {3.02} (2.50) 

impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 3.34 2.75 

impact of the change in salary increase 

Impact due to increase of 0.50% 2.60 2.72 

Impact due to decrease of 0.50% (2.39) (2.49) 

The following is the maturity profile of gratuity: 
  

Expected payment for future years As at Asat 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Oto i year 0.81 0,54 

1to 2 year 9.60 0.57 
2 to 3 year 0.67 0.60 

3 to 4 year 0.72 0.64 

4toS year 0.95 0.65 

5 to 6 year 0.94 0.71 

6th year onwards 37.00 30.85 
  

Total expected payments 41.69 34.56 
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DMI Finance Private ilmited 

Notes te Cansolidated Financtal Statements 

{Ail Amount in Rs. in millfons, unfess otherwise stated} 

  

  

  

  

  

  

March 31, 2623 

. 5 
Weighted average 

sae 7 Options outstanding Granted during the Exercised during Lapsed during the Outstanding at the Cemshing 5 li, Reconciliation of eptions at the beginning of oe 
year the year year end of the year contractual life {in 

the year 
years} 

DMI ESOP plan 2018 24,527 1,489 23,038 0.08 
DMI Retention Plan, 2018 10,90,536 26,509 10,69,927 0.50 

DMI EsoP Pian, Management Scheme §,86,222 7,076 5,79,148 050 

DM! ESOP Plan, Legacy Scheme 3,146,148 32,794 2,81,354 - 

DMi ESOP PLAN 2019 646,899 7,497 14,154 6,25,248 4.00 
DMi ESOP RETENTION PLAN 2019. 14,00,006 65,000 13,35,000 2.06 
DMI Employment Contract 2020 23,068 23,068 2.88 
DM! Retention Bonus (NBFC Apr'20) 5,80,000 3,05,000 2,75,800 2.06 

DM Finance ESOP Plan 2020 3,88,823 7,529 18,200 3,63,094 2.00 

BMI Variable 2019-20 3,855 9,865 2.76 
OMI Finance Plan 2021 4,323,708 4,823 78,946 3,52,939 3.00 
DMI Finance Plan 2022 2,680,000 2,090,000 3.00 
Founder Circle Award 2020-21 (NBFC Apr'21} 4,30,000 1,60,000 2,70,000 3.00 
Founder Circle Award 2020-21 (NBFC iul'21) 37,23,000 7,312,000 36,411,000 3.42 
DMi Employment Contract 2021-22 -! 2,222 2,222 . 3.64 
DMI Employment Contract 2021-22 - if 12,210 12,216 3.72 
DMEESOP Plan, Management - Il! 48,315 18,335 3.79 
DMI Employment Contract 2024-22 - lit 6,105 6,105 3.83 
DMI Employment Contract 2021-22 - IV 7,326 7,326 3.82 

DMI Employment Contract 2021-22 -V 3,663 3,663 3.93 

DMI Finance ESOP Plan 2022 -| 5,18,651 17,287 5,01,364 4.00 
DMI Finance ESOP Plan 2022 - il 2,497 2,497 4.25 

Employment Contract - Aug'22- 1,676 1,670 4.37 
Employment Contract - Aug‘22 - [if 1,670 1,670 4.40 

Employment Contract - jun'22 §,945, 5,945 4,23 
Employment Contract - Mar'23 29,154 29,154 4,92 

| Contract - Nov'22 2,188 2,188 4,61 
Employment Contract - Sep’2z 2,188 2,188 450 
Employment Contracts - Apr'22 1,784 1,784 4.08 
Employment Contracts - Jui22 36,000 39,000 4.25 
Employment Contracts - May'22 30,000 30,000 4.09 
Founder Cirele Award 2022-23 {NBFC Feb‘23} 1,00,48,700 1,00,48,700 5.84 
Total 99,090,637 1,06,74,447 74,741 13,76,882 1,91,23,461 

March 31, 2022 

| 
Weighted average 

eet . Options outstanding Granted duringthe Exercised during Lapsed during the Gutstanding at the remaining It. Reconciliation of options at the beginning of . the year year the year year end of the year contractual life [in 

years} 

DMi ESOP pian 2018 3,22,023 - 2,987,496 - 24,527 0.96 
DMI Retention Plan, 2018 14,83,943 - 3,96,642 : 10,956,536 i 
DMI ESOP Plan, Management Scheme 6,04,396 ~ 18,174 - 5,86,222 LS 
OMI ESOP Plan, Legacy Scheme 18,27,677 - 45,13,529 * 3,14,148 1 
DMI ESOP PLAN 2019 6,88,660 ~ 41,761 - 6,46,899 2 
DMI ESOP RETENTION PLAN 2019 14,00,000 - - : 14,00,000 2.96 
OMI Employment Contract 2020 23,068 - + - 23,068 3.88 
DMI Retention Bonus {(NBFC Apr'20} 5,680,000 - - - 580,000 3 
‘DMI Finance ESOP Plan 2020 3,99,387 - 10,564 - 3,838,823 3 
DMI Variable2019-20 14,355 . 1,as0 : 3,865 3.76 
DMI Finance Pian 2021 . 4,33,708 - + 4,33,708 4.01 
DMI Finance Plan 2021 - 2,00,000 - 2,860,000 4.01 
Founder Circle Award 2020-21 (NBFC Apr'21)} - 4,30,000 - - 4,30,009 4.01 
Founder Circle Award 2020-21 (NBFC jul'21) - 37,23,000 - - 37,23,000 4.33 
OM! Employment Contract 2021-22 -1 - 2,222 - - 2,222 4.64 
DMI Employment Cantract 2021-22 - # . 12,210 - : 12,21¢ 4.73 
DM! ESOP Pian, Management - Hl - 18,315 - . 18,315 48 
‘DMi Employment Contract 2024-22 - li - 6,105 - 7 6,105 383 
DMI Employment Contract 2021-22 - IV - 7,326 - - 7,326 4.92 

DOMi Employment Contract 2021-22 -V - 3,663 - : 3,663 4.94 

Total 73,40,507 48,365,549 22,759,656 : 99,00,637   
  

    

 



IIL Computation of fair value 

DMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Staternents 

For undertaking fair valuation of ESOP, the Holding Company Is using Slack-Scholes Model. 

  

Falr market value of 

  

  

ESOP PLAN Volatility Risk free rate Dividend Yield jExercise price (Rs.J} Ontion fair value 
shares [As.) 

DMI ESGP PLAN 2019 35.49 30.00% 735% - 95.49 38.86 
DMI ESOP RETENTION PLAN 2019 101.87 30.08% 6.50% : 100.00 40.75 
OMI ESOP PLAN 2018 22.81 18.00% 6.00% - 43.90 0.67 
OMI Retention Plan, 2018 24.68 15.00% 7.50% - 46.75 1.45 
DMI ESOP Plan, Management Scheme 35.49 15.00% 7.50% - 62.21 49,45 

DMIESOP Plan, Legacy Scheme 24,68 15.00% 7.80%, : 13.29 15.32 

DMI Employment Contract 2020 113.36 30.00% 6.14% - 413.34 43.35 

DMI Retention Bonus {NBFC Apr'20} 116.36 30.00% 6.14% - 116.36 44.54 

DMI Finance ESOP Plan 2020 116.36 30.00% B.1bH% - 116.36 4451 

DMI Variable2019-20 113.34 30.00% 6.18% : 113.34 43.35 
DMI Finance Plan 2021 113.00 30.00% 6.60% - 113.34 43,49 
DMI Finance Plan 2021 113.00 30.00% 6.60% - 113.00 43.30 
Founder Circle Award 2020-21 {NBFC Apr'21} 113.00 30.00% 6.18% - 143.34 43.49 

Founder Circle Award 2620-21 (NBFC Jul'24} 112.86 30.00% 6.18% - 112.85 43.17 
DMI Employment Contract 2021-22 -§ 203.00 30.00% 6.60% - 208,60 81,39 

DMI Employment Contract 2021-22-18 209.00 30.00% 6.60% - 203.00 81.89 
DMI! ESOP Plan, Management - If 209.00 30.00% 6.60% - 203.00 B1i.89 
DMI Employment Contract 2021-22 - It 209.90 30.00% 6.60% - 209.00 81.89 
DMI Employment Contract 2021-22 - IV 209.06 30.00% 6.60% - 203,00 81.89 
DMI Employment Contract 2021-22 -V 209,00 30.00% 668% - 205.00 81.88 

DMI Finance ESOP Plan 2022-1 212.81 29.82% 6.63%! . 212.81 84,13 
DMI Finance ESOP Plan 2022 - It 212.81 23.82% 6.83% 242.81 84.15 

Employment Contract - Aug’22-H 247.77 29.9156 7.65% - 217.77 89,83 

Employment Contract - Aug'22 - Hil 247.77 29.91% 7.65% - 237.77 83.83 

Employment Contract -Jun’22 242.81 23.82% 6.83% - 242.81 84,13 

Employment Contract - Mar'23 225.14 23.91% 7.65% - 225.11 32.86 

Employment Contract - Nov'22 217.77 23.91% 7.65% - 221,53 88.32 
Employment Contract - Sep'22 20077 23.91% 7.65% - 221.53 88.32 

Employment Contracts - Apr'22 212.81 29.82% 6.83% - 212.81 4.13 

Employment Contracts - jul'22 217.77 29.91% 75% - 217.77 89.83 

Employment Contracts - May’22 242.81 23.82% 6.83% : 212.81 84,13 

Founder Circle Award 2622-23 (NBFC Feb'23} 225.41 29.91% F.aS% - 225.14 103.28               

The Holding Company applies the fair value method of accounting to account for stock options issued by il to the employees of the Group. The fair market value of such Instruments as at 

the grant date is recognized as an expense over the period in which the related services are received, Accordingly, fair value of the stock options and restricted stock units is amortized ona 

straight-line basis over the vesting perlod of the stock options. The Holding Company recognise share based compensation in the Statement of Profit and Loss with a corresponding credit to 

Share based payments outstanding reserve. 

The Halding Company has entered into cost chargeback agreement with the granter and post this agreement the Holding Company would be required to pay the difference of market price 

of the options and exercise price of the options exercised by the employees of the Holding Company, to DMI Housing Finance Private Limited, Therefore, in the current year, share based 

  Dp has been ized in the Stat: 

hotes. 

tof Profit and Loss with a corresponding credit te a liability account viz Share Options Outstanding Account disclosed under 

During the Financial year 2018-19, as per the scheme options were granted to employees of the Granter. The Holding Company has recognised the expense of Rs. 0.07 Millions (previous 

year: Rs. 0.70 Millions} as share based compensation expense in relation to these options with a corresponding credit to a lability account which is Rs. 10.06 millions as on March 31,2023 

{Rs. 9.95 Millians as on March 31, 2022}. 

The employees’ compensation expense for Stock options during the year ended 31 March 2023 amounts to Rs. 133.41 millions (previous year Rs. 72.86 millions). 

    

 



DMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

{All Amount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated) 

42 Disclosures in respect of Related Parties as per Indian Accounting Standard (IndAS) — 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures 

{a} List of related parties 

Holding company 

OMi Limited 

Associate 

DMI Aiternatives Private Limited 

Fellow subsidiaries 
DMi Consumer Credit Private Limited 

DMi Housing Finance Private Limited 

Key managerial personnel {KMP} 

Name Designation 

Mr. Yuvraja Chanakya Singh Joint Managing Director 

Mr. Shivashish Chatterjee Joint Managing Director 

Mrs. Bina Singh Director 
Mrs. Jayati Chatterjee Director 

Mr. Gurcharan Das Director 
Mr. Gauray Burman Director 

Mr. Tamer Amr Director {upto 14 November 2022} 

Mr. Nipender Kochhar Director 

Mr. Krishan Gopal Chief Financial Officer 
Mr. Sahib Pahwa Company Secretary 

Mr. Alfred Mendoza Nominee Director (w.e.f 14 November 2022) 

Relatives of KMP 
Mrs. Mailika Singh 

Ms. Promita Chatterjee 

  Enterprises over which key iand relatives of such p | exercise significant influence with whom transactions have been 
undertaken: 

K2VZ, Partnership Firm 

DMI Alternative Investment Fund 
Quickwork Technologies Private Limited 

Entity with Significant influence 
Ganesha Fixed Income Limited 

{b) Significant transactions with related parties: 

  

  

Name of related party Nature of transaction For the yearended For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

DMI Housing Finance Private Limited Cost share recovery 63.09 58.70 

Share based payment 12.45 0.70 

Reimbursement of expense paid by 4.60 3.67 

related party on behalf of entity 

DM Alternatives Private Limited Cost share recovery 88,21 60.70 
Share based payment 0.85 0.13 

Reimbursement of expense incurred cn 4.34 $49 

behalf of related party 

Ganesha Fixed Income Limited Interest expenses 11.39 11.39 

   



DMI Finance Private Limited 

Netes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

{All Arsount in Rs. in millions, unless otherwise stated} 

  

  

  

Name of refated party Nature of transactions Forthe yearended For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Mr. Sahib Pahwa* Interest income - 0.03 
Remuneration 6.03 5.18 

Loan received back - 0.51 

Mrs. Bina Singh Sitting fee 0.14 0.12 

Share Warrants Expense - 0.77 

Mr, Yuvraja Chanakya Singh Remuneration 42.56 35.20 
Post employment benefits 0.36 0.36 

Mr. Shivashish Chatterjee Remuneration 41.40 26.31 
Post employment benelits 0.36 0.36 

Mrs. Jayati Chatterjee Sitting fees 0.24 0.22 

Share Warrants Expense : 0.77 

Mr. Gurcharan Das Sitting fees 0.14 6.12 

Share Warrants Expense - 0.77 

Mr. Nipender Kochhar Sitting fees 0.24 0.22 
Share Warrants Expense - 0.77 

Mr. Krishan Gopal* Remuneration 10.69 3.35 

Quickwork Technologies Private Limited Other Expenses 5.81 108 

Ms, Paromita Chatterjee Consultancy Fee 4.39 0.70 

*Remuneration does not include post employment benefits 

(c}) Outstanding balances with related partles: 

Name of related party Nature of balances Asat As at 

DMi Alternatives Private Limited 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

  

Employee Stock 410 4.96 

Option Pian 

recoverable 
Trade Receivable 26.98 - 

DMI Housing Finance Private Limited Employee Stock 22,45 9.89 

Option Plan payable 

Corporate 3,878.97 : 4,329.99 
Guarantee 

Ganesha Fixed Income Limited Borrowings from 

Non-convertible 134.00 134.00 

debentures 

{dc} Disclosure pursuant to Schedule V of Clause A (2) of Regulation 53(f} of the SEB? {Listing obligatl and disch Requt ) Reguiati 

2045: 

There is no joan or advance given by the Company to either holding company or subsidiary campanies. 

   



43 

DMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

{All Amount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated) 

The date on which the Code on Social Security, 2020(the “Cade") relating to employee benefits during employment benefits will come into 

effect is yet to be notified and the related rules are yet to be finalized. The Group will evaluate the code and its rules, assess the impact, if 
any, and account for the same when they become effective. 

In terms of Requirement as per RBI notification no. RBI/2019-20/170 DOR(NBFC).CC.PD.NO.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020 on 
implementation of indian Accounting standards, Non-banking Financial Companies (NBFCs) are required to create an impairment reserve for 
any shortfall in impairment allowances under Ind AS 109 and Income Recognition, Asset classification and provisioning (iRACP) norms 
{including provision on Standard Asset).The impairment allowances under Ind AS 109 made by the Holding Company exceeds the total 
Provision required under IRACP {inciuding Standard Asset provisioning),as at March 31, 2023 and accordingly no amount is required to be 
transferred to impairment reserve 

   



OMI Finance Private Limited 

Noles 10 Consolidated Financial Staternents 

{All Amount in Rs. in millians, uniess othenvise stated} 

45 Capital 

4 

a 

a 
a 

  

The Holding Campany actively manages !ts capital base to cover risk Inherent to its business and meets the capial adequacy requirements of the reguiatar, Reserve Bank of 

India (RBI. 

iI} Capita} management: 

Objective 

The Holding Company's objective is to maintain ag propriate levels of capital to support Its business stralegy teking Into accaunt the regulatory, economic end commercial 
environment. The Holding Company alms to maintain 2 strong capital base to support the risks Inherent lo fis business and its growth strategy. The Holding Company 

tomalniain a higher se than 1h gulatory capital at all times.   

Pisnning 

The Holding Company's assessment ol capita! requirement is aligned to its planned grawth which farms part of an arnual operating plen which is approved by the Board 

and atso long range strategy. These growth pars ate aligned to assessment of risks- which Indude credit, liquidity and interest rate 

‘The Holding Company endeavours 10 mainizin Its Cepits! Risk Adequacy Ratio {CRAR} higher than the mandated regulatory nerm. Accardingly, increase in capitat is planned 

well in advance to ensure adequate funding fer its growth. 

{il] Regulatory capital 

- As at March 33,2023 As at March 31,2022 
CRAR - Tier capital {%) 49.94% S745K 

CRAR - Tler tl capital (2 0.93% 3.58% 
cRaR {4} TA B131% 

  

The CRAR Is computed as per the Master Direction - Non Banking Financial Company - Systemaltcally Important Nan-Denosit taking Company and Deposit taking Company 
{Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 sead with the circular fisued by Reserve Gank of India on March 13, 2020. 

in order to achleve this overall objective, the Holding Company's capita! management, amongst other things, als to ensuse [hat it meets financial cavenants attached te 

the interest-bearing loans and borrowings. Breaches in meeting the financial cevenants would permit the bark to immediately call loans and barrowtngs. 

No changes were made In the objectives, policies cr processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2623 and March 31, 2022. 

Contingent Habiiilies and commilments {to the extent nol provided for) 
a. Contingent flabililies 

Asat March 31,2023 _ Ar 8t March 31, 2022 
Contingent Habilitles nat provided [n respect of: 

1. Corparale Guarantees given to banks on behalf of fellow subsidisry {note 3} 3,878.97 2,329.39 
E.Guzrantees Issued by bankers on behalf of Company - 
Claims against the Company not acknowledged ax debt 
Lincome tax {note 2} 2.26 2.28 

Notes: 

1. The Holding Company has given corporate guarantees to banks against different facilities to its fellow subsidiary DMA Housing Finance Private Limited of Rs. 3,878.97 
miflion as at March 21, 2023 {March 31,2022: as, 4,323.99 milion) 

2. During the previous year, the Holding Company has received an assessment order for FY 2016-17 wherein the assessing officer has made an additlon for an amount of 
Rs.6.42 millions on account af disatlowance of deduction under section EOS of the Income-lax Act, 1961. The Holding Company has appesied before Commissioner of 
Income Tax-Appeal (CT{A}) against the order, This disallawance has reulted Inte an additlana! demand of Rs. 2.26 milifon but the Holding Company has already pald the 
taxes more then by Rs, 2.31 ition therefore, the Holding Company is not required te pay any additional demand, In presence of favourable case laws and fudictal 
precedents wherein similar facts have been addcessed, the Holding Company expects that the additional demand will be deleted by CIT {A). Hence no provision there 
agalnsiis considered necessary at this point In time as the fketthood of liability devolving on the Halding Company is fess than prebabie. 

  

b. Commilments As at Merch 35,2023 0 As at March 31, 2022 

Commilments for acquisition of property, plant and equipment {net of advances} 4.05 18.25 

Commitments for intangible assets under development [net of advences} 2.99 - 

¢, Others 

in case of un-disbursed Ioan facility, the Hofding Company h3s so!e and absolute discretion to 3% 

for the Group are amounting to Nit {previous year As. Nii}. 

a. The Group has other commitments, for purchase of goods and services and employee benefits, In the normal course of business. 
#. The Group did not have any fong term conteacts Including derivative contracts for which there were any matezla! foreseeable losses. 

  

w oF reject any further drawdown request, Hence, undrawn commitment 

AeconcHlation of abittes ertsing from Pnancing setvities 
  

  

  

  

Particulars Debt securities Borrowings other Liability against leased Totat 
than debt securities Basets 

April 1, 2024 18,552.69 1,181.18 242.28 19,578.37 
Cash flows: 

+ fepayment : i1,077.84) {57.19} (1.134,94) 
-Proceeds . £850.00 - 8.850.090 

Non-cash - 
+ Deferment f amortisation of upfront fees and other charges ose 12.18 - 3296 
«Additions during the year - 22,54 7598 S782 

> Others : : 16.09 16.09 

March 3%, 2022 18,552.27 8,988.07 276.36 27,816.70 

Cath flows: 

- Repayment (3.219.165) (15.586.205 (70.67 {19,876.03} 

~ Proceeds £500.00 3LSI719 - 33,017.19 

Non-tash - 

- Delerment / amortisation of uafront fees and other charges aso 70.28 - 75.08 

+ Additions during the year : : 10.27 10.27 

~ Gthers - - 26.33 26.33 
  

March 31, 2023 16,827.91 23,885.34 282.28 40,969.54 
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48 Leoses 
The Holding Compony has tease contracts for office and residential spaces taken onbaase. The lease terms ate between 1 to 10 years. 
The Holding Company also has certain lease with lease terms of 42 months of fess. The Holding Campany applles the ‘short-term ease’ recognition exemptions far these 
leases. 

The casrylng amounts of right-of-use assets recognized and the movements during the petiad are 2s foflows: 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Parifculsrs ‘March 31, 2023 March 32, 2022 

Bafance at the beginning of the yeat 234.95 210,74 
Additions made during the year 10.27 75.06 
Amoriisation on zight of use assets 48.87 50.98 
Hofance atthe sod gf the yeor 136.35. 234.95 

The carrying amounts of lease fiabi'iies and the mavements during the perlod are as follows: 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 34, 2022 
Balance at the bagianing of the year 276.36 242.25 
Additions made during the year ’ 10.27 75.08 
interest accretion for the year 28.33 26.09 
Payments made during the year 70.67) (57.10) 
alance at the end of the year 292.23 276.36 
  

The effective interest sate {or lease liabaities fs 10%, with maturity ranging to 2030-31. 

‘The following are the amounts recognized in profil and loss : 
  

  

  

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 34, 2022 

Depreciation expense in respect of right-of-use asset 58.87 50.84 
interest expense in respect of lease liabilities 26.33 16.03 

Expense relating to short-term leases [included on other expenses) 1069 458 
Totat amount recognited in profit ar fos 85.69 F153 
  

‘The Company's total cash outflows for leases was Ais 70.6? Millions during the year {previous year fis $7.10 Millions} 

Maturity Analysts of Lease Lisblitties 

  

  
Particulars Match 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Upto i month 427 

Over lenonth to 2 month 4.30 2.63 

Over 2 months to 3 months 456 3.62 

Over 3 months 10 6 months 1347 1E66 

Over 6 months ta J year 28.57 24.02 

Over iyear to 3 years Fi63 eo.24 

Over 3 yeats and uate S years: 7371 72.20 

Over S years 36.18 38.94 
  
Tots 282.29 276.36 

  



DMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to Consolidated Financia! Statements 

(AH Amount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated} 

49 Tax expenses 

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 are: 

  

  

  

Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Current tax 1,523.02 676.15 

Deferred tax credit (397.92) (457.54) 

income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 1,125.10 218.61 
  

The major components of tax expense and its reconciliation to expected tax expense based on the enacted tax rate applicable to the Group is 25.17% 

{March31, 2022: 25.17%) and the reported tax expense in statement of profit and loss are as follows: 

  

Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

  

  

  

Profit before tax 4,324.96 805.21 

income-tax rate 25.17% 25.17% 

Expected tax expense 1,688.51 202.65 

Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility disallowed u/s 37 4.09 4.38 

Interest paid to Associated Enterprise disallowed u/s 94B 2.87 - 

Reversal of DTA on Interest Paid to Associated Enterprise 31.39 - 

Capital Expenditure disallowed u/s 37 0.63 2.08 

Others {2.39} 9.49 

1,125.10 218.60 
  

Tax expense 
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Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities: 

As at March 31, 2623 As at March 31, 2022 

Particulars Within 12 | After 12 months Total Within 12 | After 12 months Total 
menths months 

ASSETS 

Financial assets 

Cash and cash equivatents 5,699.76 - §,699.76 6,829.64 - 6,829.64 

Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 421.78 148.47 570.25 294.66 - 2594.66 

Trade receivables 312.09 - 312.09 61.03 ~ 61.03 
Loans 46,054.51 21,288.96 67,344.47 30,117.80 16,683.35 46,801.15 

Investments 4,249.70 3,887.16 8,136.80 7,256.57 3,033.00 10,289.57 

Other financial assets 984.20 105.80 1,696.00 1,582.52 27.56 1,616.68 

Non- financial assets 

Current tax assets {net} 198.76 - 198.76 296.13 - 256.13 

Deferred tax assets {net} - 1,219.49 1,219.49 - 880.14 880.14 

Property, plant and equipment - 143.06 143.00 - 104.64 104.64 

Capital work in progress : - - - 23.27 23.27 

Goodwill - 253.53 253.53 - 253.53 253.53 

Intangible assets under development 8.78 - 8.78 - - - 

Right af use assets 52.61 143.74 196.35 50,30 184.65 234.95 

intangible assets - 21.66 21,66 - 31.44 31.41 

Other non- financial assets 240.72 8.04 243.76 204.91 - 204.91 

Assets held for sale 75.00 - 75.06 143.88 - 143.88 

58,297.91 27,221.79 85,519.70 46,837.44 21,221.55 68,058.99 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

LIABILITIES 

Financial liabitities 

A} Trade payables 

{i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 8.97 - 8.97 94,79 - 94.79 

enterprises 

{ii} total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 1,165.75 - 1,165.75 697.23 - 697.23 

enterprises and small enterprises 

8) Other payables 

(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smali - - - : - - 

enterprises 

(ii} total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 525.06 - 525.06 379,87 - 379.87 

enterprises and small enterprises 
Debt securities 15,353.00 1,484.91 16,837.91 3,200.00 15,352.27 18,552.27 

Borrowings (other than debt securities) 12,124.73 11,764.61 23,889.34 3,397.96 5,590.11 8,988.07 

Lease liabilities 5477 187.52 242.29 44.99 231.37 276.36 

Other financial jiabilities 226.08 57.30 283.98 162.87 - 162.87 

Non financial fiabilities 

Provisions 2.48 99.83 102.31 1.82 84.78 86.60 

Other non-financial tiabilities 257.08 4.71 261.79 103.51 - 103.51 

Equity 

Equity share capital - 6,567.75 6,567.75 - 6,567.00 6,567.00 

Other equity - 35,607.90 35,607.50 - 32,121.29 32,121.29 

Non controlling interest 26.65 26.65 - 29.13 29,33 

29,717.92 55,801.78 85,519.70 8,083.04 59,975.95 68,058.99 
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51 Risk management 

introduction and risk profile 

‘The Holding Company is a private finance company in India and is regulated by lhe Reserve Bank Of India (RBI). In view of the intrinsic nature of operations, the Group is exposed ta a variety of risks, which can 
be broadly classified as liquidity risk, credit risk, interest rate risk and equity price risk. It is also subject to various regulatory risks. 

Risk management structure and policies 

As a lending institution, Group is exposed to various risks that are related to lending business and operating environment. The Principal Objective in Group's risk rnanagement processes is te measure and 
monitor the various risks that Group is subject to follow policies and procedures to address such risks. Group's risk management framework is driven by Board and its subcommittees including the Audit 
Committee, the Asset Liability C i and Risk c i Group gives due importance lo prudent lending practices and have implemented suitable measures for risk 
mitigation, which include verification of credit history from credit information bureaus, personal verificalion of a customer's business and residence, technical and fegal verifications, conservalive igan 1o value. 

(A) tlquidity risk 
Liquidity risk is the potential far foss to an institution arising from either its inability to meet its ob ligations or to fund increases in assets as they fall due withoul incu ring unacceptable cost or iosses. 

The Group manages liquidity risk by measuring and managing net funding requitements using a maturity ladder and calculation of cumulative surplus or deficit of funds at selected maturity dates whith has 

been adopted as 3 standard tool. The Group’s Assets-Lability Committee (ALCO) is responsible for determining the appropriate mix of avaliable funding sources utilized to ensure Group liquidity is managed 
prudently and appropriately. With regard to the process of liquidity management, ALCO alse censiders Ue current economic and market environment, near-term loan growth projections and fong-term 
strategic business decisions. 

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flaws of ihe Group's financial assets and Vabililies 

  

  

  

  

  

                      

March 31, 2023 upto 1 month} Over imanth Overz Gver3 Over 6 manths | Over tyear la] Over 3 years | Over 5 years Total 

taZmenth | months to3 | months to6 tolyear Jyears toS years 

months months 

Financial assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 5,693.76 - - : - - - - 5,699.76 
Bank balance other than Cash and cash equivalents 219.10 - 24.63 0.20 S7BAS (148.47 . - 570.25 
Trade receivables 270.80 4425 - - . - - - 312.09 
Loans $303.44 7,440.45 7,554.25 16,298.35 16,694.60 22,812.66 6,959.63 2,170.97 93,834.22 
Investments $10.25 206.20 1,106.57 L7746,12 4,393.11 3,139.62 1,063.70 4,313.27 10,506.84 
Other financial assets 343.73 : 314.06 322.74 3.67 81.91 : 23.89 1,090.00 
Financial abilities 

Payables 336.22 663.34 337.03 33.55 323.64 - . - 1,699.78 
Debt securities - 298.41 566.45 3239.86 15,450.30 4,762.50 - + 18,407.56 
Borrowings {other than debt securities! 3,238.70 669.00 1,553.20 2,730.76 5,484.73 12,071.40 826.40 - 26,634.13 
Lease liabilities 6.29 6.29 6.31 isio 358 162.01 98.82 41.65 345,75 
Other financial fiabilities 75,43 142.26 38.35 2 : 57.89 : - 283.98 

March 31, 2022 upte t month} Over imenth Over2 Over2 Over 6 manths | Over lyear to} OverZ years | OverS years Foetal 

to2menth | months to03| monthste6 tol year Ayears ta S years 

sannths. snihs 
Financia! assets 

Cash and cash equivatents 5.823.64 1,000.00 - - - - - - 6,829.64 

Bank balance other than Cash and cash equivalents . - 23.09 266.20 5.25 - : : 294.66 
Trade recelvables 61.03 5S - - - - : : 61.03 
Loans 6,740.85 4,372.93 6,640.01 9,885.18 10,992.12 13,405,323 3,795.16 3,119.45 60,951.03 
investments 5,356.66 24.77 1,698.67 141.89 235.50 1,769.23 1255.73 3,128.03 14,354.55 

‘Othe financial assets 1,187.67 0.45 202,59 131.62 74.20 - - 25.55 1,616.06 
Financial flabllities 
Payables S74 46 223.76 20.45 33,06 306.85 70.37 ‘ - Li7igs 
Debt securities . 282.12 143.34 330.82 3,832.44 16,445.46 - - 24,094.18 
Borrowings {other than debt securities) 188.82 138.73 489.51 972.76 1,897.40 4,988.12 4,194.70 : $840.03 
Lease tisbilities 45.56 5.11 6.08 18.24 36.25 417.96 98.76 90.34 37674 

Olher financial abilities 6.44 117.82, 38.61 ‘ = > : : 182.87 
  

{8) Credit risk 

Credit risk arises from the potential that an obligor is either unwilling to pezform on an obligation or its ability lo perform such obligation is impaired resulting in economic loss to the Group. The Group's credit 

tisk management framework is categorized into following main components: 

+ Senlor management's oversight 

~ Organizalional structure 

+ Systems and di fori and risks. 

it is the overall responsibility of the Group's senior management to approve the Company's eredit risk strategy and lending policies relating to credit risk and its management. The palicies are based on the 

Group’s overall business strategy and the same is reviewed every quarter by the senior management. 

To mainiain credit discipline and te enunciate credit risk management and control process there is a separate tisk management department independent of loan origination function. The risk management 
department performs the function of credit policy formulation, ceedit limit setting, itoring of credit fons 2 and review of 

The carrying amount of financial assets represeals the maximum credit exposure. 
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Analysis of risk concentration 

The following lable shows the tisk concentration by industry for the financial assets of the Graup: 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

March 31, 2023 Financial |Gevernment{ Realestate MSME Services and Retali Others Tota 

~ services manufacturing 

Financlaiasset 

Cash and cash equivaients 5,693.76 - . . - - - 5,693.76 
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 570.25 - - . - - - $70.25 
Loans - Corporate {eontraciual amount af ipaas) 43.85 - 8,303.62 - 459.17 631.29 13.14 9,457.27 

Loans - Consumer loans (coulractual amount of foans} : - . 579,75 - 57,307.45 - 57,867.20 

Teade receivables - - . - - 312.03 - 312.09 

Investments 633.23 - 618.03 . 3,225.26 - 3,600.28 9,136.80 

Other financial assets - - - - > 2,053.76 26.24 2,690.00 

Total 7,013.09 - 8,921.85 579.75 3,684.43 59,314.60 3,639.66} 93,153.37 

March 31, 2022 Financial {Government} Realestate MSME Services and Retalt Others Total 

services manufacturing 

Financlal asset 
Cash and cash equivalents 6,829.64 . - - - - - 6,829.64 

Bank balance ather than Cash and cash equivalents 294.66 . - - - a - 294.66 

Loaas - Corporate (contractual amaunt of loans} - - 11,197.03 - 1,665.93 613.91 - 413,476.94 

Loans - Consumer leans {contractual amauni of joans) - - - $25.07 - 32,799.14 ~ 33,324.21 

Trade receivables - - - - - $1.03 - 61.03 
investments 6,450.05 - 72135 . 2,978.40 . 139.77 10,289.57 

Other financial assets - . - - - 4,584.53 28.55 1,830.08 

Total 13,574.35 - 11,918.44 525.07 4,644,33 35,058.61 365.32 65,886.13                   
  

{C) Market risk 

Market risk is the sisk Uhal the value of on and off-balance sheet positions of a financial institulion will be adversely affected by movernents in market rates of prices such as interest tates, foreign exchange 

rates, equity prices, credit spreads and/or commodity prices resuiting in a loss fo earnings and capital. 

Financial institulions may be exposed to market risk in variely of ways. Markel risk exposure may be explicit in partfalios of securities / equities and insteuments that are actively traded. Conversely it may be 

implicit such as interest cate risk due to mismatch of loans aad deposits. Besides, market risk may also arise from activities categorized as off-balance sheet item. Therefore, market tisk is potential for loss 

resulting from adverse movement in market risk factors such as Interest rates, forex rates, equity and commodily prices. 

The Group's exposure to market tisk is primarily on account of Interest rate risk and equity price sisk, 

Total market risk exposure 
  

  

  

[particutars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 33, 2022) Primary risk sensitivity 

ASSETS 

Financial assets 

Inveslments (Other than credit substilutes} 4,084.59 9,597.79 | Equity price 
Credit substitutes and pass through certilicate 5,169.38 2,204.96 |Intetest rate 

LIABILITIES 

Financial fabilities 
Debt securities 16,837.91 18,452.27 |interest rate 

18 {other than debt ities} 23,889.34 8588.07 linterest rate       
  

{i} Interest rate risk: 
interest fate risk arises when there is a mismatch between positions, which are subject ta interest rate adjustment within a specified period. The Group’s lending, funding and investment activities give rise to 
interest rate risk, The immediate impact of variation in interest rate is on the Group's net interest income, while a long term impact is on the Group's net worth since the economic value of the assets, liabilities 

and off-balance sheet exposures are affected, While assessing interest rate risks, signals given to the masket by RGl and government departments from time to time and the linancial industry's reaction to 

them shall be continuously monitored. 

Due to the very nature of financing, the Group Is exposed to moderate te higher interest rate risk. This risk has a major impact on the balance sheet as well as the income statement of the Group. Interest rate 

risk arises due to: 
ij Changes in repulalory or market cendilions affecting the interest tates 

iid Shart term volatility 
iil Prepayment risk translating inte a reinvesiment risk 

iv] Reat interest rate risk. 

interest rate risk exposure 

Variabie Rate Borrowings 

Fired Rate Borrowings 

interest rate sensitivity 

  

  

  

As at March 31, 2023 

28,373.87 
18,353.68 

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates (all other variables being constant) of the Group’s statement of profit and lass: 

in 50 basis points 

  

{il] Equity price cisk 

As at March 33, 2022 

8,965.53 
18,574.81 

Effect on net profit 

For the year ended 

FLSA 

For the year ended 

25.13 

Equity price cisk is the risk Lhat the fair valuc of equilies changes as the result of changes in the levet of equity indices and Individual stocks. A 10 per cent inctease in Ihe value of the Group's FVGCI equ Ities at 

32 March 2023 would have increased equity by Rs. 330.B3 millions (Previous year: Rs 272.01 millians). An equivalent decrease would have resulted in an equivalent but opposite impact, further, A 10 per cent 

increase in the value of the Group's FVTPL equities at 31 March 2623 would have increased profits by Rs. 22.70 millions [Previous year: Rs. 726.5? millions}. An equivalent decrease would have resulted in an 

equivalent but apposite impact. 
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DMI! Finance Private Limited 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

{All Amount in Rs. in millions, unless otherwise stated} 

impact on fair value of level 3 financial instruments measured at fair value of changes to key assumptions 

The table summarises the valuation techniques together with the significant unobservable inputs used to calculate the fair value of the Group’s level 3 assets and 
liabilities. 

  

March 31, 2023 Fair value of Level Valuation technique Significant uncbservable Inputs 

  

Jassets 

Equity shares in DMI Consumer Credit Private Limited 3.48 Net Worth of investee Company Instrument price 

Campulsory convertible debentures of Biorad Medisys Private 600.27 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Instrument price 

Limited 

Compubory convertible preference shares in Alchemist Asset 34,50 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Instrument price 

Reconstruction Company Limited 

Equity shares in Alchemist Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 245.76 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Discount margin / spread 

Credit Substitutes 537.43 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Discount margin / spread 

Equity shares in Flash Efectronics Private Limited 818.97 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Instrument price 

Compulsory convertible debentures of Flash Electronics 1,560.00 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Discount margin / spread 

Non-convertible debentures - unquoted 137.80 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Discount margin / spread 

Equity shares in Azad Engineering Private Limited 227.04 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Discount margin / spread 

Equity shares in Radiant Polymers Private Limited 100,30 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Discount margin / spread 

Units of DM! AIF Special Opportunities Scheme 9.73 Assets under management of units of instrument price 

respective class of Investee Fund 

investment in pass through certificate 3,515.31 Net Asset Value of Investee Company instrument price 

Total 7,760.39 
  

  

March 31, 2022 Fair value of Level Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs 

  

  

Z assets 
Equity shares in DMI Consumer Credit Private Limited 3.37 Net Worth of Investee Company Instrument price 

Computsorily convertible debentures of Azad Engineering Private 631.43 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Discount margin / spread 

Limited 
Equity shares in Alchemist Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 215.76 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Discount margin / spread 

Security receipts of Alchemist XV Trust 194.11 Net asset value Jnastrument price 

Optionally convertible debentures of Azad Engineering Private 434.44 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Discount margin / spread 

limited 
Compulsory convertible preference shares in Alchemist Asset 34.50 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Instrument price 

Reconstruction Company Limited 
Units of DMI AIF Special Opportunities Scheme 10.10 Assets under management of units of Instrument price 

respective class of Investee Fund 
Credit Substitutes $14.24 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Discount margin / spread 

Equity shares in Flash Electronics Private Limited 793.97 Discounted Projected Cash Flows instrument price 

Compulsory convertible debentures 4,148.13 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Discount margin / spread 

Non-convertible debentures - unguoted 367.90 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Discount margin / spread 

Total 4,347.95 
    
Quantitative analysis of significant unobservable inputs 

Instrument price 

Given the nature of this approach, there is no range of prices used as inputs. 

Discount margin/spreads 

Discount margin/spreads represent the discount rates used when calculating the present value of future cash flows. In discounted cash flow models such spreads 

are added to the benchmark rate when discounting the future expected cash flows. Hence, these spreads reduce the net present value of an asset or increase the 

value of a liability. They generally reflect the premium an investor expects to achieve over the benchmark interest rate to compensate for the higher risk driven by 

the uncertainty of the cash flows caused by the credit quality of the asset. They can be implied from market prices and are usually unobservable for illiquid or 

complex instruments. 

    

 



DMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

{all Amount in Rs. In millions, untess otherwise stated} 

Sensitivity of fair value measurements te changes in unobservable market data 

The table below describes the effect of a 10% movement in the significant unobservable input. 

All changes, except for financial instruments at FVOCI would be reflected in Statements of Profit and Loss. 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Particulars Favourable Unfavourable Favourable Unfavourable 

changes changes ch changes 

instruments measured through FVTPL 

Compulsorily convertible debentures of Azad Engineering Private Limited . . 63.14 (63.14) 

Equity shares of Azad Engineering Private Limited 22.70 (22.70) - - 

investment in pass through certificate 351.53 (351.53) = - 

Total (A) 374.23 {374.23} 63.14 (63.14) 
Instruments measured through FVTOCI 

Equity shares in DMI Consumer Credit Private Limited 0.35 (0.35} 0.34 (0.34) 

Equity shares in Alchemist Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 21.58 (21.58} 24.58 {21.58} 

Credit Substitutes 53.74 (53.74) 51.42 (51.42) 

Non-convertible debentures - unquoted 13.78 (43.78} 36.79 (36.79) 

Compulsory convertible debentures of Biorad Medisys Private Limited 66.03 (60.03) - - 

Equity shares in Flash Electronics Private Limited 81.90 (81.90) 73.40 {79.4G) 

Compulsory convertible debentures of Flash Electronics Private Limited 156.00 (158.00) 114.81 (114.81) 

Equity shares in Radiant Polymers 10.01 (10.04) - - 

Units of DMI AiF Special Opportunities Scheme 0.97 (0.97) 1.01 (1.01) 

Total (B) 398.36 {398.36} 305.35 (305.35) 

Total (A+B} 772.60 {772.60} 368.49 (368.49) 
  

The above analysis has been made without considering the impact of tax. 

Fair value of financial instruments not measured at fair value 

Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair vaiues of the Group’s financial instruments that are not carried at fair value in 

the financial statements. This table does not include the fair values of non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities. 

  

  

  

March 33, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Financial assets: Fair value Carrying value Fair value Carrying value 

Loans and advances 

Corporate loans 8,335.85 9,335.85 13,120.52 13,126.52 

Investments — at amortised cost 

Credit Substitutes 447.94 447.94 758.25 758.25 

Financial liabilities: 

Debt securities 16,837.91 16,837.91 18,553.00 418,553.00 

The carrying value of the financial instruments is near to the fair value, accordingly, the same has been considered for the disclosure above. 

Valuation methodologies of financial instruments not measured at fair value 

Below are the methodclogies and assumptions used to determine fair values for the above financial instruments which are not recorded and measured 

at fair value in the company’s financial statements. These fair values were calculated for disclosure purposes only. The below methodologies and 

assumptions relate only to the instruments in the above tables. 

Borrowings - At Amortised cost 

These includes Term Loans. The fair values of such liabilities are estimated using a discounted cash flow mode! based on contractual cash flows using 

actual or estimated yields and discounting by yields incorporating the counterparties’ credit risk. These instrument are classified in Level 3. 

investments - At amortised cost 
These includes Credit substitutes & corporate loans. The fair values of such instruments are estimated using a discounted cash flow model based on 

contractual cash flows using actual or estimated yields and discounting by yields incorporating the counterparties’ credit risk. These instrument are 

classified in Level 3. 

Assets and liabilities other than above 

The carrying value of assets and liabilities other than investments and borrowings at amortised cost represents a reasonable approximation of fair value 
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DMI Finance Private Limited 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

{All Amount in Rs. in millions, unless otherwise stated) 

Previous year/periods figures have been regrouped/rearranged to make them comparable with the current year/periog classification in accordance with 

amendments in Schedule Hl. 

There are no event observed after the reported period which have an impact on the Group's operations. 

  

The financial statements were approved for issue by Board of Directors on May 22 , 2023. 

Disclosure on significant ratios: 

Particulars Description As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
  

{{Debt securities+ Borrowings {other than Debt 
Debt-Equity Ratio 0.97 O71 

q Securities)}/Total equity 
Net profit margin Net profit after tax / total revenue from operations 19.47% 6.34% 

Total debts to total assets {Debt securitiest Borrowings {other than Debt 47.62% 40.47% 

Securities)}/Total assets 
Gross Non-Performing Assets Gross Stage [ll loans EAD / Gross total loans EAD 3.60% 2.18% 

(Gross Stage !il loans EAD - Impairment loss allowance 

Net Non-Performing Assets for Stage Ill) / {Gross total loans EAD-Impairment loss 1.50% 0.31% 

allowance for Stage III} 

Asset cover ratio (no. of times)* Amount of secured assets / Secured debt 1.28 4.79 

(Impairment loss allowance for Stage HI/ Gross Stage 

Provision coverage ratio (%) IIl Foans EAD } 59.31% 86.13% 

  

“it is calculated for fisted debt securities 

Other Statutory information 

1 During the current financial year, the Group has not undertaken any transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or 

section 560 of Companies Act, 1956. 

2 No penalties were imposed by the regulator during the year during the financial year ended 31 March, 2022. . 

3 There are no such transaction which are not recorded in the books of account earlier and have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the current 

financial year in the tax assessments under the Income tax act, 1961. . 

4 The Group has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year. 

5 The Group has not received any fund from any person or entity, including foreign entity (Funding Party) with the understanding {whether recorded in writing or 

otherwise) that the Group shail: 

{a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate 

Beneficiaries) or 

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 

6 The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entitylies), including foreign entities (intermediaries) with the understanding 

that the Intermediary shall 

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

{b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 

7 No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Group to or in 

any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities {“Intermediaries”} with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 

Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the Group (Uitimate Beneficiaries). The Group has not received any fund fram any party(s) 

{Funding Party} with the understanding that the Group shall whether, directly or indirectly lend of invest in other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of 

the Group ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

8 The Group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) 

Rules, 2017 for the financial years ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022. 

9 There are no transactions of undisclosed income not recorded in the books of accounts. 

10 No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 {45 of 

1988) and rules made thereunder in the financial years ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022. 

11 The Group has utilised the funds raised from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which they were borrowed. 

12 The Group has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any of banks, financial institution or any other lender. 

13 No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 

1988} and rules made thereunder in the financial years ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022. 
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